
 
 

 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
You are invited to attend a Meeting of the  

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
At: 
 

Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Swansea. 
 

On: 
 

Tuesday, 20 January 2015 

Time: 
 

2.00 pm 
 
Members are asked to contact Ryan Thomas (Development, 
Conservation and Design Manager) on 635731 should they wish to 
have submitted plans and other images of any of the applications on 
this agenda to be available for display at the Committee meeting. 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Page No. 

 
 
1 Election of a Chair For The Remainder of the Municipal Year 2014-

2015. 
 

 
2 Election of a Vice Chair For The Remainder of the Municipal Year 

2014-2015. 
 

 
3 Apologies for Absence.  
 
4 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests. 1 - 2 
 
  Minutes. 3 - 13 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the following meetings:- 
1) Development Management & Control Committee held on 4 December 
2014. 
2) Area 1 Development Control Committee held on 9 December 2014. 
3) Area 2 Development Control Committee held on 16 December 2014. 

 

 
6 Items for deferral / withdrawal.  
 
7 Determination of Planning Applications under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 
14 - 225 

 
8 Planning Application No. 2014/0417 - Land off Monksland Road, 

Scurlage, Gower, Swansea. 
226 - 251

 
9 Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order No. P17.7.4.568 - 

Oystermouth Court, Swansea. 
252 - 253



 

 

 

 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal, Democratic Services & Procurement 
14 January 2015 

Contact: Democratic Services - 636824 
 
 
 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (SECTION 100) (AS AMENDED) 
 
(NOTE:  The documents and files used in the preparation of this Schedule of 
Planning Applications are identified in the ‘Background Information’ Section of each 
report.  The Application files will be available in the committee room for half an hour 
before the start of the meeting, to enable Members to inspect the contents). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE (12) 
 

Labour Councillors: 8 

John C Bayliss   Andrea S Lewis 

David W Cole Paul Lloyd   

Ann M Cook Des WW Thomas 

Erika T Kirchner T Mike White 

 
Liberal Democrat Councillors: 2 

Mary H Jones Cheryl L Philpott 

 
Independent Councillors: 1 

Ioan M Richard  

 
 
Conservative Councillor: 1 

To Be Confirmed  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\0\AI00011042\$vlu0vyru.doc 

Disclosures of Interest 

 
To receive Disclosures of Interest from Councillors and Officers 

 

Councillors 

 
Councillors Interests are made in accordance with the provisions of the 
Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea.  You must 
disclose orally to the meeting the existence and nature of that interest. 
 
NOTE: You are requested to identify the Agenda Item / Minute No. / Planning 
Application No. and Subject Matter to which that interest relates and to enter 
all declared interests on the sheet provided for that purpose at the meeting. 
 
1. If you have a Personal Interest as set out in Paragraph 10 of the 

Code, you MAY STAY, SPEAK AND VOTE unless it is also a 
Prejudicial Interest.  

 
2. If you have a Personal Interest which is also a Prejudicial Interest as 

set out in Paragraph 12 of the Code, then subject to point 3 below, you 
MUST WITHDRAW from the meeting (unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the Authority’s Standards Committee) 

 
3. Where you have a Prejudicial Interest you may attend the meeting but 

only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or 
giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are 
also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether 
under a statutory right or otherwise.  In such a case, you must 
withdraw from the meeting immediately after the period for 
making representations, answering questions, or giving evidence 
relating to the business has ended, and in any event before further 
consideration of the business begins, whether or not the public are 
allowed to remain in attendance for such consideration (Paragraph 14 
of the Code). 

 
4. Where you have agreement from the Monitoring Officer that the 

information relating to your Personal Interest is sensitive information, 
as set out in Paragraph 16 of the Code of Conduct, your obligation to 
disclose such information is replaced with an obligation to disclose the 
existence of a personal interest and to confirm that the Monitoring 
Officer has agreed that the nature of such personal interest is sensitive 
information. 

 
5. If you are relying on a grant of a dispensation by the Standards 

Committee, you must, before the matter is under consideration: 
 

i) Disclose orally both the interest concerned and the existence of 
the dispensation; and 

ii) Before or immediately after the close of the meeting give written 
notification to the Authority containing: 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\4\0\AI00011042\$vlu0vyru.doc 

a) Details of the prejudicial interest; 
b) Details of the business to which the prejudicial interest 

relates; 
c) Details of, and the date on which, the dispensation was 

granted; and  
d) Your signature 

 

Officers 

 
Financial Interests 
 
1. If an Officer has a financial interest in any matter which arises for 

decision at any meeting to which the Officer is reporting or at which the 
Officer is in attendance involving any member of the Council and /or 
any third party the Officer shall declare an interest in that matter and 
take no part in the consideration or determination of the matter and 
shall withdraw from the meeting while that matter is considered.  Any 
such declaration made in a meeting of a constitutional body shall be 
recorded in the minutes of that meeting.  No Officer shall make a report 
to a meeting for a decision to be made on any matter in which s/he has 
a financial interest. 

 
2. A “financial interest” is defined as any interest affecting the financial 

position of the Officer, either to his/her benefit or to his/her detriment.  It 
also includes an interest on the same basis for any member of the 
Officers family or a close friend and any company firm or business from 
which an Officer or a member of his/her family receives any 
remuneration.  There is no financial interest for an Officer where a 
decision on a report affects all of the Officers of the Council or all of the 
officers in a Department or Service. 

 

Page 2



 
 

 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

 
MINUTES OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL 

COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT THE CIVIC CENTRE, SWANSEA ON THURSDAY, 4 
DECEMBER 2014 AT 5.00 PM 

 

 
PRESENT: Councillor P Lloyd (Chair) Presided 

 
Councillor(s) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 
 

J C Bayliss 
J E Burtonshaw 
R A Clay 
D W Cole 
A M Cook 
J P Curtice 
N J Davies 
P Downing 
C R Doyle 
V M Evans 
W Evans 
R Francis-Davies 
F M Gordon 
J A Hale 
 

T J Hennegan 
C A Holley 
P R Hood-Williams 
B Hopkins 
D H Hopkins 
L James 
Y V Jardine 
J W Jones 
M H Jones 
S M Jones 
E T Kirchner 
A S Lewis 
D J Lewis 
R D Lewis 
 

C E Lloyd 
K E Marsh 
P M Matthews 
P M Meara 
C L Philpott 
J A Raynor 
T H Rees 
I M Richard 
R V Smith 
G J Tanner 
M Thomas 
T M White 
 

  

 
39 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

 
Apologies for Absence were received from Councillors N S Bradley, W J F Davies, A 
M Day, E W Fitzgerald, J E C Harris, C A Holley, H M Morris, J Newbury, C 
Richards, P B Smith, R C Stewart, D G Sullivan, M Theaker, C Thomas, C M R W D 
Miles, D W W Thomas, L G Thomas, L J Tyler – Lloyd and L V Walton. 
 

40 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS. 
 
In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of 
Swansea, no interests were declared. 
  
 

41 MINUTES. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Development Management & Control 
Committees held on 30 September & 9 October 2014 be agreed as a correct record. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



Minutes of the Development Management and Control Committee (04.12.2014) 
Cont’d 

 

 

42 PLANNING APPLICATION NO.2008/1615 - FORMER BERNARD HASTIE AND 
CO. SITE, MORFA ROAD, SWANSEA. 
 
The Head of Economic Regeneration & Planning submitted a report to reconsider 
the Section 106 agreement relating to the above application. 
  
This application had been reported to the Area 1 Development Control Committee on 
27 May 2014.The application was referred to the Development Management and 
Control Committee held on 19 June 2014 with a recommendation that the application 
be approved subject to a Section 106 agreement. 
  
A plan showing the location site was attached as Appendix A, together with a copy of 
a further letter from the applicants attached as Appendix B and the report to the Area 
1 Development Control Committee attached as Appendix C. The report detailed the 
revised viability assessment and that the development  would not be commercially 
viable if the previously agreed Section 106 Planning Obligations were required in full. 
However, the land dedication for the road would be secured on completion of the 
Section 106 Planning Obligation which was an essential requirement in order to 
deliver a key section of the Morfa Distribution Road. The Committee considered the 
revised Section 106 Planning Obligation Heads of Terms. 
  
RESOLVED that the application BE APPROVED  and the Section 106 Obligation be 
amended and that minor amendments to the detailed wording of the conditions be 
carried out.  
 

43 PROPOSALS FOR THE ENHANCEMENT OF EXISTING POWERS GENERATION 
FACILITIES AT TATA'S PORT TALBOT STEELWORKS - WRITTEN 
REPRESENTATIONS. 
 
The Head of Economic Regeneration & Planning submitted a report regarding 
proposals for the Enhancement of Existing Power Generation Facilities at Tata’s Port 
Talbot Steelworks. The report detailed the proposed scheme and sought delegated 
powers to respond formally. 
  
RESOLVED that:- 
  
(1)      Delegated Powers be granted to the Head of Economic Regeneration   and 
 Planning to submit written representation relating to the impacts of the 
 proposed development on the City and County of Swansea to the   Examining 
 Authority of the Planning Inspectorate in accordance with  the timetable for 
 the examination process. 
  
(2)      Delegated Powers be given to the Head of Economic Regeneration and 
 Planning to formally contribute to a Statement of Common Ground to be 
 submitted to the Examining Authority in accordance with the timetable for the 
 examination process. 
  
(3)      Delegated Powers be given to the Head of Economic Regeneration and 
 Planning to formally respond to the Examining Authority’s Inspector 
 questions in accordance with the timetable for the examination process 

Page 4



Minutes of the Development Management and Control Committee (04.12.2014) 
Cont’d 

 

 

 during the course of the examination and also to make comment on the 
 submissions of other parties, including the applicant. 
  
(4)      Delegated Powers be given to the Head of Economic Regeneration  and 
 Planning to formally represent the views of the City & County of  Swansea  in 
 any topic specific hearing and subsequent requirements in  accordance 
 with the timetable for the examination process during the course of the 
 examination. 
 

44 MINUTES OF THE RIGHTS OF WAY SUB COMMITTEE. (FOR INFORMATION) 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Rights of Way Sub Committee held on 13 
August 2014 and 8 October 2014 be noted. 
  
The meeting ended at 5.43p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 

Page 5



 
 

 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

 
MINUTES OF THE AREA 1 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC CENTRE, SWANSEA ON 

TUESDAY, 9 DECEMBER 2014 AT 2.00 PM 

 

 
PRESENT: Councillor P Lloyd (Chair) Presided 

 
Councillor(s) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 

J C Bayliss 
U C Clay 
S E Crouch 
P Downing 
V M Evans 
R Francis-Davies 

J A Hale 
C A Holley 
A S Lewis 
R D Lewis 
C E Lloyd 
P M Matthews 
 

P M Meara 
L G Thomas 
G D Walker 
L V Walton 
 

  

37 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors NJ Davies, CR Doyle, FM 
Gordon, B Hopkins, JW Jones, KE Marsh, BG Owen, PB Smith and TM White. 
 

38 DISCLOSURES OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS. 
 
In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of 
Swansea, the following interests were declared: 
  
Councillor RD Lewis – Personal – Planning Application No.2014/1483(Item 2) – I 
know the applicant. 
  
Councillor LV Walton – Personal - Planning Application No.2014/1334(Item1) – I 
know some of the residents in and around Russell Street. 
  

39 MINUTES. 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Area 1 Development Control 
Committee held on 11 November 2014 be approved as a correct record subject to 
the first line of Minute No.33 being amended to read Area 1. 
  

40 ITEMS FOR DEFERRAL / WITHDRAWAL. 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Minutes of the Area 1 Development Control Committee (09.12.2014) 
Cont’d 

 

 

41 DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE TOWN AND 
COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990. 
 
The Head of Economic Regeneration and Planning submitted a series of Planning 
Applications.   
  
Amendments to this schedule were reported and are indicated below by (#). 
  
RESOLVED that: 
  
(1) the undermentioned planning applications BE APPROVED subject to the 
conditions in the report and/or indicated below 
  
(Item 1) Application No.2014/1334 - Demolition of existing office building and 
replacement with 18 no. flats with associated parking and works – amendment 
to planning permission 2011/1310 granted 29/02/2012 involving alternative 
treatment to the rear gallery access balustrading, individual apartment 
treatments to the rear gallery access balustrading, individual apartment entry 
doors, stair enclosure and the car park perimeter wall at Russell House, 31 
Russell Street, Swansea. 
 
 
#(Item 2) Application No. 2014/1483 – To fell 2 Yew trees covered by TPO 
No.228 at 56 Glanmor Road, Uplands, Swansea. 
 
Late correspondence from applicant querying whether sufficient consideration is 
being to the structural to the structural engineer’s report and indicating that the 
application has been submitted to enable the wall to be rebuilt. 
  
The site was inspected by a Building Inspector during consideration of a previous 
application on the site. Advice was given that whilst the wall needed to be rebuilt, it 
was considered that an opportunity engineered retaining wall could be designed so 
that the trees did not need to be felled. The applicant has not submitted any 
evidence to demonstrate that such a wall could not be built. 
  
Mr Jones (on behalf of the applicant) addressed the Committee. 
  
Application approved contrary to officer recommendation as Committee 
considered the felling of the trees was necessary to allow the re-construction of the 
existing wall on the site and subject to the following condition. 
  
Condition: 
Following the tree works authorised by this consent, it is a requirement to plant 4 
replacement yew trees, the trees to be of advanced nursery stock size, container 
grown or root balled.  Details of the size and precise planting position shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to their 
planting. They shall be planted in the approved positions. 
The replacement trees must be planted during the first planting season (October-
March) immediately following the felling of the trees authorised by this consent.  The 

Page 7



Minutes of the Area 1 Development Control Committee (09.12.2014) 
Cont’d 

 

 

planting shall be carried out in accordance with the Code of Practice for General 
Landscape Operations BS4428:1989 Section 7. 
Should any of the replacement trees be removed, die or become severely damaged 
or seriously diseased all within 5 years of planting, it shall be replaced by a tree of 
similar size and the same species to that originally planted. 
The Local Planning Authority shall be notified a minimum of 7 days in advance of the 
date and time when the work authorised by this consent is to be carried out.  
The work shall be carried out by a qualified tree surgeon to British Standard 3998 
(2010) recommendations for tree work, the identity of whom shall be notified to the 
Local Planning Authority a minimum of 7 working days before the work is to be 
carried out. 
  
Reason: 
In the interests of visual amenity and biodiversity 
 

42 PLANNING APPLICATION REFERENCE 2009/1435 - LAND TO AND SIDE OF 28 
CHRISTOPHER RISE, PONTLLIW. 
 
The Head of Economic Regeneration and Planning submitted a report which outlined 
to Committee the change in Welsh Government Planning Policy which means that 
conditions previously approved are now covered by Building Regulations. 
  
It is now therefore no longer necessary to apply Conditions 7.8 and 9 relating to the 
above application that were previously approved on 12 March 2013. 
  
RESOLVED that the decision notice be issued without the minimum sustainability 
requirements set out in conditions 7, 8 and 9 of the original committee report. 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 2.25 pm 
 
 

CHAIR 

Page 8



 
 

 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

 
MINUTES OF THE AREA 2 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC CENTRE, SWANSEA ON 

TUESDAY, 16 DECEMBER 2014 AT 2.00 PM 

 

 
PRESENT: Councillor P Lloyd (Chair) Presided 

 
Councillor(s) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 

J C Bayliss 
R A Clay 
J E Burtonshaw 
M C Child 
A C S Colburn 
D W Cole 
A M Cook 
J P Curtice 
 

W Evans 
E W Fitzgerald 
R Francis-Davies 
T J Hennegan 
L James 
Y V Jardine 
M H Jones 
S M Jones 
 

R D Lewis 
K E Marsh 
J A Raynor 
T H Rees 
R V Smith 
D W W Thomas 
C M R W D Thomas 
M Thomas 
 

42 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors NS Bradley, AJ Jones, DJ 
Lewis, J Newbury, CL Philpott, C Richards and GJ Tanner. 
 

43 DISCLOSURES OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS FROM 
MEMBERS. 
 
In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of 
Swansea, the following interests were declared:- 
  
Councillor ACS Colburn – Personal – Planning Application No.2014/0885(Item 8) – I 
have spoken to all parties involved in the application – made statement on 
application and left prior to decision. 
  
Councillor AM Cook – Personal – Planning Application No.2014/1209(Item 5) - I 
know the residents. 
  
Councillor L James - Personal – Planning Application Nos.2014/1368, 2014/1584, 
2014/1470 (Items 3, 4 & 11) – Member of the Gower Society. 
  
Councillor CMRWD Thomas - Personal – Planning Application Nos. 2014/0927(Item 
10 – I know the architect) and 2014/170 (Item 11 – I know both applicant & agent) 
 

44 MINUTES. 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Area 2 Development Control Committee held on 
18 November 2014 be approved as a correct record. 
 

Page 9



Minutes of the Area 2 Development Control Committee (16.12.2014) 
Cont’d 

 

 

45 ITEMS FOR DEFERRAL / WITHDRAWAL. 
 
1) The following application was deferred by Officers for the reasons indicated below: 
  
Confirmation of TPO No.P17.7.4.568 – Oystermouth Court, Swansea. (Agenda 
Item 6) 
Reason – For further legal and procedural advice. 
  
  
2) RESOLVED that the following application be deferred for the reasons indicated 
below: 
  
#(Item 8) Planning Application No.2014/0885 - 2 x second floor rear extensions 
to form 3 additional bedrooms, rear raised terrace, external staircase and 
alterations to the existing flue at Ocean Living, 734 Mumbles Road, Mumbles, 
Swansea. 
 
Note: Prior to deferral 
A visual presentation was given. 
  
Mr Jenkins(objector) addressed Committee. 
  
Late correspondence indicating no objection from Mumbles Community Council. 
 
Reason 
In order to allow the Planning Department to negotiate an amended scheme with the 
applicant/agent, as the existing scheme is considered by Committee to adversely 
affect the living conditions of the neighbouring occupiers. 
 

46 DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE TOWN AND 
COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990. 
 
The Head of Economic Regeneration and Planning submitted a series of planning 
applications.   

Amendments to this schedule were reported and are indicated below by (#). 

RESOLVED that: 

(1) the undermentioned planning application BE APPROVED subject to the 
conditions in the report and/or indicated below: 

#(Item 3) Planning Application No.2014/1368 - Retention of rear dormer, 
retention of front rooflights and construction of single storey side extension at 
Kittiwakes, Rhossili, Swansea. 
  
A visual presentation was given. 
  
Mrs Glynternick(objector) and Mr Cullen(agent) addressed Committee. 

Page 10



Minutes of the Area 2 Development Control Committee (16.12.2014) 
Cont’d 

 

 

  
#(Item 5) Planning Application No.2014/1209 - Three pairs of semi-detached 
dwellings at Land to the rear of 114 Brithwen Road, Waunarlwydd, Swansea. 
  
A visual presentation was given. 
  
Mr Morgan(objector) and Mr Roberts(applicant) addressed Committee. 
  
Additional Condition Added: 

15. Before any development commences on site, details of a 1.8m high brick wall to 
be built along the western boundary of the site, shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved wall shall be constructed 
prior to any of the dwellings hereby approved being brought into beneficial use and 
shall be retained at all times thereafter. 

Reason: In order to safeguard the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers, by 
preventing car headlights (of cars parking in the proposed parking bays) from shining 
onto neighbouring property. 
  
#(Item 6) Planning Application No.2014/0987 - Detached dwelling (outline) at 
Ringing Stones, Mayals Road, Mayals, Swansea. 
  
A visual presentation was given. 
  
Mr Phillips(objector) addressed Committee. 
  
Late correspondence indicating no objection from Mumbles Community Council. 
  
 
#(Item 7) Planning Application No.2014/0990 - New detached dwelling (outline) 
at The Cedars, 135  Mayals Road, Mayals, Swansea. 
  
A visual presentation was given. 
  
Mr Phillips(agent) addressed Committee. 
  
Late correspondence indicating objections from Mumbles Community Council. 
  
 
#(Item 9) Planning Application No.2014/1486 - Retention and completion of 
extension to existing garage at 1 Langland Close, Mumbles, Swansea. 
  
Mrs Fisher(objector) addressed Committee. 
  
Late correspondence indicating no objection from Mumbles Community Council. 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Minutes of the Area 2 Development Control Committee (16.12.2014) 
Cont’d 

 

 

(2) The undermentioned planning applications BE REFUSED for the reasons 
indicated in the report and/or below: 

#(Item 1) Planning Application No. 2014/1461 - Removal of condition 04 of 
planning permission 2008/2092 dated 28/06/2010 to allow the completion of the 
build without installing the Louver system at 11 Caswell Road, Langland, 
Swansea. 
 
A visual presentation was given. 
  
Late correspondence indicating no objection from Mumbles Community Council. 
  
Mr Jenkins(objector) and Mr John(applicant) addressed Committee. 
  
Application refused contrary to Officer recommendation for the following reason: 
The removal of Condition 4 of planning permission 2008/2092 would result in a lack 
of adequate mitigation measures being in place to protect the privacy of the 
neighbouring occupiers, contrary to Policies EV1 and HC7 of the City and County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008 and the Council’s Supplementary 
Planning Guidance entitled ‘A Design Guide for Householder Development. 
  
 
#(Item 2) Planning Application No. 2014/1519 - Single storey side extension 
with first floor roof terrace at The Cottage, Rhossili, Swansea. 
 
A visual presentation was given. 
  
Mrs Hullins(applicant) addressed Committee. 
  
#(Item 4) Planning Application No.2014/1584 - Detached dwelling (outline) at 
Land adjacent to Channel View, Llanmadoc, Gower, Swansea. 
  
A visual presentation was given. 
  
 
#(Item 10) Planning Application No.2014/0927 - Retention and completion of 
two storey  side extension and increase in ridge height to provide first floor 
living accommodation (amendment to planning permission 2008/1279 granted 
7th August, 2008) at 179 Newton Road, Newton, Swansea. 
 
A visual presentation was given. 
  
Late correspondence indicating objections from Mumbles Community Council. 
  
Mr Collier(objector) and Mr Gill(agent) addressed Committee. 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 12



Minutes of the Area 2 Development Control Committee (16.12.2014) 
Cont’d 

 

 

#(Item 11) Planning Application No.2014/1470 - Detached dwelling and 
detached garage at The Dingle near Gower Coast Lodge, Caswell, Swansea. 
 
A visual presentation was given. 
  
Late correspondence indicating objections from Mumbles Community Council. 
  
Late correspondence from CADW reported. 
  
Late correspondence from the applicant reported. 
  
Mr Phillips & Mrs Shellard(objectors) and Mr Griffiths(applicant) addressed 
Committee. 
 
 
(3) the following items were not determined by Committee as the meeting became 
inquorate. 
  
(Item 12) Planning Application No.2014/1459 - Addition of pitched roof to 
existing outbuilding to form one unit of holiday accommodation with new 
garage/workshop (Amendment to planning permission 2010/0187 granted 3rd 
March 2011) at Sea Shells, Llanrhidian, Gower, Swansea. 
  
  
(Item 13) Planning Application No.2014/1588 - Single storey rear extension, 
creation of outdoor swimming pool rear terraced areas, safety ballustrade and 
new rear boundary walls at Gors Green, Reynoldston, Swansea, 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 5.00 pm 
 
 

CHAIR 

Page 13



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bay Area 

Team Leader:  

Richard Jones - 635735 

Area 1 

Team Leader:  

Ian Davies - 635714 

Area 2 

Team Leader:  

Chris Healey - 637424 

 

Castle 

Landore 

Mayals 

Oystermouth 

St Thomas 

Sketty 

Uplands 

West Cross 

 

Bonymaen 

Clydach 

Cockett 

Cwmbwrla 

Gorseinon 

Llangyfelach 

Llansamlet 

Mawr 

Morriston 

Mynyddbach 

Penderry 

Penllergaer 

Penyrheol 

Pontarddulais 

Townhill 

 

 

Bishopston 

Dunvant 

Fairwood 

Gower 

Gowerton 

Killay North 

Killay South 

Kingsbridge 

Lower Loughor 

Newton 

Penclawdd 

Pennard 

Upper Loughor 

 

 
 

Members are asked to contact the relevant team leader for the ward in which the 
application site is located, should they wish to have submitted plans and other 
images of any of the applications on this agenda displayed at the Committee 

meeting. 
 

 
CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

DINAS A SIR ABERTAWE 

 
Report of the Head of Economic Regeneration & Planning  

 
to Chair and Members of Planning Committee  

DATE: 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

 
Phil Holmes 
BS(Hons), MSc, Dip Econ 
Head of Economic Regeneration & Planning Page 14

Agenda Item 7



TWO STAGE VOTING  
 

Where Members vote against officer recommendation, a two stage vote will 
apply.  This is to ensure clarity and probity in decision making and to make 
decisions less vulnerable to legal challenge or awards of costs against the 
Council. 
 
The first vote is taken on the officer recommendation. 
 
Where the officer recommendation is for “approval” and Members resolve not 
to accept this recommendation, reasons for refusal should then be formulated 
and confirmed by means of a second vote. 
 
The application will not be deemed to be refused unless and until 
reasons for refusal have been recorded and approved by Members.  The 
reason(s) have to be lawful in planning terms.  Officers will advise specifically 
on the lawfulness or otherwise of reasons and also the implications for the 
Council for possible costs against the Council in the event of an appeal and 
will recommend deferral in the event that there is a danger that the Council 
would be acting unreasonably in refusing the application. 
 
Where the officer recommendation is for “refusal” and Members resolve not to 
accept this recommendation, appropriate conditions should then be debated 
and confirmed by means of a second vote.  For reasons of probity, Member 
should also confirm reasons for approval which should also be lawful in 
planning terms.  Officers will advise accordingly but will recommend deferral if 
more time is required to consider what conditions/obligations are required or if 
he/she considers a site visit should be held.  If the application departs from 
the adopted development plan it (other than a number of policies listed on 
pages 89 and 90 of the Constitution) will need to be reported to Planning 
Committee and this report will include any appropriate conditions/obligations. 
 
The application will not be deemed to be approved unless and until 
suitable conditions have been recorded and confirmed by means of a 
second vote. 
 
Where Members are unable to reach agreement on reasons for refusal or 
appropriate conditions as detailed above, Members should resolve to defer 
the application for further consultation and receipt of appropriate planning and 
legal advice.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

CONTENTS 
 

ITEM APP. NO. SITE LOCATION 
OFFICER 

REC. 

    

1 2014/1656 11 Troed Y Rhiw, Llansamlet, Swansea, SA7 9SA REFUSE 

  Two storey side/rear extension  

    

2 2014/1119 1st floor 1 York Street, Swansea, SA1 3LZ APPROVE 

  First floor terraced area and fenestration alterations 
to Victoria Road elevation 

 

    

3 2014/1319 1A/B Calvert Terrace Swansea  SA1 6AY APPROVE 

  Retention of front hardstanding   

    

4 2014/1729 Land South of Fabian Way, Swansea, SA1 8LD APPROVE 

  Construction of drive through retail coffee house 
(Class A3) 

 

    

5 2014/1678 114 Castle Road, Mumbles, Swansea SA3 5TA APPROVE 

  Two storey part single storey rear extension, rear 
dormer, and front bay window (amendment to 
planning permission 2013/0249 granted 23 April 
2013) 

 

    

6 2014/0026 Land in front of Langlands Brasserie Ltd Brynfield Road 
Langland Swansea SA3 4SQ 

APPROVE 

  Construction of new decked terrace on land to the 
south of the coastal path opposite Langlands 
Brasserie 

 

    

7 2014/1382 Orchard Park Farm, Llanmadoc, Swansea, SA3 1DE REFUSE 

  Construction of stables  

    

8 2014/1845 165A Newton Road, Newton, Swansea, SA3 4UD REFUSE 

  Two storey rear extension, front porch and creation 
of one additional off road parking space   

 

    

9 2014/1067 Cross Marble and Stone Ltd, Gorseinon Road, 
Gorseinon, Swansea, SA4 9GE 

REFUSE 

  Construction of 4.No retail units  

Page 16



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM APP. NO. SITE LOCATION 
OFFICER 

REC. 

    

10 2014/1459 Sea Shells, Llanrhidian, Gower, Swansea APPROVE 

  Addition of pitched roof to existing outbuilding to 
form one unit of holiday accommodation with new 
garage/workshop (Amendment to planning 
permission 2010/0187 granted 3rd March 2011)  

 

    

11 2014/1569 Land adjacent to Gors Green, Reynoldston, Swansea, 
SA3 1AE 

APPROVE 

  Detached dwelling house (details of access, 
appearance, layout and scale pursuant to application 
2008/0560 granted 20th December 2013) 

 

    

12 2014/1588 Gors Green, Reynoldston, Swansea, SA3 1AE APRPOVE  

  Single storey rear extension, creation of outdoor 
swimming pool rear terraced areas, safety 
ballustrade and new rear boundary walls 

 

    

13 2014/1666 The Dranges Nature Reserve on land to the East of 
Barlands Common, South & West of Broadley Farm, 
Bishopston, Swansea 

APPROVE 

  Creation of seven small ponds and the construction 
of hibernation sites 

 

    

14 2014/1757 Field 8753, Weobley Castle Farm, Llanrhidian, Gower APPROVE 

  Use of land for caravan rally for a maximum of 60 
units from Friday 3rd July to Sunday 5th July 2015 
(inclusive) 

 

    

15 2014/1758 Field 0818, Bank Farm, Horton, Swansea, SA3 1LL APPROVE 

  Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 40 
units from Saturday 8th August to Saturday 22nd 
August 2015 (inclusive) 

 

    

16 2014/1759 Field 6729, Rosedale, Llanrhidian, Swansea, SA3 1HB APPROVE 

  Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 25 
units from Friday 24th April to Sunday 26th April 
2015 (inclusive) 

 

    

17 2014/1782 Little Penmynydd Cottage Llangennith Swansea SA3 
1DT 

APPROVE 

  Extension to existing outbuilding to form a garage  

    
Page 17



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM APP. NO. SITE LOCATION 
OFFICER 

REC. 

    

18 2014/0773 Land south of Beauchamp Walk (off Loughor Road) 
Gorseinon Swansea 

APPROVE 

  Construction of 25 residential dwellings and 
associated works including underground pumping 
station and surface water attenuation pond. 

 

    

19 2014/0761 Land at Pencefnarda Uchaf Farm, Pencefnarda Road, 
Gorseinon, Swansea 

APPROVE 

  Installation of ground mounted solar array; capacity 
up to 3.6 megawatts; ancillary infrastructure 
including fencing, security cameras, inverter kiosks, 
construction compound and laydown areas, cabling, 
substation building and screening including hedge 
and tree planting and new bank supporting hedge 
and tree planting 

 

    

 

Page 18



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 1  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1656 

  WARD: Llansamlet 
 

 

Location: 11 Troed Y Rhiw, Llansamlet, Swansea, SA7 9SA 

Proposal: Two storey side/rear extension 

Applicant: Mr N Frost 

 
 

20

3

T
R
O
E
D
-Y
-R

H
IW

1

34

3

1
9

2

M
A
E
S
-Y
R
-H
A
F

1
2
6

1
2
2

2
1

2
2

1
9
a

3
2

1
1

4
7

1
7
a

4

1
0
5

Golwg-y-

9
3

2
6

E
T
L

9
2

1
0
2

1
7
b

Ddinas

1
0
7

1
0
9

2
3

31

4

37

1
1
2

8
2

33

H
E

O
L
 H

A
F
D

Y

1

1

9
1

5

1

8
0

7

8

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 19



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 1 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1656 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy AS6 Provision of car parking in accordance with adopted standards. (City & 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy HC7 Proposals for extensions and alterations to existing residential dwellings 
will be assessed in terms of; relationship to the existing dwelling, impact 
on the character and appearance of the streetscene, effect on 
neighbouring properties, and impact on car parking. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2004/1429 Extension of existing dormer window on front elevation 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  10/08/2004 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
EIGHT NEIGHBOURING properties were consulted. ONE LETTER OF OBJECTION has 
been received. Concerns summarised as follows; 
 
1. Overshadowing. 
2. Lower ground level. 
3. Loss of view due to close proximity of extension. 
 
Highways Observations – No objections raised. 
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is called to Area 1 Committee for determination at the request of 
Councillor Uta Clay to allow members to consider the effects of the extension on nearby 
residents. A site visit has also been requested. 
 
Description 
The application seeks full consent for a two storey side extension to a detached property 
located at 11 Troed Y Rhiw, Llansamlet. Original plans have been amended and the agent 
has confirmed these amended plans should now be considered. Concerns in regards to 
the original scheme related to the excessive and disproportionate scale proposed in 
relation to the host dwelling which would also give rise to a detrimental visual impact 
within the wider street-scene. This would have been exacerbated by the elevated and 
highly visible siting of the application dwelling.  Page 20



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 1 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1656 

 
In addition, the potential impact to the residential amenities of neighbouring occupiers 
predominantly by reason of overbearing physical impact was of particular concern, again 
due to the position of the application dwelling on an upward gradient in relation to 
neighbouring dwellings sited to the south-west.  
 
Policy Considerations 
Policy EV1 is concerned with design and seeks to ensure that new development, amongst 
other criteria, should be appropriate to the local context in terms of scale, form and 
massing and should sensitively relate to existing development patterns. Furthermore, 
Policy HC7 aims to ensure extensions are acceptable in terms of their relationship to the 
host dwelling and do not adversely impact on the residential amenities of neighbouring 
occupiers. Policy EV2 states that regard should be given to the physical character and 
topography of the application site and its surroundings whilst Policy AS6 seeks adequate 
parking arrangements. The considerations associated with Policies EV1, EV2 and HC7 
are explained in more detail within the supplementary planning guidance entitled “A 
Design Guide for Householder Development” (2008). 
 
The Main Issues 
These are considered to be the effect of the proposal on the appearance of the host 
dwelling by virtue of its design and scale, the visual impact to the wider area and the 
potential effect to the residential amenities of neighbouring occupiers by reason of the 
proposal’s siting, scale and size. 
 
Visual Amenity 
The amended extension would be set back from the front of the property and set down 
from the ridge line in accordance with the advice contained within the supplementary 
planning guidance entitled “A Design Guide for Householder Development” (2008). In 
addition, the reduced proportions are now considered acceptable and the proposed 
structure would be satisfactorily subservient in relation to the host dwelling. Given the 
reduced proportions now proposed it is not considered that a significant detrimental visual 
impact within the wider street-scene will arise by virtue of the proposed scale.  
 
Residential Amenity 
The proposal is shown to be set 0.9 m off the side boundary of the application site at its 
nearest point and 1.3 m at furthest. It is this side boundary which forms the rear boundary 
of the properties at 33 and 35 Maes-Yr-Haf. The distance from the rear elevation of 33 
Maes-Yr-Haf to the rear boundary is 11.7 m and therefore total overall separation 
distances of 12.6 m at minimum and 13.0 m would be achieved. A minimum separation 
distance of 15.0 m is specified within the supplementary guidance for new residential 
developments adopted in January 2014 entitled “Places to Live” specifically in order to 
prevent an overbearing impact to neighbouring habitable rooms and gardens. Given this 
insufficient spacing, also made worse by the siting of the application dwelling on higher 
ground levels in relation to the affected neighbours, it is considered that the proposal will 
result in a detrimental overbearing impact. Therefore, in seeking to apply one of the main 
principles of Policy EV2, the proposal is considered to fail in as much as insufficient 
account has been taken of the topography of the site in relation to neighbours. Whilst an 
existing side garage is present at the application site and a single storey outbuilding is 
sited within the rear garden of 33 Maes-Yr-Haf, the first floor element of the proposal will 
rise significantly above the height of both these structures. The result will be additional 
massing and bulk causing a much more oppressive outlook to neighbours particularly due 
to their location on lower ground levels. Page 21



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 1 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1656 

 
In addition to the above, Part C.2 of the adopted supplementary planning guidance 
entitled “A Design Guide for Householder Development” emphasizes that in order to avoid 
an overbearing impact a two-storey extension should not be positioned very close to the 
boundary adjacent to the garden of a neighbouring property such that it would 
unacceptably encroach upon the sense of openness and outlook. The proposal is 
considered to fail in this respect and, overall, does not accord with part (v) of Policy EV1 
which seeks to ensure new development sensitively relates to existing development 
patterns.  
 
Furthermore, Part (iii) of Policy HC7 specifically states that in assessing proposals for 
residential extensions particular reference to physical impact should be considered in 
relation to neighbouring properties. Whilst an attempt has been made to address the main 
issues in relation to potential overbearing impact via the reduced amended scale of the 
scheme, concerns still exist given the siting of the two storey structure in relation to 
neighbouring properties to the south, particularly 33 and 35 Maes-Yr-Haf. Although 
potential for overshadowing and loss of light does not raise significant concern the 
combination of inadequate separating distances and the elevated siting of the two storey 
structure will cause a significant overbearing impact to occupiers of adjoining property.   
 
Conclusions 
In conclusion, and having regard to the relevant material considerations, including the 
Human Rights Act, the proposal is considered to represent an unacceptable form of 
development which fails to accord with Policies EV1, EV2 and HC7 of the adopted City 
and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan (2008) and the supplementary 
planning guidance documents entitled “A Design Guide for Householder Development” 
(2008) and "Places to Live: A Residential Design Guide" (2014). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
REFUSE, for the following reason; 
 

1 The proposed two-storey side extension would have a dominant and significant 
detrimental overbearing impact on adjoining occupiers at Nos. 33 and 35 Maes-Yr-
Haf by virtue of its siting and elevated location on higher ground levels in relation 
to these properties to the detriment of residential amenity and fails to comply with 
Policies EV1, EV2 and HC7 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary 
Development Plan (2008) and the supplementary planning guidance entitled "A 
Design Guide for Householder Development" (2008) and "Places to Live: A 
Residential Design Guide" (2014). 

 
INFORMATIVES 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: EV1, EV2, HC7 and AS6. 

 
PLANS 
A.02.4 site location and block plan, A.01.1 existing floor plans, A.01.2 existing elevations 
dated 31 October 2014,  A.02.1 Rev A proposed floor plans, A.02.2 Rev A proposed 
elevations, A.02.3 Rev A proposed perspectives and sections dated  27 November 2014 
 

Page 22



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 2  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1119 

  WARD: Castle 
 

 

Location: 1st floor 1 York Street, Swansea, SA1 3LZ 

Proposal: First floor terraced area and fenestration alterations to Victoria Road 
elevation 

Applicant: Monpellan Investments Ltd 

 
 

C
lu
b

C
lu
b

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 R
O

A
D

Sub Sta

Y
or
k

44

C
ha
m
be
rs

M
e
tr
o
p
o
le

28 29

S
a
lu

b
ri
o
u
s
 P

a
s
sa

g
e

El

Y
o
rk

 P
la

c
e

YORK STREET

C
h

a
p
e

l

2 to 3

8

S
A

L
U

B
R

IO
U

S
 P

L
A

C
E

C
h
a
m
b
e
rs

8.4m

30

42

43

4
2
a

B
a
p
ti
s
t

1

31

Hotel

Multistorey

Car Park

39
-40

Salubrious Court

Cinema

Salubrious

Place

3

L
IT

T
L
E

 W
IN

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

Swansea Museum

 

 

 

Flats 1(1st fl) 2(2nd fl ) &5(1st & 2nd fl) Salubrious Chambers

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 23



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 2 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1119 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV3 Proposals for new development and alterations to and change of use of 
existing buildings will be required to meet defined standards of access. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV9 Development within or adjacent to a Conservation Area will only be 
permitted if it would preserve or enhance the character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area or its setting. (City & County of Swansea 
Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy CC1 - 
UDP 

Within the City Centre, development of the following uses will be 
supported:- 
(i) Retailing and associated uses (Classes A1, A2, A3), 
(ii) Offices (B1), 
(iii) Hotels, residential institutions and housing (C1, C2, C3), 
(iv) Community and appropriate leisure uses (D1, D2, A3) 
(v) Marine related industry (B1, B2). 
Subject to compliance with specified criteria. (City & County of Swansea 
Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2003/2372 Change of use of first floor Office (Class A2) to retail (Class A1) and 
restaurant (Class A3) 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  20/01/2004 

 

2011/1597 Change of use of first floor from a bar/restaurant (Class A3) to Dance 
venue (Class D2) 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  11/01/2012 

 

2003/1461 Change of use of first floor offices (Class A2) to restaurant (Class A3) 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  09/09/2003 

 

2006/0372 Change of use from car sales to a restaurant (Class A3) 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  13/06/2006 
Page 24



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 2 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1119 

 

2014/1851 Retention of 2 no. internally illuminated box signs, 1 no. internally 
illuminated projecting sign, 1 no. non illuminated wall sign, 1 no. non 
illuminated fascia sign and 1 no. non illuminated high level wall sign 

Decision:  CALLED IN Application (Swansea) 

Decision Date:  30/12/2014 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION 
 
The application was advertised on site. ONE LETTER OF OBJECTION has been received 
which is summarised as follows: 
 

1. There is already noise and disturbance from this ‘private club’. 
2. Opening out will only make the nuisance much worse. 
3. The city has spent money on the boulevard, is this to be what people see when 

they drive into town.  
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is reported to Area 1 Committee for decision at the request of Councillor 
Sybil Crouch to consider the impact of the proposal on residential amenity. A site visit is 
requested. 
 
Description 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the use of the first floor terraced area and 
fenestration alterations to the Victoria Road elevation of No. 1 York Street, Swansea. 
 
Planning permission has been granted for the change of use of the first floor of this 
building to a restaurant (Class A3) and this use was implemented.  
 
Planning permission was then subsequently granted for the change of use of the first floor 
from a bar/restaurant (Class A3) to a Dance Venue (Class D2) ref: 2011/1597. 
 
For clarification, notwithstanding the information in the Design and Access Statement, 
whilst planning permission 2011/1597 was approved for a change of use to a Dance 
Venue (Class D2), the applicant and agent have confirmed in writing that this (Class D2) 
permission has not been implemented and the premises does not trade as a private 
members club or dance venue. The applicant has confirmed that the first floor is currently 
trading and will continue to trade as a bar and restaurant (Class A3).  
 
The ground floor is occupied as a carpet/flooring shop. The property is situated adjacent 
to the Wind Street Conservation Area, at the bottom of York Street, opposite the York 
St./Wind St. mixed use development and adjacent to the York Place Baptist Chapel, which 
is a Grade II listed building.  
 
The proposal is for external works to create an outdoor balcony at first floor level to 
provide an additional seating area. New doors will be fitted to allow access onto the 
balcony area together with a food server hatch. The terrace area will utilise the existing flat 
roof of the canopy that provides a covered ground floor area to the commercial use below.  

Page 25



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 2 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1119 

 
The first floor use will continue to be accessed directly off York Street. The proposed use 
will not result in any extension or new build. A safety screen will be erected around the 
edge of the existing flat roof area to enclose the proposed seating area on the terrace.  
 
Issues 
 
The main issue for consideration with regard to this application relates to the acceptability 
of the proposal when assessed against policies CC1, EV1, EV2, EV9 and AS6 of the City 
and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008. There are in this case 
considered to be no additional overriding considerations arising from the provisions of the 
Human Rights Act. 
 
Whilst the proposal is located outside of the Wind Street Conservation Area, an area 
designated for bar/restaurant/late night entertainment uses, it is considered that the site 
and surrounding uses are complementary to that of the wider Wind Street Area and as 
such the site can be considered as part of the broader mix uses prevalent within this 
particular area of the City Centre. 
 
The external terrace will incorporate additional seating area to be used in association with 
the existing use and as is considered to comply with the provisions of Policy CC1 of the 
Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Visual Amenity 
 
With regard to the impact of the proposed development upon the character and 
appearance of the adjacent conservation area and listed building, the canopy is an 
existing structure and the agent has confirmed that this may be strengthened to support 
the proposed terrace but there is no new building proposed. The elevation facing Victoria 
Road at first floor level is currently covered by signage. The external alterations include 
the provision of new doors and a serving hatch to the elevation fronting Victoria Road. A 
toughened glass balustrade will be erected around the perimeter of the balcony. A hard 
wood decked floor will replace the existing corregated metal roof of the existing canopy.  
On this basis, it is considered that the proposal will have a positive impact upon the 
character of the existing building and it is not considered that the proposal will have an 
unacceptable adverse impact upon the character and appearance of the adjacent listed 
building or the conservation area. The proposal therefore complies with the provisions of 
Policy EV1, EV2 and EV9 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
(2008). 
 
Residential amenity 
 
Turning to the impact upon the amenity of neighbouring properties, it is considered that 
since the application property is surrounded by other commercial properties, the 
introduction of an external seating area at first floor level will not have an unacceptable 
adverse impact upon the amenity of surrounding properties over and above that currently 
experienced due to the existing uses in the site vicinity. However, it is acknowledged that 
the existing use has opening hours that continue to 04.00 hours in the morning, and it is 
considered that to ensure that the external terrace does not give rise to any unacceptable 
noise and disturbance impact, the hours of use by customers of the external terrace 
should be restricted to between 8.30am and 11.30pm. 

Page 26



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 2 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1119 

 
Other Issues 
 
The concerns raised have been noted and material planning considerations relating to 
residential amenity and visual amenity have been addressed in the preceding paragraphs 
 
Highways & Safety 
 
There are not expected to be any highway safety issues arising from the proposal.  
 
Conclusion 
 
Having regard to all material planning considerations including the Human Rights Act, it is 
considered that the proposal will not have an unacceptable impact upon the visual 
amenities of the area, the character and appearance of the adjacent Listed Building and 
Conservation Area in compliance with the provisions of policies EV1, EV2, EV9 and AS6 
of the City and County of Swansea Unitary development Plan 2008. Approval is therefore 
recommended. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than five years from the 
date of this decision. 

 Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990.  

 

2 The external terrace area at first floor level shall not be used before 08.30 am nor 
after 11.30 pm on any day. 

 Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties.  

 

3 Samples of all external finishes shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in writing before the development is commenced. The scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.  

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 

4 Notwithstanding the details shown in the approved plans, no development shall 
take place until details at the scale of 1:5 of the proposed safety balustrade and 
fittings to the existing building shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. All works undertaken shall be in accordance with the approved 
details before the use of the terrace area commences. 

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: EV1, EV2, EV3, EV9 and CC1. 

 Page 27



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 2 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1119 

 
2 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 
3 The proposed development lies within coal mining area which may contain 

unrecorded mining related hazards.  If any coal mining feature is encountered 
during development, this should be reported to The Coal Authority. 
 
Any intrusive activities which disturb or enter any coal seams, coal mine workings 
or coal mine entries (shafts and adits) requires the prior written permission of The 
Coal Authority. 
 
Property specific summary information on coal mining can be obtained from The 
Coal Authority's Property Search Service on 0845 762 6848 or at 
www.groundstability.com 

 
4 The applicant is advised of the need to obtain separate consent under the Town 

and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 1992 for any 
advertisements requiring express consent which it is intended to display on the 
premises. 

 
PLANS 
 
Site location and block plan, 002 existing floor plan, 004 existing elevations, 006 exterior 
photos, 007 sections dated 4th August, 2014. Amended Plans - 003 proposed first floor 
plan, 005 proposed elevations dated 25th November 2014. 
 

 

Page 28



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 3  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1319 

  WARD: Castle 
Area 1 

 

Location: 1A/B Calvert Terrace Swansea  SA1 6AY 

Proposal: Retention of front hardstanding  

Applicant: Mr P Wardman 

 
 

34

67

46

1

58

2

45

21.9m

1
8

23.8m

26.8m

49

40

13

34

Ty Mawr

57

1
1
7

CARLTON TERRACE

a

17

42

2

23

5

1
2
 to

 1
4

33 to 40

1 to 8

20.4m

8

1

49

91

Shelter

MANSEL STREET

El Sub Sta

135

144

1

7

Play Area

45

1
0
3

El Sub Sta

Brunel Court

50

69

43

37

CHAD
DESLE

Y TER
RAC

E

41.8m

P
o
s
ts

C
ha
dd
es

le
y

V
ill
as

Club

P
R

IM
R

O
S

E
 H

IL
L

HEATHF
IELD

40.8m

El Sub Sta

26

65

12

93

C
a
lv

e
rt T

e
rra

c
e

47

OAKLANDS TERRACE

1
7

56

30

43

140

35

46

61

5a

3 to 4

Celtic Business Park

1
b

59

42

24

 
 

49A Flats 1-4 (1st & 2nd fl)

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 29



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 3 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1319 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy AS6 Provision of car parking in accordance with adopted standards. (City & 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy HC7 Proposals for extensions and alterations to existing residential dwellings 
will be assessed in terms of; relationship to the existing dwelling, impact 
on the character and appearance of the streetscene, affect on 
neighbouring properties, and impact on car parking. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2014/0410 Retention and completion of a front hardstanding with a new vehicular 
exit onto Calvert Terrace. 

Decision:  Refuse 

Decision Date:  13/06/2014 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
ONE NEIGHBOURING PROPERTY was consulted, no response received. 
 
Highway Observations:  Retention of front hardstanding  
 
Additional details have been received and Drainage (CCS) have confirmed that they are 
satisfied that the method of drainage is appropriate for the site.  
 
There is an element of boundary wall that had been removed at the southern end of the 
site and to prevent this access being opened up again it will be a requirement that the wall 
be rebuilt in prevent the access being used by vehicles. The wall should tie in with the wall 
construction on either side. 
 
I recommend that no highway objections are raised to the proposal subject to the 
replacement boundary wall being constructed in accordance with details to be submitted 
to the LPA within three months of the date of this consent. 
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is called to Committee for determination at the request of Councillor Sybil 
Crouch 

Page 30



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 3 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1319 

 
Full planning permission is sought for the retention and completion of a hard standing with 
drainage area, to the front of the property known as 1A/1B Calvert Terrace, Swansea.  
The entire front `garden’ area of the dwelling, which has long been converted to two 
separate flats, has been given over to a hard standing of tarmacadam to provide off-street 
parking for the property, in an area where on-street parking is limited to residents/parking 
permit holders only and which is rarely not at full capacity. 
 
A previous scheme for this site showed the entire area given over to hard standing and 
with two points of access; one from Carlton Terrace to the north, and one directly onto 
Calvert Terrace where it meets Heathfield.  2014/0410 was refused for three reasons on 
13th June 2014, viz: 
 
1. The proposal, by virtue of the introduction of a hard standing at this location, results 

in an unacceptable form of development that has an adverse effect on the 
character and appearance of the property and streetscene in general, to the 
detriment of visual amenity, contrary to the provisions of Policies EV1, EV2 and 
HC7 of the City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. 

 
2. The proposal, by virtue of the introduction of the new exit at Calvert Terrace too 

close to the existing road junction, would create hazards to the detriment of 
highway safety.  The proposal is therefore contrary to the criteria set out in Policy 
EV1 of the City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. 

 
3.   The proposal, by virtue of the introduction of the impermeable surface, results in an 

unacceptable surface water run-off onto the adjacent highway, to the detriment of 
highway safety.  The proposal is therefore contrary to the criteria set out in Policies 
EV1 and EV2 of the City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. 

 
The amended scheme seeks to address the concerns raised in respect of the earlier 
application and to overcome the reasons for refusal detailed above and, in support of the 
amended proposal, information/photographs have been supplied in respect of each 
aspect. 
 
Firstly, it is the applicants’ contention that the parking area, though visible in the 
streetscene, does not appear discordant given the existence of several other similar hard 
standing areas in the vicinity, which also contribute to the overall appearance of the 
streetscene.  In particular, they point to the large parking area to the flats on the opposite 
side of the Calvert Terrace/Heathfield junction (Ty Mawr), as well as the staff parking area 
off Calvert Terrace for the Beor Wilson Lloyd Solicitors offices at Calvert House to the 
south. 
 
In addition, the current proposal shows that the additional exit/access onto Calvert Terrace 
is to be blocked up and a dwarf wall reinstated, to match the existing low level wall 
currently surrounding the property.  In this way, the applicants seek to overcome both the 
visual amenity impact detailed in reason 1 and the highway safety impact detailed in 
reason 2 for the refusal of the earlier application. 
 

Page 31



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 3 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1319 

 
In relation to reason 3, it is now proposed that part of the parking area (the south-western 
corner) is to be excavated to a depth of 300mm and filled with stone chippings to provide 
a drainage area within the site, in order to overcome the concerns expressed regarding 
the increase in surface water run-off from the property.  In this way the hard surfaced area 
will drain within the site, in a natural soak away to the lower garden area. 
 
In terms of the visual impact of the provision of off-street car parking, it is considered that 
whilst the applicants have indicated that several other parking areas already exist in the 
vicinity the current proposal does introduce a form of development which affects the 
character and appearance of the area. However, it is considered that suitable planting 
along the front and side boundary of the application site will reduce this impact and as a 
result, an appropriate condition is recommended.  In addition, the proposed reinstatement 
of the dwarf wall to the Calvert Terrace elevation of the boundary would also assist in 
reducing the visual amenity impact of the secondary access/egress originally proposed. 
 
The proposal now includes provision for drainage of the hard standing area to a soak 
away to be provided within the site, so that the hard standing area results in no additional 
surface water run-off onto the highway, thus negating that particular highway safety issue. 
 
In terms of highways observations, the originally-submitted scheme was relayed to our 
Drainage & Coastal Management Section, who immediately sought additional drainage 
details from the agents.  These have now been approved by that section, who have 
confirmed that they are satisfied that the method of drainage is appropriate for the site. 
 
In addition, there is an element of boundary wall that had been removed at the southern 
end of the site and to prevent this access being opened up again it will be a requirement 
that the wall be rebuilt to prevent the access being used by vehicles.  The wall should tie 
in with the existing wall construction on either side.  The Head of Highways and 
Transportation recommends that no highway objections are raised to the proposal subject 
to the replacement boundary wall being constructed in accordance with the submitted 
details and the conditions attached hereto. 
 
In conclusion, and having regard to all material considerations including the Human Rights 
Act, the amended proposal is considered to represent an acceptable form of development, 
complying with the criteria of Policies AS6, EV1 and HC7 of the adopted City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008; and with the guidelines indicated in the 
adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance document A Design Guide for Householder 
Development” (2008). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
APPROVE, subject to the following conditions; 
 

1 Within 3 months of the date of this decision, the parking area hereby 
approved/illustrated on the submitted plan shall be: 

(i) constructed to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a porous or 
permeable area or surface within the curtilage of the dwellinghouse, in 
accordance with the submitted details; and  

(ii) be permanently maintained so that it continues to comply with the 
requirements of paragraph (i). 

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory means of drainage.  
Page 32



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 3 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1319 

 

2 Within 3 months of the date of this decision, the boundary wall along the Calvert 
Terrace frontage shall be rebuilt in accordance with the submitted details. The wall 
should tie in with the wall construction on either side. 

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 

3 Within one month of this decision, a scheme for the landscaping of the site along 
the front and side boundaries of the site shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for its written approval.  The landscaping scheme as approved shall be 
carried out in the first planting season following approval of the scheme. Any trees 
or shrubs planted in accordance with this condition which are removed, die, 
become seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced by trees 
or shrubs of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted. 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: Policies AS6, EV1 and HC7 of the 
adopted City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008. 

 
2 STANDING ADVICE - DEVELOPMENT LOW RISK AREA 

 
The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may contain 
unrecorded coal mining related hazards.  If any coal mining feature is encountered 
during development, this should be reported immediately to The Coal Authority on 
0345 762 6848.  It should also be noted that this site may lie in an area where a 
current licence exists for underground coal mining. 
 
Further information is also available on The Coal Authority website at: 
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-coal-authority 
 
Property specific summary information on past, current and future coal mining 
activity can be obtained from: www.groundstability.com 
 
This Standing Advice is valid from 1st January 2015 until 31st December 2016 

 
3 Please note that this consent is specific to the plans and particulars approved as 

part of the application.  Any departure from the approved plans will constitute 
unauthorised development and may be liable to enforcement action.  You (or any 
subsequent developer) should advise the Council of any actual or proposed 
variations from the approved plans immediately so that you can be advised how to 
best resolve the matter. 
 
In addition, any conditions that the Council has imposed on this consent will be 
listed above and should be read carefully.  It is your (or any subsequent 
developers) responsibility to ensure that the terms of all conditions are met in full 
at the appropriate time (as outlined in the specific condition). 

Page 33



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 3 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1319 

 
 
 

The commencement of development without firstly meeting in full the terms of any 
conditions that require the submission of details prior to the commencement of 
development will constitute unauthorised development.  This will necessitate the 
submission of a further application to retain the unauthorised development and 
may render you liable to formal enforcement action. 
 
Failure on the part of the developer to observe the requirements of any other 
conditions could result in the Council pursuing formal enforcement action in the 
form of a Breach of Condition notice. 

 
4 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 
PLANS 
 
Site location plan, block plan dated 11th September, 2014 
 

 

Page 34



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

  WARD: St Thomas 
 

 

Location: Land South of Fabian Way, Swansea, SA1 8LD 

Proposal: Construction of drive through retail coffee house (Class A3) 

Applicant: Commercial Development Projects Ltd 

 
 

Travelling Crane

El Sub Sta

Bol
lard

s

1
7

43

9
3

Shelter

FABIAN WAY

10
4

15

F
A

WR

VA
LE

 O
F

ROAD

WER
N

G
A
R
D
E
N
S

98

3
2

18
a

Mile End Inn

125

87

Bevans R
ow

(PH)

NEATH ROAD

113

9

47

2
6

57

2
3

99

79

1
9

91

34

1

2
7

4
1

69

4
7

4
2

4
2

101

L Twr

SP

1

1

S
T
R
E
E
T

7

5

11
0

1
2

9.4m

10
9

2

WERN FAWR ROAD

LB

6.7m

El Sub Sta

FB
Shelter

1
1
0
a

8.8m

6

C
R
Y
M
L
Y
N

Park & Ride

Cycle Path

65a

65b

&

Hotel

Silo

Sinclair A
udi Swansea

S. G
. S

wansea

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 35



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 
National Planning Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 7 July 2014 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with the stated objectives of good design 

Policy EV2 Siting of new development should give preference to the use of 
previously developed land over greenfield sites and should have regard 
to the physical character and topography of the site and its 
surroundings. 

Policy EV3 Accessibility for new developments 

Policy EC4 The acceptability of all retail development proposals will be assessed 
against the need for the development, where this is relevant to 
determination.   

Policy EC5 Developments within district shopping centres 

Policy EC6 Provision of appropriate small-scale local shopping and neighbourhood 
facilities in local shopping centres 

Policy EC9 Retail development at out-of-centre locations will be resisted 

Policy AS1 Development proposals to be located in accessible locations 

Policy AS2 Design and layout of new developments   

 
SITE HISTORY  

App No. Proposal 

99/1627 ERECTION OF A PUBLIC HOUSE (CLASS A3) (OUTLINE) - 
(AMENDED PROPOSAL) 

Decision:  *HGPC - GRANT PERMISSION CONDITIONAL 

Decision Date:  08/05/2000 

 

A00/1035 Erection of 997sqm single storey food retail store (Class A1) formation 
of 72 space car park together with associated landscaping 

Decision:  Refuse 

Decision Date:  12/12/2000 

 

A01/0113 ERECTION OF 997 SQUARE METRE SINGLE STOREY FOOD 
RETAIL STORE (CLASS A1), FORMATION OF 73 SPACE CAR PARK 
TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING 

Decision:  *HRP - REFUSE PERMISSION 

Decision Date:  06/03/2001 

 

2005/1528 Construction of single storey foodstore with associated car parking and 
landscaping 

Decision:  Refuse 

Decision Date:  31/01/2006 Page 36



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

 

2006/1710 Construction of single storey foodstore with associated car parking and 
landscaping 

Decision:  Refuse 

Decision Date:  23/11/2006 

1.  The applicants have failed to demonstrate a clear need for the scale 
and type of store proposed on the application site.  As such the proposal 
is considered to be contrary to National and Local Retail Planning Policy 
strategies and objectives for the promotion of established shopping 
centres as the most appropriate locations for retail development, in 
particular to Policies S1 and E8 of the Swansea Local Plan Review No. 
1. 

2.  As a result of the applicants' failure to convincingly demonstrate that 
the scale of the proposed development is justified by unmet local top-up 
convenience goods shopping needs in the St  Thomas / Danygraig 
/Port Tennant area, and the absence of any real evidence to 
demonstrate the application of a sequential approach to site  selection, 
the application conflicts with the requirements of Swansea   Local Plan 
Review No.1 Policies S1 and E8. 

3.  Levels of accessibility to the site by residents within the store's 
primary catchment area, particularly on foot and by bus are not good, 
and even accessibility by car, contrary to assertions of the applicants' 
agents, does not appear to result in any significant reduction in overall 
journey lengths, contrary to Swansea Local Plan Review No.1 Policies 
S1 and T1 and Policy T1 of the West Glamorgan Structure Plan Review 
No.2. 

4.  The development by virtue of its unacceptable scale, layout, design 
and external appearance, fails to adequately respond to the  design 
requirements of this prominent gateway site on Fabian Way, the 
principal transport corridor into the City for the east.  It fails therefore to 
meet the design standards required by Polices BE1 and  E10 of the 
Swansea Local Plan Review No. 1, Planning Policy Wales and 
Technical Advice Note 12 (Design). 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
The application was advertised on site and the 11 residential properties in Bevans Row 
and 3 commercial properties were consulted individually. FOUR LETTERS OF 
OBJECTION (from 3 separate properties) have been received making the  following 
points:   
 
 1. Bevans Row suffers from rubbish from the adjacent McDonalds.  
 
 2. The car park adj. to 5 Bevans Terrace is already awash with litter and there 

is a problem with rats. Development will make this worse.  
 
 3. Pollution and noise issues. 

Page 37



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

 
 4. Starbucks is not needed in the area. A retail food store is required.  
 
 5. Same objections as against Lidl that was refused.  
 
ONE LETTER OF SUPPORT from Hancock and Brown.     
 
Highway Observations – Proposals are for the construction of a drive through retail 
coffee house for Starbucks (Class A3) with associated hard and soft landscaping, 
customer parking and vehicular circulation space, outside dining area and drive through 
facility.  
 
The site is located opposite the existing McDonalds Restaurant lying to the south of 
Fabian Way. Access is off Langdon Road, a service road off Fabian Way which also 
serves McDonalds, a builders merchants, a national car franchise along with the former 
AWCO site and Bevans Row. There is no vehicular access from the site to Fabian Way 
via Bevans Row. The access road connects to Fabian Way via a major all direction traffic 
light controlled junction which also provides access to the Council's Park and Ride car 
park located on the north side of Fabian Way. The mixed use SA1 Swansea Waterfront 
development is located to the west of the site and other areas are allocated for 
employment uses to its south and east. To the east of the site the former AWCO works is 
being used by a number of industrial and distribution businesses utilising parts of the old 
factory buildings which have been subdivided into smaller units. 
 
With the exception of Bevans Row therefore, the character of the area is exclusively 
commercial. 
 
The site is currently vacant and undeveloped and is bounded to the north by a sloping 
landscaped bank down to Fabian Way, an adjacent site with trees and a row of terraced 
dwellings lies to the east. The boundaries are unaffected by the proposal.  
 
Proposed layout  
The proposed layout shows access to the site will be via a shared unadopted access road 
currently serving McDonalds. The site is accessed / exited via an eastern continuation of 
Langdon Road using 1 access / exit point. Deliveries and servicing are made at present to 
the adjacent McDonalds Restaurant. The same road will be used for this application.  
 
The drive through restaurant has a gross internal floor area of 207 sq. m and 
accommodates 57 covers. An external seating area is also proposed. 20 car parking 
spaces including 2 spaces for the mobility impaired, 2 motor cycle spaces and 2 cycle 
spaces will be provided set out with circulation space to accommodate drive through 
customers.   
 
Highway / Traffic considerations and access  
Following consultations with the officers of the highway authority a Transport Statement 
has been prepared and submitted. The conclusions of this statement are that the 
development is well served by all modes of transport and will not have an adverse impact 
on highway conditions.  Moreover because of the nature of the use which will attract 
almost exclusively existing traffic using Fabian Way,  the net additional traffic generation 
onto the Fabian Way corridor will be nil or negligible. 

Page 38



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

 
The development site is bound by the A483 Fabian Way to the north, industrial units to the 
east, Langdon Road to the south and a McDonald's drive through restaurant to the west. 
The proposal site is located adjacent to McDonalds and will share the existing access 
road which connects to Langdon Road. The site access is located approximately 150m 
from the Fabian Way / Langdon Road signal junction and  approximately 2.5km from the 
centre of Swansea and benefits from a high level of accessibility via the highway network.  
 
Regarding access by foot and cycle, the residential area of Port Tennant falls within an 
800m walking catchment area. Sections of the industrial area to the south of the proposed 
development also fall within this catchment, consequently local employees in the area 
may visit the proposed development by foot. The nearest pedestrian crossing of Fabian 
Way in the vicinity of the development is a pedestrian bridge located approximately 200m 
to the east of the site linking the Port Tennant Park and Ride with the industrial area. 
There is also a second pedestrian bridge to the west of the Langdon Road / Fabian Way 
signal junction, located near Reginald Street / Port Tennant Road. National Cycle Network 
Route 4 runs along the northern side of the A483 Fabian Way and the north of the Park 
and Ride site. 
 
The proposed site is also well served by bus with the nearest stops located on Fabian 
Way serving both east and westbound, located approximately 240m and 200m walk away. 
These stops are currently served by multiple bus routes and the walking routes contain 
pedestrian footpaths and a pedestrian bridge across Fabian Way. 
 
The proposals site will be served by extending the existing vehicular access road used by 
the adjacent McDonalds drive through restaurant. As site access is to be shared, the 
visibility splays are accepted as suitable. All vehicles will undertake their manoeuvring 
within the site, entering and exiting via the existing vehicular access in forward gear. 
Pedestrian and cycle access will be provided via the existing vehicular site access. 
 
Traffic data  
The submitted Transport Statement provides an assessment of the proposed 
development trip generation and effect on local junctions with the network peak hours 
assumed to be Weekday 08.00 - 0.900 and 17.00 - 18.00, Saturday peak hour 12.00 - 
13.00. The study network for the traffic effects of the proposal looked at site 
access/Langdon Road priority junction, Langdon Road roundabout and Fabian 
Way/Langdon Road/Park and Ride signal junction.  The calculated peak trip rates 
indicated that the traffic effect at the site is modest during peak hours and negligible 
elsewhere, assuming that 90% of traffic is diverted from the nearby road network and 10% 
is pass-by i.e. road users who currently pass the proposal site on their journey and alter 
their trip to visit the proposed establishment before continuing with their journey.   
 
Conclusion  
The area is commercial in the main and the proposed site is accessible by a choice of 
transport modes. There is local concern with regard to environmental concerns in the main 
however concern with regard to possible increased traffic has been mentioned. The 
assessment of the peak hour proposed net traffic effect concluded that the net traffic effect 
would be modest to negligible. It appears highly likely that the majority of customers will 
be drawn from passing traffic and that which diverts from Fabian Way before returning to 
its usual journey. Access to the site is existing and established and parking arrangements 
are acceptable.    

Page 39



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

 
Recommendation  
I recommend approval. 

 
Addendum to original observations. 
Negotiations have been ongoing regarding the impact of the development in terms of new 
trips on Fabian Way, i.e. those that are not already on the network  but make a special trip 
solely to the drive through. 

 
The comprehensive Transport Study that was provided concluded that the majority if not 
all the trips were linked to existing trips and not new to the network. There  was no 
concrete evidence put forward to support that assumption and in light of that a financial 
contribution was sought towards the joint NPTBC/CCS Fabian Way corridor study 
programme of works. This is based on the estimated number of new trips compared to the 
existing flows on Fabian Way (which are approx. 33,000  per 24 hours). 

 
A figure of £33,750 has put forward and this is considered by the Head of Highways and 
Transportation to be an appropriate sum in view of the trip generation projected.  

 
I therefore recommend that a sum of £33,750 be secured under a section 106 Agreement 
and that money is to be provided prior to beneficial use of the A3 use commencing. 
 
APPRAISAL 
 
The application has been called by Cllr Clive Lloyd to consider the potential impact on the 
local community through increased traffic and the environmental impact.  
 
The application seeks full planning permission for the construction of a freestanding drive 
through retail coffee house (Class A3) with associated access and car parking, on land to 
the north of Langdon Road, Swansea, adjacent to the existing McDonalds drive though / 
restaurant. The vacant application site sits on the eastern side of the McDonalds and is a 
relatively flat rectangular area of land, elevated above the level of Fabian Way. The site is 
not part of the allocated area of the strategic mixed use area of SA1 Swansea Waterfront 
under Policy EC2 of the Unitary Development Plan (UDP).  
 
The development would utilise the existing McDonalds vehicular access from Langdon 
Road with a one way access looping around the proposed restaurant to utilise the 
proposed drive through facility. The restaurant building would be set back from the 
frontage with the car parking (20 spaces) located in front of the entrance to the building.  
The materials for façade are indicated to include metal cladding panels, brick and render. 
The restaurant area would incorporate glazing panels overlooking the car parking area 
and external seating / dining area.  It is indicated that the coffeehouse is intended to be 
operated by Starbucks and would employ 20 full time and 15 part time jobs.   
 
Main Issues  
 
The main issues for consideration relate to the acceptability of the proposed land use 
when assessed against the provisions of adopted Development Plan Policy and 
Supplementary Planning Guidance as well as the visual impact, impact on highway safety 
and residential amenity. There are considered to be no additional issues arising from the 
provisions of the Human Rights Act. 

Page 40



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

 
Development Plan Policy  
 
Planning Policy Wales indicates that when determining planning applications for retail, 
leisure or other complementary functions they should best be located in established town, 
district local and village centres. Where a need is identified for such new developments, 
local planning authorities should adopt a sequential approach to the selection of sites, the 
first preference should be to town centre locations, and if not available then consideration 
should be given to appropriated edge of centre sites.    
 
Policy EC4 states that the acceptability of all retail development proposals will be 
assessed against the need for the development and sets out the tests for which 
applications will be assessed. As well as standard tests of establishing need and 
demonstrating sequential suitability of the site proposed, the policy requires the developer 
to demonstrate the unit is in a highly accessible location and that the proposed scheme is 
unlikely to have any material adverse impact upon the vitality or viability of established 
shopping centres. Policy EC5 relates to designated district centres, which clearly this is 
not. Whilst EC6 is relevant in respect of providing small-scale local shopping 
neighbourhood facilities in order to meet local need. Areas of local shopping provision 
deficiency include St. Thomas / Danygraig, however, it has to be recognised that the 
location is relatively isolated and is not easily accessible from the local community. In 
relation to retail policy EC9, there is a clear presumption against further out of centre 
shopping development within the County boundary, with the exception of retail 
warehouses engaged in the sale of bulky goods not normally sold on the high street. The 
policy emphasise that further development of Class A1 retail floorspace at out-of-centre 
sites will generally be resisted in the interests of sustaining and improving the vitality, 
viability and attractiveness of the City Centre and other established shopping centres. This 
echoes the overarching objective set out in UDP Strategic Policy SP6 that new retail 
development best located within the City Centre or district shopping centres will not be 
supported at out-of-centre sites. The form of retail development proposed would therefore 
need to be justified at this location and would considered against the above policy 
context.    
 
The vacant site is not allocated for any specific uses in the Swansea Unitary Development 
Plan (UDP) and therefore has the status of ‘white land’. The site does lie adjacent to but 
outside of the SA1 Swansea Waterfront strategic mixed use area under Policy EC1. The 
land to the south of the site is allocated for employment land under Policy EC1, and has 
largely been developed for bulky goods sales, motor vehicle showrooms and the drive thru 
McDonalds.  
 
The drive thru coffee house is a Class A3 use rather than an A1 retail use and such uses 
are intended to complement rather than compete with other A3 uses within the city centre 
or district centres. Moreover, it is argued that the layout and accessibility requirements of 
a drive thru facility cannot readily be provided within a traditional city or district centre and 
as such there are no sequentially preferable sites within or on the edge of the city centre 
suitable for this form of development. It is considered therefore that the construction of the 
drive through coffee house at this location would not unacceptably conflict with the 
prevailing development plan policy. 
 

Page 41



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

 
Visual impact 

In considering the details of the scheme, Policy EV1 of the UDP requires new 
development to accord with 11 specified objectives of good design whilst Policy EV2 
states that the siting of new development should give preference to the use of previously 
developed land over greenfield sites and should have regard to the physical character and 
topography of the site and surroundings by meeting specified criteria relating to siting and 
location. 

The design and external appearance of the drive through coffee house building is 
contemporary with a quality, size and appearance which is considered commensurate with 
other buildings along this section of Langdon Road including several car dealerships. A 
further relevant criteria of Policy EV1 is that new development does not result in a 
significant detrimental impact on local amenity by reason of visual impact, loss of light or 
privacy, disturbance and traffic movements. At present the nearest residential properties 
to the site are located approximately 45 – 50m away to the east along Bevans Row. It is 
not considered that the proposal will adversely affect the residents of Port Tennant on the 
basis of the distance and intervening features such Fabian Way.  The Head of Pollution 
Control has raised no objections to the proposals and has recommended planning 
conditions to control ventilation and fume extraction and also plant and machinery in order 
to provide a measure of protection to residents in Bevans Row in particular. Additionally, a 
condition is included for a scheme of litter control to be included in the scheme.    
 
Having regard to the foregoing, it is considered that proposal is in accordance with the 
requirements of UDP Policy EV1. Furthermore, as per the provisions of Policy EV2 the 
site utilises previously developed land and the nature of the development is such that it 
would not result in conflict with the criteria forming part of that policy. 
 
Policy EV3 of the UDP requires new development proposals to provide access and 
facilities for all; provide satisfactory parking in accordance with Council adopted design 
standards; contribute to a high quality public realm by improving pedestrian linkages with 
adjoining spaces and attractions and be accessible to pedestrians, cyclists and users of 
public transport. In this respect the Design and Access Statement confirms that the site 
and building is designed to be Disability Discrimination Act compliant. It is considered 
therefore that the proposal would provide acceptable access facilities for a development of 
this nature and would accord with the provisions of UDP Policy EV3.  
 
Transportation  
 
The proposed layout shows access to the site will be via a shared unadopted access road 
currently serving McDonalds. The drive through restaurant has a gross internal floor area 
of 207 sq. m and would accommodate 57 covers, with an additional external seating area.  
The car park would accommodate 20 car parking spaces including 2 spaces for the 
mobility impaired, 2 motor cycle spaces and 2 cycle spaces will be provided set out with 
circulation space to accommodate drive through customers. This would adhere to 
guidelines and would be acceptable.   

 

Page 42



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

 
The application has been accompanied by a Transport Statement. The conclusions of this 
statement are that the development is well served by all modes of transport and will not 
have an adverse impact on highway conditions, and that due to the nature of the use 
which will attract almost exclusively existing traffic using Fabian Way, the net additional 
traffic generation onto the Fabian Way corridor will be nil or negligible. 

 
The submitted Transport Statement provides an assessment of the proposed 
development trip generation and effect on local junctions with the network peak hours 
assumed to be Weekday 08.00 – 09.00 and 17.00 - 18.00, Saturday peak hour 12.00 - 
13.00. The study network for the traffic effects of the proposal looked at site 
access/Langdon Road priority junction, Langdon Road roundabout and Fabian 
Way/Langdon Road/Park and Ride signal junction.  The calculated peak trip rates 
indicated that the traffic effect at the site is modest during peak hours and negligible 
elsewhere, assuming that 90% of traffic is diverted from the nearby road network and 10% 
is pass-by i.e. road users who currently pass the proposal site on their journey and alter 
their trip to visit the proposed establishment before continuing with their journey. The 
Head of Transportation indicates that the assessment of the peak hour proposed net 
traffic effect concluded that the net traffic effect would be modest to negligible. It appears 
highly likely that the majority of customers will be drawn from passing traffic and that 
which diverts from Fabian Way before returning to its usual journey.    
 
Fabian Way Corridor Transport Study  
The Preferred Transport Strategy (PTS) resulting from the Fabian Way Corridor Transport 
Study was adopted by Council's Cabinet on 21 October 2010. The PTS was to agree 
transport improvements for the Fabian Way corridor, so that these can inform future bids 
for funding and decisions on transport improvements required for future developments. In 
addition to public sector funding, the approved PTS seeks to ensure that private sector 
developments each contribute to improve transport links on a corridor wide basis secured 
through planning / legal agreement.   
 
Future developments will result in increased demand for transport and associated traffic 
growth. Based on the findings a scheme was prepared and costed with the intention that 
developments contribute to improved transport links on a corridor wide basis. The 
minimum scheme identified to enable future traffic growth to be accommodated provides a 
variety of measures in the region of £25 million. It is reasonable therefore to share this 
cost over developments which are going to be directly contributing to flows on Fabian 
Way. The scheme covers a series of short, medium and long term requirements involving 
a number of transport related objectives relating to public transport, walking and cycling 
route improvements, revised speed limits, transport hubs, capacity improvements, 
bridges, park and ride, new junctions  and travel plans to name but a few of the items 
proposed.  
 
As indicated the PTS makes reference to private sector investment secured through 
planning conditions and development agreements. To this end the Head of Transportation 
has requested that an appropriate financial contribution be sought in accordance with the 
above prior to beneficial occupation of the proposed development.  
 

Page 43



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

 
The site of this drive through coffee house is located in an area where all traffic will access 
off Fabian Way.  Whilst the Transport Statement concluded that the majority if not all the 
trips were linked to existing trips and not new to the network, there was no concrete 
evidence put forward to support that assumption and in light of that a financial contribution 
was sought towards the joint NPTBC/CCS Fabian Way corridor study programme of 
works. This is based on the estimated number of new trips compared to the existing flows 
on Fabian Way (which are approx. 33,000 per 24 hours). A figure of £33,750 has been 
agreed with the applicants and this is considered by the Head of Highways and 
Transportation to be an appropriate sum in view of the trip generation projected. This will 
need to be secured under a Section 106 Planning Obligation.  
 
Conclusion 
In conclusion, the proposal would accord to the prevailing development plan in land use 
terms and in design terms the proposal is considered to complement the existing adjacent 
dealerships and would represent a satisfactory form of development which complies with 
the criteria of Policy EV1 of the Unitary Development Plan and would have an acceptable 
impact on the residential and visual amenities of the area. Approval is therefore 
recommended.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions 
indicated below and the applicant entering into a Section 106 Planning Obligation in 
respect of: 
 
* Payment of a financial contribution of £33,750 towards the Fabian Way 

Corridor Study measures to be paid prior to the beneficial occupation of the 
proposed development 

 
* Section 106 Management & Monitoring fee (calculated as 2% value of the 

obligation i.e. 2% of £33,750 = £675   
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than five years from the 
date of this decision. 

 Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990.  

 

2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans and documents: site location plan -(0-) 01, proposed site plan - (0-) 02 K, 
elevations - (0-) 03, Planning Statement, Design & Access Statement, Transport 
Statement dated 13th November, 2014. 

 Reason: To define the extent of the permission granted.  

 

3 Samples of all external finishes shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in writing before the development is commenced. The scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.  

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 

Page 44



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

 

4 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no 
superstructure works shall take place without the prior written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority of a scheme for the hard and soft landscaping of the site, 
which shall include any enclosure details.  The landscaping scheme shall 
incorporate screening to Fabian Way and be carried out within 12 months from the 
completion of the development.  Any trees or shrubs planted in accordance with 
this condition which are removed, die, become seriously diseased within two years 
of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of similar size and species to those 
originally required to be planted. 

 Reason: To ensure that the site is satisfactorily landscaped having regard to its 
location and the nature of the proposed development, and to accord with Section 
197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  

 

5 The car parking spaces shall be provided prior to the beneficial use of the 
development commencing, and each space shall be laid out with dimensions 4.8m 
length by 2.6m width and the disabled car parking spaces shall comply with the 
British Standard for the same. The car parking spaces shall be retained for such 
purposes at all times. 

 Reason: To prevent indiscriminate parking along the public highway and to comply 
with the City & County of Swansea Supplementary Planning Guidance for Parking 
Standards (March 2012).  

 

6 If, during development, any site contamination is found to be present at the site 
then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local 
planning authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted a 
remediation strategy to the local planning authority detailing how this unsuspected 
contamination shall be dealt with and obtained written approval  for the strategy 
from the Local Planning Authority. The remediation strategy shall be implemented 
as approved. 

 Reason: It is considered possible that there may be unidentified areas of 
contamination at the site that could pose a risk to controlled waters if they are not 
remediated.  

 

7 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no 
development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a detailed 
drainage scheme for the site showing how foul water, surface water and land 
drainage will be dealt with has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall be implemented prior to the construction 
of any impermeable surfaces draining to this system, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 Reason: To reduce the risk of pollution to controlled waters and to prevent the 
increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of 
surface water disposal.  

 

Page 45



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

 

8 Foul water and surface water discharges must be drained separately from the site 
and no surface water shall be allowed to connect (either directly or indirectly) to 
the public foul sewerage system. No land drainage run-off will be permitted, either 
directly or indirectly, to discharge into the public sewerage system. 

 Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system and 
pollution of the environment.  

 

9 The use hereby permitted shall not commence, until a scheme of ventilation and 
fume extraction, including full details of the equipment to be installed for that 
purpose, has been submitted to and shall be approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be fully installed prior to its use 
being commenced.  

 Reason: To prevent any nuisance from fumes and/or cooking odours to the 
occupiers of neighbouring premises.  

 

10 The total noise emissions from plant serving the subject premises when measures 
at a position one metre from the nearest affected window of the nearest noise 
affected residential premises should be controlled to a level of 5dBA below the 
lowest measured background noise level (LA90, 15 min). All plant must have a 
noise characteristic which will attract attention to itself.  

 Reason: To ensure that the development hereby approved does not result in 
unacceptable levels of noise transmission to neighbouring premises and/or the 
surrounding area.  

 

11 Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction Pollution 
Management Plan (CPMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The CPMP shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details. 

 Reason: In order to minimise the potential nuisance impacts to local residents and 
businesses from construction activities.  

 

12 A scheme for the provision of litter bins to serve the development (which shall 
include a method of waste separation) shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority and the scheme as approved, shall be 
implemented when the use commences and shall be maintained thereafter, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: To avoid unsightly litter in the interests of visual amenity and to enable 
the recycling of waste materials.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The Construction Pollution Management Plan shall include the following: 

a) Demolition/Construction programme and timetable; 
b) Detailed site plans to include indications of temporary site 
offices/compounds, materials storage areas, proposed compounds, delivery and 
parking areas etc,   
c) Traffic scheme (access and egress) in respect of all demolition/construction 
related vehicles; 

Page 46



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 4 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1729 

 
 d) An assessment of construction traffic generation and traffic management in 

so far as public roads are affected, including provisions to keep all public roads 
free from mud and silt; 
e) Proposed working hours; 
f) Principal Contractor details, which will include a nominated contact for 
complaints; 
g) Details of all on site lighting (including mitigation measures) having regard 
to best practicable means (BPM); 
h) Details of on site dust mitigation measures having regard to BPM;  
i) Details of on site noise mitigation measures having regard to BPM; 
j)           Details of waste management arrangements (including any proposed 
crushing/screening operations); 
k)          Notification of whether a Control, of Pollution Act 1974 (Section 61) Notice 
is to be serviced by Principle Contractor on Local Authority. 

 
2 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: (Planning Policy Wales (PPW) 
Edition 7 July 2014, UDP Policies EV1, EV2, EV3, EC4, EC5, EC6, EC9, AS1 & 
AS2) 

 
PLANS 
 
01 site location plan and block plan, 02K proposed block plan, 03 elevations dated 13th 
November, 2014 
 

 

Page 47



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 5  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1678 

  WARD: Oystermouth 
 

 

Location: 114 Castle Road, Mumbles, Swansea SA3 5TA 

Proposal: Two storey part single storey rear extension, rear dormer, and front 
bay window (amendment to planning permission 2013/0249 granted 23 
April 2013) 

Applicant: Mr Ross Blyth 

 
 

76

1
0
2

1
1
8

1
1W

o
r k
s

C
H

A
P

E
L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

STRE
ET

C
A
S
T
L
E

C
A
S
T
L
E
 A

V
E
N
U
E

PC

T
a
b
e
rn
a
c
le

1

NEWTON ROAD

21 14

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

OYSTERMOUTH

Police

2
4

99

S
Q
U
A
R
E

27.7m

1
5

Allotment Gardens

House

40

1
0

CAST
LE

53

8

2

58

51

1
1

74

W
o
r k
s

75

23.2m

1
2

1

2
1

2
3

55

1
5

38

Ostreme Centre

3
0

1
0
0

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 48



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 5 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1678 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy HC7 Proposals for extensions and alterations to existing residential dwellings 
will be assessed in terms of; relationship to the existing dwelling, impact 
on the character and appearance of the streetscene, affect on 
neighbouring properties, and impact on car parking. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2013/0249 Two storey part single storey rear extension, rear dormer, and front bay 
window 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  23/04/2013 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
Neighbours - Three properties were individually consulted, and ONE LETTER OF 
OBJECTION has been received, which can be summarised as follows: 
 

1. Overbearing and out-of-scale in comparison to other developments on the road and 
in the area 

2. Loss of garden area compared to previous extension, impacting the open aspect of 
the neighbourhood. 

3. Sealing off an access passageway giving access to the back gardens of both 114 
and 116 which, I feel, is contrary to the Swansea Unitary Development Plan EV3 
policy on accessibility. 

4. The alleyway between the two houses is also an original feature of the properties 
and, indeed for most of the property’s life, access to the passageway was 
demarcated by two walls at the front of the property - a long standing part of the 
characterful design of the properties in the road. 

5. The developments at 114 have already led to the destruction of an ancient wall 
separating the properties which was constructed from rubble removed from 
Oystermouth Castle (Grade 1 listed). It is my understanding that the castle-derived 
rocks making up this wall were disposed of in landfill by the developers of 114. 

 
Council’s Head of Highways and Transportation - confirms that there are no highway-
safety or parking implications with this proposal and recommends no highway objection. 
 

Page 49



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 5 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1678 

 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is called to Committee for determination at the request of Councillor 
Anthony Colburn, who has also requested that Members undertake a site visit. 
 
Full planning permission is sought for a part two storey, part single storey rear extension, 
rear dormer and front bay window at 114 Castle Road, Mumbles.  The application is a re-
submission following an earlier approval, under application reference number 2013/0249 
granted on 23rd April 2014. 
 
A recent visit to the site confirmed that the works are substantially complete in terms of the 
rear extensions and the dormer, and this application therefore seeks retrospective consent 
to complete the development in line with the drawings forming part of this application. 
 
The front bay window proposed as part of this application is identical to that previously 
approved. The rear dormer window now proposed is of the same size and general 
appearance to that previously approved, although there is a minor and inconsequential 
change to its fenestration. 
 
The extension now being proposed is however slightly different to the previously approved 
extension. Whilst the general design and appearance of the extension now proposed is 
very similar to what was previously approved, its footprint is different and slightly larger 
than the original extension.  
 
The previously approved layout plans showed the extension having an irregular footprint, 
which still allowed the rear yard of the neighbouring property known as 116 Castle Road 
to be accessed via the covered passage between No’s 114 (the application building) and 
116 (the objector’s property). However, the extension now proposed shows a more 
conventional shaped footprint, which effectively ‘blocks off’ the rear yard of No 116 from 
the existing passageway. 
 
The size, design and siting of the proposed alterations to the approved scheme are not 
considered to result in any adverse visual amenity impact upon either the application 
property or on the wider streetscene. 
 
Due to the very limited nature of the amendments to the already approved 
extensions/alterations, the proposals are not considered likely to result in any adverse 
impact upon neighbouring occupiers in terms of overshadowing/loss of light, overbearing 
physical impact or overlooking. 
 
The letter of objection from the neighbour refers to the proposal being overbearing and 
out-of-scale with other developments in the area, and to it impacting upon the open aspect 
of the neighbourhood.  However, it is not considered that the scheme would result in any 
more of an impact in these respects, than the scheme approved under application 
reference 2013/0249.   
 
The blocking of the passageway, in prohibiting access for the objector to her rear 
curtilage, is a civil matter and that needs to be resolved between the parties concerned. 
The removal of a wall does not require planning permission. 

Page 50



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 5 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1678 

 
In conclusion, and having regard to all material considerations including the Human Rights 
Act, the amended proposal is considered to still represent an acceptable form of 
development which complies with the criteria of Policies EV1 and HC7 of the adopted City 
& County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008; and the guidance provided in the 
adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance document `A Design Guide for Householder 
Development' (2008). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE, subject to the following conditions; 
 

1 The materials used in the development hereby approved shall match those of the 
existing building. 

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 

2 The flat roof above the part single-storey rear extension hereby approved shall not 
be used as an amenity area or roof garden unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of neighbouring residential 
properties.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: Policies EV1 and HC7 of the 
adopted City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008 and the 
guidance contained in the Supplementary Planning Guidance document `A Design 
Guide for Householder Development' (2008). 

 
2 Bats may be present.  All British bat species are protected under Schedule 5 of the 

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and are listed in Schedule 2 of the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.  This legislation 
implements the EC Habitats & Species Directive in the UK making it an offence to 
capture, kill or disturb a European Protected Species or to damage or destroy the 
breeding site or resting place of such an animal.  It is also an offence to recklessly 
/ intentionally to disturb such an animal. 
If evidence of bats is encountered during site clearance e.g. live or dead animals 
or droppings, work should cease immediately and the advice of the Natural 
Resources Wales sought before continuing with any work (01792 634960). 

 
3 Birds may be present in this building and grounds.  Please note it is an offence 

under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to intentionally 
(intentionally or recklessly for Schedule 1 birds) to: 
-  Kill, injure or take any wild bird 
-  Take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that nest in use or being 
built 
-  Take or destroy an egg of any wild bird 
Care should be taken when working on buildings particularly during the bird 
nesting season March-August. Page 51



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 5 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1678 

 
4 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 
5 PARTY WALL ETC ACT 1996 

The developer is advised that the provisions of the Party Wall etc. Act 1996 may 
be applicable to the proposal and is advised to seek appropriate advice prior to 
any work commencing on site. 

 
6 Please note that this consent is specific to the plans and particulars approved as 

part of the application.  Any departure from the approved plans will constitute 
unauthorised development and may be liable to enforcement action.  You (or any 
subsequent developer) should advise the Council of any actual or proposed 
variations from the approved plans immediately so that you can be advised how to 
best resolve the matter. 
 
In addition, any conditions that the Council has imposed on this consent will be 
listed above and should be read carefully.  It is your (or any subsequent 
developers) responsibility to ensure that the terms of all conditions are met in full 
at the appropriate time (as outlined in the specific condition). 
 
The commencement of development without firstly meeting in full the terms of any 
conditions that require the submission of details prior to the commencement of 
development will constitute unauthorised development.  This will necessitate the 
submission of a further application to retain the unauthorised development and 
may render you liable to formal enforcement action. 
 
Failure on the part of the developer to observe the requirements of any other 
conditions could result in the Council pursuing formal enforcement action in the 
form of a Breach of Condition notice. 

 
PLANS 
 
HG-12-83-OS site plan and block plan, Hg-12/83-P01 existing floor plans and elevations, 
HG-12-83-02 rev B approved floor plans and elevations, HG-12-83-P103 proposed floor 
plans and elevations dated 4th November 2014. 
 

 

Page 52



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6   APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

  WARD: Newton 
 

 

Location: Land in front of Langlands Brasserie Ltd Brynfield Road Langland 
Swansea SA3 4SQ 

Proposal: Construction of new decked terrace on land to the south of the coastal 
path opposite Langlands Brasserie 

Applicant: Parklime Properties LTD 

 
 

Sand and Shingle

1 to 12 Crawshay Court

Sand

El Sub Sta

Wr T

Sa
nd

Wr T

Rock

Car Park

Shi
ngl

e

Coas
ta

l S
lo

pe

16.8m

14 to 25

Shingle

Sa
nd

B
R

Y
N

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

R
o
c
k
 a

n
d
 S

h
in

g
le

584b

2a

H
ig
h

Shingle

W
a
te
r

Links

56

3a

5a

Sand

R
o
c
k

M
ea
n

22.9m

3b

1b

Car Park

54

Court

2b

4a

5b

18.3m

1a

S
hi
ng
le

Langland Bay Manor

 Langlands Brasserie

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 53



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy AS3 Accessibility - Protection of public rights way. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV9 Development within or adjacent to a Conservation Area will only be 
permitted if it would preserve or enhance the character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area or its setting. (City & County of Swansea 
Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV4 New development will be assessed against its impact on the public 
realm. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV2 The siting of new development shall give preference to the use of 
previously developed land and have regard to the physical character 
and topography of the site and its surroundings. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV3 Proposals for new development and alterations to and change of use of 
existing buildings will be required to meet defined standards of access. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV26 Within the Gower AONB, the primary objective is the conservation and 
enhancement of the area's natural beauty.  Development that would 
have a material adverse effect on the natural beauty, wildlife and 
cultural heritage of the AONB will not be permitted. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EC16 New or improved recreational tourism facilities at specific destinations 
around Swansea Bay are proposed which capitalise on the seafront 
aspect and contribute towards the regeneration of the Bay. 
Between these areas of appropriate development, the emphasis is on 
safeguarding and enhancing the environment of the Bay and other 
waterfront areas. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) 

 

Policy EC17 Proposals for tourism and recreation developments of an appropriate 
scale in locations which relate acceptably to the existing pattern of 
development and/or their surroundings in terms of the nature of the 
proposal concerned will be permitted provided they comply with a 
specified list of criteria including standard of design, effect on landscape 
and nature conservation, effect of visitor pressure on sensitive locations, 
provide acceptable and safe access, would not cause a loss of best 
agricultural land. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) Page 54



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 

Policy EV21 In the countryside non-residential development will only be permitted 
where it can be demonstrated that it is beneficial for the rural economy, 
or it meets overriding social or economic local needs, or it is appropriate 
development associated with farm diversification, sustainable tourism or 
nature conservation, or it provides an acceptable economic use for 
brown field land or existing buildings, or it is essential for 
communications, other utility services, minerals or renewable energy 
generation. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

90/0859/11 DEMOLISH EXISTING RAMP + CONSTRUCTION OF NEW RAMP AT 
NEW LOCATION AND CONSTRUCT WALL TO RETAIN BANK 
ERODED BY STORMS. 

Decision:  *HGPC - GRANT PERMISSION CONDITIONAL 

Decision Date:  21/08/1990 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
The application was advertised on site and in the press, as the site is situated within the 
Langland Conservation Area.  TWENTY TWO LETTERS OF OBJECTION were received, 
along with THREE COMMENTS, which can be summarised as follows: 
 
Objections: 
 

• How can this application be considered when it is for a piece of land that is owned 
by the Council?  If the Council are going to sell the land, then should it not be an 
open sale? 

• I can see nothing in the plans to show that consideration has been given to the 
risks of hot drinks and food being carried by staff/public across the coastal path.  
Should this not be the subject of a risk assessment and a matter to be taken into 
consideration by the planning committee? 

• I object to the proposed plans as the three platforms will cater for approx. 60 
people. That means that waiters will be crossing back and fore across the path, 
which on a lovely day is full of people, either walking to the Langland point or back 
from it and a lot of those people are children who could quite easily have a tray full 
of boiling water over them.  This would be an accident waiting to happen. 

• There are enough restaurant and takeaway facilities on Langland Bay already.  
Everything added reduces the charm of the bay. 

• Since the designation of the Langland Bay Conservation Area (2/7/1992) I am not 
aware of any greenfield site having been developed.  Both the Brasserie and the 
Lifeguard clubhouse were constructed on the sites of former buildings.  If this 
current application is approved it will not only set a dangerous precedent, but will 
question the value of the Conservation Area status and indeed the hard work of the 
former City Council in achieving this designation. 

Page 55



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 

• Apart from developing a greenfield site, the present application is located on the 
seaward side of the coastal path.  This in itself is surely bad planning.  The Surfside 
Café at the eastern end of the bay, although on the seaward side of the path, is 
well below eye level and, in any event, was constructed in 1915, well before the 
requirement of any planning consent. 

• If this application is approved, there will doubtless be considerable problems 
resulting from the continual crossing of the public footpath by waiters carrying 
loaded trays of hot food to service a dining/drinking area catering for almost eighty 
customers.  As you will be aware, this section of the coastal path is perhaps the 
busiest due to it immediately adjoining access to and from the main car park.  The 
prospect of Brasserie staff negotiating their way with trays of hot food and drink 
across the flow of the public, including running children and dogs being walked, is 
surely an issue for health and safety. 

• It was only within the last couple of years or so that Langland experienced serious 
problems with under-age drinking on the beach and promenade.  These problems 
were only resolved after hard work and close liaison between the Council and the 
Police.  In view of this, I believe that the sight of authorised drinking on an open 
platform virtually on the beach, would give entirely the wrong message to visiting 
teenagers.  This concern is increased because it is my understanding that the 
Brasserie has a pub licence which means that the platform could, at any time, 
become a `beer garden’. 

• Finally, I would quote an extract from the findings of the Welsh Office Inspector 
dated 9/10/1991, when he dismissed the appeal for the building of holiday flats at 
Langland.  In referring to the day huts he said “� they are a vital feature of this 
small unsophisticated local seaside resort which a great many people prefer to the 
more brash and highly commercialised facilities elsewhere �”.  I believe that this 
extract perfectly describes Langland and that the proposed development on the 
seaward side of the coastal path will detract considerably from the present 
ambience of the bay as portrayed by the Inspector. 

• In view of the above I urge you to refuse the application and thus preserve the 
unique character of Langland which is much loved by residents and holiday makers 
in its present form. 

• This application should be rejected as the proposed site is within the Langland 
Conservation Area and would set a dangerous precedent. 

• Its location on the other side of the Coastal Footpath from the Brasserie Restaurant 
is ridiculous, as all the food and drinks for customers on the proposed platforms 
would have to be carried across this footpath, "dodging" the many users! 

• With the current storms and high tides, it would be very vulnerable to the sea, 
particularly in the winter. 

• This development would not be in keeping with the natural beauty of our local 
beaches and it is within an AONB. 

• If the Brasserie wants more tables to serve more customers, then they should 
negotiate with Swansea CC for use of some of the adjacent car park – not the view 
– but the food and drinks would be the same! 

• This is an entirely inappropriate development on a site that is immediately adjacent 
to the public path and across from the licensed premises. This is the equivalent of a 
greenfield site with uninterrupted view of the beach and sea for all who have 
visited, or habitually walked and enjoyed the area. 

Page 56



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 

• The building of platforms and subsequent placing of tables, chairs and the highly 
likely umbrella sunshades too (thereby interrupting the view) would be a travesty  
for all who love and cherish the unspoilt nature of one of Gower's splendid seaside 
locations for walking. 

• Add to this the to and fro' movement of patrons, waiting staff and the inevitable 
carrying of plates of food, beverages etc.  It is in all probability a future accident 
spot with collision/tripping when encountering running children, dogs, or those with 
poor sight, such as myself. 

• Broken glass, crockery, spillages of food and liquids are all possible hazards and 
are easier avoided if this unfortunate and undesirable planned application are not 
given further consideration. 

• The present location of the brasserie is more than adequate and development 
enough for such a delicate conservation area. 

• The proposed design of three outdoor platforms raised just above the beach would 
spoil the natural curve of the bay as seen from the east side and would also spoil 
the view for the people who have paid for a ten year lease on the holiday chalets. 

• I believe that to extend the present site to accommodate an extra 80 people with a 
pub licence would inevitably bring problems of underage and excessive drinking, 
which residents experienced in the past when the Langland Bay Hotel was in 
existence. It would also deter families with young children who want to spend a 
pleasant and quiet day out from visiting the bay. 

• I understand that this proposal is to cater for approximately 80 diners.  These 
diners will be served from the kitchen of the present restaurant located on the 
opposite side of the public footpath.  This means that to serve eighty customers 
there will be a constant flow of waiters crossing the path with loaded trays of hot 
food and drink. 

• You will no doubt be aware that this section of coastal path is extremely busy due 
to it immediately adjoining the access to and from the main car park.  The prospect 
of Brasserie staff negotiating their way with heavy trays across the congested flow 
of the public, including running children and dogs on leads, is daunting i.e. an 
accident waiting to happen. 

• If an accident were to happen, even if the Council were not legally liable, they 
would, I believe, be criticised for condoning the use of Council land including the 
public footpath and, of course, for approving the planning application. 

• The Brasserie was erected on the site of a former café which was built on a 
greenfield site well before 1992 when the area was designated as a Conservation 
Area. 

• If permission is granted for use of the area on the seaside of the cliff path, adults, 
children and dogs walking past would be vulnerable when waiters are carrying trays 
across from the café.  There could be serious accidents and presumably the 
Council would be responsible.  This is a very busy part of the bay with visitors 
accessing from the car park and walkers from the cliff path. 

• While the Brasserie is very well run at present, it must be remembered that it has a 
pub licence and not a restaurant licence.  Any future manager might not be as 
controlling as the present one, which could result in rowdy undisciplined behaviour. 

• I am a great supporter of the business and regularly go there.  In all the times I 
have been there, I have always been able to get a seat, so I seriously question 
whether there is a need to provide further seating, particularly in the proposed 
location. 

Page 57



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 

• Building anything on the sea-side of the promenade will significantly affect the 
visual impact of the bay.  The architects took great care to ensure that the 
Brasserie blends in with the chalets and it does so very effectively.  Any form of 
decking with the necessary protective balustrades has the potential to ruin the 
visual impact of that part of the bay. 

• Operating any form of extension across the public footpath will cause disruption to 
promenade users and could be a potential safety issue, with hot drinks and glasses 
being carried across an area where children play and many people walk without 
shoes. 

• The license granted originally was, as I recall it, to serve alcohol only with food. 
This has never been followed.  If the decking were to go ahead, the risk the 
Langland Bay Residents fought hard to avoid of the premises become a public 
house significantly increases.  Alvaro is without question a very responsible and 
respected restaurateur.  As with all businesses its in his interest to grow his 
business for profitability but also for potential sale.  If the growth of the footprint of 
the business is allowed to proceed and a less responsible operator was to acquire 
the premises, the potential negative impact on the beach and the community will be 
irreversible. 

• I would therefore urge the planning committee not to support this development as 
the Brasserie in its current form provides a good balance of a public utility and 
sustainable business. 

• The proposed development would be on a greenfield site in the Langland Bay 
Conservation Area, designated as such by Swansea City Council in 1992.  It is also 
adjacent to Gower Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty which encompasses the 
western end of Langland Bay. 

• The proposed development would be on the seaward side of the footpath, which is 
unprecedented.  The Surfside Café on the eastern side of the bay is below eye 
level and was built about ninety years ago, before planning consent was required.  
It would encroach into the arc of the bay, thus blighting the view from east and 
west. The footpath is part of the All Wales Coastal Path opened in 2012, the world’s 
first such path. 

• There would be a conflict between the passage of pedestrians (including children, 
dogs, wheelchairs and disabled walkers) and Brasserie staff serving food and drink 
to customers across the path, which would pose serious health and safety risks. 

• Firstly, the Brasserie is rarely in need of more seating, if ever, and I do not think this 
is necessary. 

• The visual impact on the bay would be detrimental in my opinion. 

• Langland is a Conservation Area, I think this should mean developments as this 
should be disallowed. 

• It would certainly change the ambience of this popular natural bay, especially if 
alcohol is served until late in the evening.  In the past there were problems related 
to alcohol in Langland. 

• I question the safety aspect of the public in general, elderly, children and animals 
running and playing along the public footpath whilst food and drinks are conveyed 
directly across the same path. 

Page 58



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 

• On Health and Safety Grounds: It appears that customers of Langland Brasserie 
sitting on the proposed new terraces will have to be served by means of drinks or 
possibly hot food being carried across a public foot path which also forms part of 
the Wales Coastal Path.  This path is heavily used throughout the year but there is 
particularly heavy use in the summer months, when families with small children and 
push-chairs use the path alongside Langland to access the beach from the car-
park, and also use the ramp below the proposed terraces to reach the beach.  To 
carry food and drink from the restaurant to the car-park would involve negotiating a 
steep set of steps from which there is not a clear line of sight onto the footpath.  To 
me the combination of laden trays, busy footpath (and one popular with dog 
walkers) and lack of clear vision can only suggest accidents involving the spillage 
of hot food and the scattering of broken glass. 

• On amenity grounds:  Visually, as presented by the mock-up photographs, the 
proposal does not appear to make too much of an impact on the look of the beach. 
What is not shown is any lighting or protection from the weather on the platforms. 
There cannot be many days of the year when the provision of bare tables is going 
to attract enough customers to make the project worthwhile.  There is bound to be 
pressure to clutter the site with more or less permanent structures for shelter and 
lighting.  These would have very negative impact on the view of the bay. I would 
also have reservations about siting what may be little more than a beer garden a 
few feet above a family beach. 

• Langland Bay is part of a Conservation Area and also, I believe, a greenfield site.  
Whole lines of tables and chairs would completely spoil the look of the seaward 
side of the path, not to mention the beautiful view. 

• There would be serious implications as far as Health & Safety is concerned.  The 
prospect of waiters continually crossing the path carrying hot meals on trays 
doesn’t bear thinking about.  As you know, Langland Bay is very crowded in the 
summer and there would be many children and people with dogs walking along the 
path.  Accidents would be inevitable, especially as the waiters would always be in a 
hurry. 

• I understand that the Brasserie has a pub licence.  If the present owners sold the 
restaurant in the future, it could become a pub.  This would mean that we residents 
would be subject to disruption, noise and drunken behaviour once the pub had 
closed and people made their way home – just as we were many years ago. 

• We appreciate that there would be benefits to the present tenants of Langland 
Brasserie of extra seating at times of high demand, and that potential users/clients 
would have an enjoyable experience. We also appreciate that efforts have been 
made by a sympathetic architect to develop a proposal in keeping with the existing 
developments inland of the coastal path.  Nevertheless, any development 
seawards of the coastal path into an area which has (according to the application) 
no record of previous use will change the nature of the Bay, affecting views and the 
overall experience from the coastal path approaching from both east and west and 
from the beach itself. 

• Furthermore, should the application be granted, we are concerned that it could set 
a precedent for further development westward of the proposed site into the larger 
elevated area between the coastal path and the sea. 

• I wish to place on record my objection to this application.  Not only will the decking 
affect the beach visually, it could also attract anti-social behaviour.   Currently, 
patrons of the brasserie are seated in an enclosed space.  Decked areas away 
from the main restaurant would be far less easy to monitor and control and it would 
be relatively easy for people to bring their own alcohol, or to drink to excess. Page 59



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 

• The present owners run the business well, but should they decide to sell at a future 
date, it is possible new owners would have less experience.  In any case, when the 
brasserie is closed, the decked areas could well attract rowdiness and destruction 
as has been seen with the huts at Langland. 

• I do not believe there is a need for additional seating.  Apart from one or two hot 
weekends during the summer, it is always possible to find a table.  During the 
winter, spring and autumn and most weekdays during the summer, there are seats 

• As this area lies within the designated AONB, this grassy bank with shrubby growth 
on the seaward side of the prom above the beach should not be harmed or altered 
on conservation grounds. Langland Bay is a major tourist attraction because of the 
beautiful surroundings to the beach and building decking on this attractive public 
space would severely impair the green aspect of this area. The architect’s claim in 
their report that 'the foliage existing ... is of little interest' and that planting 
monoculture escalonia in front of decking with lighting will 'bring biodiversity' is a 
claim I find baffling and one which shows their general lack of understanding of 
ecological conservation issues. 

• If permission is given for this decking it would require major works involving piling, 
drainage and concrete terracing to make it secure, though the architect’s plans and 
report omit any details of this. Their poetic but meaningless claim that 'the decks 
will project beyond their structure line, bringing a lightness about their aesthetic 
allowing them to float above ...: gives no information about the base support 
structures and their aesthetics. The damage to the green area on the seaward side 
of the prom would therefore be permanent. Even if the structures proposed were 
viewed as pleasant by some at the moment, memories of the hideous remnants of 
the pre-war structures at Rotherslade remind us it would involve major efforts to 
reinstate this landscape in the future. 

• The applicant says that they will provide waiter/waitress service to the 80 covers on 
this decking area. This part of the prom is extremely busy with young families 
running from the car park to the beach, walkers, joggers, families with buggies and 
dogs all going along the prom to and from the Point, and hikers and joggers on their 
way around to Caswell.  The thought of young waiters and waitresses negotiating 
their way with trays of hot food and drinks through the crowds would surely raise 
serious H&S issues? 

• I object to this proposal primarily because it will be out of keeping with this strip of 
land around the western edge of Langland Bay. From the steps around to Caswell 
Bay, the land between the Wales Coast Path and the sea is wild and, apart from 
some seats, not built on. I fear that if the proposal is allowed, this piece of land and 
the rest of the "vacant" and "redundant" (I quote from the design statement) land 
along the coast, would be vulnerable to building proposals. This land is neither 
vacant nor redundant; it is wild Gower. 

• As to the scheme itself, the idea of putting a highly used public footpath through a 
restaurant would be preposterous. But that, in effect, is what is being proposed. 
Waiting staff will need to negotiate their way down the steps and through the 
walkers to cross to the decks. There will be a significant safety issue with hot 
drinks, plates of hot food and glasses of beverage being carried across a busy foot 
path. Probably the main, but unmentioned, need for these decks is to provide for 
smokers who are currently relegated to the rear of the property. As the prevailing 
wind comes from the sea, the smoke will tend to be blown towards those customers 
in the exiting part of the restaurant thereby spoiling their experience.  

Page 60



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 

• There will be an increase in litter and the risk of broken glass falling onto the beach 
below. In due course there will no doubt be proposals for a roof, then walls and 
then you have a significant structure. 

• The following refers to some specific comments in the D&AS: 
“offering further opportunity to appreciate the views to the ‘fine sandy bays and 
limestone rock’”. (P9, B1).  This is obviously wrong.  At present, the public can, and 
do, stand on this bank to admire the views. This opportunity will be lost as the 
decks will be for the sole use of the restaurant. 
“Its visual presence in this prominent area will have a positive impact over the 
existing, bringing biodiversity and year-round visual interest” (P 12, conclusion).  No 
built structure can have a positive impact over wild country. To declare that 
biodiversity will be improved by introducing Escallonia - a South American plant - 
demonstrates a fundamental misunderstanding of the term. There is no visual 
interest in chairs and tables. 
“Overall the proposal is one which will be of benefit to the Bay”(P 12, conclusion).  
There is no benefit to the bay, only to the proposer.   

• To summarise, this proposal is detrimental to the Character of the Gower AONB as 
outlined in the Conservation Area Statement (CA:024). 

• Langland Bay is in a Conservation Area 

• The proposal is on a greenfield site.  The previous development replaced an 
existing building. 

• The National Coastal Path would have to be crossed to access the site. 

• Width of path – very narrow. 

• Path provides access to the coast and beach and is used by the disabled, elderly, 
children, dog walkers, ramblers and joggers i.e. very busy. 

• Waiters crossing the path would be a hazard. 

• Trays of drink and food being carried across the path would certainly be a Health 
and Safety issue. 

• The development would have a negative impact on the nearby beach huts which 
are rented out. 

• Langland Bay is in a Conservation Area and greenfield site and is one of the 
loveliest and most popular beaches in Gower.  That side of the Bay would be 
completely spoilt visually and for residents, walkers, visitors and chalet occupants – 
the public in general. 

• The applicant already holds a pub licence which could mean the site degenerating 
into a beer garden.  The restaurant noise, disruption and possible drunken 
behaviour from this would be appalling. 

• Surely the applicant’s premises are large enough already.  After all there are two 
other cafes in Langland Bay and one in Rotherslade Bay. 

• I wish to register my strongest possible objection to the planning application to 
appropriate an area of public land on the South side of the public footpath between 
Langland Bay and Caswell Bay, immediately opposite the existing Langland 
Brasserie, to provide an 80 seater food and drink outlet. 

• CONTRAVENTION OF PLANNING POLICY: 
This land lies within the designated Gower Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
(AONB), and the Langland Conservation area. The application should be rejected 
on these two grounds alone as the proposed development breaches the Council's 
own Planning Policies applicable to both these designations. 

Page 61



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 
I draw your attention to Planning Policy EV26 which requires the conservation and 
enhancement of the AONB's landscape and scenic beauty. EV26 states that  
 
"Any development within the AONB should: 
 
(i) Be of the highest standard of design, and 
(ii) Retain and where possible enhance existing landscape features." 
(iii)  
A study of the data supplied with this application demonstrates that the proposed 
development plainly fails on both counts. 
 

• The extensive decking and timber cladding proposed design in this exposed 
seafront area, which will have to be supported on suitably substantial steel &/or 
reinforced concrete foundations (details of which are surprisingly omitted from the 
applicants plans) hardly qualify as a high standard of design. 

• The proposals include demolishing the existing natural landscaping of the site and 
replacing it with Mickey Mouse planters of Escallonia evergreen shrubbery, a totally 
alien plant species to this location, and which the application erroneously describes 
in 'Section 19: Boundary Treatments' as 'indigenous'. To suggest that these 
proposed planter contained 600mm high Escallonia shrubs will "blur the separation 
between the existing Coastal path and the proposed new area" as is stated in the 
introduction to the Design and Access Statement submitted with the application is 
plainly hyperbolic nonsense. 

• DETAILS OF THE APPLICATION: 
The Application contains some significant errors of fact and information. The 
boundary planting misinformation described above is but one example. Another 
major misleading statement is 'Section 20: Employment' which states that the 
proposed development will result in an increase in number of 12 permanent 
employees by the Langland Brasserie. This is plainly a preposterous exaggeration. 
What is proposed is an open air, unprotected decked area surrounded by an open 
tensioned wired balustrade, in an exposed seaside location. It will essentially be 
unusable during the months of October to March inclusive for anything but hot soup 
and drinks to be consumed by blanket wrapped, all weather clothed, customers. To 
suggest that 12 additional restaurant personnel will be employed on a permanent, 
all year round basis to service this area, defies logic. 

• 'Section L: Environmental Sustainability', of the accompanying Design and Access 
Statement implies that lighting will be required in the new area. In addition, 
presumably substantial sun umbrellas and portable heaters will need to be used as 
are used on the patio of the existing Brasserie. Thus to suggest that views across 
the bay from the Coastal path over this development will be 'unencumbered' 
(Section AS: Constraints and opportunities, Design and Access Statement) is 
plainly incorrect. 

• One major problem that will arise if this development proceeds is the interaction 
between users of the Coastal path and Brasserie staff servicing the up to 80 
customers using the new decked area. I know of no other food and drink 
development where the service routes cross such a busy public footpath, at its 
busiest at the time the new decked area will be most used. There can be no doubt 
that these service activities will infringe on the free and unfettered usage of the 
Coastal path by the general public, reason in itself to refuse this application. 

 

Page 62



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 
Comments: 
 
Many thanks for the opportunity to comment regarding the above application.  Could I 
firstly say that I and many others in the area will no-doubt look forward to enjoying the 
seafront seating that this proposed development would provide, and that I personally am 
not especially concerned over relatively minor additional development at this bay, 
especially given the types of material etc. used in the construction. I do however have 2 
observations: 

• The proposed site has very restricted depth and it appears from the plans that it is 
intended that the construction take up the full extent of the non-paved area, 
beginning on the coastal path side at the very edge of the narrow tarmac coastal 
path (taking in the existing grass verge of perhaps 600mm). In summer the path is 
very busy and I am concerned that with the flows along the path in both directions, 
the flows in and out of the 2 directly adjacent entrances to the restaurant and the 
decks, and the additional flow of waiting staff across the path could well result in 
this area becoming a point of significant congestion. 

• During the recent storms I together with many others have stood (outside of 
opening hours) in the restaurant outdoor seating area watching the waves break 
onto the coastal path. There is little doubt that in future the decking area could well 
be damaged in storms. If those constructing the deck are prepared to risk this then 
this is clearly not an issue, but if the long-term result is an application to the council 
to improve the coastal protection here to help avoid damage to the deck then that is 
clearly a matter of concern. 

 
The Gower Society 
 
• The whole sweep of the Langland Bay frontage is renowned for its uniformity of 

small chalets, the simulated chalet roof line of the Brassiere and feeling of a non- 
commercialised Victorian promenade.   The addition of the proposed decking will 
protrude into the frontage of existing development and compromise the feeling 
described above. Adding to the actual construction, we will then see tables and 
parasols that will compound this problem.  If allowed where will the next application 
come from? 

• The fact that a well-used coastal footpath will pass through the space, in between 
the brassiere and the decking serviced area, will result in a conflict of interests 
between walker and serving customers.  There may be Health and Safety issues 
here. 

• There is little doubt that such an area attached to the brassiere will be popular on 
fine days.  However, we have no knowledge as to how often the existing frontal 
area is full to capacity to justify such an unsightly extension towards the sea. 

• We have received a number of calls from local members who are very concerned 
about this proposal and it is essential that the application is ‘Called In’ to Area 2 
Committee.  We, therefore, have no alternative but to object to this aspect of the 
application and ask that you take the above points into account when arriving at 
your decision. 

 
Mumbles Community Council – objection due to its visual impact on the Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty.  Concern regarding hot food and hot and alcoholic drinks 
being carried over the coastal footpath.  Health & Safety issues. 
 

Page 63



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 
Council’s Head of Highways and Transportation comments - The provision of an 
external decked area will not have any adverse impact on the adopted highway.  I 
recommend that no highway objections are raised. 
 
Council’s Ecologist Officer comments - The site falls within the Langland Bay to 
Mumbles Head and Mumbles Hill SINC.  Please add a Bird informative to any grant of 
planning permission. 
 
Amended plans – 22nd July 2014 
 
Following negotiation with the agents and the receipt of amended and corrected plans on 
22nd July 2014 further consultations were undertaken, including all previous objectors, and 
THREE LETTERS OF OBJECTION have been received which can be summarised as 
follows: 
 

• The area is of natural beauty and a conservation area.  In my opinion it will cause a 
negative visual impact, not enhance the bay and will reduce the charm and 
ambiance. 

• The safety issues involved would be congestion causing accidents when 
pedestrians mainly elderly, children and dogs are crossing the path up and down 
against staff serving hot beverages and meals across the flow. 

• We already have three cafes/restaurants in our bay serving a variety of cuisine and 
beverages. The choices are adequate for the numbers of clients (weather 
permitting) 

• The recent storm damage is not an isolated event. This structure may look amazing 
when newly built, but wood, glass and materials deteriorate rapidly in this position 
almost on the beach and may look a shabby eye sore if not maintained properly 
which is expensive. 

• AONB and conservation areas will be worthless if planning is constantly agreed. 

• I do object to the amended proposal.  Apart from the objections raised in my 
previous letter, I think it would be an eyesore. 

• Problems would still arise with staff crossing the pathway with loaded trays and 
customers using the main building as well as the extension over the beach. 

• There is also the possibility of storm and high tide damage.  After all the sea wall 
suffered serious damage not so long ago. 

• The present premises are already large and the business appears to be well run.  
However, should the present management change – it could be a different matter 
altogether. 

• Langland is already well provided with cafes and would not be enhanced by this 
proposal. 

• The proposed changes made to the original application, in particular increasing the 
density of customer seating, renders the revised application more objectionable 
than the original. 

 
Amended plans – 2nd October 2014 
 
Further negotiation with the agent resulted in the receipt of a further set of plans which 
were received 2nd October 2014, and re-consultations resulted in SIX LETTERS OF 
OBJECTION and further comments from the Head of Highways and Transportation, which 
can be summarised thus: 

Page 64



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 

• My previous objection to the original proposal still stands for the amended plans. 
None of my concerns/objections have altered with the amended proposal. 

• Staff will still have to cross a busy footpath, which the public use considerably - 
especially in fine weather when the proposed deck would be busy if it were allowed 
to be built. 

• The many, many people who use this footpath deserve better than to have to 
dodge waiters crossing with food and drinks. Accidents waiting to happen!! 

• We do not think that the open-air restaurant area of the Langland Brasserie should 
be extended across the public path to the sea side. 

• This is the second set of amendments to the original application for this project 
which was first tabled in January 2014, amended in July 2014, and now further 
amended in October 2014. Three versions in ten months does suggest that not only 
was the original application flawed but that the subsequent amended applications 
were and are attempts to botch up this dubious proposal. 

• The original application proposed 78 seated places in the development, the first 
amendment 88, the current amendment 64, which are variations of 17% and 27% 
from each of the two previous proposals. Such significant alterations do not 
provoke confidence in the overall integrity of the proposal, the whole purpose of 
which presumably is to increase the covers, and income, of the Brasserie at the 
expense of the public amenity. 

• I have studied the revised plans provided, HG -12-74-00 to 04 and the main change 
appears to be the new proposals for the walls separating the development from the 
adjacent public footpath, and between the two deck levels within the development. 
As with the previous applications any engineering detail is conspicuously absent 
from the drawings, for example as to how the cantilevered "floating timber deck" of 
the lower level is to be supported. Of more concern is the "reinforced cast concrete 
retained [retaining?] wall" which separates the development area from the public 
footpath and which at its junction with the access steps is directly adjacent to it. No 
foundation details are shown for this reinforced concrete retaining wall which will 
require significant foundation works in the existing made up ground which will 
inevitably impinge on the public footpath during construction, and at its eastern 
junction with the access terrace will have to be constructed under this footpath. 

• With the exception of these foundation concerns, my objections to the original 
proposal of January 2014, and the amended proposal of July 2014, were detailed in 
my letters to you of 9th February 2014 and 13th August 2014, and these are still 
valid.  I enclose copies of both these letters. 

• CONTRAVENTION OF PLANNING POLICY:  The proposed development lies 
within the designated Gower Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), and the 
Langland Bay Conservation Area. The proposed development breaches the 
Council's own planning policies applicable to both these designations. In particular 
Planning Policy EV26 requires the conservation and enhancement of the AONB's 
landscape and scenic beauty. EV26 requires "any development within the AONB to 
be of the highest standard of design, and must retain and where possible enhance 
the existing landscape features". The details of the proposed development as 
outlined in the amended drawings of October 2014 plainly do neither. 

• The Application Form, and the Design + Access Statement HG12.74, appear to be 
unchanged from the original versions, and my comments on the Details of the 
Application listed in my previous two letters of objection remain valid, and I refer 
you to the copies of these letters which I include. In essence these include:  

Page 65



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 

• DETAILS OF APPLICATION: 
The claim (Application Form: Item 20: Employment) that the development will result 
in an increase of 12 in the number of permanent employees is plainly specious. 
The terraces will be essentially unusable on climatic grounds for at least 6 months 
of the year from October to March. 

• The Design + Access Statement: Section L implies that lighting will be used on the 
terraces, and presumably sun umbrellas (as currently used by the Brasserie) and 
portable heaters. To suggest that views across the bay from the coastal path 
adjacent to this development will be "unencumbered" is plainly false.  When the 
new terraces are in use the interaction between users of the coastal path and the 
Brasserie staff servicing the up to 64 customers using the terraces will be fraught 
with problems. Which other food and drink operation in Swansea has its service 
route crossing a popular and busy unrestricted public footpath, which will be at its 
busiest when the terraces will be most in use? Thus this development will infringe 
on the free and unfettered usage of the coast path by the general public. 

• As far as I can see, the amended plans just make minor alterations to the original 
application and make no attempt to address the substantive objections that have 
been raised and which, therefore, remain. 

• I'm aware that this is a late comment but I'm a keen visitor of Langland and I have 
only today seen the planning notice.  I think this is an awful proposal, effecting 
wildlife, the historical view and the enjoyment of this important bay and coastal 
path.  Is it realistic even to expect staff to carry trays down 2 flights of steps 
dodging users of the coastal path in between?  The brasserie has a very nice 
terrace already. Can't they be happy to leave it as that without spoiling the view 
further? 

 
The Gower Society:  We refer to the above revised application and have the following 
comments to make: 
 

1. Our original and subsequent comments relating to this proposal still stand and we 
can see no valid reason to change our views. 

2. The question of the coastal footpath remains and whilst slightly less conspicuous, it 
would still create a serious change on the current landscape and historical view of 
the bay. 

 
Head of Highways and Transportation – amended plan – no highway objection. 
 
Amended plans – 2nd December 2014 
 
The final set of amended plans, received 2nd December 2014, show the incorporation of a 
disabled access ramp into the scheme, following comments from Officers regarding the 
previous lack of such provision.  No further consultations were undertaken as the 
amendments were not considered to result in a substantial alteration to the previously 
shown scheme. 
 
In addition to the above consultation responses, however, the Planning Department’s 
Conservation Area Team have been involved during the whole process of the 
application, providing comments on the initial submission and attendance at the meetings, 
discussions and negotiations with the agents, providing detailed comments on the 
application at each stage.  These comments are incorporated into the appraisal below. 

Page 66



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application has been called to Committee for determination at the request of 
Councillor Tony Colburn, in order to assess safety considerations, aesthetic effect and 
strong public concern.  Councillor Colburn has advised that the local member, Councillor 
Miles Thomas, is aware of his request and has also requested that a site visit be 
undertaken by Members. 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the construction of a two-level decked area to the 
front of the Langland Brasserie site, off Brynfield Road, Langland, on an area of sloping 
grassland on the opposite side of the `Promenade’ footpath.  The land is in Council 
ownership and it is proposed that the land be leased from the Council. 
 
The site itself comprises a narrow, roughly triangular, sloping area of grassland, lying in 
front of the Langland Brasserie building, and between the existing promenade to the north 
and the beach to the south.  The western part of the site abuts a further parcel of 
vegetated land which runs between the curving Promenade path (leading to the western 
headland and beyond) and the beach at Langland.  To the east, the site adjoins a wide set 
of steps which provides access from the promenade to the beach.  Immediately in front of 
the site (south) is a sloping access ramp which runs from the side of the steps and 
provides additional/alternative access to the beach. 
 
The area in front of the Langland Brasserie therefore acts as a gateway transition between 
the rural character of the Wales Coastal Path to the west, the low-key and relatively un-
commercialised nature of the raised promenade to the east and the access to the beach 
beneath this.  The Langland Brasserie and its existing external terraced area lie on the 
opposite side of the coastal path, behind a sloping retaining wall measuring approximately 
2-3m in height, and faced with an irregular rubble stone masonry finish. 
 
The proposal comprises an expansion to the outdoor seating area available to the 
Langland Brasserie, and will allow the provision of 8 four seat and 6 two seat tables on the 
lower deck, with 6 four seat tables on the smaller upper deck (up to 64 seats).  The main 
access to the seating area is proposed in a centralised location from the promenade into 
the middle of the decked area.  This would align with the main steps leading down from 
the raised outdoor seating area directly outside the Langland Brasserie. A wheelchair 
access ramp is also proposed, some 5m further along the coastal path than the main 
access. 
 
The rear upper deck is to be stepped down from the Promenade footway, with stone 
retaining walls, planting and glazed panels forming its northern edge.  A further run of 
stone wall to the south of this rear deck, will form the backdrop of the larger, lower decked 
area which is to be finished to the front with glazed balustrade/safety panels.  Precise 
details of the balustrade, glazing and stone walls are to form part of future submissions for 
approval and these details will be secured by means of a suitably worded condition 
attached to any grant of planning permission in this instance. 
 
The main issues for consideration in this instance are the impact of the proposed 
development on the visual and residential amenities of the immediate and wider areas, 
and on the tourism and recreational values associated with both the Langland Bay area 
and the wider AONB. These will be assessed against the criteria of adopted UDP Policies 
and SPG documents.   Page 67



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 
Those UDP policies particularly relevant to this proposal are:  EV1 - General Design 
Principles; EV2 – Siting and Location; EV3 – Accessibility; EV4 – Public Realm; EV9 - 
Development in Conservation Areas; EV21 – Rural development; EV26 – Gower AONB 
policy; EC16 – Swansea Bay Recreational and Tourism Facilities; EC17 – Rural Tourism; 
and AS3 – Public Rights of Way. 
 
The site lies within the designated Langland Bay Conservation Area and the character 
statement for this area states: 
 
“The coastal area lies within the designated AONB and is also part of the Heritage Coast.  
It is the most intensely used coastal tourist and recreation area in Gower, offering a varied 
seascape of fine sandy bays and limestone rock.  The popular coastal footpath between 
Limeslade and Caswell Bays runs directly along the bay front and is in need of some 
upgrading. 
 
A unique feature of the Bay is the abundance of small summer chalets dating from the 
early 1920’s which are used in the main as shelter facilities for bathers.  They run 
intermittently along the foreshore for over a mile. 
 
Langland Bay’s special character and appearance are due to this combination of fine 
coastal scenery, accessible sandy beaches and a relatively un-commercialised seafront, 
epitomised by the extensive bathing-hut sites.  This small but popular seaside resort is 
visually `framed’ by the mature woodland which forms the backcloth to the bay.  The 
gradation from sea to sand, promenade to beach-hut, hotels and flats to residential area 
above within the woodland setting, allows the resort to nestle within the bay rather than 
dominate it. “Green” areas still predominate visually; buildings, with a few exceptions, 
remain subservient”. 
 
The above statement declares that the area has a relatively un-commercialised seafront 
and that the existing gradation of all of the various elements making up the resort allows 
this to nestle within the bay, which is predominantly `green’ in nature.  This would suggest 
that development along the seafront should generally be resisted.  However, in this 
instance, it is considered that the proposals represent a minor form of development which, 
sensitively designed, would be complementary to the established character of the area 
and would support a local business in a manner which would provide a level of activity in 
the public realm which is appropriate to the area as a coastal tourism and recreation 
destination, in accordance with Policies EV1, EV4, EV9, EV21, EV26, EC16 and EC17 of 
the adopted Unitary Development Plan. 
 
The proposed decks sit in an elevated position above the beach, which increases the 
visual prominence of the development.  However, the decks now proposed have been 
made more subservient than those originally proposed, by decreasing their height and 
lowering them into the sloping ground levels, with a stepped access down from the coastal 
footpath.  This, it is considered, has helped the development nestle into the proposed site 
and retains the characteristic open views from the Wales Coastal path out to the sea. 
Thus, whilst it is recognized that the site utilizes previously undeveloped land, it is 
considered to be acceptable, particularly as no previously developed land is available for 
the proposal, as advocated by Policy EV2. 
 

Page 68



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 
It is noted that the finally amended scheme now provides access for wheelchair users 
and, it is noted that the main brasserie site also provides access ramps for wheelchair 
users. Therefore, wheelchair users visiting the brasserie are provided with a suitable 
means of access to the main building and the outdoor area immediately surrounding it, 
and will also now be able to use the upper decked area being proposed. The proposal is 
therefore considered to comply with UDP Policy EV3. 
 
The proposal was also amended following concerns expressed by the Planning 
Department’s Conservation Area Team, that the easternmost tip of the scheme would 
have been highly prominent on approach from both the east and north.  The lower deck 
has therefore been reduced in length at its eastern end, in order to minimise its visual 
impact when approaching from Brynfield Road to the north and along the coastal path to 
the east.  This reduction has also allowed for a greater separation of the development 
from existing signage on the corner of the site, which in turn allows for additional planting 
at this location to help create a softer edge to the proposals when viewed from the north 
and east. 
 
Whilst precise details have not yet been agreed, the proposals put forward for enclosing 
the front of the lower deck include glazed panels and handrails and this is considered to 
provide a suitable level of enclosure whilst maintaining visual penetration and wider views 
of the Langland Bay area.  Indeed, the lowering of the decked areas almost to the existing 
ground levels and contours of the open grassed area, and the incorporation of such a 
means of enclosure would ensure that when not in use, the vista from the beach towards 
the seafront area at Langland will appear close to what presently exists i.e. a stone wall 
construction in front of and below the promenade footway.  Even when in use, the design 
of the decked area and its siting in the slope of the grassed area means that views both 
from the promenade footway towards the beach, and from the beach and slipway towards 
the seafront would be minimally affected and those panoramic views maintained. 
 
Finally, given the established character of the Langland Bay Conservation Area as an `un-
commercialised seafront’ as well as the relatively prominent nature of the site and its close 
proximity to the adjacent Wales Coastal Path, the visual impact arising from the 
subsequent use of the proposal must be carefully controlled.  As such, a condition should 
be attached to any grant of planning permission to prohibit the use of parasols and/or 
umbrellas within the decked area, as these would likely adversely impact upon the visual 
qualities to which the current proposal has sought to aspire and relate. 
 
In response to consultations on the various schemes submitted as part of this application, 
objections have been received relating to various matters of visual amenity, impact on the 
designated Conservation Area and Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, potential health 
and safety issues and potential issues arising from the licence already held by the 
restaurant owner. 
 
Matters relating to visual amenity and impact upon the Langland Bay Conservation Area 
and wider Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty have been addressed above.  Matters 
concerning health and safety, licensing issues and the potential for hazards during the use 
of the decked area for consuming hot/cold food/drinks are not material to the 
consideration of the application but are controlled under separate legislation. 
 

Page 69



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 
Several objectors have criticized the planting being proposed. The Planning Department’s 
Landscape Architect has also raised concern with the proposed planting and has 
requested that alternative details be provided. This matter will therefore be addressed by 
means of a suitably worded condition. 
 
In conclusion, and having regard to all material considerations including the Human Rights 
Act, the proposal is considered to represent an acceptable form of development which is 
appropriate for its purpose and in the context of the Langland Bay Conservation Area and 
the wider AONB designation.  As such, the proposal complies with the criteria of Policies 
EV1, EV4, EV9, EV21, EV26, EC16 and EC17 of the adopted City & County of Swansea 
Unitary Development Plan 2008. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE, subject to the following conditions; 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than five years from the 
date of this decision. 

 Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990.  

 

2 The materials used for the external finishes/surfaces of the development shall be 
in accordance with details/samples to be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority before the development is commenced. 

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 

3 No umbrellas or parasols shall be used on the decked areas hereby approved. 

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 

4 Notwithstanding the drawings hereby approved, no development shall take place 
without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority of a scheme for 
the landscaping of the site.  The landscaping scheme shall be carried out within 12 
months from the completion of the development.  Any trees or shrubs planted in 
accordance with this condition which are removed, die, become seriously 
diseased within two years of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of 
similar size and species to those originally required to be planted. 

 Reason: To ensure that the site is satisfactorily landscaped having regard to its 
location and the nature of the proposed development, and to accord with Section 
197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: Policies EV1, EV2, EV3, EV4, 
EV9, EV21, EV26, EC16, EC17 and AS3 of the adopted City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008. 

 

Page 70



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 6 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0026 

 
2 Bats may be present.  All British bat species are protected under Schedule 5 of the 

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and are listed in Schedule 2 of the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.  This legislation 
implements the EC Habitats & Species Directive in the UK making it an offence to 
capture, kill or disturb a European Protected Species or to damage or destroy the 
breeding site or resting place of such an animal.  It is also an offence to recklessly 
/ intentionally to disturb such an animal. 
If evidence of bats is encountered during site clearance e.g. live or dead animals 
or droppings, work should cease immediately and the advice of the Natural 
Resources Wales sought before continuing with any work (01792 634960). 

 
3 Birds may be present.  Please note it is an offence under the Wildlife & 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to intentionally (intentionally or recklessly for 
Schedule 1 birds) to: 
-  Kill, injure or take any wild bird 
-  Take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that nest in use or being 
built 
-  Take or destroy an egg of any wild bird 
Care should be taken when working on buildings particularly during the bird 
nesting season March-August. 

 
4 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 
PLANS 
 
Amended Plans:  HG-12-74-00 REV 07 - Amended Site Location Plan and Block Plan; 
HG-12-74-01 REV 07 - Amended Existing Elevation and floor plan; HG-12-74-03 REV 07 - 
Amended Proposed Sections, received 2nd October 2014; Amended plans showing ramp:  
HG-12-74-02 REV 08 - Amended Proposed Floor Plan, HG-12-74-04 Rev 08 - Proposed 
Elevation, received 2nd December 2014 
 

 

Page 71



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 7   APPLICATION NO. 2014/1382 

  WARD:  

 

Location: Orchard Park Farm, Llanmadoc, Swansea, SA3 1DE 

Proposal: Construction of stables 

Applicant: Mrs Margaret Lloyd 

 
 

The Old

Rectory

Bay View

Sheep Dip T
ra
c
k

58.3m

Cottage

Catchpool

Catchpool

LB

62.3m

H
a
z
e
ld
e
n
e

U
n
d
e
rw

a
y
s

croft

M
id
d
le

A
p
p
le
c
ro
ft

C
o
tt
a
g
e

Thorney-

T
y
 G

w
y
n

Big House

T
h
e
 R

e
tr

e
a
t

TCB

T
h
e
 C

ro
ft

Bryn y mor

L
la

n
d
w

y
n

T
h
e

 B
ry

n

Orchard

Park

Corner

House

C
o
tt
a
g
e

T
ilp
in

Cattle Grid

O
rc

h
a
rd

 P
a

rk
 F

a
rm

Apple Pie Cottage

E
l 
G

e
n
e
n
a

G
o
w

e
r 

C
o
tt
a
g
e

T
h
e

 M
e
rlin

s

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 72



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 7 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1382 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV2 The siting of new development shall give preference to the use of 
previously developed land and have regard to the physical character 
and topography of the site and its surroundings. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV9 Development within or adjacent to a Conservation Area will only be 
permitted if it would preserve or enhance the character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area or its setting. (City & County of Swansea 
Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV21 In the countryside non-residential development will only be permitted 
where it can be demonstrated that it is beneficial for the rural economy, 
or it meets overriding social or economic local needs, or it is appropriate 
development associated with farm diversification, sustainable tourism or 
nature conservation, or it provides an acceptable economic use for 
brown field land or existing buildings, or it is essential for 
communications, other utility services, minerals or renewable energy 
generation. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV26 Within the Gower AONB, the primary objective is the conservation and 
enhancement of the area's natural beauty.  Development that would 
have a material adverse effect on the natural beauty, wildlife and 
cultural heritage of the AONB will not be permitted. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy HC7 Proposals for extensions and alterations to existing residential dwellings 
will be assessed in terms of; relationship to the existing dwelling, impact 
on the character and appearance of the streetscene, affect on 
neighbouring properties, and impact on car parking. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2014/0867 Construction of stables 

Decision:  Refuse 

Decision Date:  04/08/2014 

 

Page 73



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 7 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1382 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
The neighbouring occupants at Ashcroft, Sunset Lodge, The Bryn, Catchpool Cottage, Big 
House Farm, Thorneycroft, Orchard Park and Llandwyn were sent letters of consultation 
on 27th November 2014.  A site notice was posted within the vicinity of the site and a press 
notice was issued on 29th December 2014.   
 
ELEVEN LETTERS OF OBJECTION have been received which are summarised below: 
 

• The stables would affect all of the surrounding homes and the use of their gardens 

• The property although called Orchard Park Farm is not actually a farm but in close 
proximity to a number of other houses.  

• The stables would overbear our property as the roof level of the stables would be 
two feet higher than the upstairs window of our home.  

• The application form states that neighbours have been consulted; nobody was 
consulted by the applicant. 

• The stables will be in close proximity to neighbouring properties. 

• The structure would be a detrimental, non-essential, recreational and arguably 
luxury facility to a location where residents housing and gardens are established. 

• Alternatives to the proposed facility are within a 2 minute walk 

• There will be air and noise pollution from the stables 

• Orchard Park Farm has not kept horses at the house for a very long time.  

• The trees between Orchard Park Farm and Big House Farm will not adequately 
hide the proposed building, which due to the lay of the land would be extremely 
visible from Big House Farm 

• The smell and  noise impact is a concern 

• There are drainage issues on the site 

• The pictures submitted by the applicant show the tree screen in full leaf at the 
height of the growing season and make no allowance for the other 6 months of the 
year where there would be no visual protection.  

 
The Gower Society responded with a letter of comment which is summarised below: 
  

• We cannot see any significant difference to the original application 2014/0867 that 
was refused 

• Our original letter of 29th June 2014 still stands 

• The development will impact upon the neighbouring properties 

• We understand that the owners have fields near that would be more suitable and 
should at least be considered 

• The proposal is within the core of the Llanmadoc Conservation Area 

• The close proximity may impact upon the adjacent domestic properties.  
 
ONE LETTER OF SUPPORT has been received which is summarised below: 
 

• I fully support this application by Mrs Lloyd 

• Mrs Lloyd’s horses bring life back to the village 

• The horses need shelter and I assume that they will bring a lot of joy.  

Page 74



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 7 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1382 

 
ONE LETTER OF COMMENT was received which is summarised below: 
 

• I used to live in Big House Farm, we had no occasions of flooding either in the 
curtailment of the house, the vegetable garden or the stable yard.  

 
Amended plans were received on 12th December 2014.  Ashcroft, Sunset Lodge, The 
Bryn, Catchpool Cottage, Big House Farm, Thorneycroft, Orchard Park and Llandwyn 
were sent letters of consultation on 18th December 2014.  TWO further letters of objection 
were received which are summarised below: 
 

• The amended plans do not change the issues, therefore our comments still stand.  

• The issues have not changed in spite of the revision; our previous objections 
should be applied to the amended plan.  

 
Llangennith, Llanmadoc and Cheriton Community Council responded with an 
objection to the proposal which is summarised below: 
 

• The community council objects on the grounds that the immediate surrounding area 
is fully residential  

• The odours emitting from the stables would be unpleasant 

• There is concern regarding the pollution of water courses in the area as a result of 
the development 

• The stables should be located much farther away from the houses 
 
Highways Observations -  
 
The Head of Transportation and Engineering was consulted and offered no objection to 
the proposal.  
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is reported to Committee for decision and a site visit has been requested 
by Councillor Richard Lewis in order to assess the impact of the proposal on the 
Conservation Area. 
 
The application site comprises of a two storey detached dwelling in Llanmadoc which is 
situated in the local ward of Gower.  The application property benefits from off road 
parking and a large curtilage.  The application site is located within the Llanmadoc 
Conservation Area and the Gower Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 
 
The village of Llanmadoc lies at the northern edge of Llanmadoc Hill in the north-west of 
Gower.  It supports a number of community facilities including a village hall, church, shop 
and public house. The original settlement of Llanmadoc was focused upon the medieval 
church of St. Madoc, on the junction of the ancient road linking Cwm Ivy to Llangennith.  
Infilling between the original hamlets has resulted in a linear form, the central section of 
which is characterised by larger dwellings set in substantial plots, the majority of which 
were developed during the later half of the twentieth century.  
 
A previous application (2014/0867) for the construction of stables at Orchard Park Farm 
was refused planning permission on 4th August 2014 for the following reasons: 

Page 75



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 7 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1382 

 
1. The proposed stables by virtue of their size and siting would introduce an incongruous 
and disproportionate form of development which would have a detrimental impact upon 
the visual amenity of the surrounding area and the character and appearance of the 
Gower Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and the Llanmadoc Conservation 
Area, contrary to Policies EV1, EV2, EV9, EV21, EV26 and HC7 of the adopted City and 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008. 
 
2. The proposed stables would have a detrimental impact upon the residential amenity of 
the adjoining neighbours by virtue of the non-residential activity which would be introduced 
to the area, as well as the level of overshadowing and overbearance which would arise 
from the proposed stables, contrary to Policies EV1, EV2, EV9, EV21, EV26 and HC7 of 
the adopted City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008. 
 
The current application seeks full planning permission to construct a stable building in the 
rear garden of the property which will incorporate two horse boxes, a tack room and hay 
store and an associated area of hardstanding. The proposed stable building has an ‘L’ 
Shaped footprint and will measure approximately 10.8 metres wide and approximately 9.0 
metres deep.  It will measure approximately 2.5 metres to the eaves and approximately 4 
metres to the ridge.  
 
The primary issues in the consideration of this application relate to the impact of the 
proposed development on visual and residential amenity, having regard to Policies EV1, 
EV2, EV9, EV21, EV26 and HC7 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development 
Plan (2008).  The application is also considered with regard to the Council’s 
Supplementary Planning Guidance document entitled the ‘Gower AONB Design Guide’.  
 
The proposed stables will be constructed in the rear garden of the application property, 
therefore only very oblique views (if any) of the proposed stables would be offered from 
public vantage points. The proposed building will however be visible from several nearby 
properties. 
 
Although it is recognised that the current proposal has been reduced in size compared to 
the previously refused application, it is still considered that the proposed development is 
contrary to Section 7.3 of the Design Guide for Householder Development which states 
that an outbuilding ‘must be smaller in scale and subservient to the main house’. Whilst it 
is recognised that the footprint of the stable building is smaller than that of the host 
dwelling, the proposed building is nevertheless not considered to be sufficiently 
subservient. The proposal is therefore considered to be contrary to the Design Guide and 
Policy HC7. The excessive size of the proposed building relative to the host dwelling is 
also considered to render it as an inappropriate development within the conservation area 
and AONB, as the relative scale of the building results in it failing to enhance or preserve 
the character of the conservation area, contrary to Policy EV9 and EV26. 
 
The application site shares its curtilage boundary with the properties known as Llandwyn, 
Thorneycroft, Orchard Park and Big House Farm. The proposed building is sited in close 
proximity with the common boundary of Big House Farm. 
 
It is noted that Big House Farm is a Grade II Listed Building; therefore it is important to 
consider the possible impact that the proposed development may have on the siting of this 
listed building.   

Page 76



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 
 

ITEM 7 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1382 

 
 
It is considered that the proposed stable building would not have an adverse impact upon 
this Grade II Listed Building given its siting, which is approximately 15 metres from the 
house itself.  Whilst it is recognised that the proposed stable building is within 
approximately 1.5 metres of the curtilage boundary of Big House Farm, it is not 
considered that this proximity to the curtilage boundary would have an adverse effect on 
the Grade II Listed Building.   
 
The applicant’s agent has stated that the proposed building is only to be used for domestic 
purposes. Furthermore it is noted that the proposal only makes provision for 2 stable bays. 
It is accepted that the proposed stables would create an increased level of traffic as a 
result of the removal of waste from the site to the outlying fields, the movement of the 
horses to and from the site to suitable grazing pastures, as well as movement associated 
with taking the horses out for riding.  However, the level of activity associated with a 2 bay 
domestic stables is not considered to have a significant, detrimental impact on the amenity 
of the neighbouring occupants, by virtue of noise and disturbance. 
 
The previously approved application was partially refused on the grounds that the building 
subject of that application would have resulted in an overbearing and overshadowing 
impact on neighbouring occupiers. The proposed stable building subject of this application 
is however smaller than the previously refused building and is set off the common 
boundary with the property known by approximately 1.2m-1.5m. It is considered that due 
to this ‘set off’ distance, together with the reduced size of the proposal, the proposed 
building will no longer impinge an unacceptable impact upon neighbouring occupiers 
(particularly those residing at Big House Farm) in terms of overbearance and 
overshadowing. 
 
With regards to the objections raised, the majority of these issues have been addressed in 
the main body of this report.  However, with regards to the issues raised concerning the 
odours which could arise from the proposed development, it is not considered that 
significant odours would arise from the two horses which would be housed within this 
domestic stable building. In the event that such problems did arise, the Council’s Pollution 
Control section would have powers to deal with such a complaint.  With regards to the 
drainage issues which have been raised, it is considered that this issue could be 
overcome with the provision of a suitable condition.   
 
In conclusion it is considered that the proposal represents an unacceptable form of 
development.  The scale of the proposed development is such that it would be visually 
intrusive and would alter the character and appearance of the surrounding area, the 
Conservation Area and the wider Gower AONB within which the application property lies.  
Therefore the proposed development contravenes Policies EV1, EV2, EV9, EV21, EV26 
and HC7 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan and the Gower 
AONB Design Guide.  
 

Page 77



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 7 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1382 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
REFUSE, for the following reason; 
 

1 The proposed stable building by virtue of its size and siting would introduce an 
incongruous and disproportionate form of development which would fail to be 
sufficiently subservient to the host dwelling and would have a detrimental impact 
upon the visual amenity of the surrounding area and the character and 
appearance of the Gower Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and the 
Llanmadoc Conservation Area, contrary to Policies EV1, EV2, EV9, EV26 and 
HC7 of the adopted City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008 
and the Council's Design Guide for Householder Development 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: EV1, EV2, EV9, EV21, EV26 and 
HC7 

 
PLANS 
 
Site location plan, dated 23rd September 2014. Amended block plan, amended elevations, 
amended west elevation and amended floor plan, dated 12th December 2014.  
  

 

Page 78



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 8  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1845 

  WARD: Newton 
 

 

Location: 165A Newton Road, Newton, Swansea, SA3 4UD 

Proposal: Two storey rear extension, front porch and creation of one additional 
off road parking space   

Applicant: Mr John McGuinness 

 
 

2

2
0

Ne
wt
on

4
8

22

1
5
8

C
hu
rc
h

18

1
2

2

5

15

El

N
e
w
h
a
v
e
n

17
9

15
1

1
9
8
a

(PH
)

1

1
3
5

29

1

Sub Sta

69.8m

79.6m

Picket Mead

3

1
3
3
a

1

1
8
0

9

2
0

PH

1
6
21

6
5

1
4
7

2
4

TCB

7

Primary School

Pa
ra
cl
et
e

4
7

1
6

1

21

M
E
L
C

O
R

N
 D

R
IV

E

Inn

LB

2

82.9m

Newton

1
5
7

2
6

1
5
6

200

28

SLADE ROAD

17

11

Garage

5

1
4
6

1
6
3

1
7
0

15
5

1
6
5
a

N
E
W

T
O

N
 R

O
A
D

1
7
1

1
5
6

16
2a

19
8

1
7

NEWTON

1
6
6

1
5
4

The Jory

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 79



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 8 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1845 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV9 Development within or adjacent to a Conservation Area will only be 
permitted if it would preserve or enhance the character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area or its setting. (City & County of Swansea 
Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy HC7 Proposals for extensions and alterations to existing residential dwellings 
will be assessed in terms of; relationship to the existing dwelling, impact 
on the character and appearance of the streetscene, affect on 
neighbouring properties, and impact on car parking. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2014/0556 Provision of a hardstanding to create three additional parking spaces 
and front boundary wall 

Decision:  Refuse 

Decision Date:  06/06/2014 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
The neighbouring occupants of Nos. 18 and 20 Summerland Lane and Nos. 163 and 165 
Newton Road were sent letters of consultation on 4th December, 2014 and the application 
was advertised in the press and on site on 15th December, 2014. No representations have 
been received to date. 
 
Council’s Head of Transportation and Engineering - This is a resubmission of a 
previous proposal that included the alteration of the forecourt area to accommodate 4 
cars. That application was refused on highway safety grounds due to concerns with 
visibility for vehicles entering and leaving the site at that location. The current proposal 
has reduced the number of parking spaces sought to 2, with space between the bays for 
alighting the vehicles. The overall space on the forecourt would likely accommodate three 
cars to be parked if less space is allowed between them. This alternative proposal also 
indicates the removal of part of the wall that can restrict visibility when a car is parked in 
the present lay-bye facility. 
 
The neighbouring property does have a larger forecourt similar to this proposal and is able 
to park at right angles to the road and therefore has restricted visibility when leaving the 
site, whether reversing or in forward gear, due to the presence of boundary walls and the 
lack of any footway provision along this part of Newton Road.  

Page 80



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 8 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1845 

 
The application property however is located nearer to the junction of Newton Road with 
Slade Road and therefore is subject to additional traffic manoeuvres compared to the 
neighbouring property that is further away. The current lay-by parking does allow a vehicle 
to park with the driver placed nearer to the road side thus improving visibility and 
consequently safety for the exiting manoeuvre and is little different than kerb side parking 
albeit clear of the carriageway. 
 
I have considered whether the applicant’s revised proposal reducing the number of 
parking spaces and removing part of the boundary wall is sufficient to overcome the 
objections previously raised, however, I consider that on balance the main thrust of the 
concerns remain and will increase the safety risk of the parking and exiting of a vehicle 
and this will increase as a result of the additional vehicle able to be accommodated. 
 
I recommend refusal of the application on the grounds that the proposed alterations to the 
parking facilities may result in increased risk to highway safety in that vicinity. 
 
Conservation Area Team Observations - The proposals follow the refusal of permission 
for the creation of 4 parking bays running orthogonally to the highway in front of the 
property (app ref: 2014/0556). The proposed parking arrangements for this application 
now seek the introduction of 2 no. parking bays running orthogonally to the road. The 
plans show these spaces to have a 1.2m circulation space around the sides of each bay. 
However the overall area of uninterrupted hardstanding provided is very similar to the 
previous application. 
 
As such the comments from the previous application stand and are as follows: 
 

- The principle of the revised parking arrangements is acceptable. 
- Due to the level difference between the raised area outside of the front of the 

property and the parking area below the application will be subject to the provisions 
of Part K of Building Regs (2013). This will require a barrier to a height of 1100mm 
to reduce the risk of falls. 

- This barrier should be comprised of conservation area style railings (see photo for 
example) painted black in order to provide a visually permeable barrier in this 
raised location and also to respect the character of the conservation area. 

- Furthermore the applicant should consider utilising the proposed grass area as a 
planting bed to add some variety and visual interest to the scheme. 

 
In relation to the proposed 2 storey extension to the rear, this extends no further than the 
current rear building line of the property and therefore the overall mass of the structure is 
not significantly different and is not visible from the public realm. Therefore this element of 
the proposals will have no impact upon the character and appearance of the Newton 
Conservation Area. However there is a small area of this rear extension which although 
not extending beyond the existing rear building line will infill the gap between the main 
rear elevation and that at the north-western side of the dwelling adjacent to the 
neighbouring house. An assessment should therefore be made to ascertain as to whether 
this section of infill extension impacts upon the amenity of the neighbouring dwelling. 
 
In terms of the proposals to the front of the dwelling these include a front porch to replace 
the existing front door and canopy and the inclusion of a narrow, full height slot window 
above this. The proposed porch is acceptable subject to this being finished in smooth 
render to match the existing dwelling.  Page 81



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 8 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1845 

 
However if it is proposed to utilise similar concrete tiles to the main roof of the dwelling 
then these should be small scale tiles to match the small scale of the porch roof and to 
ensure that the heavy appearance of the main roof tiles does not visually detract from this 
feature to the detriment of the character and appearance of the dwelling and the wider 
conservation area. The proposed slot window is acceptable subject to this being of 
matching style and with a matching cill to the existing windows at the front of the dwelling.  
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is reported to Committee for decision at the request of Councillor Keith 
Marsh and a Site Visit has also been requested to allow the Planning Committee to 
consider the impact of this amended application. 
 
The application site comprises of a two storey semi-detached dwelling on Newton Road, 
which is situated within the Newton Conservation Area. The site benefits from a modest 
curtilage incorporating off-street parking and a modest sized rear garden plot. 
 
This application seeks full planning permission to build a two storey rear extension, front 
porch and creation of one additional off road parking space to the front of the site. The 
proposed two storey rear extension will measure approximately 3.3 metres deep, 3.8 
metres wide, and will comprise of a pitched roof measuring approximately 4.6 metres to 
the eaves and 5.8 metres to the ridge. The construction of the two storey rear extension 
will incorporate the renovation of the existing two storey rear extension. The proposed 
front porch will measure approximately 1.3 metres deep, 2.2 metres wide, and will 
comprise of a pitched roof measuring approximately 2.1 metres to the eaves and 2.9 
metres to the ridge. The extended hardstanding will measure approximately 4.8 metres 
long by 9.6 metres wide. Given the dramatic changes in levels across the site the 
proposed works will include excavation work of parts of both the front and rear gardens.  
 
The primary issues in the consideration of this application relate to the impact of the 
proposed development on visual and residential amenities having regard to the provisions 
of Policies EV1, EV9 and HC7 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development 
Plan (UDP), which was formally adopted in November 2008. The application is also 
considered with respect to the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance document 
entitled ‘A Design Guide for Householder Development’. 
 
The application property is located on the residential street of Newton Road within a 
Conservation Area, which is characterised by a mixture of mainly detached, semi-
detached and terraced two storey dwellings of varying ages with traditional pitched roofs.  
 
Firstly, it is considered that the scale and design of the proposed front porch is acceptable, 
particularly given its modest height and proposed use of matching materials and will be of 
a similar scale and design to the attached neighbouring property’s front porch. The two 
storey rear extension will not project past the existing two storey extension and will have a 
gable end similar in design to the existing extension. Taking into account the scale, 
matching design and siting of the two storey extension to the rear of the property, it is 
considered that the proposal will have an acceptable impact on visual amenity. The 
extension will have limited visibility from public vantage points and no impact on the 
streetscene, and is therefore not considered to have any unacceptable impact on the 
visual character of the conservation area.  

Page 82



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 8 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1845 

 
The increase in the size of the hardstanding to create an additional off road car parking 
space is also considered acceptable in visual terms, given that the neighbouring property 
has similar front car parking, as do others within the street. 
 
In terms of residential amenity, the proposals are not considered to have any 
unacceptable overlooking impacts. The two storey rear extension is proposed on the 
shared boundary with No.165 Newton Road and could have a potential negative 
overbearing impact on the occupiers of No.165.  
 
It is noted however that the ground floor rear windows of No 165 look onto and are within 
approximately 1m of a fence (located inside a retaining wall, retaining the garden of that 
property). A boundary fence is also located along the common boundary between the 
application site and the upper garden area of No 165. With these elements combined, 
they result in the ground floor windows already being severely compromised in terms of 
outlook and overbearance. The proposed rear extension is not considered to make 
matters materially worse, given the current circumstances. It should also be noted that the 
nearest rear ground floor rooms within No 165 serve a utility room and bathroom and are 
therefore not habitable room windows. 
 
The main part of the rear garden serving No 165 is (as is the application site’s rear 
garden), raised above the slab level of the house by some 1.5m. It will not therefore be 
adversely affected by the proposed rear extension. 
 
In terms of overshadowing, the proposed rear extension will be in breach of the 45 degree 
rule when a horizontal line is taken from the nearest first floor bedroom of No.165. It is 
considered however that given that there is only a breach of the 45 degree rule by 
approximately 1 metre, combined with the length of the proposed extension being only 3.3 
metres from the rear wall of the host dwelling, any increased overshadowing is in this 
instance considered to be acceptable. 
 
The proposed hardstanding is however considered to be unacceptable in highway terms. 
The Council’s Head of Transportation and Engineering has objected to the application on 
the basis that it does not provide adequate visibility for vehicles leaving the proposed 
extended hardstanding area, which would prejudice pedestrian and highway safety. It is 
therefore recommended that the application be refused on such grounds. 
 
In conclusion, it is considered that whilst the proposal causes no significant detrimental 
impact upon the visual amenity of the surrounding streetscene or the residential amenity 
of any neighbouring occupants, the highway objections raised are significant and warrant 
a recommendation of refusal in this instance. The potentially dangerous situation which 
would arise from the creation of an extended hardstanding area is not considered 
acceptable. Refusal is therefore recommended.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
REFUSE for the following reason; 
 

1 The proposed extended vehicle hardstanding, would give rise to an increased 
number of vehicles using a parking facility which does not provide adequate 
visibility for vehicles egressing from it onto the public highway, which would 
prejudice the safety of pedestrians and other road users, contrary to Policy EV1 of 
the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. Page 83



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 8 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1845 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: Policies EV1, EV9 and HC7. 

 
PLANS 
 
Site location plan, proposed block plan, 11.14.165.D1 A existing floor plans and 
elevations, 11.14.165.D2 A proposed floor plans and elevations dated 2nd December, 
2014. 
 

 

Page 84



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

  WARD: Gorseinon 
 

 

Location: Cross Marble and Stone Ltd, Gorseinon Road, Gorseinon, Swansea, 
SA4 9GE 

Proposal: Construction of 4.No retail units 

Applicant: Mr David Jeffreys 

 
 

19.2m

31

El Sub Sta

Bryngwyn-bâch

Issues

Mynydd Carn-Goch

A 4240

Depot

CS

Def

C
F

Drain

D
ra
in

D
ra
in

D
ra
in

Collects

Shelter

Spreads

28.2m

25.0m

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

 R
O

A
D

A 4240

Factory

Unit 4

Service House

a
d

6 to 7

Junction 47 Retail P

WB

E
D

 B
d
y

C
W

CF

CS

Und

Def

Def

Farm Foods

Unit B Unit C

Phoenix Enterprise Services Ltd

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 85



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV33 Planning permission will normally only be granted where development 
can be served by the public mains sewer or, where this system is 
inadequate, satisfactory improvements can be provided prior to the 
development becoming operational. (City & County of Swansea Unitary 
Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV34 Development proposals that may impact upon the water environment 
will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that they would not 
pose a significant risk to the quality and or quantity of controlled waters. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV35 Development that would have an adverse impact on the water 
environment due to: 
i) Additional surface water run off leading to a significant risk of 
flooding on site or an increase in flood risk elsewhere; and/or,  
ii) A reduction in the quality of surface water run-off. 
Will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that appropriate 
alleviating measures can be implemented. (City & County of Swansea 
Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV2 The siting of new development shall give preference to the use of 
previously developed land and have regard to the physical character 
and topography of the site and its surroundings. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EC4 All new retail development will be assessed against need and other 
specific criteria. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) 

 

Policy EC8 The development of new retail warehouses will be directed to suitable 
locations firstly within and then on the edge of existing centres.  Where 
such sites are not available, suitable locations at established retail parks 
will be considered. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development 
Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EC9 Retail development at out of centre locations will be restricted. (City & 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy AS1 Accessibility - Criteria for assessing location of new development. (City 
& County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Page 86



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 

Policy AS2 Accessibility - Criteria for assessing design and layout of new 
development. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) 

 

Policy AS5 Accessibility - Assessment of pedestrian and cyclist access in new 
development. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) 

 

Policy AS6 Provision of car parking in accordance with adopted standards. (City & 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2011/0092 Construction of 4.No retail units 

Decision:  Refuse 

Decision Date:  01/08/2013 

 

2009/0282 One double sided non-illuminated free standing retail park sign 

Decision:  Refuse Advertisement Consent 

Decision Date:  31/03/2009 

 

2003/2327 Erection of three attached retail units 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  29/04/2004 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
Swansea Access for Everyone – There are 27 parking places shown but none for 
disabled (Blue Badge) use. Parking guidelines require 6% for disabled use. In this case 2 
bays suitably marked should be provided. 
 
Council’s Pollution Control section – No comments 
 
Welsh Water – This proposed development is located in an area which has the potential 
to discharge into national and international designated waters.  The Loughor Estuary 
forms part of the Carmarthen Bay & Estuaries European Marine Site which is the 
collective name for three European 'Natura 2000' designated areas, namely Carmarthen 
Bay & Estuaries Special Area of Conservation, Carmarthen Bay Special Protection Area 
and Burry Inlet Special Protection Area.  
 
A key fundamental issue associated with any proposed development(s) located on both 
the Carmarthenshire and Swansea side of the Estuary is the potential impact that any 
revised or additional water discharges, either foul of surface water, will have on the local 
drainage systems and ultimately the designated waters.  Dwr Cymru Welsh Water is 
contributing towards improving the water quality in the Estuary by undertaking key 
infrastructure improvements at its Northumberland Avenue and Llanant Waste Water 
Treatment Works which are designed to improve arrangements for dealing with surface 
water, provide ultra violet treatment and phosphate removal.  Page 87



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 
Equally developers too, can also play a significant part in mitigation measures by 
incorporating sustainable drainage facilities within their proposals.  It is essential therefore, 
that as a pre-requisite of any development being considered for approval that such 
matters are effectively controlled through planning conditions.  
 
Therefore, we seek your Authority's co-operation in imposing the following condition to any 
grant of planning.  
 
1) No development shall take place until full details of a scheme for the foul and surface 
water sewerage disposal (incorporating sustainable drainage principles) of the whole site 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority and 
thereafter implemented in accordance with the approved details.  Surface water shall not 
be connected to the foul sewerage system.   
 
Reason: To ensure the integrity of the public sewerage system [and designated waters] is 
protected through the implementation of sustainable practices.  
 
Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge, either directly or indirectly, into 
the public sewerage system.  
 
Reason:  To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the 
environment.  
 
No net increase of surface water shall be allowed to connect (either directly or indirectly) 
to the public sewerage system.  
 
Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the 
health and safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the environment.  
 
NRW – We would have no objection to the proposal, but would like to make the following 
comments. 
 
Flood Risk 
 
The site is located within Zone A, as defined by the Development Advice Maps referred to 
under TAN 15 Development and Flood Risk (July 2004). Our Flood Map information, 
which is updated on a quarterly basis, confirms the site to be outside of the flood zones. 
The proposal is for four retail units which can be classed as less vulnerable development 
according to TAN15. 
 
Surface Water Discharge 
 
It is proposed to discharge surface water to the main sewers. Whilst we acknowledge that 
this is an existing connection we would advise that where possible, sustainable urban 
drainage systems are implemented. We would be in favour of the proposal to install 
rainwater harvesting on site as shown on the Existing / Proposed Drainage plan, however 
we would also like to see other SUDs options explored and implemented where possible. 
 

Page 88



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 
Foul Water Drainage 
 
As your Authority is aware, since 2007, issues have come to light regarding the foul and 
surface water drainage networks in this area. This has resulted in additional pollution and 
nutrient loading spilling to the Burry Inlet (Carmarthen Bay and Estuaries) SAC. As such, a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) has been prepared to enable development in this 
area to go forward. 
 
Protection of the water environment is a material planning consideration and your 
Authority must be satisfied that the proposed method of foul and surface water drainage 
from the proposal will not cause any detriment to water quality. 
 
We would recommend that your Authority consult with Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water to ensure 
hydraulic capacity exists at the treatment works to accommodate the flows from this 
development, without causing pollution. We would also remind your Authority that to 
accord with the terms and content of the agreed MOU, foul connections should only be 
allowed when compensatory surface water removal or a suitable improvement scheme 
has been implemented within the same catchment. 
 
The recently agreed revised MOU suggests a ratio of 2:1 is appropriate for small 
developments such as this. That is, for every 2 parts surface water removed from the 
system, 1 part foul could connect. 
 
The agreed relevant details must be recorded on your Authority‘s register of 
compensatory surface water disposal. 
 
In addition to capacity and hydraulic overload issues, the Burry Inlet is understood to be 
sensitive to nutrient enrichment, notably to Phosphorus – a constituent of sewage-related 
discharges. Consequently, in addition to the Habitats Regulations considerations in 
respect of Phosphorus, the UK has an obligation under the Water Framework Directive to 
protect sensitive water bodies from deterioration. We would therefore recommend that a 
corresponding amount of Phosphorus is removed at the WWTW to that expected to be 
produced by this development at the time of completion. This would prevent further 
deterioration in levels of Phosphorus in the Burry Inlet. 
 
It is imperative that no surface water is allowed to enter the sewerage infrastructure. This 
is in order to avoid hydraulic overloading of the sewerage system. 
 
Contaminated Land 
 
We note that this is a brownfield site. Therefore, we advise that your Authority may wish to 
consider the following condition. 
 
Condition: If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with 
the local planning authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted a 
remediation strategy to the local planning authority detailing how this unsuspected 
contamination shall be dealt with and obtained written approval from the Local Planning 
Authority. The remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved. 
 

Page 89



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 
In addition to the above, we would ask that the attached planning advice note is provided 
to the applicant/developer. This provides further information and advice on matters such 
as SUDS, pollution prevention and waste management. 
 
Gorseinon Town Council – No objection, however, Councillors did discuss and raise 
concern regarding the additional vehicular access point onto the main Gorseinon road in 
close proximity to the mini roundabout. 
 
Council’s Planning Department’s Policy section – It is noted that this application 
follows a history of refusal for retail development at the site.  
 
The application site has no formal designation in the UDP (i.e. white land) and forms part 
of the urban area at Garngoch Industrial Estate, Gorseinon. The site is approx. 600-700m 
to the east of Gorseinon District Centre.  
 
As per previous proposals for the site, the proposed development would give rise to an A1 
retail use without restriction to type or range of goods. Preventing retail development that 
is likely to have an unacceptable adverse impact on established shopping centres is a key 
objective of planning policy at both local and national level. Maintaining the health of 
designated centres across the County is an important means of sustaining communities, 
supporting existing essential services, co-locating commercial land uses and focussing  
economic investment within identified retail/commercial hubs. The application site does  
not lie within any established shopping centre and the abovementioned UDP policies and  
national guidance make clear that significant new retail proposals in such locations will  
only be supported if it can be demonstrated that: 
 
a) there is an identified need (quantitative/qualitative) for the size of store proposed  
b) no suitable sequentially preferable sites exist  
c) there would be no detrimental impact on established centres and stores, and  
d) it is a highly accessible site and can realistically be reached by a choice of means of  
transport  
 
In respect of the sequential test, the applicant suggests no preferable sites exist within the 
nearest district centre at Gorseinon. The City Centre is not discussed. The applicant’s 
Assessment of Retail Impact, dated July 2014, seems to suggest that their sequential test 
is based on units for ‘retail warehouse type’ operators (para 9.5). The application is not, 
however, for a defined range of retail goods and as such I would suggest this is an 
inappropriately narrow focus, particularly given other references in the report to 
convenience retailing in one or more of the units. Potential operators of the proposed units 
could in my view locate within the vacant space in the former Somerfield store within the 
District Centre. This option appears to have been disregarded in the retail impact report 
(see para 9.4) for the reasons that the proposed out of centre scheme would charge lower 
rents and that no refurbishment scheme has yet come forward for the building. These 
reasons are not sufficient in my view to consider this option as unviable, particularly given 
the relatively short period of time that has elapsed post global economic downturn. 
Furthermore, a clear and consistent approach by the LPA to resist inappropriate out of 
centre retail proposals will make clear to the market that investment must be prioritised 
towards redevelopment of existing in-centre retail space.  
 

Page 90



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 
Development plan policies and national guidance are clear in their requirement to 
safeguard against adverse impacts to town centre vitality and viability that could arise from 
out of centre development. It’s in this context that new retail proposals not within existing 
centres must, as a starting point, demonstrate a need for the scale of provision that is 
proposed and fully appraise potential impact that could arise. There are a range of 
potential impacts of the proposed scheme; however measuring this impact is not 
straightforward in view of the open consent being sought. Impact will clearly vary 
depending on whether the operation is ultimately for convenience goods, bulky goods, 
everyday comparison items, etc.  
 
The reference in the applicant’s impact report at Para 9.6 to the proposal further 
consolidating the existing arrangement of retail units to form a de facto centre clearly 
illustrates why the proposal is of concern for the nearby district centre. The potential is for 
a rival retail destination to become established for operators that would otherwise co 
locate within the district centre, thereby ultimately leading to trade draw. The assertion that 
this would be complementary to the district centre cannot be substantiated, particularly 
given the open A1 consent being sought.  
 
In terms of quantifying the potential trade draw, the applicant’s Assessment of Retail 
Impact, dated July 2014 sets out a proposed methodology. Whilst I’m unable to provide a 
technical audit of the robustness of the proposed methodology and the figures used on 
aspects such as expenditure profiles (retail consultants can advise further on this if 
required), the use of proposed LDP allocation figures is unlikely to be considered best 
practice by the industry. The LDP is not adopted and moreover no allocations have yet  
been formally proposed. There is no certainty as to what the final proposals will be in the 
LDP, and in any event a number of the proposed growth areas will be developed with 
supporting uses such as retail provision.  
 
My view is that the impact of the development upon Gorseinon District Centre would be 
potentially significant by means of consolidating the retail offer at an out of centre location, 
and the scheme could undermine ongoing efforts to maintain the health of the nearby 
district centre.  
 
The Head of Engineering and Transportation will provide detailed comments on the 
highway implications of the scheme and accessibility matters. The requirements of UDP 
Policies AS1-2 and AS5-6 must be met as a minimum however and I consider it significant 
that the site is less accessible by a range of travel modes than the highly accessible 
Gorseinon District Centre and City Centre. Whilst the D&A statement suggests ’the 
application site can be easily accessed by public transport’, there is no information on  
public transport services provided and a high level appraisal indicates the site is 
significantly less well connected to surrounding communities than sites within the 
designated district centre.  
 
In summary, the proposed out-of-centre retail floor space has not been justified in terms of 
need and is not shown as the most sequentially preferable or accessible site available for 
investment. UDP Policies EC8 and EC9 state that bulky goods retailing at out of centre 
locations may be appropriate where they do not impact on existing centres and no 
alternative sites exist within defined retail destinations. However, the application allows  
for unrestricted retail sales (not just bulky goods) at an industrial park location that would 
cater predominantly for car-borne shoppers.  

Page 91



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 
The applicant has not in my view provided convincing evidence that the proposal would 
not impact upon the vitality and viability of Gorseinon district centre. It is therefore in 
conflict with abovementioned national guidance and UDP policies and supporting 
guidance. 
 
Council’s Head of Transportation and Engineering –  
 
This is a resubmission of the previously refused scheme.  I reiterate my highway 
comments as they are still applicable. 
 
1  Background 
 
1.1  The original submission of this proposal did not include sufficient detail to enable 

proper consideration of the development impact and therefore refusal was 
recommended.  Subsequently, additional information has been submitted which 
assesses the traffic impact of the proposal. 

 
2  Development Proposal 
 
2.1  The proposal is for 4 retail units of 310 sq m each.  These are to be constructed on 

the site of the former Cross Marble and Stone premises next to the mini roundabout 
at the junction of Hospital Road with Gorseinon Road. 

 
2.2  The site currently has 3 points of established access, one near the adjacent retail 

units, one at the mini roundabout which has been blocked off and the third access 
is shared with the next door property (Gymnasium) and provides rear access. 

 
2.3  It is proposed to permanently remove the access which is presently blocked off as 

this emerges at the roundabout between the two road junctions and therefore its 
removal will be a safety enhancement.  Customer access will be gained from the 
existing access which is approximately 90m from the roundabout and service and 
staff access will be on the shared access serving the Gymnasium leading to the 
rear of the site. 

 
2.4  On site parking is to be provided for customers at the front (25 spaces) and staff 

parking at the rear (6 spaces).  These figures accord with recommendations in 
adopted parking guidelines. 

 
2.5  That part of Gorseinon Road fronting the site is to be widened in order to 

accommodate a right turn lane at the access point.  This will ensure that traffic 
waiting to turn right into the site does not prohibit those wishing to travel onwards to 
Gorseinon.  It will be necessary to install yellow box markings to ensure that any 
traffic queuing at the roundabout does not block the access.  Visibility at the access 
point is good with clear views in both directions, with the access point being 
approximately 90m from the mini roundabout.  Safe access and egress is therefore 
possible. 

 

Page 92



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 
3  Traffic Generation 
 
3.1   Assessment of the peak hour traffic generation estimates that on a week-day pm 

peak between 1700 hrs and 1800 hrs, the development will generate 16 vehicle 
movements and for a Saturday peak between 1300 hrs and 1400 hrs, 92 vehicle 
movements will be generated.  The Saturday traffic rises slightly to 107 movements 
after the peak period and therefore the higher figure has been used in the 
assessment for robustness. 

 
3.2  Traffic modelling of the mini roundabout indicates that there will be a reduction in its 

efficiency, however the roundabout will continue to operate within its theoretical 
capacity. 

 
4  Conclusions 
 
4.1   The site has generated traffic movements in the past and this proposal will see a 

redevelopment of the site to rationalise access movements by removing one 
access point and potentially increasing safety.  The level of traffic likely to be 
attracted can be accommodated on the adjacent highway and adequate parking will 
be available within the site. 

 
5  Recommendation 
 
5.1  I recommend no highway objection subject to the following; 
 

i.  Prior to the commencement of development, the road fronting the site shall 
be widened and a right turn lane installed in accordance with detailed 
engineering details to be submitted and approved. 

 
ii.  Parking bays shall be laid out in accordance with adopted guidelines to width 

of 2.6m. 
 

iii.  The site shall not be brought into beneficial use until all access and on site 
parking has been completed and laid out in accordance with approved plans. 

 
 Note 1:  The highway works fronting the site will be subject to an agreement 

under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980. 
 
 Note 2:  The Developer must contact the Team Leader - Highways 

Management, City and County of Swansea (Highways), Penllergaer Offices c/o 
Civic Centre, Swansea, SA1 3SN (Tel 01792 636091) before carrying out any work. 

 
Health and Safety Executive  – The development location is within the Consultation 
Distance of the Notified Hazardous Installation of 3M’s.  However HSE does not advise on 
safety grounds against the granting of planning permission in this case.   
 
Council’s Drainage section – As DCWW have recommended appropriate conditions to 
ensure that an appropriate drainage scheme is submitted to ensure the protection of the 
site, any surrounding third parties and their system we would use their view in this case. 

Page 93



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 
Assuming DCWW accept a connection which their reply suggests they might, all we would 
check would be storage/attenuation volumes/performance in the SW network for the 
relevant critical design storm. 
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is reported to Committee for decision at the request of Councillor David 
Lewis so that the impact on Gorseinon CBD can be fully assessed and debated as well as 
the overall impact to the highway.  
 
Full planning permission is sought for the erection of four attached retail units on the site 
formerly occupied by Cross Marble and Stone Ltd. on the northern side of Gorseinon 
Road within the Garngoch Industrial Estate.  The site is located some 550-600m outside 
the Gorseinon Shopping Centre within the Gorseinon Road/Garngoch Industrial Estate 
employment area.  The use of the former building is defined as a retail warehouse i.e. a 
large single storey retail outlet, normally of 10,000 sq.ft (930m²) gross or more, 
specialising in the sale of bulky household goods (furniture, carpets and electrical goods) 
and offering free adjacent ground level car parking. The application was advertised in the 
press as it is  classed as a major development and a departure from the Development 
Plan. 
 
The site lies within an established industrial area bisected by the A4240 which is a busy 
arterial route linking the urban areas of Gorseinon and Penllergaer and leading to Junction 
47 of the M4.  Neighbouring outlets bordering the site include a parade of three retail 
outlets including Farm Foods, Pound Stretcher and The Pet Hut constructed under 
planning permission reference (2003/2327 dated 6th May 2004), now known as J47 Retail 
Park.   
 
The previous retail warehouse amounting to some 1275m² of floorspace has already been 
demolished and the proposal seeks permission for the construction of four smaller 
attached units amounting to 1263m² of retail floorspace, on roughly the same footprint as 
the previous building.   
 
The units are similar in design to the three existing neighbouring units, being single storey 
and sub-divided internally creating four separate retail units with the floorspace distributed 
fairly evenly. The front (south) elevation would feature four separate entrance canopies 
with provision above each canopy for high level signage.  The overall scale, siting, design 
and external appearance of the proposed building is considered visually acceptable and is 
considered to relate satisfactorily to the surrounding area.  
 
The Head of Transportation and Engineering has stated that the site has generated traffic 
movements in the past and this proposal will see a redevelopment of the site. The 
proposal will also to rationalize access movements by removing one access point and 
potentially increasing safety.  The level of traffic likely to be generated by the proposal can 
be accommodated within the adjacent highway and local highway network and adequate 
parking will be available within the site. Therefore, no objections are raised subject to 
conditions and advisory notes. 
 

Page 94



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 
Further issues to be considered concern the suitability of this site for the proposed retail 
uses, having regard to prevailing Development Plan Polices.  These are directed towards 
maintaining and strengthening the established shopping structure in the area, and 
consolidating the convenience goods shopping centre at Gorseinon District Centre, whilst 
allowing consideration of small scale shopping development where necessary to meet 
local community needs.  Retail developments on established industrial land are generally 
resisted, with specific exceptions where other development plan objectives are not 
prejudiced. 
 
One of the Assembly Government’s objectives for retailing and town centres is to promote 
town, district, local and village centres as the most appropriate locations for retailing.  
Planning Policy Wales states that when determining an application for retail use Local 
Planning Authorities should take into account, amongst other things; the need for the 
development, the sequential approach to site selection and the impact upon existing 
centres.  The sequential approach means that the first preference should be for town 
centre locations followed by edge-of-centre, then district and local centres and, then only, 
out-of-centre sites accessible by a choice of means of transport.  The onus of proof that 
options have been assessed using the sequential approach rests with the developer. 
 
Strategic Policy SP6 of Part 1 of the Swansea Unitary Development Plan states that new 
retail development that is best located within the City Centre, District or Local Centres will 
not generally be supported at out-of-town centre sites.  Additional edge of centre shopping 
should be restricted to that which would not prejudice established shopping centres.  
Policies EC4 and EC9 of the Swansea Unitary Development Plan Part 2 presume against 
the establishment or expansion of retail outlets outside defined shopping centres, thereby 
supporting the aim of improving and strengthening the role of established centres which is 
supported by recent National Guidance.  The proposal is clearly contrary to Policies EC4 
and EC9 as it would result in the introduction of four retail units in an out of centre location 
which would be best located within a town centre and as such the proposal would not 
contribute to the aims of either National Guidance or established Development Plan Policy 
which seek to support and improve existing shopping centres. 
 
The application site is located in an industrial estate outside the defined residential 
settlement limits of Gorseinon and Penllergaer and is likely to cater primarily for car-borne 
shoppers. In respect of this out-of-centre location, it is necessary to submit evidence 
demonstrating that a sequential test for retail development has been applied.  Government 
planning policy guidance recommends that a sequential approach should be followed 
when considering out-of-centre retail development, to demonstrate that firstly there are no 
central locations and secondly edge-of-centre sites which are preferable, being more 
suitable viable and available than the proposed out-of-centre site. 
 
There is considered to be a sequentially preferable location to the application site being 
the Somerfield Store site which is located within the District Centre. This appears to have 
been disregarded in The Retail Impact Report (July 2014) for the reasons that the 
proposed out of centre scheme would charge lower rents and that no refurbishment 
scheme has come forward for the building. These reasons are not considered sufficient to 
consider this option unviable. Furthermore, there is concern that the proposals are part of 
a wider plan to form a de facto centre which would be achieved by consolidating the 
existing arrangement of retail units which would ultimately be harmful to the nearby district 
centre. The assertion that this would be complimentary to the district centre cannot be 
substantiated, particularly given the open A1 consent being sought.    Page 95



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 
The Town and Country Planning Act (as amended) requires that applications should be 
determined in accordance with development plan policy unless there are material 
considerations, which outweigh that policy.  The proposed new retail units would provide a 
visual enhancement to the area and the site has an established use as a retail warehouse.  
However, it is not considered that this justifies departing from the adopted retail polices 
aimed at retaining and consolidating the established shopping structure of the area. 
Moreover to approve the application would establish an undesirable precedent for the 
consideration of similar applications for retail development, particularly within the 
Garngoch Industrial Estate which would undermine the vitality, attractiveness and viability 
of the nearby existing shopping centre.   A more favorable consideration would be given to 
the development of the site for a retail warehouse development restricted to the sale of 
bulky household goods/DIY which would not compete directly with the range of 
convenience and comparison goods available in the nearby Gorseinon District Shopping 
Centre.  Refusal is recommended therefore on the grounds that the proposal conflicts with 
established policies aimed at strengthening the role of the Gorseinon District Shopping 
Centre. 
 
The previous reasons for refusal in relation to the 2011/0092 application are considered to 
still stand. The proposed development is still considered to result in the establishment of a 
significant retail development within a primarily industrial area, outside of the Gorseinon 
District Shopping Centre. The approval and formation of this retail development would 
establish an undesirable precedent for the consideration of applications of a similar 
nature, the cumulative effect of which would result in the sporadic development of retail 
units outside the centre, for which there is no proven need and which would undermine 
the future vitality and attractiveness of the centre and others. It is acknowledged that the 
Assessment of Retail Development (July 2014) submitted with the application aims to 
address these reasons, however, it is still considered that the fundamental concerns 
remain and warrant the refusal of the application. 
 
With regards to the concerns raised by Gorseinon Town Council regarding the additional 
vehicular access point, this is considered to have been covered by the comments made 
by the Head of Transportation and Engineering. The other comments raised by consultees 
– with the exception of the Planning Department’s Policy section - are considered to be 
possible to address via appropriately worded conditions if a recommendation of approval 
was being made. 
 
Burry Inlet Habitat Regulations Assessment 
 
Introduction 
 
The City and County of Swansea, as the competent authority, is required under 
Regulation 61(1) of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (known 
as the ‘Habitat Regulations’) to undertake a Habitat Regulations Assessment of any 
project likely to have an effect on a European Site, or candidate/proposed European Site, 
either alone or in combination with other plans or projects, that is not necessary to the 
management of the site for nature conservation.  
 
In this instance, the European sites potentially affected are the Carmarthen Bay and 
Estuaries European Marine Site (CBEEMS), the Carmarthen Bay Special Protection Area 
(SPA) and the Burry Inlet SPA and RAMSAR site.  

Page 96



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 
Before deciding to give permission we must therefore first consider whether this 
development is likely to have a significant effect on the CBEEMS either alone or in 
combination with other plans or projects in the same catchment area. 
 
Following an investigation of likely significant effects on the CBEEMS features water 
quality was identified as the only factor that might have an effect this is discussed below. 
 
Water Quality 
 
With regard to the water quality issues in the Burry Inlet and Loughor Estuary, the City and 
County of Swansea has followed the advice of their statutory advisor, and has 
commissioned a preliminary assessment under the above Regulations which is limited to 
the assessment of potential wastewater effects only. 
 
This assessment notes that as part of their review of consents (RoC) under regulation 63 
the Environment Agency (EA) undertook a detailed Habitats Regulations assessment in 
relation to the effects of their consented activities. Consent modifications were identified to 
enable the Environment Agency to conclude no adverse effect on the integrity of the 
CBEEMS in respect of their consents operating at their maximum consented limits. 
 
As the consents in question have already been subject to a full assessment (alone and in-
combination)  under the provisions of the Habitat Regulations, there is no need for the City 
and County of Swansea to undertake a further assessment where development can be 
accommodated within the post RoC discharge consent limits.  
 
It is the opinion of the authority that this development can be accommodated within the 
post RoC discharge consent limits, and will not be likely to have a significant effect either 
alone or in-combination on the Carmarthen Bay and Estuaries SAC, the Carmarthen Bay 
SPA, or the Burry Inlet SPA and RAMSAR.  Such effects can be excluded on the basis of 
the objective information available through the Environment Agency review.  
 
Other Possible Effects on CBEEMS features 
 
In addition, it is considered that there are no other potential adverse effects from this 
development proposal, either alone or in combination with other plans or projects on the 
above protected European sites.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 
On this basis there is no requirement to make an appropriate assessment of the 
implications of the proposed development in accordance with regulation 61(1).   
 
In conclusion therefore and having regard to all material consideration including the 
Human Rights Act, refusal is recommended on the grounds that the proposal conflicts with 
established Policies aimed at strengthening the role of the Gorseinon District Shopping 
Centre. 
 

Page 97



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 9 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1067 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
REFUSE, for the following reasons; 
 

1 The proposed development would result in the establishment of a significant retail 
development within a primarily industrial area outside of the established Gorseinon 
District Shopping Centre and would be contrary to Strategic Policy SP6 and 
Policies EC4 and EC9 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development 
Plan 2008 which aim to improve and strengthen the role of this established District 
Shopping Centre. 

 

2 The approval and formation of this retail development within the Garngoch 
Industrial Estate would establish an undesirable precedent for the consideration of 
applications for development of a similar nature, the cumulative effect of which 
would result in the sporadic development of retail units outside the district 
shopping centres, for which there is no proven local need and which would 
undermine the future vitality and attractiveness of those centres contrary to the 
aims of Policies SP6, EC4 and EC9 of the Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008.   

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: Policies EV1, EV2, EC4, EC8, 
EC9, AS1, AS2, AS5, AS6, EV33, EV34 and EV35. 

 
PLANS 
 
01 existing floor plans, 02 site location and existing elevations, 03 proposed floor plans, 04 
proposed elevations, 05 block plan dated 25th July 2014 
 

 

Page 98



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 10  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1459 

  WARD: Gower 
 

 

Location: Sea Shells, Llanrhidian, Gower, Swansea 

Proposal: Addition of pitched roof to existing outbuilding to form one unit of 
holiday accommodation with new garage/workshop (Amendment to 
planning permission 2010/0187 granted 3rd March 2011)  

Applicant: S & J Properties 

 
 

D
ra
in

FB

Dr
ai
n

Issues

Issues

Little Wern-Halog

Nant y wrach

Rosedale

Drain

Drain

Sea Shells

FB

17.9m

D
r a
in

Tank

Drain

Sinks

5.3m Cattle Grid

Drain

Pond

Pond

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 99



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 10 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1459 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV2 The siting of new development shall give preference to the use of 
previously developed land and have regard to the physical character 
and topography of the site and its surroundings. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV19 Replacement dwellings in the countryside, including residential chalets, 
will only be permitted where the residential use has not been 
abandoned, the proposed new dwelling is similar in terms of siting, 
scale, design and character and compliments the character of the 
surrounding area. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) 

 

Policy EV22 The countryside throughout the County will be conserved and enhanced 
for the sake of its natural heritage, natural resources, historic and 
cultural environment and agricultural and recreational value through: 
i) The control of development, and  
ii) Practical management and improvement measures. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV26 Within the Gower AONB, the primary objective is the conservation and 
enhancement of the area's natural beauty.  Development that would 
have a material adverse effect on the natural beauty, wildlife and 
cultural heritage of the AONB will not be permitted. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EC12 The conversion of existing buildings in the countryside to new uses that 
contribute to the local economy and the extensions of such buildings will 
be permitted subject to a defined set of criteria including the building's 
structural integrity, its ability to be converted without prejudicing the 
character of the building or its locality, the building's compatibility with its 
surroundings, issues of access and highway safety, and the building's 
past uses etc. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2010/0187 Addition of pitched roof to existing outbuilding to form one unit of holiday 
accommodation with new garage/workshop 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  03/03/2011 Page 100



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 10 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1459 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
The application was advertised on site.  No response has been received to this publicity 
exercise. 
 
Council’s Head of Transportation and Engineering comments – the amendments to this 
consented scheme do not have any highway implications.  I recommend no highway 
objection. 
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is reported to Committee for decision at the request of Councillor Richard 
Lewis in order to assess the impact of the proposal upon the AONB. 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the addition of a pitched roof to an existing 
outbuilding to form one unit of holiday accommodation. The proposal also involves the 
construction of a new garage/workshop to serve the host dwelling at the property known 
as “Sea Shells” in Llanrhidian. This application is an amendment to Planning Permission 
2010/0187 granted 3rd March 2011. 
 
The proposed conversion of the existing tractor store to form a holiday let remains exactly 
as previously approved; the main difference therefore between this application and that 
already approved is focussed on the proposed new detached garage/workshop.  The 
differences are as follows: 
 

• Length as approved 9.9m – as proposed 10.2m 

• Width as approved 6.6m – as proposed 7.1m 

• Height as approved 3.8m – as proposed 4.6m 
 
The main issues to be considered therefore are the impact of the proposed development 
on the visual amenities of this part of the Gower AONB having regard to the requirements 
of Policies EV1, EV2, EC12, EV19, EV22 and EV26 of the Unitary Development Plan 
2008. 
 
Polices EV1 and EV2 refer to the design of the proposal and the preference of the use of 
previously developed land. Policy EV22 states that the countryside should be protected for 
its own sake and EV26 states that within the AONB, the primary objective is the 
conservation and enhancement of the area’s natural beauty. Policy EC12 refers to the 
conversion of existing buildings in the countryside to new uses that contribute to the local 
economy. Policy EC19 supports the provision of tourist accommodation through 
conversion of existing appropriate buildings. Proposals however, should be assessed 
against the criteria of Policy EC12. 
 
Policy EC12 supports the re-use of existing buildings in the countryside to new uses that 
contribute to the local economy and supports their re-use as holiday accommodation. The 
building is capable of conversion without significant structural change, although as the 
building is only single skin, a second skin will be built internally to provide better insulation. 
In addition, the alterations proposed would not adversely affect the rural character of the 
locality and can provide safe access for pedestrian and vehicles.   

Page 101



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 10 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1459 

 
This current application raises no additional issues to consider having regard to the 
conversion of the existing garage over and above what was fully considered and deemed 
acceptable under the previous planning permission.  The design and external appearance 
of the proposed holiday let has previously been considered acceptable subject to a 
condition requiring samples of external finishes to be submitted and approved, and it is not 
considered that it would have an unacceptable visual impact in the wider landscape.  
 
The changes proposed to the proposed new detached garage workshop are as detailed 
above, and whilst the latest proposal is larger, it is not considered to be excessively so.  
Furthermore, the building remains within the existing land previously used by the owners 
of Sea Shells and does not project into any agricultural land, only into an area of unused 
land behind existing buildings. The scale and design of the proposed building is not 
greatly over and above that previously consented, albeit the formerly sloping roof will be 
replaced with a dual pitched roof.  Subject to the approval of eternal finishes once again, it 
is not considered that it would have an unacceptable visual impact in the wider landscape. 
In addition, the siting of the building ensures it is well screened by the existing boundary 
treatments.  
 
The Head of Transportation and Engineering raises no highway objection.  
 
The siting, scale and design of the proposal would dictate that there are no residential 
amenity issues to consider. 
 
In conclusion, therefore, and having regard to all material considerations including the 
Human Rights Act, the proposal is considered an acceptable form of development at this 
location that complies with the requirements of Policies EV1, EV2, EC12, EC19, EV22 and 
EV26 of the Unitary Development Plan 2008 and approval is recommended. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than five years from the 
date of this decision. 

 Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990.  

 

2 Notwithstanding the details on the submitted plans, samples of all external finishes 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing 
before the development is commenced. The scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details.  

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 

3 The building No. 1 as identified on the submitted plans shall be used for holiday 
accommodation only and shall not be occupied by any person or persons as their 
main or sole place of residence. 

 Reason: The site is only suitable for holiday use and is unsuitable for permanent 
residential use.  

 
Page 102



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 10 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1459 

 
 
 

4 The owner shall ensure that an up to date register containing details of all 
occupiers of the holiday accommodation hereby approved, together with the dates 
of occupancy and details of the occupiers' main home address, is maintained and 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority on an annual basis (the register for each 
calendar year shall be submitted by the 31st January in the following year unless 
otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority), and shall also be made 
available at all reasonable times for inspection by the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: To ensure that the holiday accommodation is not used for unauthorised 
permanent residential accommodation.  

 

5 The works to the existing workshop building shall comprise of its conversion and 
alteration as shown on the approved plans and no demolition of the walls shall 
take place unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

 Reason: The proposal is only acceptable on the basis that the existing building is 
retained and converted to the use applied for.  

 

6 The new garage/workshop indicated in the submitted plans shall be retained for 
the parking of vehicles and purposes incidental to that use. 

 Reason: To ensure adequate on site car parking provision in the interests of 
highway safety, and residential and visual amenity.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: Policies, EV1, EV2, EV19, EV22, 
EV26 and EC12 of the Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008. 

 
2 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 
3 Bats may be present.  All British bat species are protected under Schedule 5 of the 

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and are listed in Schedule 2 of the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.  This legislation 
implements the EC Habitats & Species Directive in the UK making it an offence to 
capture, kill or disturb a European Protected Species or to damage or destroy the 
breeding site or resting place of such an animal.  It is also an offence to recklessly 
/ intentionally to disturb such an animal. 
If evidence of bats is encountered during site clearance e.g. live or dead animals 
or droppings, work should cease immediately and the advice of the Natural 
Resources Wales sought before continuing with any work (01792 634960). 

 

Page 103



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 10 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1459 

 
4 Birds may be present in this building and grounds please note it is an offence 

under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to intentionally 
(intentionally or recklessly for Schedule 1 birds) to: 
-  Kill, injure or take any wild bird 
-  Take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that nest in use or being 
built 
-  Take or destroy an egg of any wild bird 
Care should be taken when working on buildings particularly during the bird 
nesting season March-August. 

 
PLANS 
 
Site location plan, 2038-001-existing plans, 2038-002-existing elevations, 2038-006-
existing site plan, 2038-007A-proposed site plan, 2038-33-new barn plan & elevations, 
2038-35prop chalet plans & elevations dated 3rd October 2014. 
 

 

Page 104



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 11  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1569 

  WARD: Gower 
 

 

Location: Land adjacent to Gors Green, Reynoldston, Swansea, SA3 1AE 

Proposal: Detached dwelling house (details of access, appearance, layout and 
scale pursuant to application 2008/0560 granted 20th December 2013) 

Applicant: Mr Derek & Mrs Susan Bowes-Mctear 

 
 

Sinks

D
ra
in

B
ry

n
 E

i t
h
in

Trelawne Cottage

Chartley

The Coach House

Manse

S
o
u
th

 R
id

g
e

The Olde

Penticton

E
v
ir
o
n

B
ry
n
cr
o
ft

Farm

Pond

Cefn Bryn

Sinks

G
o
rs

e
 G

re
e
n

Parklands

Little Reynoldston F

Kilimani

P
a

th
 (

u
m

)

S
o
u
th

w
a
ys

Pond

The

Brackens

C
a
m
e
lo
t

P
a
th

 (u
m

)

Path (um)

F
F

C
S

CS

Avalon House

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 105



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 11 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1569 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV16 Within the small villages identified on the Proposals Map, small-scale 
development will be approved only where it is appropriate to the location 
in terms of the defined criteria. (City & County of Swansea Unitary 
Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV2 The siting of new development shall give preference to the use of 
previously developed land and have regard to the physical character 
and topography of the site and its surroundings. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV26 Within the Gower AONB, the primary objective is the conservation and 
enhancement of the area's natural beauty.  Development that would 
have a material adverse effect on the natural beauty, wildlife and 
cultural heritage of the AONB will not be permitted. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2009/1842 Detached dwelling house with detached garage (details of the siting, 
design, external appearance and landscaping pursuant to condition 1 of 
outline planning permission 2008/0560 granted on appeal on 27th 
January 2009) 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  07/05/2010 

 

2013/1675 Variation of condition 03 of planning permission 2008/0560 granted at 
appeal 27th January 2009 to extend the period of time to commence 
works for a further 3 years 

Decision:  Approve Conditional (S73) 

Decision Date:  14/02/2014 

 

2008/0560 Detached dwelling house (outline) 

Decision:  Refuse 

Decision Date:  05/06/2008 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
The application was advertised on site and two individual neighbouring properties 
consulted.  No Response. Page 106



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 11 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1569 

 
Council’s Head of Transportation and Engineering – No objection 
 
Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water – No objection subject to standard conditions and advisory 
notes.   
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is reported to Committee for decision at the request of Councillor Richard 
Lewis. 
 
Reserved matters approval is sought for the construction of a detached dwelling on land 
adjacent to Gors Green, Reynoldston. Matters relating to scale, layout, access and 
appearance are to be considered as part of this application. 
 
Outline and detailed planning permission has been granted for a detached dwelling on this 
site since 2008.  Outline planning permission 2008/0560 was originally granted at appeal 
on the 27th January 2009.   
 
Reserved matters approval was granted on the 7thth May 2010 (2009/1842 refers). A  
Section 73 application to vary Condition 3 of the above referred outline permission to 
extend the period of time to commence works for a further 3 years was approved 
(2013/1675 refers) was approved in February 2014. 
 
Issues 
 
The main issues to be considered during the determination of this application relate to the 
proposal’s impact on the character and appearance of this part of Reynoldston and the 
surrounding Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, together with its impact upon the 
amenities of neighbouring residents and highway safety. It is not considered that the 
provisions of the Human Rights Act raise any other overriding considerations. 
 
Given the historic decisions on the site, the principle of development at this location has 
been firmly established and the application falls to be considered against the criteria under 
Policy EV16 and EV26 of the Unitary Development Plan. Policy EV16 requires that 
development within small Gower Villages, such as Reynoldston, must be appropriate in 
terms of a number of criteria including scale, density, elevational design, prominence, 
materials, screening, acceptable access and relationship to adjacent buildings, spaces 
and landscape features.   
 
Policy EV26 requires development to preserve or enhance the natural beauty of the 
Gower AONB. 
 
Character and Appearance 
 
It is considered that the plot is of sufficient size to accommodate a detached dwelling, and 
as it is considered to fall within the village, an appropriately designed dwelling would not 
have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the area. The area is 
characterised by a mixture of architectural styles and designs and given the relatively 
hidden nature of the site it is not considered that there is a prevailing characteristic or 
dominant house type to suggest a specific architectural response on this site.  

Page 107



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 11 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1569 

 
The design has been developed so as to integrate into the terrain of the land and the form 
of the building expresses the fall of the land whilst maximising on views. A comparison of 
the original approved dwelling with the proposal as submitted as part of this application, 
shows that the currently proposed dwelling has a similar L-shape form to the approved 
scheme albeit with longer and narrower perpendicular ‘wings’ on both sides. Despite the 
increase in the length of the wings of the building the new proposal presents a dwelling 
which is significantly smaller than the approved, with a gross internal floor of 225m² in 
comparison to the previous 460m².  
 
Further to this, the proposed dwelling is also 3m lower than the previous scheme, being 
7.5m in height over 2 storeys in comparison to 10.5m tall over 3 storeys. This is a result of 
a change in the design of the dwelling from a more traditional building form with tall 
pitched roofs to a more dispersed linear form with mono-pitched roofs on the northern, 
east-west running wing and flat sedum roofs on the other wing. This revised approach has 
the dual benefits of helping the dwelling to better nestle into the falling topography of the 
site to reduce its visual impact, as well as providing an appropriate and contemporary re-
interpretation of a cluster/grouping of agricultural buildings.   It is considered that a 
dwelling of this size and scale can be accommodated on the site without unduly affecting 
the character and appearance of the wider landscape.  The appearance is contemporary 
in nature and given its reduced height will not be highly visible and therefore would not 
detract from the overall character of the area, nor does it negatively impact on the 
adjacent properties. Overall, given the reduction in the massing and height of the house 
when compared to  the approved, as well as providing a revised dwelling which better 
suits the local topography and agricultural vernacular, the proposals are considered 
acceptable, subject to the agreement of details such as materials, interfaces/junctions etc. 
all of which can be controlled via condition. 
 
The house incorporates a roughly ‘L’ shaped footprint, set well back from the road and 
hidden from wider vantage points on Cefn Bryn by existing landscaping and this coupled 
with the sloping land levels and design will shield Cefn Bryn from the bulk of the building. 
The building  incorporates a significant amount of glazing which maximises solar gain into 
the property. Whilst the proposed external  roof terrace  is quite large this  will be primarily 
shielded from the north by the proposed dwelling itself and to the south and east by 
existing screening and will only be visible from oblique long range views from the south 
and west directions. On this basis the proposal is not considered to have an unacceptable 
impact on this part of the Gower AONB and would not adversely impact on the character 
and appearance of the surrounding area. 
 
Residential Amenity 
 
Turning to the impact upon the residential amenities of the neighbouring residents, the 
proposed dwelling will mainly affect The Old Manse. Given the separation distances in 
excess of 40m from Gors Green and Bryn Eithin, it is not considered the proposed 
dwelling will have an unacceptable overbearing, overshadowing or overlooking impact 
upon the residential amenities of these dwellings. The dwelling will be situated within the 
rear garden of Gors Green and it is considered that given the size of the plot and the fall in 
gradient, which helps break down the overall massing of the dwelling.  A separation 
distance of between 9m and 15m is achieved off the eastern common boundary with the 
Manse, however, at its lowest separation distance the dwelling is limited to single storey in 
height and appears almost subterranean due to its position within the landscape.  

Page 108



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 11 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1569 

 
On this basis the proposed dwelling will not have an unacceptable overbearing or 
overshadowing impact upon the residential amenities of the occupiers of that neighbouring 
dwelling.  
 
With regards overlooking, an agreed level of boundary treatment can overcome issues in 
relation to overlooking at ground level. Turning to the windows at first floor level and roof 
terrace, there are no issues raised relating to the windows in the south facing elevation. In 
terms of the west facing elevation, the windows are limited to ground floor only and look 
inwards over a private courtyard area. The north facing windows are again limited to the 
lower ground floor (effectively subterranean) and as such overall it is not considered the 
proposal will result in unacceptable overbearing and overshadowing or overlooking from 
the habitable room windows.  
 
Turning to the proposed roof terrace area, whilst the majority of the terrace will be sited in 
excess of 10m from the eastern boundary, which is considered sufficient in order to 
overcome privacy issues, a small section along the south-east elevation facing the Old 
Manse will be within this distance. However given the existing dense foliage and low lying 
nature of the terrace the impact is considered acceptable. A condition forming part of the 
2013/1675 outline planning permission requires the maintenance of this hedgerow. 
 
Highways 
 
With regard to highway safety, the Head of Transportation and Engineering has no 
objection to the proposal as the layout scheme provides more than adequate parking and 
suitable turning facilities within the site. The means of access serving the site is also 
considered to be acceptable. 
 
Conclusion 
 
In conclusion, and having regard to all material considerations including the Human Rights 
Act, it is considered that the proposal represents an acceptable form of infill development 
which respects the character and appearance of the area and the wider Gower AONB, 
whilst at the same time introducing a modern dwelling which conserves and enhances the 
protected area. The proposal has been carefully designed to ensure that the development 
does not have an unacceptable impact upon the residential amenities of the neighbouring 
occupiers and as such it is considered that it complies with Policies EV1, EV2, EV16 and 
EV26 of the Adopted UDP.  Approval is therefore recommended. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE, subject to the following conditions; 
 

1 Notwithstanding the approved plans, samples of all external finishes shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing before any 
construction works above ground level are commenced. The scheme shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 Reason: In the interest of visual amenity 

 

Page 109



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 11 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1569 

 

2 Foul water and surface water discharges shall be drained separately from the site.  

 Reason: To protect the integrity of the Public Sewerage System.  

 

3 No surface water shall be allowed to connect (either directly or indirectly) to the 
public sewerage system unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  

 Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to 
protect the health and safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the 
environment.  

 

4 Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge, either directly or 
indirectly, into the public sewerage system.  

 Reason: To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and 
pollution of the environment.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 
2 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: Policies, EV1, EV2, EV16 and 
EV26 of the Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008. 

 
3 The developer is advised to contact Dwr Cymru (Welsh Water) Telephone 

Swansea 772200 Ext. 2562 with regard to adequacy of water supply and position 
of water distribution mains in the area. 
 

 
4 To protect the integrity of the Public Sewerage System, foul water and surface 

water discharges shall be drained separately from the site. 
 
5 To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the 

health and safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the 
environment, no surface water shall be allowed to connect (either directly or 
indirectly) to the public sewerage system unless otherwise approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

 
6 To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the 

environment, land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge, either 
directly or indirectly, into the public sewerage system. 

 
7 If connection is required to the public sewerage system, the developer is advised 

to contact Dwr Cymru Welsh Water's Developer Services on 0800 917 2652. 
 

Page 110



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 11 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1569 

 
8 The developer is advised that the Welsh Government are planning to introduce 

new legislation that will make it mandatory for all developers who wish to connect 
to the public sewerage to obtain an adoption agreement for their sewerage with 
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW) (Mandatory Build Standards). Further 
information on the Mandatory Build Standards can be found on the Developer 
Services Section, DCWW at www.dwrcymru.com or on the Welsh Government’s 
website www.wales.gov.uk.  

 
9 The developer is advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be 

recorded on Dwr Cymru Welsh Water's (DCWW) maps or public sewers because 
they were originally privately owned and were transferred into public ownership by 
nature of the Water Industry (Schemes for Adoption of Private Sewers) 
Regulations 2011.  The presence of such assets may affect the proposal.  DCWW 
advise that the applicant contacts their Operations Contact Centre on 0800 085 
3968 to establish the location and status of the sewer.  Under the Water Industry 
Act 1991 DCWW has rights of access to its apparatus at all times. 

 
PLANS 
 
1326/S02-proposed roof plan, 1326/S03-proposed entrance plan, 1326/S04-proposed 
lower level plan, 1326/S10-proposed west elevation/section Aa, 1326/S11-proposed east 
elevation, 1326/S12-proposed south elevation, 1326/S13-proposed north elevation dated 
16th October 2014. Site location plan, 1326/S01A-proposed site plan received 21st 
October 2014  
 

 

Page 111



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 12   APPLICATION NO. 2014/1588 

  WARD: Gower 
 

 

Location: Gors Green, Reynoldston, Swansea, SA3 1AE 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension, creation of outdoor swimming pool rear 
terraced areas, safety ballustrade and new rear boundary walls 

Applicant: Mr Howard Kinsey 

 
 

Sinks

Path (u
m)

B
ry

n
 E

i t
h
in

Trelawne Cottage

Chartley

Manse

S
o
u
th

 R
id

g
e

The Olde

Penticton

E
v
ir
o
n

B
ry
n
cr
o
ft

Farm

Pond

Cefn Bryn

Sinks

G
o
rs

e
 G

re
e
n

Parklands

Kilimani

P
a

th
 (

u
m

)

S
o
u
th

w
a
ys

Pond

The

Brackens

C
a
m
e
lo
t

C
S

CS

Avalon House

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 112



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 12 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1588 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV26 Within the Gower AONB, the primary objective is the conservation and 
enhancement of the area's natural beauty.  Development that would 
have a material adverse effect on the natural beauty, wildlife and 
cultural heritage of the AONB will not be permitted. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy HC7 Proposals for extensions and alterations to existing residential dwellings 
will be assessed in terms of; relationship to the existing dwelling, impact 
on the character and appearance of the streetscene, affect on 
neighbouring properties, and impact on car parking. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY 
 
There is no relevant planning history pertaining to the site.  
 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
The neighbouring occupants at Bryneithin were sent a letter of consultation on 20th 
October 2014.  A site notice was posted within the vicinity of the application site on 31st 
October 2014.  
 

• No representations have been received to date.  
 
Highway Observations -  
 
The Council’s Head of Transportation and Engineering was consulted and responded 
with the following comments: 
 
Proposals are for a single storey rear extension, creation of outdoor swimming pool and 
new rear boundary walls.  Current parking arrangements are unaffected.  There are no 
highway objections.  
 
The Council’s Ecology Officer observations - 
 
BIRDS 
Birds may be present.  Please note it is an offence under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 
1981 (as amended) to intentionally (intentionally or recklessly for Schedule 1 birds) to: 

• Kill, injure or take any wild bird 

• Take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird whilst that nest in in use or being 
built 

• Take or destroy an egg of any wild bird Page 113



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 12 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1588 

 
Care should be taken when working on buildings, trees and clearing bushes particularly 
during the bird nesting season, March to August 
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application has been called to Committee at the request of Councillor Richard Lewis 
in order to assess the impact of the proposed development on the AONB.  
 
The application site comprises a detached, two storey dwelling known as Gors Green 
which is situated in Reynoldston and the local ward of Gower.  The application property 
benefits from off road parking and a large curtilage and is also situated within the Gower 
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 
 
Reynoldston is the largest settlement within the AONB with approximately 178 dwellings.  
It sits at the centre of the peninsula, on the crossroads of both north/south and east/west 
routes.  The 20th Century saw a significant increase in the size of the village with the 
development of the Applegrove Estate.  As development extended along radial routes 
from the original village core, subsequent cul-de-sac development and linear expansion 
has resulted in the extension of the village eastwards towards the separate settlement of 
Little Reynoldston.  There are a number of key characteristics to Reynoldston; wide 
shallow footprints are characteristic of older properties within the village, larger squarer 
footprints typify the more recent suburban development forms.  Simple pitched roofs 
punctuated by chimneys are the characteristic roof form on older properties within the 
village with subservient pitched roofs to extensions; generally ridgelines run parallel to the 
road.  
 
This application seeks full planning permission to construct a single storey rear extension, 
an outdoor swimming pool, rear terraced areas, safety balustrade and new walls.  The 
proposed single storey rear extension will measure approximately 3.7 metres deep and 
approximately 6.2 metres wide.  It will feature a pitched roof measuring approximately 2.7 
metres to the eaves and approximately 3.4 metres to the ridge.  The swimming pool will 
be approximately 1.5 metres deep, approximately 3 metres wide and approximately 6 
metres in length.  The walls will measure approximately 2.5 metres in height and will be 
constructed from brick, finished in render to match the existing dwelling. One of the walls 
is to be sited along part of the common boundary with the neighbouring property. The 
other section of wall is to be sited within the rear garden area, to the rear of the host 
dwelling. 
 
The primary issues in the consideration of this application relate to the impact of the 
proposed development on visual and residential amenity, having regard to Policies EV1, 
EV26 and HC7 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan (2008).  The 
application is also considered with regard to the Council’s Supplementary Planning 
Guidance documents entitled ‘A Design Guide for Householder Development’ and the 
‘Gower AONB Design Guide’.  
 
The proposed development will be constructed to the rear elevation of the dwelling and 
will be partially visible from public vantage points. 
 

Page 114



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 12 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1588 

 
Section A1.58 of the Gower AONB Design Guide states that ‘the addition of a 
conservatory should respect the scale and character of the existing building’.  It is 
considered, that given the relatively small scale of the proposed single storey rear 
extension it accords with the provisions of the Gower AONB Design Guide. 
 
The proposed swimming pool will not be raised above ground level, therefore it will have a 
minimal visual impact.  There are also a number of swimming pools in back gardens of 
other properties within Reynoldston.  Therefore the creation of a swimming pool in this 
location is not considered to be out of character for the area, in accordance with Policies 
EV1, EV26 and HC7 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan, the 
Design Guide for Householder Development and the Gower AONB Design Guide.  
 
The decked area will only be raised above the ground level by approximately 0.2 metres 
and only comprises a small area of the overall garden space.  It is therefore not 
considered that it will have an adverse effect on the character or appearance of the host 
dwelling or the wider Gower AONB in accordance with the provisions of Policies EV1, 
EV26 and HC7 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan.  
 
The new walls will not obstruct views of the house.  The purpose of the new walls is to 
screen the proposed swimming pool from public vantage points along the adjacent access 
road.  The proposed walls will be constructed from brick and rendered to match that of the 
existing dwellinghouse.  It is not considered that the proposed walls adversely affect the 
character and appearance of the host dwelling or the surrounding street scene in 
accordance with Policies EV1, EV26 and HC7 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary 
Development Plan.  
 
In terms of residential amenity it is not considered that the proposals will result in any 
overlooking, overbearing or overshadowing impact to any adjoining neighbour.  The single 
storey rear extension is of a minimal scale, the swimming pool will be at ground level and 
the proposed walls and decked area will not be overly dominant, especially as the 
neighbouring property at Bryneithin is at a slightly higher level than that of the application 
property. 
 
There are also no highway objections to the proposals.  
 
In conclusion it is considered that the proposals represent an acceptable form of 
development.  The proposed single storey rear extension, new boundary walls, safety 
balustrade, rear terraced area and the creation of an outdoor swimming pool is considered 
acceptable particularly given their subservient scale and appropriate design.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE, subject to the following condition: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than five years from the 
date of this decision. 

 Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990.  

 

Page 115



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 12 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1588 

 

2 Samples/details of all external finishes of the flank walls of the extension shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing before the 
development is commenced. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance 
with the approved details.  

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: EV1, EV26 and HC7 

 
2 Birds may be present in this building and grounds please note it is an offence 

under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to intentionally 
(intentionally or recklessly for Schedule 1 birds) to: 
-  Kill, injure or take any wild bird 
-  Take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that nest in use or being 
built 
-  Take or destroy an egg of any wild bird 
Care should be taken when working on buildings particularly during the bird 
nesting season March-August. 

 
PLANS 
 
Site location plan, block plan, 254.01-existing floor plan, 254.01-existing elevations, 
254.04-proposed floor plan dated 21st October. Proposed block plan, 2014. 254.05-
proposed elevations dated 23rd October 2014 
 

 
 

Page 116



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 13  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1666 

  WARD: Bishopston 
 

 

Location: The Dranges Nature Reserve on land to the East of Barlands Common, 
South & West of Broadley Farm, Bishopston, Swansea 

Proposal: Creation of seven small ponds and the construction of hibernation 
sites 

Applicant: The Wildlife Trust of South & West Wales 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV22 The countryside throughout the County will be conserved and enhanced 
for the sake of its natural heritage, natural resources, historic and 
cultural environment and agricultural and recreational value through: 
i) The control of development, and  
ii) Practical management and improvement measures. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV26 Within the Gower AONB, the primary objective is the conservation and 
enhancement of the area's natural beauty.  Development that would 
have a material adverse effect on the natural beauty, wildlife and 
cultural heritage of the AONB will not be permitted. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

None.  

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS  
 
The proposal was advertised on site. No responses have been received. 
 
Council’s Head of Transportation and Engineering - This proposal will have no adverse 
affect on local highway safety conditions.  I recommend that no highway objections are 
raised. 
 
Council’s Ecology Officer - The proposed ponds should provide a valuable ecological 
enhancement of the site. The locations of the ponds coincide with relatively poor areas of 
the reserve. There are no ecological concerns. 
 

Page 117



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 13 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1666 

 
Natural Resources Wales – Having reviewed the information provided with the 
application, we are supportive of the proposal. We do not envisage any issues in relation 
to surrounding watercourses as a result of excavating the ponds. We recommend that 
prior to works commencing the applicant should assess if the movement of machinery 
across the site could cause sediment pollution. 
 
APPRAISAL  
 
This application is reported to Committee for decision at the request of Councillor Keith 
Marsh to make members aware of the nature reserve. 
 
The application seeks full planning permission for the creation of 7 small ponds and the 
construction of hibernation sites at the Dranges Nature Reserve on land to the east of 
Barlands Common, south west of Broadly Farm, Bishopston. The proposals are aimed at 
providing improvements within the nature reserve for both reptiles and amphibians. 
 
Each pond varies in size, with the largest being 15m long and 12m wide, with the smallest 
being 10m long and 10m wide. The depth of the ponds varies between 1.2m and 1.5m. All 
but one pond will include hibernacula banks of approx. 1m in height and between 5-10m in 
length depending on the individual pond size. The banks will be created from clay, subsoil, 
logs and brash and will run adjacent to the ponds in an east-west orientation. The 
materials are to be sourced from the site. The banks would become vegetated over time 
and are likely to reduce in size due to decomposition.  
 
The applicant states that the proposals are to both benefit biodiversity and to provide 
water for grazing livestock. The objective to the proposed habitat works is to maintain and 
increase the diversity of the grassland habitat at the site through the removal of specified 
areas of regenerative willow and alder growth and maintain the floristic composition by 
light grazing by appropriate grazing stock. The creation of the ponds is designed to 
increase the colony robustness and connectivity of species that are known to be present. 
 
Access to the site would be from the exiting access off Bishopston Road, across private 
land. Public access is limited and only via a permissive path off a public right of way. 
 
There are no defining features in the immediate vicinity of the application site and the 
applicant has stated that the locations of the ponds coincide with areas of the reserve of 
poor ecological value. 
 
The main issue for consideration relates to whether the ponds will be visually prominent in 
the landscape, access and parking, having particular regard to Policies EV1, EV22 and 
EV26. There are no additional issues arising from the provisions of the Human Rights Act.   
 
Policy EV26 relates to the Gower AONB and states that within the AONB, the primary 
objection is the conservation and enhancement of the area’s natural beauty. Any 
development with the AONB should (i) be of an appropriately high standard of design and 
(ii) retain and where possible enhance exiting features of natural heritage and the historic 
environment. 
 

Page 118



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 13 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1666 

 
Policy EV22 relates to the countryside and states that the countryside will be conserved 
and enhanced for the sake of its natural heritage, natural resources, historic and cultural, 
environment and agricultural and recreational value through (i) the control of development 
(ii) practical management and improvement measures. 
 
In terms of visual amenity the ponds are not prominent, being situated too far away from 
the highway network to be visible from passing traffic and located within private land with 
restricted access and views. From afar, any views of the site would be against the 
backdrop of the countryside and its associated setting. The provision of the ponds is 
considered to preserve the visual quality of the application site and will maintain and 
enhance the landscape quality of the site whilst protecting its nature conservation interests 
and enhancing biodiversity. 
 
It is considered that the visual amenity of the area would not be adversely affected by the 
proposed development and the proposal is therefore in accordance with the criteria set out 
in Policies EV1, EV22 and EV26 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development 
Plan 2008. 
 
In terms of residential amenity, due to the location of the ponds, several hundred metres 
away from the nearest residential property, there are no issues to address in this respect. 
 
In conclusion, therefore, and having regard to all material planning considerations 
including the Human Rights Act, the proposal is considered to represent an acceptable 
form of development, having particular regard to Policies EV1, EV22 and EV26 of the City 
and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008. Accordingly, approval is 
recommended. 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
APPROVE, subject to the following condition: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than five years from the 
date of this decision. 

 Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 
2 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: EV1, EV22, EV26. 

 
3 The applicant's attention is drawn to the attached advisory notes relating to 

pollution prevention, drainage, waste management, habitats and species. The 
applicant must contact Natural Resources Wales (03000653000) prior to 
commencing works. 

 
Page 119



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 13 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1666 

 
4 The applicant is advised that prior to the commencement of works on site, an 

assessment should be made to establish if the movement of machinery across the 
site prior to and during construction works could cause sediment pollution to local 
watercourses. If the applicant considers that there is such a risk, then the applicant 
should contact National Resource Wales's Environmental Management Team for 
advice. 

 
PLANS 
 
Site location plan, 01-block plan, pond number 1-plan view, pond number 1-cross 
sectional view, pond number 2-plan view & cross sectional view, pond number 3-plan view 
& cross sectional view, pond number 4-plan view & cross sectional view, pond number 5-
plan view & cross sectional view, pond number 6-plan view & cross sectional view, pond 
number 7-plan view, pond number 7-cross sectional view, photographs dated 3rd 
November 2014.  Pond one plan view, pond two plan view, pond three plan view, pond 
four plan view, pond six plan view, pond seven plan view, photos dated 21st November 
2014. 
 

 

Page 120



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 14  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1757 

  WARD: Gower 
 

 

Location: Field 8753, Weobley Castle Farm, Llanrhidian, Gower 

Proposal: Use of land for caravan rally for a maximum of 60 units from Friday 3rd 
July to Sunday 5th July 2015 (inclusive) 

Applicant: The Caravan Club 

 
 

Track

(disused)

52.4m

59.7m

68.2m

CG

Track

T
ra
c
k

Farm

Windmill

Limekiln

Farm

Weobley Castle

Castle Acre

Pond

52.8m

69.1m

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 121



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 14 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1757 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EC22 Control of camping and touring caravans on farms and storage of 
touring caravans. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) 

 

Policy EV22 The countryside throughout the County will be conserved and enhanced 
for the sake of its natural heritage, natural resources, historic and 
cultural environment and agricultural and recreational value through: 
i) The control of development, and  
ii) Practical management and improvement measures. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV26 Within the Gower AONB, the primary objective is the conservation and 
enhancement of the area's natural beauty.  Development that would 
have a material adverse effect on the natural beauty, wildlife and 
cultural heritage of the AONB will not be permitted. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV31 Along the undeveloped coastline development proposals for the 
provision of visitor and recreation facilities and services to complement 
existing facilities will be permitted at specified coastal locations.  (City & 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV3 Proposals for new development and alterations to and change of use of 
existing buildings will be required to meet defined standards of access. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2013/1282 Use of land for caravan rally for a maximum of 60 units from 27th to 29th 
June 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  21/10/2013 

 

2001/0902 Renewal of temporary permission for the siting of 5 touring caravans 
from good friday or 1st April (whichever is earlier) to 31st October during 
the 2002 and 2003 seasons 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  13/07/2001 

 
Page 122



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 14 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1757 

 

2012/0754 Use of land for caravan rally for a maximum of 60 units from 28th to 30th 
June 2013 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  16/07/2012 

 

2013/0325 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for a maximum of 20 units 
from 14th to 16th June 2013 inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  15/04/2013 

 

2013/0715 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for a maximum of 100 units 
from 13th to 15th June 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  24/06/2013 

 

2008/1179 Use of land for caravan rally for approx. 50 units from 26th - 28th June 
2009 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  24/07/2008 

 

2010/1366 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for a maximum of 50 units 
from 24th - 26th June 2011 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  06/10/2010 

 

2013/0714 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for a maximum of 100 units 
from 5th to 7th September 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  24/06/2013 

 

2014/0663 Use of land for caravan rally for a maximum of 20 units from 10th to 12th 
July 2015 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  26/06/2014 

 

2003/1039 Renewal of temporary permission for the siting of 5 touring caravans 
from Good Friday or 1st April (whichever is earlier) to 31st October 
during the 2004 and 2005 seasons 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  23/07/2003 

 

2005/0051 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 20 units from 9th 
September  to  11th September 2005 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  18/02/2005 

 Page 123



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 14 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1757 

 

2007/1203 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for a maximum of 90 units 
from 2nd May to 5th May 2008 inclusive 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  01/08/2007 

 

2008/0556 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 20 units from  14th 
August 2008 to 17th August 2008 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  28/04/2008 

 

2010/0579 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for the maximum of 30 units 
from 2nd - 4th September 2011 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  24/06/2010 

 

2011/0864 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for a maximum of 50 units 
from 22nd to 24th June 2012 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  21/07/2011 

 

99/1384 USE OF LAND FOR A CARAVAN RALLY FOR APPROXIMATELY 45 
UNITS FROM 7th JULY TO 9th JULY 2000 (INCLUSIVE) 

Decision:  *HGPC - GRANT PERMISSION CONDITIONAL 

Decision Date:  26/11/1999 

 

2007/0319 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 20 units from 15th to 
17th June 2007 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  28/03/2007 

 

2012/0445 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for a maximum of 100 units 
from 10th to 12th May 2013 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  27/04/2012 

 

2013/0710 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for a maximum of 100 units 
from 9th May to 11th May 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  24/06/2013 

 

99/0788 RENEWAL OF TEMPORARY PERMISSION FOR THE SITING OF 5 
TOURING CARAVANS FROM GOOD FRIDAY OR 1st APRIL 
(WHICHEVER IS THE EARLIER) TO 31st OCTOBER DURING 2000 & 
2001 SEASONS 

Decision:  *HGPC - GRANT PERMISSION CONDITIONAL 

Decision Date:  23/07/1999 Page 124



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 14 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1757 

 

2002/1074 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 35 units from 11th to 
13th July 2003 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  19/07/2002 

 

2007/2376 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 50 units from 27th June 
2008 to 29th June 2008 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  17/12/2007 

 

2012/0323 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for a maximum of 100 units 
from 20th to 22nd April 2012 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  03/04/2012 

 

2013/1279 Use of land for caravan rally for a maximum of 50 units from 25th to 27th 
April 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  21/10/2013 

 

2003/0440 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 20 units from 27th June 
until 29th June 2003 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  02/05/2003 

 

2003/1285 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 40 units from 2nd to 4th 
July  2004 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  08/08/2003 

 

2004/0757 Use of land for caravan rally for approx. 20 units from 18th-20th June 
2004 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  06/05/2004 

 

2004/2252 Use of land for caravan rally for approximately 60 units from 1st July 
until 3rd July 2005 (Inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  12/11/2004 

 

2007/0434 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 45 units from 22nd June 
2007 to 24th June 2007 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  30/03/2007 

 

Page 125



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 14 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1757 

 

2009/0636 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for the maximum of 30 units 
from 7th - 9th May 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  16/07/2009 

 

2011/0533 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for a maximum of 100 units 
from 11th - 13th May 2012 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  06/06/2011 

 

2006/0634 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 50 units from 30th June 
2006 to 2nd July 2006 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  15/05/2006 

 

2006/0758 Renewal of temporary permission for the siting of 5 touring caravans 
from 15th May-30th October during 2006 season and Good Friday or 1st 
April (whichever is earlier) to 31st October during the  2007 seasons 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  15/05/2006 

 

2008/1204 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for the maximum of 90 units 
from 8th - 10th May 2009 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  25/07/2008 

 

2009/0923 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for the maximum of 50 units 
from 25th - 27th June 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  06/08/2009 

 

2010/0578 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for the maximum of 30 units 
from 10th - 12th June 2011 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  24/06/2010 

 

2011/0534 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for a maximum of 100 units 
from 7th -9th  September 2012 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  06/06/2011 

 

2012/0444 Use of land for camping and caravan rally for a maximum of 100 units 
from 6th to 8th September 2013 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  04/05/2012 

 Page 126



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 14 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1757 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
A site notice was posted within the vicinity of the application site on 27th November 2014. 
 

• No representations have been received to date.  
 
Highway Observations –  
 
The Head of Transportation and Engineering was consulted and offered no objection to 
the proposal.  
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is reported to Committee at the request of Councillor Richard Lewis due 
to constituent concerns and in order to assess the impact of the proposed development on 
the AONB. 
 
This application seeks temporary planning permission for the use of Field 8753, Weobley 
Castle Farm as a caravan rally for a maximum of 60 units from Friday 3rd July to Sunday 
5th July 2015.  
 
Within the Gower AONB permitted development rights for: 
 
(i) Camping for a maximum of 28 days in any year; 
(ii) Siting of up to three caravans on holdings of 5 acres or more for a maximum of 28 
 days in any year, and 
(iii)  Caravan rallies which are organised by exempt organisations for a maximum of 5 
 days 
 
have been removed by an Article 4 Direction.  The Article 4 Direction was confirmed in 
1979 by the Secretary of State for Wales for environmental infrastructure reasons and 
through these powers the Council has control over the provision of pitches.  This 
continues to be an important element for the protection of the natural beauty of the AONB. 
 
The site has a long established history of receiving temporary planning permission for the 
use of this field for caravan rallies. Temporary planning consent has already been issued 
for the use of this field as a caravan rally from the 10th-12th July 2015 (Ref 2014/0663). 
 
The primary issues in the consideration of this application relate to the impact of the 
proposal on the character and appearance of the countryside and Gower Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), having regard to Policies EV1, EV3, EV22, EV26, 
EV31 and EC22 of the adopted City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
(2008). 
 
This short term proposal is considered to have no detrimental impact upon the visual 
amenities of the surrounding area or the character and appearance of the countryside or 
wider Gower AONB which therefore accords with the primary objectives of Policies EV1, 
EV3, EV22, EV26 and EV31. 
 
It is also considered that the proposal meets the essential criteria of Policy EC22 which 
states that temporary camping should minimise significant impacts upon the environment. Page 127



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 14 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1757 

 
In conclusion it is considered that the proposal represents an acceptable form of 
development in this sensitive location within the countryside and the Gower AONB which 
therefore complies with the provisions of the prevailing Unitary Development Plan Policies.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE, subject to the following condition: 
 

1 This permission is granted for a temporary period from 3rd July to 5th July 2015 
inclusive, after which time the use shall cease. No caravans or other structures 
associated with the use hereby approved shall be on the site before 3rd July 2015 
or after 5th July 2015.   

 Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority may review the situation and in 
order to achieve a satisfactory form and pattern of development in accordance 
with the intentions of the Article 4 Direction.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
2 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: EV1, EV3, EV22, EV26, EV31 and 
EC22 

 
3 The applicant shall comply with the requirements of the Head of Environmental 

Management and Protection of the City and County of Swansea.  
 
4 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 
5 The site is crossed by a registered public footpath (LL2), this footpath must be 

kept clear at all times.  
 
PLANS 
 
Site location plan received 17th November 2014 
 

 

Page 128



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

  WARD: Gower 
 

 

Location: Field 0818, Bank Farm, Horton, Swansea, SA3 1LL 

Proposal: Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 40 units from 
Saturday 8th August to Saturday 22nd August 2015 (inclusive) 

Applicant: The Caravan Club 

 
 

Westernside Cottage 4

Cott

P
em

br
o
ke

L
A
N
E

7
8

ROCK

3

T
ra
c
k

C
ot
t

Bank

Cottage
Cottage

House

1

The Cove

2

Tr
ac

k

Westernside

Hareslade

Cott

Fern

Myrtle
Skysea

Rock

Hillcrest

Shrubbery

Briar

Great

1

11

8

6
9

5

16

18

Croftings

19

Horton

22

The Grange

25

17

T
ra
c
k

The

Nursery

28

6

10

T
ra
c
k

24

21

27

Farm

31

30

38

7

G
R
E
A
T
 H

O
U
S
E
 C

O
U
R
T

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 129



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV3 Proposals for new development and alterations to and change of use of 
existing buildings will be required to meet defined standards of access. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV22 The countryside throughout the County will be conserved and enhanced 
for the sake of its natural heritage, natural resources, historic and 
cultural environment and agricultural and recreational value through: 
i) The control of development, and  
ii) Practical management and improvement measures. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV26 Within the Gower AONB, the primary objective is the conservation and 
enhancement of the area's natural beauty.  Development that would 
have a material adverse effect on the natural beauty, wildlife and 
cultural heritage of the AONB will not be permitted. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV31 Along the undeveloped coastline development proposals for the 
provision of visitor and recreation facilities and services to complement 
existing facilities will be permitted at specified coastal locations.  (City & 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EC22 Control of camping and touring caravans on farms and storage of 
touring caravans. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2014/0137 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 80 units from 23rd May  
to 1st June 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  13/03/2014 

 

2006/0261 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 50 units from 24th 
August to 3rd September 2006 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  08/03/2006 

 

Page 130



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 

2006/0389 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 25 units from 25th to 
28th August 2006 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  24/03/2006 

 

2006/2255 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 60 units from 21st July 
to 4th August 2007 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  21/11/2006 

 

2007/2498 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 50 units from 13th June 
2008 to 15th June 2008 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  17/12/2007 

 

2008/1886 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 50 units from 1st to 4th 
May 2009 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  05/11/2008 

 

2011/0532 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 80 units from 6th - 15th 
April 2012 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  06/06/2011 

 

2012/0039 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 35 units from July 26th 
to 13th August 2012 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  24/02/2012 

 

2013/1277 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 25 units from 21st to 
23rd March 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  21/10/2013 

 

2001/1648 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 60 units from 31st May 
to 9th June 2002 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  16/11/2001 

 

2002/2178 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 60 units from 31st July 
until 17th August 2003 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  10/01/2003 

 

Page 131



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 

2009/0918 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 60 units from 28th May 
to 6th June 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  06/08/2009 

 

2009/1037 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 30 units from 21st to 
23rd March 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  28/08/2009 

 

2010/0491 Use of land (Field 0005) for a caravan rally for a maximum 25 units from 
Friday 28th May 2010 to Tuesday 1st June 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Withdrawn 

Decision Date:  28/06/2010 

 

2011/0231 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 30 units from 8th June 
to 13th June 2011 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  09/05/2011 

 

2013/0116 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 35 units from 24th July 
to 13th August 2013 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Withdrawn 

Decision Date:  04/04/2013 

 

2013/1281 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 80 units from 25th May  
to 1st June 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Withdrawn 

Decision Date:  04/02/2014 

 

2013/1461 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 60 units from 23rd May 
to 1st June 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  25/11/2013 

 

2014/1659 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 30 units from 27th 
December 2014 to 2nd January 2015 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  22/12/2014 

 

A01/0042 USE OF LAND FOR A CARAVAN RALLY FOR APPROXIMATELY 20 
UNITS FROM 28TH JULY 2001 TO 11TH AUGUST 2001(INCLUSIVE) 

Decision:  *HGPC - GRANT PERMISSION CONDITIONAL 

Decision Date:  16/02/2001 

 

Page 132



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 

2001/1650 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 40 units from 6th - 8th 
September 2002 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  16/11/2001 

 

2002/1077 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 40 units from 26th to 
31st August 2003 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  19/07/2002 

 

2003/2006 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 60 units from 29th July 
until 15th August 2004 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  16/11/2003 

 

2004/0301 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 40 units from 9th April 
to 12th April and approximately 40 units from 27th August to 30th 
August 2004 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  08/04/2004 

 

2004/2248 Use of land for caravan rally for approximately 60 units from 26th May 
until 5th June 2005 (Inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  15/11/2004 

 

2007/0950 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 80 units from 22nd May 
2008 to 1st June 2008 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  07/06/2007 

 

2009/1484 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 30 units from 30th April 
2010 to 3rd May 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  19/11/2009 

 

2010/0691 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 80 units from 27th May 
2011 to 5th June 2011 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  07/10/2010 

 

2012/0153 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 30 units from 30th July, 
2012 to 13th August, 2012 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  11/04/2012 

 Page 133



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 

2013/0575 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 40 units from 26th July 
to 9th August 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  06/06/2013 

 

2013/0713 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 60 units from 24th - 
29th October 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  25/06/2013 

 

99/0815 USE OF LAND FOR A CAMPING AND CARAVAN RALLY FOR 35 
UNITS FROM 21ST JULY 2000 TO 14TH AUGUST 2000 (INCLUSIVE) 

Decision:  *HGPCT - GRANT PERMISSION COND. (T) 

Decision Date:  30/07/1999 

 

A01/0045 USE OF LAND FOR A CARAVAN RALLY FOR APPROXIMATELY 50 
UNITS FROM 24TH MAY TO 29TH MAY 2001 (INCLUSIVE) 

Decision:  *HGPC - GRANT PERMISSION CONDITIONAL 

Decision Date:  16/02/2001 

 

A01/0047 USE OF LAND FOR A CARAVAN RALLY FOR APPROXIMATELY 40 
UNITS FROM 28TH AUGUST TO 2ND SEPTEMBER 2001 
(INCLUSIVE) 

Decision:  *HGPC - GRANT PERMISSION CONDITIONAL 

Decision Date:  16/02/2001 

 

2004/2249 Use of land for caravan rally for approximately 40 units from 10th - 12th 
June 2005 (Inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  15/11/2004 

 

2005/0272 Use of land for caravan rally for approximately 40 units from 23rd July to 
13th August 2005 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  18/03/2005 

 

2006/1808 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 60 units from 25th May 
to 3rd June 2007 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  18/09/2006 

 

2006/2650 Use of land for a caravan rally from 4th May 2007 to 7th May 2007 
(inclusive) for a maximum of 25 units. 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  16/01/2007 

 Page 134



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 

2007/0292 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 25 units from 27th August 
2007 to 30th August 2007 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  16/03/2007 

 

2007/1383 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 40 units from 19th - 
21st October 2007 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Withdrawn 

Decision Date:  12/11/2007 

 

2008/0147 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 30 units from 1st to 15th 
August 2008 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Withdrawn 

Decision Date:  15/04/2008 

 

2010/0570 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 35 units from 20th July 
to 10th August 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  27/05/2010 

 

2010/1576 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 30 units from August 
6th 2011 to August 20th 2011(inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  22/03/2011 

 

2012/0228 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 80 units from 3rd 
August to 17th August 2013 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  02/04/2012 

 

2013/0157 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 58 units from 5th to 
15th September 2013 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  08/04/2013 

 

2001/0815 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 80 units from 6-8 July 
2001 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  22/06/2001 

 

2002/1068 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 40 units from 20th June 
- 22nd June 2003 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  19/07/2002 

 

Page 135



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 

2002/1072 Use of land for a caravan rally for 

approximately 60 units from 21st May -1st June 2003 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  19/07/2002 

 

2002/2177 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 60 units from 19th July 
until 30 July 2003 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  10/01/2003 

 

2002/2248 Variation of condition 1 of planning permission 97/1088 dated 29th 
January 1998 to extend the period of time in which to commence the 
development by a further 2 years 

Decision:  Approve Conditional (S73) 

Decision Date:  11/04/2003 

 

2004/0266 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 25 units from 2nd June 
to 4th June 2004 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Withdrawn 

Decision Date:  23/12/2004 

 

2004/2345 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 20 units from 29th April 
to 2nd May 2005 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  22/11/2004 

 

2009/0953 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 30 units from 5th to 
23rd August 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Refuse 

Decision Date:  28/08/2009 

 

2013/0711 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 60 units from 18th - 
27th April 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  24/06/2013 

 

2003/1924 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 20 units from 30th April 
to 3rd May 2004 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  31/10/2003 

 

2004/2243 Use of land for caravan rally for approximately 60 units from 15th July 
until 17th July 2005 (Inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  15/11/2004 

 Page 136



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 

2006/2136 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 80 units from 24th May 
to 4th June 2007 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Withdrawn 

Decision Date:  01/02/2007 

 

2009/1268 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 30 units from 12th to 
14th March 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  08/10/2009 

 

2010/0754 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 50 units from 20th July 
to 10th August 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Withdrawn 

Decision Date:  18/05/2010 

 

2012/0457 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 60 units from 25th to 
31st October 2013 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  28/05/2012 

 

99/0147 USE OF LAND FOR A CARAVAN RALLY FOR APPROXIMATELY 40 
UNITS FROM 24TH JULY 1999 TO 8TH AUGUST 1999 (INCLUSIVE) 

Decision:  *HGPC - GRANT PERMISSION CONDITIONAL 

Decision Date:  26/02/1999 

 

2001/1652 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 30-40 units from 10th -
12th May 2002 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  16/11/2001 

 

2003/2008 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 60 units from 21st 
October until 31st October 2004 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  21/11/2003 

 

2004/2245 Use of land for caravan rally for approximately 50 units from 30th August 
until 4th September 2005 (Inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  15/11/2004 

 

2005/2275 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 25 units from the 14th 
to 17th April 2006 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  01/12/2005 

 

Page 137



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 

2006/0244 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 80 units from 15th May 
until 3rd June 2006 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  22/03/2006 

 

2006/1165 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 20 units from 24th June 
2006 to 8th July 2006 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Withdrawn 

Decision Date:  17/07/2006 

 

2008/0422 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 20 units from 3rd August 
2008 to 17th August 2008 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Refuse 

Decision Date:  05/06/2008 

 

2008/1884 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 35 units from 10th July 
2009 to 12th July 2009 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  06/11/2008 

 

2009/0031 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 60 units from 10th April 
2009 to 14th April 2009 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  19/03/2009 

 

2009/1269 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 30 units from 21st to 
23rd May 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  08/10/2009 

 

2011/0862 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 80 units from 1st to 
10th June 2012 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  12/04/2012 

 

2012/0154 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 80 units from 24th May 
2013 to 2nd June 2013 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  29/02/2012 

 

2012/0990 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 100 units from 15th to 
27th August 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  17/12/2012 

 

Page 138



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 

A01/0046 USE OF LAND FOR A CARAVAN RALLY FOR APPROXIMATELY 50 
UNITS FROM 4TH TO 7TH MAY 2001 (INCLUSIVE) 

Decision:  *HGPC - GRANT PERMISSION CONDITIONAL 

Decision Date:  16/02/2001 

 

2002/1041 Use of land for a caravan rally for approximately 60 units from 21st to 
23rd March 2003 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  19/07/2002 

 

2005/0339 Use of land for caravan rally for approx 60 units from 19th July 2006 to 
9th August 2006 (Inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  13/04/2005 

 

2006/0495 Use of land for a caravan rally for 30 units from 5th - 7th May 2006 
(inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  10/04/2006 

 

2007/2573 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 30 units from 14th March 
2008 to 16th March 2008 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  13/12/2007 

 

2008/0792 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 60 units from 22nd May to 
31st May 2009 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  11/06/2008 

 

2008/0793 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum 60 units from 1st to 15th 
August 2009 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  11/06/2008 

 

2010/0183 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 50 units from 20th July 
to 10th August 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Refuse 

Decision Date:  19/03/2010 

 

2010/1540 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 35 units from 20th July 
to 10th August 2011 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  22/03/2011 

 

Page 139



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 

2012/0440 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 60 units from 29th 
March to 7th April 2013 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  04/05/2012 

 

2014/1762 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 30 units from 27th 
December 2015 to 2nd January 2016 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  05/01/2015 

 

2014/1763 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 40 units from 1st to 6th 
September 2015 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  05/01/2015 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
A site notice was posted within the vicinity of the site on 27th November 2014.  
 

• No representations have been received to date.  
 
Highways Observations –  
 
The Head of Transportation and Engineering was consulted and offered no objection to 
the proposal.  
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is reported to Committee at the request of Councillor Richard Lewis in 
order to assess the impact on the AONB.  
 
This application seeks temporary planning permission for the use of Field 0818 Bank 
Farm as a caravan rally for a maximum of 40 units from Saturday 8th August to Saturday 
22nd August 2015.  The field is part of an established caravan and camping site 
comprising two static caravan parks, a touring unit field, a camping field and a small chalet 
development overlooking Port Eynon Bay, located to the west of the village of Horton.  
 
Within the Gower AONB permitted development rights for: 
 
(i) Camping for a maximum of 28 days in any year 
(ii) Siting up to three caravans on holdings of 5 acres or more for a maximum of 28 days in 
any year, and 
(iii) Caravan rallies which are organised by exempt organisations for a maximum of 5 days 
 
have been removed by an Article 4 Direction.  The Article 4 Direction was confirmed in 
1979 by the Secretary of State for Wales, for environmental infrastructure reasons and 
through these powers the Council has control over the provision of pitches.  This 
continues to be an important element for the protection of the natural beauty of the AONB.  

Page 140



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 
The site has a long established history of receiving temporary planning permission for the 
use of this and adjacent fields for caravan rallies.  This year to date no temporary 
consents have been issued on this field, although temporary planning permission has 
been granted for the use of an adjoining field for a caravan rally from the 1st - 6th 
September 2015 and the 27th December - 2nd January 2016 (Refs 2014/1762 and 
2014/1763) 
 
The primary issues in the consideration of this application relate to the impact of the 
proposed development on the character and appearance of the countryside, Gower 
Heritage Coast and AONB, having regard to the provisions of Policies EV1, EV3, EV22, 
EV26, EV31 and EC22 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
(2008). 
 
This short-term proposal is considered to have no detrimental impact upon the visual 
amenities of the surrounding area or the character and appearance of the countryside, 
Gower Heritage Coast and AONB, which therefore accords with the primary objectives of 
Policies EV1, EV3, EV22, EV26 and EV31.  
 
Therefore it is also considered that the proposal would meet the essential criteria of Policy 
EC22 which states that temporary camping should minimise significant impacts upon the 
environment.  
 
In conclusion it is considered that the proposal represents an acceptable form of 
development at this sensitive location within the open countryside, the Gower Heritage 
Coast and AONB, which therefore complies with the provisions of the prevailing Unitary 
Development Plan policies.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE, subject to the following condition: 
 

1 This permission is granted for a temporary period from 8th August 2015 to 22nd 
August 2015 inclusive, after which time the use shall cease. No caravans or other 
structures associated with the use hereby approved shall be on the site before 8th 
August or after 22nd August 2015.    

 Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority may review the situation and in 
order to achieve a satisfactory form and pattern of development in accordance 
with the intentions of the Article 4 Direction.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The applicant shall comply with the requirements of the Head of Environmental 

Management and Protection of the City and County of Swansea.  
 
2 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 
3 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: EV1, EV3, EV22, EV26, EV31 and 
EC22 Page 141



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 15 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1758 

 
PLANS 
 
Site location plan dated 17th November 2014 
 

 

Page 142



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 16  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1759 

  WARD: Gower 
 

 

Location: Field 6729, Rosedale, Llanrhidian, Swansea, SA3 1HB 

Proposal: Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 25 units from Friday 
24th April to Sunday 26th April 2015 (inclusive) 

Applicant: The Caravan Club 

 
 

D
ra
in

Issues

Little Wern-Halog

Rosedale

Farm

Wern-halog

Sea Shells

17.9m

Football Pitches

Swimming Pool

Play Area

Drain

Track

CG

Issues

Issues

Collects

Sinks

26.0m

T
r a
c
k

Caravan Site

Tra
ck

Track

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 143



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 16 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1759 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV3 Proposals for new development and alterations to and change of use of 
existing buildings will be required to meet defined standards of access. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV31 Along the undeveloped coastline development proposals for the 
provision of visitor and recreation facilities and services to complement 
existing facilities will be permitted at specified coastal locations.  (City & 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV22 The countryside throughout the County will be conserved and enhanced 
for the sake of its natural heritage, natural resources, historic and 
cultural environment and agricultural and recreational value through: 
i) The control of development, and  
ii) Practical management and improvement measures. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV26 Within the Gower AONB, the primary objective is the conservation and 
enhancement of the area's natural beauty.  Development that would 
have a material adverse effect on the natural beauty, wildlife and 
cultural heritage of the AONB will not be permitted. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EC22 Control of camping and touring caravans on farms and storage of 
touring caravans. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2013/1280 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 40 units from 25th to 
27th July 2014 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  21/10/2013 

 

2009/0916 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 40 units from 1st to 3rd 
October 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  06/08/2009 

 

Page 144



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 16 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1759 

 

2008/0022 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 30 units from 3rd to 5th 
October 2008 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  04/03/2008 

 

2008/0906 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 40 units from 12th to 
14th June 2009 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  17/06/2008 

 

99/1484 USE OF LAND FOR SITING OF 5 TOURING CARAVANS FROM 
GOOD FRIDAY OR 1ST APRIL (WHICHEVER IS EARLIER) TO 31ST 
OCTOBER DURING THE 2000 AND 2001 SEASONS 

Decision:  *HGPC - GRANT PERMISSION CONDITIONAL 

Decision Date:  22/12/1999 

 

2007/2392 Caravan Rally for maximum of 25 units from 26th August 2008 to 31st 
August 2008 inclusive 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  17/12/2007 

 

2008/0909 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 30 units from 2nd to 4th 
October 2009 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  17/06/2008 

 

2009/0919 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 40 units from 12th to 
14th August 2010 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  06/08/2009 

 

2011/0858 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 40 units from 20th to 
22nd July 2012 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  08/08/2011 

 

2014/1760 Use of land for a caravan rally for a maximum of 25 units from Friday 
24th July to Sunday 26th July 2015 (inclusive) 

Decision:  Grant Temporary Permission 

Decision Date:  05/01/2015 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
A site notice was posted within the vicinity of the site on 27th November 2014. 
 

• No representations have been received to date.  
Page 145



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 16 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1759 

 
Highway Observations –  
 
The Head of Transportation of Engineering was consulted and offered no objection to the 
proposal.  
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is reported to Committee for decision at the request of Councillor Richard 
Lewis in order to assess the impact of the proposal on the AONB.  
 
The application seeks temporary planning permission for the use of Field 6729, Rosedale 
as a caravan rally for a maximum of 25 units from Friday 24th April to Sunday 26th April 
2015. 
 
Within the Gower AONB permitted development rights for: 
 
(i)  Camping for a maximum of 28 days in any year, 
(ii)  Siting of up to three caravans on holdings of 5 acres or more for a maximum of 28 
 days in any year, and 
(iii)  Caravan rallies which are organised by exempt organisations for a maximum of 5 
 days 
 
have been removed by an Article 4 Direction.  The Article 4 Direction was confirmed in 
1979 by the Secretary of State for Wales, for environmental infrastructure reasons and 
through these powers the Council has control over the provision of pitches.  This 
continues to be an important element for the protection of the natural beauty of the AONB. 
 
The site has a long established history of receiving temporary planning permission for the 
use of this field for caravan rallies.  Temporary consent has already been issued on this 
field for its use as a caravan rally on the 24th – 26th July 2015 (Ref 2014/1760).  
 
The primary issues in the consideration of this application relate to the impact of the 
proposal on the character and appearance of the countryside, Gower Heritage Coast and 
AONB, having regard to the provisions of Policies EV1, EV3, EV22, EV26, EV31 and 
EC22 of the adopted City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan (2008).  
 
This short term proposal is considered to have no detrimental impact upon the visual 
amenities of the surrounding area or the character and appearance of the countryside, 
Gower Heritage Coast and AONB, which therefore accords with the primary objectives of 
Policies EV1, EV3, EV26 and EV31. 
 
Therefore it is also considered that the proposal would meet the essential criteria of Policy 
EC22 which states that temporary camping should minimise significant impacts upon the 
environment. 
 
In conclusion it is considered that the proposal represents an acceptable form of 
development at this location within the countryside and the Gower Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty which therefore complies with the provisions of the prevailing Unitary 
Development Plan policies.  
 

Page 146



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 16 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1759 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE, subject to the following condition: 
 

1 This permission is granted for a temporary period from 24th April to 26th April 
2015 inclusive, after which time the use shall cease. No caravans or other 
structures associated with the use hereby approved shall be on the site before 
24th April 2015 or after 26th April 2015.    

 Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority may review the situation and in 
order to achieve a satisfactory form and pattern of development in accordance 
with the intentions of the Article 4 Direction.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: EV1, EV3, EV22, EV26, EV31 and 
EC22  

 
2 The applicant shall comply with the requirements of the Head of Environmental 

Management and Protection of the City and County of Swansea.  
 
3 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 
PLANS 
 
Site location plan dated 17th November 2014 
 

 

Page 147



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 17  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1782 

  WARD: Gower 
 

 

Location: Little Penmynydd Cottage Llangennith Swansea SA3 1DT 

Proposal: Extension to existing outbuilding to form a garage 

Applicant: Mr Robert Price 

 
 

Pond

Tankeylake Farm

P
ath (um

)

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Issues

Tr
ac
k

T
ra
c
k

Pond

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 148



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 17 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1782 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV26 Within the Gower AONB, the primary objective is the conservation and 
enhancement of the area's natural beauty.  Development that would 
have a material adverse effect on the natural beauty, wildlife and 
cultural heritage of the AONB will not be permitted. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy HC7 Proposals for extensions and alterations to existing residential dwellings 
will be assessed in terms of; relationship to the existing dwelling, impact 
on the character and appearance of the streetscene, affect on 
neighbouring properties, and impact on car parking. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2007/2665 Single storey rear extension 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  08/01/2008 

 

2007/2074 Rear conservatory 

Decision:  Refuse 

Decision Date:  12/10/2007 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
A site notice was posted within the vicinity of the application site on 2nd December 2014. 
 

• No representations have been received to date.  
 
Highway Observations -  
 
The Head of Transportation and Engineering was consulted and offered no objection to 
the proposal. 
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is reported to Committee at the request of Councillor Richard Lewis in 
order to assess the impact of the proposed development on the AONB. 

Page 149



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 17 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1782 

 
The application site is located within the local ward of Gower and is situated within the 
Gower Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  The site benefits from off road 
parking and a fairly large curtilage.  
 
This application seeks consent to extend an existing domestic outbuilding to form a 
garage.  The resulting structure will measure approximately 5 metres wide and 
approximately 6 metres deep.  It will comprise of a pitched roof measuring approximately 
2.2 metres to the eaves and approximately 3.1 metres to the ridge.  
 
The primary issues in the consideration of this application relate to the impact of the 
proposed development on visual and residential amenity, having regard to Policies EV1, 
EV26 and HC7 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan (2008).  The 
application is also considered with regard to the Council’s Supplementary Planning 
Guidance documents entitled ‘A Design Guide for Householder Development’ and the 
‘Gower AONB Design Guide’.  
 
The scale of the proposed extension to the existing outbuilding is considered 
proportionate to the application site and dwelling and accords with Section 7.3 of the 
Design Guide for Householder Development, which states that an outbuilding must be 
smaller in scale and subservient to the main house.  Furthermore Section 7.3 states that 
outbuildings should not be positioned to the front of the main house, the proposed 
development also accords with this section of the Design Guide.  
 
The proposed development is considered in keeping with the character and appearance of 
the host property, particularly given the proposed use of materials to match that of the 
dwelling and the existing outbuilding.  Therefore it is considered that the proposed 
extension to the existing outbuilding in order to form a garage will not have a detrimental 
impact upon the character and appearance of the host dwelling or the wider Gower Area 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), in accordance with the provisions of Policies EV1, 
EV26 and HC7 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan and the 
Design Guide for Householder Development.  
 
The application property is a detached dwelling in a secluded location and therefore does 
not have any immediate neighbours.  Therefore it is not considered that the proposed 
development will have an impact upon the residential amenity of anyone.  In addition the 
application site will benefit from sufficient amenity space following the proposed 
development.  
 
There are no highway objections to the proposal. 
 
In conclusion it is considered that the proposed extension to the existing outbuilding in 
order to form a garage represents an acceptable form of development.  The proposed 
development bears no detrimental impact upon the character and appearance of the host 
dwelling or the visual amenity of the surrounding area and wider Gower AONB.  Therefore 
the proposed development complies with Policies EV1, EV26 and HC7 of the City and 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan (2008).   
 

Page 150



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 17 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/1782 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE, subject to the following condition: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than five years from the 
date of this decision. 

 Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: EV1, EV26 and HC7 

 
2 Bats may be present.  All British bat species are protected under Schedule 5 of the 

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and are listed in Schedule 2 of the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.  This legislation 
implements the EC Habitats & Species Directive in the UK making it an offence to 
capture, kill or disturb a European Protected Species or to damage or destroy the 
breeding site or resting place of such an animal.  It is also an offence to recklessly 
/ intentionally to disturb such an animal. 
If evidence of bats is encountered during site clearance e.g. live or dead animals 
or droppings, work should cease immediately and the advice of the Natural 
Resources Wales sought before continuing with any work (01792 634960). 

 
3 Birds may be present in this building and grounds please note it is an offence 

under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to intentionally 
(intentionally or recklessly for Schedule 1 birds) to: 
-  Kill, injure or take any wild bird 
-  Take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that nest in use or being 
built 
-  Take or destroy an egg of any wild bird 
Care should be taken when working on buildings particularly during the bird 
nesting season March-August. 

 
PLANS 
 
Site location plan, block plan, existing layout plan, proposed layout, DRG01 existing 
elevations & floor plan, DRG02 proposed elevations, received 26th November 2014. 
 

 

Page 151



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

  WARD: Kingsbridge 
 

 

Location: Land south of Beauchamp Walk (off Loughor Road) Gorseinon 
Swansea 

Proposal: Construction of 25 residential dwellings and associated works 
including underground pumping station and surface water attenuation 
pond. 

Applicant: Persimmon Homes West Wales 

 
 

1
6
5

5

193 3

8

1

72

25

1
0

1
7
5

25

1
1

MARLBOROUGH ROAD

42

1 4

14

6

T
rack

28

4

1
4
0

12

1
4
4

8
0

39

16

1

2
3

99

2

22

14

3
0

1

C
L
O
S
E

Playground

95

2

18

1
5
4

81

12.6m

12

67

119

LLYS Y BRENIN 35

El Sub Sta

84

5

Ysgol Gynradd

M
A

E
S

 D
A

F
Y

D
D

53

32

Gymraeg Pontybrenin

51

CRUD-YR-AWEL

115

MAES-Y-COED

112

1
4
8

19

68

1

11

HEOL  BRYNGL AS

41

24

1
4
6

LOUGHOR ROAD

30.6m

1
1

1

2

104

1
2

22.6m

23

13
3

S
A
N
D
R
IN
G
H
A
M

110

94

17.2m

52

1
4
2

1
6
7

62

Gorseinon

N
e
w

 C
ro

ft

32

52a

6

7

1
9

2
1

2
3

3
1

3
3

4
1

32

34

38

44

5
0

1

5

11
13

15

16

25

28

29

B
E

A
U

C
H

A
M

P  
W

A
L
K

B
E
A
U

C
H

A
M

P
  W

A
L
K

B
E

A
U

C
H

A
M

P
  
W

A
L
K

 
NOT TO SCALE 

© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 
Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

 

Page 152



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy AS1 Accessibility - Criteria for assessing location of new development. (City 
& County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy AS2 Accessibility - Criteria for assessing design and layout of new 
development. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) 

 

Policy AS6 Provision of car parking in accordance with adopted standards. (City & 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV2 The siting of new development shall give preference to the use of 
previously developed land and have regard to the physical character 
and topography of the site and its surroundings. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV3 Proposals for new development and alterations to and change of use of 
existing buildings will be required to meet defined standards of access. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV30 Protection and improved management of woodlands, trees and 
hedgerows which are important for their visual amenity, historic 
environment, natural heritage, and/or recreation value will be 
encouraged. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) 

 

Policy EV33 Planning permission will normally only be granted where development 
can be served by the public mains sewer or, where this system is 
inadequate, satisfactory improvements can be provided prior to the 
development becoming operational. (City & County of Swansea Unitary 
Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV34 Development proposals that may impact upon the water environment 
will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that they would not 
pose a significant risk to the quality and or quantity of controlled waters. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Page 153



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 

Policy EV35 Development that would have an adverse impact on the water 
environment due to: 
i) Additional surface water run off leading to a significant risk of 
flooding on site or an increase in flood risk elsewhere; and/or,  
ii) A reduction in the quality of surface water run-off. 
Will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that appropriate 
alleviating measures can be implemented. (City & County of Swansea 
Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy HC1 Allocation of housing sites for 10 or more dwellings. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy HC3 Provision of affordable housing in areas where a demonstrable lack of 
affordable housing exists.  (City & County of Swansea Unitary 
Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy HC17 The Council will negotiate with developers to secure improvements to 
infrastructure, services, and community facilities; and to mitigate against 
deleterious effects of the development and to secure other social 
economic or environmental investment to meet identified needs, via 
Section 106 of the Act. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development 
Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2012/0044 Residential development comprising 86 dwellings, access off Loughor 
Road and associated works 

Decision:  Perm Subj to S106 Agree 

Decision Date:  17/05/2013 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
Twenty five neighbouring properties were directly consulted and four site notices were 
placed close to the site. The application was also advertised in the press. 
 
FOUR LETTERS OF OBJECTION have been received. The concerns raised are as 
follows: 
 

• The development will bring further disruption on a regular and permanent basis to 
the residents of Loughor Road 

• Further traffic pollution in the area 

• By increasing the housing in this locality, it will have a detrimental bearing on local 
schools and medical facilities. 

• The pumping station will not enhance the already over capacity of the present 
sewerage farm on Victoria Road. 

• The traffic is already horrendous – the school traffic and buses going back and fore 
to the collage, plus vehicles using Loughor Road. 

Page 154



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 

• Persimmon narrowly received approval for 86 homes in March 2013 for 
Kingsbridge Fields. Now they want another 25 for which no mention was made in 
the previous application.  

• No account is taken of the wider picture – sites are approved here and there and 
the area becomes swamped with new developments. Please consider the knock on 
effect if this application can any other large scale developments on the whole of the 
area. 

• The area is becoming overpopulated. 
 
Loughor Town Council - No Objection 
 
Natural Resources Wales (NRW) 
 
Natural Resources Wales has no objection in principle to the proposed development, but 
would like to make the following comments. 
 
Foul Drainage Proposals 
Report received: ‘Flood Consequence Assessment’, produced by QuadConsult Limited, 
dated April 2014 and plan received: ‘Kingsbridge Fields – Phase 2, Preliminary Site Levels 
and Drainage Strategy Layout for Planning’, produced by Persimmon dated May 2014. 
 
As your Authority is aware, the proposed site is located in an area where there are known 
foul and surface water sewerage problems. The sewerage network is hydraulically 
overloaded, which is resulting in additional pollution and nutrient loading spilling to the 
Burry Inlet (Carmarthen Bay and Estuaries) Special Area of Conservation (SAC) during 
wet weather/storm events. Despite these concerns, the preferred and most sustainable 
method of foul drainage remains disposal to the main public sewer. We are pleased to 
note that mains drainage is proposed for this application. We would recommend that you 
consult with Dwr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW) to ensure they are satisfied that capacity 
exists to accommodate the flows generated without causing pollution. It should be noted 
that we would object to any proposals for a private treatment system at this location. We 
understand that the sewerage network in this area is only able to accommodate additional 
foul flows if surface water is removed from within the drainage catchment. In order to free 
up additional hydraulic capacity, we would encourage the developer to work with DCWW 
to identify a scheme to remove surface water from the sewerage network. Any 
agreements/ commitments undertaken should be recorded on your Authority’s Hydraulic 
Register. In addition to capacity and hydraulic overload issues, the Burry Inlet is 
understood to be sensitive to nutrient enrichment, notably to Phosphorus – a constituent 
of sewage-related discharges. Consequently, in addition to the Habitats Regulations 
considerations in respect of Phosphorus, the UK has an obligation under the Water 
Framework Directive to protect sensitive water bodies from deterioration. We would 
therefore recommend that a corresponding amount of Phosphorus is removed at the 
Llannant WWTW to that expected to be produced by this development at the time of 
completion. This would help prevent further deterioration in levels of Phosphorus in the 
Burry Inlet. 
 
Foul Drainage Pumping Station 
We note that the developer intends to utilise a Pumping Station as part of the foul 
drainage disposal system, and therefore an Environmental Permit may be required from 
NRW. In this respect we would refer the developer to our Customer Contact Centre (Tel. 
03000 653000) to discuss. Page 155



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
Surface Water Drainage Proposals 
With regard to surface water drainage, due to the sewerage capacity issues in this area it 
is imperative that no surface water from this proposal is allowed to enter the existing 
infrastructure. We note that following site investigation field work it is considered unlikely 
that an infiltration type system to dispose of surface water is to be an option. The proposal 
is therefore to attenuate the surface water generated by the new development and 
discharge through a hydro brake to the manmade drainage channel along the northern 
boundary. Surface water will be discharged to the adjacent drainage channel via a hydro 
brake at a rate of 5l/s, as detailed in the accompanying drainage strategy layout drawing, 
PL01, dated April 2014. This is considered suitable for the development site of 0.77ha. We 
note that this pond has been designed to accommodate a 100 year rainfall event with a 
30% allowance for climate change included which is acceptable. The attenuation pond is 
located offsite; therefore we advise that it is ensured that the land is within the applicant’s 
ownership or that an agreement has been reached with the landowner. In addition, we 
advise your authority to agree on the proposed maintenance of the offsite attenuation and 
surface water features to ensure that their capacity is maintained in the future. 
 
Ecology 
We welcome that the majority of the trees on site are to be retained and note that the 
submitted survey report ‘Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey – Land at Loughor Road, 
Gorseinon’, dated March 2014, produced by Hawkeswood Ecology identified 3 trees with 
the potential to support roosting bats. We welcome that these will also be retained. We 
note that some trees and parts of the hedgerow will be removed as part of the 
development as outlined in the submitted ‘Planting Plan – Loughor Road Extension’, dated 
May 2014. We also note the proposal for supplementary planting on site and advise the 
use of native plants, local to the area for these measures. Where possible, we encourage 
the translocation of the removed trees and hedgerows on site to be used in other areas of 
the site. We welcome the recommendations made in section 8 of the above report and 
advise that these are followed. As vegetation is proposed to be removed, the applicant 
should be aware that all wild nesting birds are protected by The Wildlife & Countryside Act 
1981 (as amended). If any vegetation clearance is required for works to commence, we 
advise this should be avoided during the bird breeding season (March to August 
inclusive). Should any vegetation clearance be required to be carried out during this time, 
we advise that the areas to be cleared are checked thoroughly for any evidence of 
breeding birds prior to any clearance. Should any evidence be found, no works should 
continue and NRW contacted for advice. 
 
Dwr Cymru / Welsh Water (DCWW) 
We would request that if you are minded to grant Planning Consent for the above 
development that the Conditions and Advisory Notes provided below are included within 
the consent to ensure no detriment to existing residents or the environment and to Dwr 
Cymru Welsh Water's assets. 
 
Sewerage Condition  
This proposed development is located in an area which has the potential to discharge into 
national and international designated waters.  The Loughor Estuary forms part of the 
Carmarthen Bay & Estuaries European Marine Site which is the collective name for three 
European 'Natura 2000' designated areas, namely Carmarthen Bay & Estuaries Special 
Area of Conservation, Carmarthen Bay Special Protection Area and Burry Inlet Special 
Protection Area.  

Page 156



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
A key fundamental issue associated with any proposed development(s) located on both 
the Carmarthenshire and Swansea side of the Estuary is the potential impact of any 
revised or additional water discharges, either foul of surface water, will have on the local 
drainage systems and ultimately the designated waters.  Dwr Cymru Welsh Water is 
contributing towards improving the water quality in the Estuary by undertaking key 
infrastructure improvements at its Northumberland Avenue and Llanant Waste Water 
Treatment Works which are designed to improve arrangements for dealing with surface 
water, provide ultra violet treatment and phosphate removal . Equally developers too, can 
also play a significant part in mitigation measures by incorporating sustainable drainage 
facilities within their proposals.  It is essential therefore, that as a pre-requisite of any 
development being considered for approval that such matters are effectively controlled 
through planning conditions.  
 
Therefore, we seek your Authority's co-operation in imposing the following condition to any 
grant of planning. 

 

• No development shall take place until full details of a scheme for the foul and 
surface water sewerage disposal (incorporating sustainable drainage principles) of 
the whole site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority and thereafter implemented in accordance with the approved details.  
Surface water shall not be connected to the foul sewerage system.   
Reason: To ensure the integrity of the public sewerage system [and designated 
waters]is protected through the implementation of sustainable practices. 

 

• Foul water and surface water discharges shall be drained separately from the site.     
Reason:  To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system.  

 

• No surface water shall be allowed to connect, either directly or indirectly, to the 
public sewerage system unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason:  To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to 
protect the health and safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the 
environment.  

 

• Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge, either directly or 
indirectly, into the public sewerage system. 
Reason:  To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and 
pollution of the environment.  

 
Advisory Notes  
If a connection is required to the public sewerage system, the developer is advised to 
contact Dwr Cymru Welsh Water's Developer Services on 0800 917 2652. Some public 
sewers and lateral drains may not be recorded on our maps of public sewers because 
they were originally privately owned and were transferred into public ownership by nature 
of the Water Industry (Schemes for Adoption of Private Sewers) Regulations 2011.  The 
presence of such assets may affect the proposal.  In order to assist us in dealing with the 
proposal we request the applicant contacts our Operations Contact Centre on 0800 085 
3968 to establish the location and status of the sewer. Under the Water Industry Act 1991 
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at all times.  

Page 157



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
The Welsh Government have introduced new legislation that will make it mandatory for all 
developers who wish to communicate with the public sewerage system to obtain an 
adoption agreement for their sewerage with Dwr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW). The 
Welsh Ministers Standards for the construction of sewerage apparatus and an agreement 
under Section 104 of the Water Industry Act (WIA) 1991 will need to be completed in 
advance of any authorisation to communicate with the public sewerage system under 
Section 106 WIA 1991 being granted by DCWW.  
 
Coal Authority 
 
Initial Comments 25 June 2014 
I have reviewed the proposals and confirm that the application site falls within the defined 
Development High Risk Area. The Coal Authority records indicate that within the 
application site and surrounding area there are coal mining features and hazards which 
need to be considered in relation to the determination of this planning application, 
specifically likely historic unrecorded underground coal mining at shallow depth and the 
zone of influence of three recorded mine entries extends into the site. The Coal Authority 
objects to this planning application, as the required Coal Mining Risk Assessment Report, 
or equivalent, has not been submitted as part of the application. 
 
Additional Comments 2nd October 2014 
The application site falls within the defined Development High Risk Area; therefore within 
the application site and surrounding area there are coal mining features and hazards 
which need to be considered in relation to the determination of this planning application, 
specifically likely historic unrecorded underground coal mining at shallow depth and the 
zone of influence of one recorded mine entry extends into the site. The Coal Authority 
previously objected to this planning application in a letter to the LPA dated 25 June 2014.  
The objection was raised on the grounds that a Coal Mining Risk Assessment had not 
been submitted as part of the application. The Coal Authority is therefore pleased to note 
the submitted Phase 2 Site Investigation Report (September 2014, prepared by Integral 
Geotechnique (Wales) Limited). The Report has been informed by appropriate and up-to-
date coal mining information for the proposed development site; including a Coal Mining 
Report, BGS geological mapping and information from a recent site investigation, 
permission of which was obtained from us. Based on this review of existing sources of 
geological and mining information and the intrusive investigations, the Report concludes, 
that whilst the mine entry is remote and has been treated to an appropriate standard, 
confirmed shallow workings beneath the site where competent rock cover is insufficient to 
safeguard the development pose a significant risk to the stability of the development. 
Accordingly, appropriate recommendations are included in Section 11.2 for measures to 
remediate this mining hazard. 
 
The Coal Authority is satisfied that the remedial measures proposed by the applicant 
following intrusive site investigation works set out in the submitted Phase 2 Site 
Investigation Report are appropriate to address the mining legacy issues present on the 
application site. The Coal Authority therefore has no objection to the proposed 
development. The Coal Authority recommends that the LPA impose a planning condition 
should planning permission be granted for the proposed development to ensure that these 
works are undertaken on site prior to commencement of development. 
 

Page 158



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
Highway Observations 
This proposal is for the erection of an additional 25 dwellings on land south of Kingsbridge 
Fields development that was recently granted consent under application number 
2012/0044. The Kingsbridge Fields development did not develop fully the land allocated 
for housing.  
 
Access and Traffic Impact : A transport statement has been submitted in support of the 
application which considers the transportation impact of the development.  Access is to be 
gained from the road serving the previously approved development and is known as 
Beauchamp Walk.  The road is of a sufficient standard to accommodate the additional 
development. In terms of traffic generation, it is estimated that the additional dwellings will 
generate 16 and 17 further traffic movements in the am and pm peaks respectively.  This 
is unlikely to have any significant detrimental impact when added to the main site traffic 
generation.  The impact of the main site traffic was considered previously and the level of 
impact considered acceptable. Access from Loughor Road has already been improved as 
part of the main site development and this additional 25 dwellings will have little impact on 
its operation.  Therefore no additional improvements are considered necessary. 
 
In considering the main site, the current congestion with school traffic was taken into 
consideration and the developer, along with all other significant developments in the area, 
was required to contribute towards local highway safety enhancements.  This included for 
a scheme to reduce the impact of the school traffic on Loughor Road immediately outside 
the site.  As this development will also generate additional traffic movements, albeit 
significantly less than the main site, a similar contribution should be made and to that end 
I would recommend a contribution of £17,425 which is commensurate with the level of 
impact the development traffic will have. 
  
Accessibility Considerations : The accessibility of the main site was considered acceptable 
and therefore as this is part of the larger site the same conclusions must be drawn. 
  
General Safety and Construction Issues :  During the early part of construction of the main 
site, technical issues prevented the expedient completion of the site access and this 
resulted in some delay and congestion issues affecting local residents.  Construction 
traffic was unable to access the main site as intended and so caused disruption on 
Loughor Road.  Now that the site access is in place, there is no reason that a similar issue 
should arise however to further minimise construction traffic impact, a construction traffic 
management plan needs to be conditioned. 
 
Conclusions and Recommendation:  The likely traffic generated by this additional 25 
dwellings has been quantified and considered not to have any significant detrimental 
impact.  Access into this site extension is in place and suitable for the level of traffic likely 
to be generated. I recommend no highway objection subject to the following; 
 
i.  Prior to any works commencing on site, a contribution towards local highway safety 

improvements shall be made by depositing the sum of £17,425 with the Council. 
ii.  Prior to any works commencing on the site, a Construction Traffic Management 

Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The approved traffic management plan shall be implemented and adhered to at all 
times unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 159



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
iii.  No building works shall be commenced until details of the proposed arrangements 

for future management and maintenance of the proposed streets within the 
development have been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. 
[The streets shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved 
management and maintenance details until such time as an agreement has been 
entered into under section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or a private management 
and maintenance company has been established].  

 
Note : The applicant is advised that to discharge this condition that the local planning 
authority requires a copy of a completed agreement between the applicant and the local 
highway authority under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or the constitution and 
details of a Private Management and Maintenance Company confirming funding, 
management and maintenance regimes.  
 
Drainage Observations - No Objection subject to conditions relating to surface water 
drainage. 
 
Pollution Control Observations  -The ground investigation report refers to basic radon 
protection measures to be used, with which I agree. Elevated concentrations of arsenic, 
chromium and lead have been discovered in the made ground which it states shall be 
quarantined prior to being ‘placed under hard standings or buildings’ should this occur the 
developer must ensure that the pathway has been removed. The ground investigation 
report also makes reference to additional Arsenic testing will be carried out.  
 
Unforeseen Contamination  - 
If, during the course of development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site no further development [unless previously agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority] shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and 
obtained written approval from the Local Planning Authority for, a detailed strategy for 
dealing with said contamination. Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is 
not prejudiced. 
 
Provision of Company details  
Prior to the commencement of demolition/construction works on the application site 
(including all access roads) the applicant shall provide the details, with regard to the 
Company Secretary and the registered company address, for the Company ultimately 
responsible for the application site. Reason: To ensure service of documentation upon 
appropriate persons. 
 
Demolition/Construction Site Management Plan  
Prior to the commencement of demolition/construction works on the application site 
(including all access roads) a Construction Pollution Management Plan (CPMP) shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. The CPMP is to include the following: 
 

a) Demolition/Construction programme and timetable 
b) Detailed site plans to include indications of temporary site offices/ compounds, 

materials storage areas, proposed compounds, delivery and parking areas etc 
c) Traffic scheme (access and egress) in respect of all demolition/construction 

related vehicles; 

Page 160



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
d) An assessment of construction traffic generation and management in so far as 

public roads are affected, including provisions to keep all public roads free from 
mud and silt; 

e) Proposed working hours; 
f) Principal Contractor details, which will include a nominated contact for 

complaints; 
g) Details of all on site lighting (including mitigation measures) having regard to 

best practicable means (BPM); 
h) Details of on site dust mitigation measures having regard to BPM; 
i) Details of on site noise mitigation measures having regard to BPM; 
j) Details of waste management arrangements (including any proposed 

crushing/screening operations); and 
k) Notification of whether a Control of Pollution Act 1974 (Section 61) Notice is to 

be served by Principle Contractor on Local Authority. 
 
Note:   items g – j inclusive need to take particular account of the potential for statutory 
nuisance arising from site related activities [see Informatives].Note: If, during the writing of 
the CPM, any specific issue needs to be discussed/clarified the applicant should contact 
the Pollution Control Division,  Housing and Public Protection Service, Rm 401 Guildhall 
SA1 4PE 01792 635600 
 
Reason: to ensure minimal nuisance impact on local residents/ businesses from 
construction activities. 
 
Informatives 
Construction Noise: The following restrictions should be applied to all works of 
demolition/construction carried out on the development site - All works and ancillary 
operations which are audible at the site boundary shall be carried out only between the 
hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours on Mondays to Fridays and between the hours of 08.00 
and 13.00 hours on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays and Public Holidays and Bank 
Holidays. The Local Authority has the power to impose the specified hours by service of 
an enforcement notice. Any breaches of the conditions attached to such a notice will lead 
to formal action magainst the person[s] named on said notice. 
 
Smoke/ Burning of materials :  No burning of any material to be undertaken on site. The 
Local Authority has the power to enforce this requirement by service of an abatement 
notice. Any breaches of the conditions attached to such a notice will lead to formal action 
against the person[s] named on said notice. 
 
Dust Control: During construction work the developer shall operate all best practice to 
minimise dust arisings or dust nuisance from the site. This includes dust and debris from 
vehicles leaving the site. The Local Authority has the power to enforce this requirement by 
service of an abatement notice. Any breaches of the conditions attached to such a notice 
will lead to formal action against the person[s] named on said notice. 
 
Lighting : During construction work the developer shall operate all best practice to 
minimise nuisance to locals residences from on site lighting. Due consideration should be 
taken of the Institute of Lighting [www.ile.org.uk ] recommendations  
 

Page 161



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
Ecology Observations 
The development site has been subject to an ecological survey. The grassland area is 
presently of low ecological value mainly due to the existing management regime. The 
surrounding hedges with trees are of value and should be retained. There are three trees 
growing in the southern hedge that have been identified as having bat roost potential 
(described in target note 5 of the survey) if any work is intended to be carried out on these 
they must be subject to a bat survey prior to any work starting. In order to mitigate against 
loss of habitats on the site please could we add a condition requiring the remaining 
hedges are to be planted up using suitable native species, they are at the moment gappy.  
The surveyor listed a series of recommendations in section 8 of their report please could 
we add a condition requiring these to be followed. 
 
Housing Enabling Observations 
The land south of Beauchamp Walk (off Loughor Road) Gorseinon falls within the Greater 
North West Swansea area.  The Local Housing Market Assessment indicates a need for 
affordable housing within the area.  The Housing Service would be seeking 30% 
affordable housing units on this site.   We would ask for a range of unit types, 2 & 3 
bedroom houses being the preferred property type, built to DQR standard.  The design 
and specification of these units should be equivalent quality to those used in the open 
market units, to include social rent, intermediate rent and sale such as Low Cost Home 
Ownership (to be determined/negotiated). 
 
Education Observations 
In accordance with the provisions of the SPG, 25 dwellings proposed equates to: 7.7 
places for primary schools and 5.5 places for secondary schools.  The Schools in the 
catchment area for the site are: 
 
Primary : Pontybrennin Primary (English) and YGG Pontybrennin (Welsh).  
Secondary : Penyrheol Comprehensive (English) and Ysgol Gyfun Gwyr (Welsh). 
 
At present there is spare capacity at all the 4 schools (2 Welsh & 2 English) for 2012 and 
2013.With regard to future capacity (2021) both of the English schools have capacity as 
shown in the following table:  
 

School    January 
2014 

January 
2021 

Pontybrenin Primary 30 70 

    

Penyheol Secondary 47 114 

As such it is not necessary to ask for contributions for the English schools. With regard to 
the years 2014-2021 the table below shows the projected surplus capacity in both the 
Welsh medium schools.(based on the 2014 updated figures) 
 

School    January 
2014 

January 
2021 

YGG Pontybrenin  55 -40 

   

YG Y Gwyr 182 -197 

 

Page 162



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
The projected capacities above suggests that there will be a deficiency in Welsh school 
places. It is calculated that approx 14% of total school places are Welsh places. Applying 
this 14% figure to the school places required by this development equates to 1.0 place for 
primary (14% of 7.7 places) and 0.7 place for secondary (14% of 5.5 places). The S106 
contribution for the welsh school places therefore would equate to:  £10,372 for primary 
(£10,372 x 1.0) and £11,093 for secondary (£15,848 x 0.7) : Total £21,465. 
 
Arboricultural Observations 
The site for proposed development is an agricultural site consisting of a small field 
bordered on the north by an outgrown hedgerow which is protected under Area Order 
TPO 562:A001.  The site is bordered on the south and east by small woods and on the 
west by an outgrown hedgerow and public footpath. (Measurements given have been 
taken from the barbed wire field boundary and not the board fence). 
 

• It is important that the trees are looked at not only individually but in the context of 
their groupings as woods or hedgerows and their contribution visually and 
ecologically to the surrounding landscape. 

• I have classified the majority of the trees bordering this site as Class B2 according 
to BS5837:2012 [trees present in numbers, usually growing as groups or 
woodlands, such that they attract a higher collective rating than they might as 
individuals] and the remainder of the trees as A2, C2 or U category.  Many of the 
trees have damage from fence wire and animal grazing  which is to be expected 
and the amount of deadwood present is to be expected from trees which have been 
unmanaged.   

• Trees along north boundary (TPO 562).  The proposed extent of cutting back is too 
excessive.  T27 has a crown spread of 10m to the south – to reduce this to 4m is 
too much (see attached photo).   

• There is scope for limited reductions or crownlifts on these trees and trees that 
have collapsed into the field can be removed. 

• The trees here are already under pressure from the buildings on the north side of 
the fence. 

• It has been noted that a large root has been severed on T26 to place the board 
fence in situ and that the site office is directly under the canopies of T26 and T27 
damaging a branch on T26. 

• I would like to avoid the trees becoming placed in a ‘no-mans land’ between two 
high fences.  This strip of trees should form the garden boundaries or there should 
be a low fence on the south side to allow for maintenance. 

• There are access paths marked to the rear of properties 21, 2 and 3.  These paths 
are within 0.5m of the field boundary and if the paths are constructed they will 
encroach into the bases of the trees along this line.  These paths will need to be 
moved. 

• East boundary – the trees along here form part of a small woodland which is on the 
tithe map dated 1839 and successive Ordnance Survey maps.  T22 and T21 are 
mature trees in fair condition and should be preserved as part of the woodland.   

• The development is encroaching into the woodland edge by at least 5m losing all of 
the trees along the woodland edge and also the strip of hedge running from the 
woodland to the hedge and copse at the southern end of the site.   

• The pumping station is proposed to be placed in the south-west corner of the 
woodland which would mean losing a number of trees here. 

Page 163



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
Southern boundary – these trees border a small copse and have mainly been 
classified as B2 in terms of their contribution to the landscape as a group. 
 
Western boundary – these trees have mainly been classed as B2 trees.  It is important 
to retain the hedgerows as opposed to singling out individual trees.  This means 
encouraging regrowth of hedgerow species such as hazel, hawthorn and holly. 

 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is reported to Committee for decision at the request of  Councillor Will 
Evans to assess the impact of the development on local residents. 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the construction of 25 residential units and 
associated works, including underground pumping station and surface water attenuation 
pond. 
 
Site and Surroundings 
 
The site comprises an area of greenfield grazing land measuring approximately 0.73ha 
which is set behind the recently constructed houses within Beauchamp Walk which is 
accessed from the new roundabout on Loughor Road. The site is bound to the north by 
the new dwellings, to the south and east by open fields and to the west by a public 
footpath (Llwchwr 37) and dwellings in Maes Dafydd. The fields to the east are within the 
‘Green Wedge’  
 
The site slopes gently from west to east and comprises one large field bounded by mature 
hedging. The trees within the northern hedgerow are protected by a group Tree 
Preservation Order (TPO 562). 
 
The site is allocated within the wider housing allocation HC1 (103). The first phase of this 
development was granted permission for 86 houses under planning permission 2012/0044 
on 17/05/2013.  
 
The Proposal  
 
The application consists of 25 residential units with the following dwelling mix: 

• 4no. three bedroom (2 storey) detached houses 

• 3no. four bedroom houses (2.5 storey) detached houses 

• 10no. three bedroom houses (2.5 storey) semi-detached & terraced houses 

• 6no. three bedroom houses (2 storey) semi-detached & terraced houses 

• 2no. two bedroom (2 storey) semi-detached houses 
 
Four dwellings are proposed to be ‘affordable housing’ which equates to 16% provision 
across the site. It will comprise of 4 low cost ownership houses (2no. three bedroom 
houses and 2no. two bed houses). The percentage of affordable housing in the original 
consented scheme was 17%. 
 
Car parking is provided in the form of private drives and small parking courts.  
 

Page 164



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
The new access will lead off and existing spur in Beauchamp Drive which in turn is 
accessed from the new mini roundabout is proposed on Loughor Road. The access and 
estate road will be private roads and will not be offered for adoption. The applicant has 
stated that the new roads will be maintained by a private management company. 
 
A public footpath is proposed linking the application site to the existing public right of way 
(Llwchwr 37). 
 
A surface water attenuation pond and a pumping station would be located to the east of 
the development site within the ‘green wedge’ area. The future maintenance of the ponds 
is also proposed to be managed by a private management company. 
 
A number of TPO trees within the TPO hedgerow on the northern boundary are proposed 
pruned as part of the application and part of the existing hedgerow adjacent to 
Beauchamp Walk would need to be removed to accommodate the new access road. The 
hedgerows and trees forming the western and southern boundary would be retained. 
 
An Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) was not required. 
 
Main Issues 
 
The main issues for consideration with regard to this application relate to the acceptability 
of residential development at this greenfield site in terms of the impacts of the 
development on the character and appearance of the area, residential amenity impacts on 
neighbouring occupiers, impact of the development on access, parking, highway safety 
and impacts upon environmental interests having regard to the provisions of the polices of 
the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008 (UDP) listed within the 
previous pages. The SPG – Places to Live : Residential Design Guide is also relevant to 
this proposal. There are in this instance no additional overriding issues for consideration 
under the provisions of the Human Rights Act. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
The site forms part of an allocated housing site within the current UDP under Policy HC1 
(Housing Sites) (103) ‘Land South of Loughor Road’ where the potential for 110 homes is 
indicated.  This site represents approximately 0.73ha of the wider allocation – 86 homes 
have already been constructed as part of phase 1 (2012/0044). 
 
The site allocated within the Greater North West Swansea housing policy zone. The 
amplification to the policy confirms that it is not necessary to phase the release of 
greenfield land given the relatively low levels of release proposed. These greenfield sites 
(including this site) are all within this housing policy zone where there would otherwise be 
a housing land shortage due to the lack of available alternative sites within existing 
settlements. Having regard to Policy HC1, the principle of residential development on this 
greenfield site is acceptable in accordance with the UDP housing strategy.  
 
It is noted however that the scheme does not include the whole of the housing allocation 
site HC1 (103) as it excludes the land to the south. However it is noted that within the 
proposed layout, provision is made for future access to this land. 
 

Page 165



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
Visual Amenity and Urban Design 
 
The character of the built form in the area is mixed and there is no specific architectural 
style or development pattern that the proposal would need to adhere to. The site sits 
immediately adjacent to the new Persimmon Homes site which has recently been 
constructed. Policy EV1 requires developments to be appropriate to their local context in 
terms of scale, height, massing, elevational treatment, materials, detailing, layout, form, 
mix and density. 
 
The layout and design of the development was subject to pre-application discussions and 
further amendments have been made during the course of the planning application to 
improve the overall layout and address officer concerns in respect of the design of the 
parking areas, the design of corner plots, impacts upon the retained trees, and front and 
rear boundary treatments. 
 
The scheme comprises of a short access road running from the north east to south west 
which terminates at a dead end for possible future access to the south to the remainder of 
the housing allocation area. Running orthogonally off either side of this road in a 
staggered manner is a short cul-de-sac to the west, which provides for a pedestrian link 
through to an existing north-south footpath running down the western side of the site, and 
a short section of road to the east which also terminates at a dead end. Also coming off 
the eastern side of the main access road is access to a rear parking court area. All 
dwellings front onto one of these roads or the parking court area. A mixture of parking 
arrangements are proposed including rows of frontage parking, side drives, and a small 
rear parking court area. All dwellings have rear gardens except for the 2 dwellings at the 
site entrance (plots 1 & 25) which have side gardens. It is proposed to retain much of the 
existing hedgerow vegetation around the northern, southern and western site boundaries.  
 
Focal buildings have been used to terminate important vistas within the site and 
amendments have been made to two of the corner plots to provide windows in their side 
elevations to improve the relationship of these buildings to the street. 
 
The development would consist of twelve, two storey dwellings and thirteen, two storey 
with loft room dwellings (2.5 storey) in a mix of detached, semi-detached and terraced 
houses facing the street. It is considered that the houses would have a positive 
relationship with the public realm and would create an attractive traditional streetscene 
that maximises natural surveillance; and that layout and design would provide a good mix 
of houses within the development with a traditional appearance in respect of their detailing 
and roof forms. The materials consist of a mix of brick, render, reconstituted stone and 
smooth grey roof tiles. Prominent boundaries are proposed to be brick screen walls which 
would provide a quality and robust boundary treatment. 
 
The development of part of this wider allocated site is welcomed. The proposed layout is 
legible and the homes would have a positive relationship to the street. 
 
Notwithstanding the above paragraphs, concern has been raised by the Tree Officer with 
regard to the proximity of plots 19, 20, 21, 22 and 23 and the protected trees along the 
northern boundary. The applicant has shown a line of pruning / crown lifting of these trees 
which is considered to be too severe and would harm the longevity of the trees. As such 
the applicant has agreed to amend the layout to ensure that the above numbered plots are 
positioned so that the works to the trees would be within acceptable parameters.  Page 166



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
In addition, the rear foot paths to plots 3, 4, 20 and the car parking spaces for plot 25 are 
within 0.5m of the field boundary which would encroach on the base of the trees along this 
line. Therefore these paths and car parking spaces will need to be carefully constructed 
and/or amended to prevent them harming the bases and roots of these trees. This and the 
layout amendments can be secured by way of a condition to the permission. 
 
An area of land between the curtilages houses at plots 19, 18, 12 11, 10 and 9 and the 
boundary of the site (western & southern boundary) which contains hedgerows and trees 
is to be managed and maintained by the Management Company which will be secured via 
the S106. 
 
As such it is considered that the proposed design and layout of the estate is acceptable 
and complies with the provisions of Policy EV1 and EV2 of the UDP and the SPG – 
Places to Live: Residential Design Guide. 
 
Residential Amenity 
 
With regard to the amenity of existing residents in Beauchamp Walk which back on to the 
application site, sufficient separation distances would be maintained to ensure that 
existing privacy levels would not be compromised by the proposed development. Each of 
the dwellings which would abut the northern boundary would have a garden length of 10m 
to ensure that privacy levels are not detrimentally impacted upon. In terms of 
overbearance and overshadowing, sufficient distance would be maintained to ensure that 
none of the properties within Beauchamp Walk would be adversely affected by the new 
development. As such the application is considered to be acceptable in this regard. 
 
The existing houses to the west within Maes Daffydd are located approximately 21m from 
the site and are separated by the existing public footpath and as such would not be 
adversely affected by this development. 
 
In terms of the residential amenities of the future occupiers of the development, the site 
layout has been amended to ensure a minimum separation distance of 21m from rear to 
rear elevations of all the dwellings. In addition the vast majority of the proposed plots 
would have rear gardens of a length of 10m. On this basis, it is considered that the 
proposed layout would not give rise to any harmful impacts on the residential amenities of 
the future occupiers. 
 
Having regard to the above, it is considered that the proposed development would not 
result in any significant impacts on the amenities of existing residents in Beauchamp Walk 
or Maes Dafydd and would not raise adverse impacts in respect of the residential 
amenities of the proposed development. The proposal would therefore be in accordance 
with Policy EV1 of the UDP. 
 
Highway Impacts 
 
The Head of Transport and Engineering considers that the likely traffic generated by this 
additional 25 dwellings has been quantified and considered not to have any significant 
detrimental impact, as detailed in the Highway Observations section of this report. The 
applicant has agreed to pay £17,425 towards local highway safety improvements.  

Page 167



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
Access into this site extension is in place and is considered to be suitable for the level of 
traffic likely to be generated by this development. As such, no highway objections have 
been raised subject to conditions. 
 
Affordable Housing 
 
UDP Policy HC3 (Affordable Housing) highlights that where a demonstrable lack of 
affordable housing exists, the Council will seek to negotiate the inclusion of an appropriate 
element of affordable housing on suitable sites. The evidence base for this need is the 
Local Housing Market Assessment which assessed the dynamics of the housing market in 
around Swansea and underpins the Council’s Housing Strategy. The affordable housing 
provisions has been subject to negotiations which has resulted in a total of 4 affordable 
housing units (2no. three bedroom houses and 2no. two bed houses) being agreed, 
comprising of low cost home ownership units, which equates to 16% provision across the 
site which is considered to be an appropriate level in this instance. The percentage of 
affordable housing in the original consented scheme was 17%. These units have been 
identified on the submitted plans and have been sited throughout the site. The provision of 
the agreed level of affordable housing can be secured by a S106 planning obligation. 
 
Education 
 
The Director of Education has requested a financial contribution for local the following 
schools within the catchment of the application site:  
Primary : Pontybrennin Primary (English) and YGG Pontybrennin (Welsh).  
Secondary : Penyrheol Comprehensive (English) and Ysgol Gyfun Gwyr (Welsh) 
 
At present there is spare capacity at all the 4 schools (2 Welsh & 2 English) for 2012 and 
2013. With regard to future capacity (2021) both of the English schools have capacity. As 
such it is not considered reasonable  to  require contributions for the English schools. The 
projected capacities suggest that there will be a deficiency in Welsh school places. The 
S106 contribution for the Welsh school places therefore would equate to:  £10,372 for 
primary (£10,372 x 1.0) and £11,093 for secondary (£15,848 x 0.7) : Total £21,465. 
 
Ecological Issues 
 
The development site has been subject to an ecological survey. The grassland area is 
presently of low ecological value mainly due to the existing management regime. The 
surrounding hedges with trees are of value and should be retained. The Council’s 
Ecologist has noted that there are three trees growing in the southern hedge that have 
been identified as having bat roost potential (described in target note 5 of the survey) and 
has asked that if any work is intended to be carried out on these they must be subject to a 
bat survey prior to any work starting – these trees are shown to be retained. No objections 
are raised, therefore, subject to conditions. 
 
Trees 
 
The site contains a number of trees – the trees within the northern boundary are subject to 
Tree Preservation Orders (TPO). A Tree Survey report, and a planting plan which includes 
works to the TPO trees was submitted which provides details regarding the quality, 
condition and constraints of the trees and hedgerows on this site.  

Page 168



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
The Council’s Tree Officer considers that the details submitted provide adequate space for 
many of the retained trees and hedgerows on this site. Some trees and hedgerows as 
identified have been highlighted to be removed and some branch pruning work will be 
required to many of the boundary trees/hedgerows on this site. It is considered that the 
proposal is acceptable in arboricultural terms subject to the inclusion of the planning 
conditions and informatives. 
 
Notwithstanding the above paragraphs, concern has been raised by the Tree Officer with 
regard to the proximity of plots 19, 20, 21, 22 and 23 and the protected trees along the 
northern boundary. The applicant has shown a line of pruning / crown lifting of these trees 
which is considered to be too severe and would harm the longevity of the trees. As such 
the applicant has agreed to amend the layout to ensure that the above numbered plots are 
positioned so that the works to the trees would be within acceptable parameters. In 
addition, the rear foot paths to plots 3, 4, 20 and the car parking spaces for plot 25 are 
within 0.5m of the field boundary which would encroach on the base of the trees along this 
line. Therefore these paths and car parking spaces will need to be carefully constructed 
and/or amended to prevent them harming the bases and roots of these trees. This and the 
layout amendments can be secured by way of a condition to the permission. 
 
Coal Mining Issues 
 
The Coal Authority considers that the content and conclusions of the Site Investigation 
Report are sufficient for the purposes of the planning system and meets the requirements 
of Planning Policy Wales in demonstrating that the application site is, or can be made, 
safe and stable for the proposed development. As such, the Coal Authority has no 
objection to the proposed development. 
 
Water Quality Issues 
 
This application is located within the area where ongoing concerns raised by Europe and 
Welsh Government regarding the water quality of the Loughor Estuary which is part of the 
following European protected sites: Carmarthen Bay and Estuaries Special Area of 
Conservation; Carmarthen Bay Special Protection Area; and Carmarthen Bay RAMSAR 
(CBEEMs). The City and County of Swansea as Local Planning Authority has followed the 
precautionary approach advised by its statutory advisor CCW towards all development 
that drains into CBEEMs, and carried out the following Habitat Regulations Assessment 
 
Burry Inlet Habitat Regulations Assessment 
 
Introduction 
The City and County of Swansea, as the competent authority, is required under 
Regulation 61(1) of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (known 
as the ‘Habitat Regulations’) to undertake a Habitat Regulations Assessment of any 
project likely to have an effect on a European Site, or candidate/proposed European Site, 
either alone or in combination with other plans or projects, that is not necessary to the 
management of the site for management of the site for nature conservation.  
 
In this instance, the European sites potentially affected are the Carmarthen Bay and 
Estuaries European Marine Site (CBEEMS), the Carmarthen Bay Special Protection Area 
(SPA) and the Burry Inlet SPA and RAMSAR site.  

Page 169



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
Before deciding to give permission we must therefore first consider whether this 
development is likely to have a significant effect on the CBEEMS either alone or in 
combination with other plans or projects in the same catchment area. 
 
Following an investigation of likely significant effects on the CBEEMS features water 
quality was identified as the only factor that might have an effect this is discussed below. 
 
Water Quality 
With regard to the water quality issues in the Burry inlet and Loughor Estuary, the City and 
County of Swansea has followed the advice of their statutory advisor, and has 
commissioned a preliminary assessment under the above Regulations which is limited to 
the assessment of potential wastewater effects only. 
 
This assessment notes that as part of their review of consents (RoC) under regulation 63 
the Environment Agency (EA) undertook a detailed Habitats Regulations assessment in 
relation to the effects of their consented activities. Consent modifications were identified to 
enable the Environment Agency to conclude no adverse effect on the integrity of the 
CBEEMS in respect of their consents operating at their maximum consented limits. 
 
As the consents in question have already been subject to a full assessment (alone and in-
combination)  under the provisions of the Habitat Regulations, there is no need for the City 
and County of Swansea to undertake a further assessment where development can be 
accommodated within the post RoC discharge consent limits.  
 
It is the opinion of the authority that this development can be accommodated within the 
post RoC discharge consent limits, and will not be likely to have a significant effect either 
alone or in-combination on the Carmarthen Bay and Estuaries SAC, the Carmarthen Bay 
SPA, or the Burry Inlet SPA and RAMSAR.  Such effects can be excluded on the basis of 
the objective information available through the Environment Agency review.  
 
Other Possible Effects on CBEEMS features 
In addition, it is considered that there are no other potential adverse effects from this 
development proposal, either alone or in combination with other plans or projects on the 
above protected European sites.  
 
On this basis there is no requirement to make an appropriate assessment of the 
implications of the proposed development in accordance with regulation 61(1).   
 
The LPA has therefore satisfied its obligations as the ‘competent authority’ under the 
Habitats Directive and associated Habitat Regulations. This is in line with the 
requirements of National Policy Guidance and Policy EV25 of the Unitary Development 
Plan. 
 
Hydraulic Capacity Issues in Gowerton WwTW Drainage Network 
Whilst the LPA is satisfied that it has addresses the issues relating to the Habitat 
Regulations on this site, there are still outstanding issues in the Gowerton Waste Water 
Treatment Works (WwTW) catchment area.  
 
In 2011 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water adopted the findings of a study commissioned to 
investigate the problems and solutions relating to foul drainage in this drainage catchment 
area.  Page 170



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
The have also prepared a plan of improvements works for Gowerton WwTW catchment 
area to start in 2020 (AMP7). In the meantime they are prepared to bring forward schemes 
if developers finance them. 
 
In addition, the Council has kept a register of savings made on brownfield sites and some 
of these have been completed. The register is required by the Memorandum of 
Understanding 2011 agreed and signed by the City & County of Swansea, together with 
its partners Carmarthenshire County Council, Dwr Cymru Welsh Water, and Natural 
Resources Wales. 
 
Foul Drainage 
 
This development will separate surface water and land drainage from foul water, so the 
only drainage impact on the existing sewerage drainage system to Gowerton WwTW 
would be the foul connections. It is estimated that the maximum foul flow from this site can 
easily be accommodated by potential surface water removal schemes or compensatory 
water savings already made from other brownfield developments in the area.   
 
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has not objected to this scheme. Whilst Natural Resources 
Wales raised concerns last autumn regarding the impact of new residential development 
on the water quality of the estuary, there is no conclusive evidence that supports this view, 
and the Agency has since agreed to the Council’s adopted Habitats Regulation 
Assessment. The HRA conclusions are based on objective information available through 
the 2010 Environment Agency’s own Review of Consents of Gowerton WwTW. 
 
The current application if approved will be subject to planning conditions controlling 
drainage, including the use of SUDs, on this basis, there is no known evidence to justify 
refusal on drainage grounds.  Subject to further control by conditions, it is considered that 
the drainage arrangements for this scheme are acceptable and can meet the overarching 
aims of sustainable development in this area, and satisfy the provisions of Policies EV33, 
EV34, and EV35 of the UDP. 
 
Land and Surface Water Drainage 
 
The arrangements for surface water drainage have been submitted and have been 
considered by the Council’s Drainage Officer and NRW. Surface water from the roofs, 
hard surfaces and roads will be discharged via an attenuation pond at greenfield rates. 
 
The details provided are considered to be satisfactory in principle, but it is considered 
necessary to secure further details of the drainage arrangements via conditions, prior to 
the commencement of development on site, to ensure there is no potential future harm to 
the water environment of the estuary or the amenities of existing and future residents. On 
the basis of the information submitted to date, it is considered that there are no overriding 
reasons to warrant a refusal of permission on drainage grounds alone. 
 
Subject to further control by conditions, it is considered that the drainage arrangements for 
this scheme are acceptable and are in accordance with the provisions of Policies EV33, 
EV34 and EV35 of the UDP. 
 

Page 171



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
Section 106 Contributions 
 
Education : The S106 contribution for the welsh school places therefore would equate to:  
£10,372 for primary (£10,372 x 1.0) and £11,093 for secondary (£15,848 x 0.7) : Total 
£21,465. 
 
Affordable Housing : Four units (16%) low cost home ownership houses (2 x 3 bed and 2 
x 2bed)  
 
Highways : a contribution of £17,425 towards local highway safety improvements  
 
Management plans for future maintenance and management of the:  

o attenuation pond & pumping station,  
o the footpath between the site and the existing public right of way (LLwchwr 

37), 
o the land between the curtilages of houses at plots 19, 18, 12 11, 10 and 9 

and the boundary of the site (western & southern boundary)  
 
Management and monitoring fee for the S106 – this will be based on either 20% of the 
planning application fee (£1,650) or 2% of the value of the obligations of the S106 
agreement (which ever is the greater and subject to a minimum charge of £150). 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 
The concerns raised by third parties are summarised above and have been addressed 
within the above appraisal. This includes reference to UDP policy considerations, the 
current status of this greenfield site, its acceptability for development and impacts upon 
schools and local services The highway access and public safety concerns relating to 
traffic (including during the course of construction) are considered in the Highways section 
above. The design and layout considerations have been carefully assessed and 
amendments have been made to ensure that the design and layout would be acceptable. 
The impact on trees, local wildlife and ecology has been properly assessed by NRW, the 
Council’s Ecologist and the Council’s Arboricultural Officer and subject to conditions is 
considered to be satisfactory in this respect. 
 
Concerns have been raised with regard to air quality from car fumes – the site is not 
located in a specified area of concern with regard to air quality and the Pollution Control 
Team have raised no objections to this development. 
 
The management of the attenuation pond & pumping station will be secured under the 
Section 106 Planning Obligation Agreement. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Having regard to all material planning considerations, including the provisions of the 
Human Rights Act, the proposal for residential development of 25 dwellings on a site 
allocated for housing in the UDP is considered to be acceptable in terms of its impacts on 
the character and appearance of the area, impacts on residential amenity and impacts on 
access, parking and highway safety. The layout and design of the development will create 
a distinctive development that has had regard to the hedgerows bounding the site and, 
and will provide connections to the wider sections of the allocated housing site. Page 172



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
The drainage proposals have been considered in the above report including the foul 
connections and the hydraulic capacity issues, as well as the land / surface water 
drainage issues. It is considered that the requirements of DCWW and NRW for 
compensatory surface water savings in the Gowerton WwTW catchment area can be 
accommodated for by potential surface water removal scheme or the Council’s Register of 
savings made from brownfield sites within the Gowerton WwTW catchment area. 
 
As such the application is considered to comply with the provisions of policies AS1, AS2, 
AS6, EV1, EV2, EV3, EV30, EV33, EV34, EV35, HC1, HC3, HC17 of the City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008 and the SPG – Places to Live: Residential 
Design Guide. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions and the 
applicant entering into a S106 Planning Obligation to provide:  
 

• 4 units of affordable housing on the site;  

• an education contribution of £21,465,  

• a highways contribution of £17,425   

• management plans for future maintenance and management of the:  
o attenuation pond & pumping station,  
o the footpath between the site and the existing public right of way 

(Llwchwr 37), 
o the land between the curtilages of houses at plots 19, 18, 12 11, 10 and 

9 and the boundary of the site (western & southern boundary)  
 

• Management and monitoring fee for the S106 – this will be based on either 
20% of the planning application fee (£1,650) or 2% of the value of the 
obligations of the S106 agreement (which ever is the greater and subject to a 
minimum charge of £150). 

 

1 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than five years from the 
date of this decision. 

 Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990.  

 

2 No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until the surface water removal 
strategy as indicated on drawing C/110 Rev 2 (Engineering Layout) dated 26th 
September 2014 has been implemented in accordance with details to be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall then be completed in accordance with the details thereby 
approved. 

 Reason: To provide satisfactory surface water removal for 6 dwellings to prevent 
hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system and pollution of the 
environment.  

 

Page 173



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 

3 Prior to the commencement of the construction of the 7th dwelling hereby 
approved either, 

a) a surface water removal strategy delivering sufficient compensation for the foul 
flows from the development shall have been implemented in accordance with 
details which have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development, or, 

b) Works to upgrade the sewage infrastructure at Gowerton WwTW have been 
implemented in full and written confirmation of this has been issued by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewage system and 
pollution of the water 

environment.  

 

4 Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, foul water 
and surface water discharges must be drained separately from the site and no 
surface water or land drainage shall be allowed to connect (either directly or 
indirectly) to the public foul sewerage system. 

 Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system and 
pollution of the environment.  

 

5 Surface water from the site shall discharge at no greater than 5 l/s as stated using 
an approved flow control device as per drawing no. C/110 Rev 2 (Engineering 
Layout) dated 26th September 2014. 

 Reason: To reduce surface water loading to the watercourse network and reduce 
surface water flood risk downstream.  

 

6 No development shall commence until the developer has prepared a scheme for 
the comprehensive and integrated drainage of the site showing how foul water, 
surface water and land drainage will be dealt with and this has been approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include details of a 
sustainable drainage system (SuDS) for surface water drainage and/or details of 
any connections to a surface water drainage network. The development shall not 
be brought into beneficial use until the works have been completed in accordance 
with the approved drainage scheme, and this scheme shall be retained and 
maintained as approved unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory comprehensive means of drainage is 
achieved and that no adverse impact occurs to the environment or the existing 
public sewerage system and to minimise surface water runoff 

 

7 Prior to the commencement of any development, a scheme for the ownership and 
maintenance of the surface water system shall be submitted and agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. The works/scheme shall be constructed and 
completed in accordance with the approved plans / specification at such time(s) as 
may be specified in the approved scheme. 

 Reason: To ensure the satisfactory long-term operation of the surface water 
management scheme to prevent the increased risk of flooding to the development 
itself and surrounding third parties.  Page 174



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 

8 The development shall be completed in accordance with the recommendations in 
section 8 (Recommendations) of the approved Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey 
by Hawkswood Ecology dated 31 May 2014 . 

 Reason: In the interests of protecting the ecology of the site and surrounding area.  

 

9 Prior to any works being carried out to the three trees growing in the southern 
hedge that have been identified as having bat roost potential (described in target 
note 5 - para 6.10 of the approved Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey by 
Hawkswood Ecology date 31 May 2014) a full bat survey shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The works shall then be 
carried out in strict accordance with the details thereby approved. 

 Reason: In order to ensure the protection of a European Protected Species.  

 

10 Prior to any works commencing on the site, a Construction Traffic Management 
Plan (CTMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved CTMP shall be implemented and adhered to at all times 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: To ensure minimal nuisance impact on local residents/ businesses from 
construction traffic activities.  

 

11 Prior to the commencement of development on site full details of the proposed 
arrangements for future management and maintenance of the proposed streets 
within the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The streets shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with 
the approved management and maintenance details until such time as an 
agreement has been entered into under section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or a 
private management and maintenance company has been established.  

 Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with satisfactory vehicular 
access in the interests of public safety.  

 

12 Prior to the commencement of works on site (including all access roads) a 
Construction Pollution Management Plan (CPMP) shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the LPA. The CPMP shall to include the following: 

a)  Demolition/Construction programme and timetable 

b)  Detailed site plans to include indications of temporary site offices/ compounds, 
materials storage      areas, proposed compounds, delivery and parking areas etc 

c)  Traffic scheme (access and egress) in respect of all demolition/construction 
related vehicles; 

d)  An assessment of construction traffic generation and management in so far as 
public roads are     affected, including provisions to keep all public roads free from 
mud and silt; 

e) Proposed working hours; 

f)  Principal Contractor details, which will include a nominated contact for 
complaints; 

g) Details of all on site lighting (including mitigation measures) having regard to 
best practicable means (BPM); 

h) Details of on site dust mitigation measures having regard to BPM; 
Page 175



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 

12 i) Details of on site noise mitigation measures having regard to BPM; 

j) Details of waste management arrangements (including any proposed 
crushing/screening operations); and 

k) Notification of whether a Control of Pollution Act 1974 (Section 61) Notice is to 
be served by Principle Contractor on Local Authority. 

Note: items g - j inclusive need to take particular account of the potential for 
statutory nuisance arising from site related activities [see Informatives]. 

Note: If, during the writing of the CPM, any specific issue needs to be 
discussed/clarified the applicant should contact the Pollution Control Division, 
Housing and Public Protection Service, Rm 401 Guildhall SA1 4PE 01792 635600 

 Reason: To ensure minimal nuisance impact on local residents/ businesses from 
construction activities.  

 

13 If, during the course of development, contamination not previously identified is 
found to be present at the site no further development [unless previously agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority] shall be carried out until the developer 
has submitted, and obtained written approval from the Local Planning Authority 
for, a detailed strategy for dealing with said contamination. 

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced 

 

14 Prior to the commencement of development on site full details of the remediation 
works as set out in Section 11.2 of the approved Site Investigation Report by 
Integral Geotechnique dated 26th September 2014 shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remedial works to treat 
any mine entries or other coal mining legacy features, shall undertaken and 
completed prior to the construction of the development and shall be completed in 
accordance with the details thereby approved. 

 Reason: In order to establish the exact situation regarding coal mining legacy 
issues on the site 

 

15 Prior to the commencement of development full details of the pumping station, 
including the means of enclosure and access point, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
completed in accordance with the details thereby approved. 

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory means of drainage.  

 

16 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the proposed 
parking area hereby approved/illustrated on the submitted plan shall be: 

(i) porous or permeable; or  

(ii) constructed to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a porous or 
permeable area or surface within the curtilage of the dwellinghouse; and  

(iii) be permanently maintained so that it continues to comply with the 
requirements of paragraph (i) and (ii). 

 Reason: In the interests of sustainability.  

 

Page 176



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 

17 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that 
Order with or without modification) no fences, gates or walls shall be erected 
within the curtilage of any dwelling house forward of any wall of that dwelling 
house which fronts onto a road. 

 Reason: To ensure that the overall open plan housing layout is not prejudiced by 
uncontrolled development.  

 

18 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995, (or any Order revoking or amending that 
Order), Classes A, B, C, D and E of Schedule 2, Part 1 shall not apply. 

 Reason: The development hereby approved is such that the Council wish to retain 
control over any future development being permitted in order to ensure that a 
satisfactory form of development is achieved at all times.  

 

19 Samples of all external finishes shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in writing before the development is commenced. The scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 

20 No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until street lighting 
has been installed in accordance with a detailed scheme to be agreed with the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: To ensure a convenient and safe form of development.  

 

21 No development shall take place without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority of a scheme for the landscaping of the site.  The landscaping 
scheme shall be carried out within 12 months from the completion of the 
development.  Any trees or shrubs planted in accordance with this condition which 
are removed, die, become seriously diseased within two years of planting shall be 
replaced by trees or shrubs of similar size and species to those originally required 
to be planted. 

 Reason: To ensure that the site is satisfactorily landscaped having regard to its 
location and the nature of the proposed development, and to accord with Section 
197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  

 

22 No development or other operations shall take place except in accordance with 
the guide on "The Protection of Trees on Development Sites" attached to this 
planning permission.  No trees, shrubs, or hedges shall be felled or cut back in 
any way, except where expressly authorised by the landscaping scheme as 
approved by the Local Planning Authority until two years after the completion of 
the development.  Any trees, shrubs or hedges removed without such 
authorisation, or dying, or being seriously damaged or diseased before the end of 
that period shall be replaced by plants of a size and species as may be agreed 
with the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: To secure the protection of trees growing on the site whilst the 
development is being carried out.  Page 177



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 

23 The tree works to which this permission relates must be completed in their entirety 
no later than 2 years from the date of this consent, after which time the consent is 
no longer valid. 

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and safety, and the continued health of 
the tree.  

 

24 The Local Planning Authority shall be notified a minimum of 7 days in advance of 
the date and time when tree the works are to be carried out. 

 Reason: To give the Local Authority the opportunity to inspect the work being 
carried out.  

 

25 The replacement trees must be planted during the first planting season (October-
March) immediately following the felling of the trees authorised by this consent.  
The planting shall be carried out in accordance with the Code of Practice for 
General Landscape Operations BS4428:1989 Section 7. 

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, and to accord with Section 197 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  

 

26 Should any of the replacement trees be removed, die or become severely 
damaged or seriously diseased all within 5 years of planting, it shall be replaced 
by a tree of similar size and species to that originally planted. 

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, and to accord with Section 197 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  

 

27 Prior to any tree works commencing on site, the precise details of the works to be 
undertaken to the tree(s) shall be agreed and clearly identified on site by the Local 
Planning Authority in consultation with the contractor commissioned to undertake 
the works. The works shall then be undertaken in accordance with the details 
thereby agreed. 

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, and to accord with Section 197 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  

 

28 Prior to the commencement of work on site, full details of the proposed footpath 
link in front of plot 19 from the application site to the existing public footpath 
Llwchwr 37 including a cross section showing its gradient, the surface treatment 
and its relationship to all existing trees and their root protection areas shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The path 
shall be completed in accordance with the details thereby approved prior to the 
construction of the last dwelling. 

 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area,  

 

29 A detailed scheme for the eradication of Japanese Knotweed shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and shall be implemented 
prior to the commencement of work on site. 

 Reason: In the interests of the ecology and amenity of the area.  

 

Page 178



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 

30 Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, full details of the 
repositioning of plots 19, 20, 21, 22, 23 and full details of works to the protected 
trees along the northern boundary shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any works on site. The 
development shall then be implemented in accordance with the details thereby 
approved 

 Reason: To ensure that the trees along the northern boundary are adequately 
protected 

 

31 Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, the paths to plots 3, 4 
and 20 and the car parking spaces for plot 25 shall be relocated / redesigned to 
ensure that do not harm the base of the trees and root protection area. Full details 
of which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of work on site. The development shall then 
be implemented in accordance with the details thereby approved. 

 Reason: To ensure that the trees along the northern boundary are adequately 
protected 

 
INFORMATIVES 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: AS1, AS2, AS6, EV1, EV2, EV3, 
EV30, EV33, EV34, EV35, HC1, HC3, HC17  

 
2 Please be aware that under the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 the City 

and County of Swansea is now classified as the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) and as part of this role is responsible for the regulation of works affecting 
ordinary watercourses. Our prior written consent for any works affecting a 
watercourse may be required irrespective of any other permissions given and we 
encourage early engagement with us to avoid any issues. 

 
3 The applicant is advised that to discharge condition 11 that the local planning 

authority requires a copy of a completed agreement between the applicant and the 
local highway authority under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or the 
constitution and details of a Private Management and Maintenance Company 
confirming funding, management and maintenance regimes.  

 
4 The applicant is advised to provide the LPA with details of the Company Secretary 

and the registered company address for the Company ultimately responsible for 
the application site to ensure serving of documentation upon appropriate persons. 

 
5 Construction Noise 

The following restrictions should be applied to all works of demolition/ construction 
carried out on the development site. All works and ancillary operations which are 
audible at the site boundary shall be carried out only between the hours of 08.00 
and 18.00 hours on Mondays to Fridays and between the hours of 08.00 and 
13.00 hours on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays and Public Holidays and 
Bank Holidays. The Local Authority has the power to impose the specified hours 
by service of an enforcement notice. Any breaches of the conditions attached to 
such a notice will lead to formal action against the person[s] named on said notice. Page 179



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
5 Smoke/ Burning of materials 

No burning of any material to be undertaken on site. The Local Authority has the 
power to enforce this requirement by service of an abatement notice. Any 
breaches of the conditions attached to such a notice will lead to formal action 
against the person[s] named on said notice. 
 
Dust Control: 
During construction work the developer shall operate all best practice to minimise 
dust arisings or dust nuisance from the site. This includes dust and debris from 
vehicles leaving the site. The Local Authority has the power to enforce this 
requirement by service of an abatement notice. Any breaches of the conditions 
attached to such a notice will lead to formal action against the person[s] named on 
said notice. 
 
Lighting 
During construction work the developer shall operate all best practice to minimise 
nuisance to locals residences from on site lighting. Due consideration should be 
taken of the Institute of Lighting [www.ile.org.uk ] recommendations 

 
6 The developer is advised to contact Dwr Cymru (Welsh Water) Telephone 

Swansea 772200 Ext. 2562 with regard to adequacy of water supply and position 
of water distribution mains in the area. 

 
7 To protect the integrity of the Public Sewerage System, foul water and surface 

water discharges shall be drained separately from the site. 
 
8 To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the 

health and safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the 
environment, no surface water shall be allowed to connect (either directly or 
indirectly) to the public sewerage system unless otherwise approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

 
9 To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the 

environment, land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge, either 
directly or indirectly, into the public sewerage system. 

 
10 If connection is required to the public sewerage system, the developer is advised 

to contact Dwr Cymru Welsh Water's Developer Services on 0800 917 2652. 
 
11 The developer is advised that the Welsh Government are planning to introduce 

new legislation that will make it mandatory for all developers who wish to connect 
to the public sewerage to obtain an adoption agreement for their sewerage with 
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW) (Mandatory Build Standards). Further 
information on the Mandatory Build Standards can be found on the Developer 
Services Section, DCWW at www.dwrcymru.com or on the Welsh Government’s 
website www.wales.gov.uk.  

 

Page 180



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
12 The developer is advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be 

recorded on Dwr Cymru Welsh Water's (DCWW) maps or public sewers because 
they were originally privately owned and were transferred into public ownership by 
nature of the Water Industry (Schemes for Adoption of Private Sewers) 
Regulations 2011.  The presence of such assets may affect the proposal.  DCWW 
advise that the applicant contacts their Operations Contact Centre on 0800 085 
3968 to establish the location and status of the sewer.  Under the Water Industry 
Act 1991 DCWW has rights of access to its apparatus at all times. 

 
13 Natural Resources Wales (NRW) note that the developer intends to utilise a 

Pumping Station as part of the foul drainage disposal system, and therefore an 
Environmental Permit may be required from NRW. In this respect NRW would 
refer the developer to the NRW Customer Contact Centre (Tel. 03000 653000) to 
discuss 

 
14 It is an offence under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to 

intentionally (intentionally or recklessly for Schedule 1 birds) to: 
-  Kill, injure or take any wild bird 
-  Take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that nest is in use or 
being built 
-  Take or destroy an egg of any wild bird 
You are advised that any clearance of trees, shrubs, scrub (including gorse and 
bramble) or empty buildings should not be undertaken during the bird nesting 
season, 1st March - 31st August and that such action may result in an offence 
being committed. 

 
15 Bats may be present.  All British bat species are protected under Schedule 5 of the 

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and are listed in Schedule 2 of the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.  This legislation 
implements the EC Habitats & Species Directive in the UK making it an offence to 
capture, kill or disturb a European Protected Species or to damage or destroy the 
breeding site or resting place of such an animal.  It is also an offence to recklessly 
/ intentionally to disturb such an animal. 
If evidence of bats is encountered during site clearance e.g. live or dead animals 
or droppings, work should cease immediately and the advice of the Natural 
Resources Wales sought before continuing with any work (01792 634960). 

 
16 The applicant is advised that the development must be carried out in accordance 

with the approved plans.  If, prior to or during the implementation of this 
permission, any particulars are found to be inaccurate then the Local Planning 
Authority must be informed and works shall not commence or be continued until 
the matter has been resolved.  Failure to do so could lead to the serving of an 
enforcement or stop notice. 

 
17 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 

Page 181



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 18 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0773 

 
18 The Council is responsible for the naming and numbering of streets within the 

administrative area.  All new property addresses or changes to existing addresses 
arising from development for which planning consent is sought must be cleared 
through the Council’s Street Naming and Numbering Officer as soon as building 
work commences. Street naming and numbering proposals must be agreed with 
the Council prior to addresses being created or revised.  Please note that there is 
a charge for the provision of some street naming and numbering services. 
 
For further information please visit www.swansea.gov.uk/snn or contact the 
Council’s Street Naming and Numbering Officer, City & County of Swansea, Room 
2.4.2F, Civic Centre, Swansea, SA1 3SN. Tel: 01792 637127; email 
snn@swansea.gov.uk  

 
19 The applicant or his contractor should contact the Council's Tree Officer (Tel. No. 

01792 635724) with regard to the discharging of any of the conditions of this 
consent. 

 
20 The applicant or his contractor should follow the advice given in BS 3998 (2010) 

'Recommendations for Tree Work'. 
 
21 The Developer must contact the Team Leader, Highways Management, City & 

County of Swansea (Highways), Penllergaer Offices, c/o Civic Centre, Swansea, 
SA1 3SN (Tel: 01792 636091) before carrying out any work. 

 
PLANS 
 
BK-WD16 Bickleigh plans, HB-WD-16 Hanbury plans, LY-WD16 Lumley plans, MR-WD16 
Morden plans, dated 31 May 2014.   
LOUGH-15-04-01 Rev D site location plan,  LOUGH-15-04-03 Rev C materials enclosures 
layout, C/110 Rev 2 - Engineering layout; CA-WD16 Rev B - Clayton (village) plans and 
elevations; CCA-WD16 Rev E - Clayton Corner plans and elevations dated 26th 
September 2014 
830.01 Rev E Planting / landscape plan, dated 19 December 2014 
LOUGH-15-04-02 Rev E proposed planning layout dated 5 January 2015, 
 

 

Page 182



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

  WARD: Penyrheol 
 

 

Location: Land at Pencefnarda Uchaf Farm, Pencefnarda Road, Gorseinon, 
Swansea 

Proposal: Installation of ground mounted solar array; capacity up to 3.6 
megawatts; ancillary infrastructure including fencing, security 
cameras, inverter kiosks, construction compound and laydown areas, 
cabling, substation building and screening including hedge and tree 
planting and new bank supporting hedge and tree planting 

Applicant: Pencefnarda Solar Ltd 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV2 The siting of new development shall give preference to the use of 
previously developed land and have regard to the physical character 
and topography of the site and its surroundings. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV21 In the countryside non-residential development will only be permitted 
where it can be demonstrated that it is beneficial for the rural economy, 
or it meets overriding social or economic local needs, or it is appropriate 
development associated with farm diversification, sustainable tourism or 
nature conservation, or it provides an acceptable economic use for 
brown field land or existing buildings, or it is essential for 
communications, other utility services, minerals or renewable energy 
generation. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV22 The countryside throughout the County will be conserved and enhanced 
for the sake of its natural heritage, natural resources, historic and 
cultural environment and agricultural and recreational value through: 
i) The control of development, and  
ii) Practical management and improvement measures. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 
 

 

Policy EV23 Within green wedges development will only be permitted if it maintains 
the openness and character of the green wedge and does not contribute 
to the coalescence of settlements or adversely affect the setting of the 
urban area.  (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 
2008) 

 

Page 183



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 

Policy R11 Proposals for the provision of renewable energy resources, including 
ancillary infrastructure and buildings, will be permitted provided:  
 
(i) The social, economic or environmental benefits of the scheme  
in meeting local, and national energy targets outweigh any  
adverse impacts, 
  
(ii) The scale, form, design, appearance and cumulative impacts  
of proposals can be satisfactorily incorporated into the  
landscape, seascape or built environment and would not  
significantly adversely affect the visual amenity, local  
environment or recreational/tourist use of these areas, 
 
(iii) There would be no significant adverse effect on local amenity,  
highways, aircraft operations or telecommunications, 
  
(iv) There would be no significant adverse effect on natural  
heritage and the historic environment, 
  
(v) The development would preserve or enhance any conservation  
areas and not adversely affect listed buildings or their settings, 
  
(vi) The development is accompanied by adequate information to  
indicate the extent of possible environmental effects and how  
they can be satisfactorily contained and/or mitigated, 
  
(vii) The development includes measures to secure the satisfactory  
removal of structures/related infrastructure and an acceptable  
after use which brings about a net gain where practically  
feasible for biodiversity following cessation of operation of the  
installation.  
 
Proposals for large-scale (over 25MW) onshore wind developments 
shall be directed to within the Strategic Search Area defined on the 
Proposals Map subject to consideration of the above criteria. (City & 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

2002/0253 Construction of agricultural building (Application for the Prior Approval of 
the Local Planning Authority) 

Decision:  Prior Approval be given unconditional 

Decision Date:  18/03/2002 

 

98/1537 ERECTION OF STEEL FRAMED EXTENSION TO EXISTING 
AGRICULTURAL BUILDING 

Decision:  *HGPC - GRANT PERMISSION CONDITIONAL 

Decision Date:  15/02/1999 

 Page 184



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 

2005/2277 Agricultural building (application for the Prior Approval of the Local 
Planning Authority) 

Decision:  Prior Approval be given unconditional 

Decision Date:  24/11/2005 

 

2007/1236 Infill of former quarry to level of adjoining land and associated works 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  11/10/2007 

 

2012/0905 Variation of condition 1 of Planning Permission 2007/1236 dated the 
11th October 2007 to allow tipping operations to continue for an 
extended period of 3 years 

Decision:  Grant Permission Conditional 

Decision Date:  23/07/2013 

 

98/1516 ERECTION OF STEEL FRAMED EXTENSION TO EXISTING 
AGRICULTURAL BUILDING (APPLICATION FOR THE PRIOR 
APPROVAL OF THE LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY) 

Decision:  Withdraw 

Decision Date:  03/11/1998 

 

LV/85/0652/01 BUNGALOW IN CONNECTION WITH FARM 

Decision:  Withdraw 

Decision Date:  01/01/2001 

 

LV/94/0145/03 NEW SLURRY STORE 

Decision:  *HGCC - GRANT CONSENT WITH CONDITIONS 

Decision Date:  02/06/1994 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS 
 
Original proposals 
 
The application was initially publicised by means of a Press Notice, displaying site notices 
within the vicinity of the site and by sending letters to two local properties. 
 
Objections to the application -  
 
49 LETTERS OF OBJECTION have been received, the comments of which are 
highlighted below –  
 
Visual Amenity  
 
The proposal would severely spoil the visual amenity of the area. 
 
Out of character due to the green belt. 
 
Set a precedent for development in green wedge in the future. Page 185



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
The proposal covers a very large area 
 
For those who are directly overlooking the site the aesthetics will be destroyed for a 
significant period of time. 
 
The nature of the proposal is incompatible with the landscape setting and will have a 
significant adverse impact upon the amenities of the area. 
 
Whilst the site does not currently have any environmental protection, it is located within 
the proposed extension of Gower AONB (a designation that has been delayed and will be 
determined by Natural Resources Wales). The site is also adjacent to the Loughor 
Esturary which has protection as an SSSI and SAC. 
 
Local residents feel that the required investment for this  industrial scale development 
comprising of 14,400 solar panels within the overall site footprint of 26,500m2 simply 
cannot be justified as ‘small-scale’ farm diversification based on the size of Pencefnarda 
Uchaf Farm. 
 
Impact on neighbouring properties 
 
The proposed height and angle of the panels will face South into the sun directly into the 
nearby properties in Pencefnarda Road causing significant intrusion and potential 
glare/glint. 
 
Concerns regarding high fences. 
 
Affect on values of neighbouring properties. 
 
The specific field selected cannot be sufficiently screened due to its topography and it is in 
close proximity to houses situated in Pencefnarda Road. 
 
It is trusted that government planning guidance will be followed in that the need for 
renewable energy does not automatically override local environmental protections and the 
concern of local communities. 
 
The visual impact of the solar panels, fencing, lighting and other ancillary equipment will 
have a high adverse impact on the residential amenity of the nearby properties. 
 
Traffic, noise and air pollution during construction. 
 
Impact on the environment  
 
Development would be detrimental to many species in the area. 
 
The existing flora and fauna will be decimated. 
 
Would undermine local ecology. 
 
This field has a natural pond which has supported a variety of different wildfowl, which 
includes mallard, wigeon, teal, pintail, two species of geese and also two species of snipe. 
Bats also roost in the area and are frequently sighted. Page 186



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
The ecologists recorded valuable habitats for aquatic amphibians, including habitats for 
the protected Great Crested Newt. The ecologists also noted, in their May survey, that the 
site had been drained since the earlier survey in February 2014. 
 
The LANDMAP information supporting this application highlights the very close proximity 
of the proposed development to two designated sites being the Carmarthen Bay and 
Estuaries SAC and the Burry Inlet and Loughor Estuary SSSI respectively. 
 
Documents submitted  
 
The supporting information to the application is generic and vague in places with 
significant errors and omissions some of which appear to be deliberately misleading. 
 
It is important to note that none of the photographs included in the planning application 
were taken from nearby properties on Pencefnarda Road and no request was made from 
the applicant to cover this perspective. 
 
The photographs included do not reflect the perspective of several houses in Pencefnarda 
Road which are located higher than the field and would look down on the proposed 
development. There would be a significant adverse impact on the residential amenity and 
individual site visits must be made to the Pencefnarda Road properties concerned before 
any decision is made. 
 
The site is less than 1 km from the Loughor Estuary SSSI and less than 2km from the 
Carmarthen Bay and Estuaries but no exact distances are provided or a full assessment 
on the impact. 
 
Glint and glare assessment requires very close scrutiny as it states ‘no glint and glare is 
expected at residential properties’ but studies have found that there will be some glint and 
glare in some directions at certain times of the day/year so where/when will it occur? 
 
The developer states that the nearest properties are 180m away from the development 
but this needs to be clarified with the identification of ‘nearest location’ used in the 
application as local residents believe the site is actually closer than this. 
 
There would be overwhelming direct views of the site for a time period that is vaguely 
quantified by the developer as ‘short term’. A specific measureable number of 
months/years must be stated. 
 
Decommissioning information is limited and should be scrutinised further under Unitary 
Development Plan Policy R11 (vii). 
 
There appears to be some discrepancy with regards to the Environmental Statement 
failing to identify other similar schemes – 2012/0104 Llys Nini Animal Centre (0.9MW) and 
2014/0739 Gelliwen Isaf (6MW). Note that two further ground-based solar arrays within 
5km are publicly known as ‘under development’ with initial planning discussions 
commenced and formal submission likely – Gwenlais Uchaf, Pontliw (5MW) and 
Bryn/Llangennech (Unknown MW). Several of the above are theatricality visible and 
therefore must be fully considered so the LVIA assessment ‘none and not significant’ is 
incorrect and misleading.  

Page 187



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
No specific details are provided on the grid connection and the Site Layout Plan (Version 
2) does not show the export cable. However, Version 1 which is publicly available 
elsewhere on the internet does highlight the Export Cable exiting the site to the east 
through property Title Number WA 612073. 
 
The specific sub-station connection needs to be confirmed together with all the associated 
necessary planning conditions as the works for the underground cable are external to the 
site and outside of the control of the applicant. The external cable will apparently cross 
external land and the public highway to connect to the required sub-station.  
 
Viewpoints are supported by photographs in a pdf document only and there are significant 
concerns over several of them in terms of their grid references, view distances, extent of 
the proposed development, date taken and digital manipulation respectively. Best practice 
in line with GLVIA would be for additional supporting wide frames and photomontages with 
visualisations of the solar panels in periods of foliage and de-foliage respectively. This 
would more clearly demonstrate the impact of such a large scale development with limited 
screening in close proximity to residential properties and the Loughor Esturary SSSI. 
 
Issues with viewpoints  
 
Viewpoint 1 – Field north of houses on Llannant Road (PCN014A) 
 
Incorrect Viewpoint Number (Llannant Road) Grid Reference (258224 199932) & View 
Direction. 
 
Photograph actually taken north of houses on Pencefnarda Road (estimated grid 
reference approximately E258349 N199889) with an estimated View Direction angled 
towards North West.  
 
Local properties are situated on higher ground than the Viewpoint field and there is a 
significant difference in screening from different view directions. 
 
‘Short term’ is repeated several times without ever being clearly quantified. At the 
Gorseinon Town Council Site Visit on Tuesday 8th July 2014, Ian Mclean of Locogen 
stated that in his opinion it would take a ‘minimum of 8 to 10 years’ to screen Viewpoint 1 
which is a third of the project and even this could be optimistic. An independent 
assessment of the screening needs to be undertaken with supporting photomontage 
visualisations at different time periods. 
 
Viewpoint 2 – Footpath north of Llannant Road (PCN015) 
 
Incorrect Grid Reference as stated 258004 200060 is in the quarry approximately 400m 
away from the highlighted Viewpoint in Drawing PCN015 with position image 
approximately 258065 200455. 
 
However the photograph appears to be taken in a more central position of the highlighted 
field (estimated grid reference approximately 258031 200364). 
 
Incorrect View Direction angle and incorrect Extent of Development as this would continue 
approximately 75m further to the left of the photograph. 

Page 188



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Digital alteration of photograph with pylon (258160 199980) totally erased from 
photograph. 
 
Appearance of trees in landscape compared with Viewpoint 1 suggests stated date 
incorrect. 
 
Viewpoint 3 – Track South of Brynhyfryd (PCN016) 
 
The extent of development indicator needs to be carefully scrutinised. Wireframe, 
photomontage visualisation at 3m and detailed glint and glare assessment needs to be 
comprehensively assessed. 
 
Viewpoint 4 – Loughor Harbour (PCN017) 
 
The Loughor ‘Habour’ Viewpoint (256363 198101) relates to a small car park immediately 
outside Loughor Boating Club that does not provide a clear uninterrupted view of the site. 
 
However, the north west of the site can be viewed directly from the A484 on the western 
side of the Loughor Bridge and this is confirmed in the LANDMAP Visual Sensory. This 
visual impact will further increase during the months of de-foliage. 
 
There would be significant amounts of traffic travelling across the bridge on the A484 for 
visual impact and glint/glare consideration respectively. 
 
Highways 
 
There are highway concerns particularly during the construction phase. The proposed 
traffic congestion would not be accommodated by the local transport system on 
Pencefnarda Road. It is a semi-rural street narrow in places with a single pavement. The 
road is very popular with pedestrians and many children use it to travel to and from the 
school playing fields and the local leisure centre. Adding this to a road that is already a 
busy bus route, this is highly likely to cause a disruption and potentially a fatal accident. 
 
General 
 
The field hasn’t always been in the condition it is now, this has only occurred since the 
applicant has been working on filling in a quarry. The site was previously used for many 
years for cattle grazing and only appears to have deteriorated very recently through 
changes in land management and the drainage system. 
 
It is vitally important that before any decision is made regarding this planning application 
the watercourse is repaired to its former state and all failed diversions are rectified. The 
planning application granted in 2007 to infill the nearby quarry (2007/1236) lapsed in 
2012. An application to extend the tipping operations at the site was submitted in July 
2012 (2012/0905) but has yet to be granted due to the state of the drainage system at 
Pencefnarda Farm. 
 
Firstly, information provided in the supporting environment document regarding the site’s 
drainage system (p81) is incorrect and could be found to be misleading.  There are 5 
‘ordinary’ watercourse outlets at the site, not just the one that is describe within the report. 

Page 189



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
The proposed panels are set in a uniform position across the field, regardless of the 
underground drainage system. If ground screws (1.5m) or piles (1.5m +) are to be used to 
anchor these panels then inevitably damage will be caused to the drainage system. With 
these panels set in place how will repair and maintenance work be carried out to ensure 
we receive this supply of water in its natural state?   
 
There are concerns that if the solar array is mounted on top of the existing drainage 
system, this will further exacerbate problems that they are currently experiencing with the 
water that runs from the applicant’s farm onto the neighbouring farm. 
 
This is the latest of a number of requests to turn the site into an industrial site. Any further 
developments like this would be a step too far. 
 
The applicant has not proven that there is an overriding need for this development 
in relation to the actual proposed location. 
 
This land should be left as agricultural land for the benefit of the wildlife and harmony of 
the local area. 
 
It could be argued that the only valid reason put forward to support the development is 
that the field in question is simply of lower agricultural quality even though it could be used 
for other purposes. There are numerous other alternative potential sites across the local 
area that are of similar lower agricultural quality so that alone does not justify the 
development and it therefore could create an important precedent for Gower. 
 
Surface water management of the 14,400 south facing sloping solar panels is an 
important drainage issue. 
 
The developer has now publicly disclosed for the first time in the local press that glint and 
glare will actually occur to the East and West of the site respectively. Local residents are 
extremely disappointed that this has not been stated before, despite several requests for 
further information and it is still not evaluated in any of the planning documents submitted 
to the City and County of Swansea. There are properties and transport links including 
roads and rail respectively to the west of the site across the estuary and so we would 
encourage further review in light of this new announcement particularly as there is a 
proposed large ground-based solar array on the opposite western side of the estuary. 
 
The drainage system as currently on the ground is not the historical drainage system. 
 
The additional amount of water that will be passed onto the neighbour’s land through the 
amended and reconfigured ditch system will lead to substantial flooding on the 
neighbour’s land, and the associated loss and problems to both his land and business that 
would stem from such flooding. 
 
Article in Evening Post  
 
The following comments were made by one of the objectors within a letter he sent to the 
Evening Post. 
 

Page 190



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
I read with interest your article on page 21 of the South Wales Evening Post (1/07/14) 
‘Solar power scheme under the spotlight’ as I am a local resident who has objected to the 
proposed development at Pencefnarda Uchaf Farm in Penyrheol (Planning Application 
2014/0761). Like several other local residents who read your paper, I was disappointed 
that your article was biased in that it only focused on the positive point of view of the 
developer and failed to represent the position of opponents who object to the scheme 
being situated specifically in the selected site in Penyrheol. It is important to point out that 
the vast majority of local residents who oppose this commercial development of land 
protected by Green Wedge EV23 allocation support the principle of renewable energy. 
The actual issue here is not whether green renewable energy is favourable but simply a 
planning assessment as to whether the potential site chosen in the application is suitable 
to locate ‘one of the biggest solar co-operatives in the UK, and by far the biggest in 
Wales’. The developer also puts forward the argument that it will benefit the community 
although in reality this relates to the fact that local people would be given ‘the opportunity’ 
to invest their private capital in this commercial venture with the aim of achieving a return 
on their investment. The article states ‘The array aims to offer electricity for over 1,050 
houses and potentially the local school’. The objective of any commercial venture is to 
supply customers and the specific inclusion of the word ‘school’ in your article might evoke 
an emotional reaction to mislead readers into assuming that there is a community benefit. 
As the development will be connected to the National Grid, I am sure that it could also 
supply hospitals and other organisations not just locally but across the country so in my 
opinion there was no need to emphasise 'school' in this context. There is no direct 
financial support being offered as far as I am aware in terms of subsidies to local energy 
users and even if there were then this would not override the planning decision as it might 
be deemed to be an attempt to influence the process.  
 
The article also positively highlights the names of several potential major funders that 
might back the scheme and the estimated turnover from the project stating vaguely that 
‘cash will be ploughed into a social impact scheme’ without any further specific details. 
This again promotes the viewpoint of the developer and the likelihood is that funding 
would also be available for a more suitable alternative site in the region but all of this is 
subject to planning being passed. The fact that the commercial venture might appear 
financially viable and could attract large international investors does not justify the 
development on that particular site in Penyrheol. For example, a large theme park in the 
Gower to boost tourism would be financially attractive to investors but that is not a relevant 
point as it would not be acceptable under current planning laws.  
 
In conclusion, I feel that the overall tone of this poorly researched article is biased and 
favourable to the developer as the opposing views have not been represented. The article 
has been published the day before the proposal goes before the Gorseinon Town Council 
Planning Committee and could potentially prejudice opinions. I trust that any further 
‘Community’ reporting by the South Wales Evening Post on this sensitive local matter is 
fairly balanced to both sides to demonstrate professional journalism. 
 
Policy issues  
 
The proposals does not comply with the following Paragraphs set out in Planning Policy 
Wales – 1.1.1,4.6.3, 4.7.8, 4.8.14, 4.8.15, 4.8.16, 4.8.18 and Policies EV1, EV2 and EV23 
of the Unitary Development Plan. 
 

Page 191



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Support letters 
 
The developer has highly publicised the quantity of support letters for this application but 
on closer inspection the actual quality of these is highly questionable in planning terms. 
We fully accept the right of the developer to gain support for their proposal but we feel 
strongly that as a ‘local community developer’ they have a responsibility to give potential 
supporters a balanced appraisal of the facts so that they can make an informed 
judgement. Local residents are concerned that a large number of people who genuinely 
agree with green energy initiatives might have supported this proposal in good faith based 
on the limited and biased information provided by the developer which undermines the 
planning process. 
 
The vast majority of people who have submitted support letters from addresses (where 
provided) all across the UK and even abroad have almost certainly never actually visited 
the site or fully reviewed the supporting planning information. What is certain is that none 
of them have viewed the site from local properties in Pencefnarda Road unlike the local 
Gorseinon Town Councillors who completed a formal site visit with official representatives 
from both Locogen and Gower Power in attendance to formally answer their concerns and 
they subsequently unanimously rejected the application. 
 
Support to the application - 
 
319 LETTERS OF SUPPORT have been received, the comments of which are outlined 
below: 
 
Solar farms are not nearly as intrusive on the visual amenity of the environmental 
streetscene as tall wind turbine generators. 
 
The array in the field does not damage the environment. 
 
Solar power is a clean generator of electricity and is carbon free. 
 
The solar farm will offer little visual impact on the local community as the panels will be 
low level and the trees and hedgerows around the field will also screen much of the area. 
 
As shown on the Evening Post article, the panels will still allow grazing underneath, 
therefore, still allowing the site to be used as agricultural land. Also, the Evening Post 
article states that the array aims to offer electricity for over 1,050 houses and potentially 
the local school. This is clearly a beneficial project for the local area. 
 
These farms are going out of business after generations due to the greed of 
supermarkets. 
 
More green energy is needed to supplement increasing demand and also to secure a 
sustainable supply of electricity for future generations. 
 
More renewable energy schemes are needed to cut the amount of fossil fuels being burnt. 
 
The solar panels have lower visual and environmental impacts than other forms of power 
generation, and may also have dual purpose usage with sheep or other animals grazing 
between rows. Page 192



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
The evening Post article also states that the solar array aims to offer electricity for over 
1,050 houses and potentially the local school. This can only be seen as a positive thing. 
Solar energy doesn't smell, emits no waste, makes no noise and saves a lot of carbon.  
 
This development has the potential to set a new benchmark for community owned 
renewable energy. 
 
The project will be screened by existing and new native planting. This not only screens the 
panels it also boosts the local ecology. 
 
It is understood that Gower Power Community Co-operative will use the money generated 
by the panels to fund an award winning social programme that aims to facilitate the local 
ownership of food, energy and biodiversity. 
 
The intended community ownership of the project is also important as the revenue 
generated will be spent in the local area.  
 
It is important to reduce the country’s dependence on fossil fuels and to develop 
alternative methods of electricity generation. Solar energy is a proven technology and 
Wales should take advantage of the natural resources that it has. It has an opportunity to 
lead the rest of the UK in this respect. 
 
It will offset 46,0000 tonnes of C02 over its lifetime. 
 
Gower Power Community Cooperative's involvement in the project is supported. If 
planning permission is granted there will be the opportunity to create one of the UK's 
biggest community owned solar co-operatives. 
 
The solar farm would be owned and operated by a community group and all profits from 
the scheme would be invested in delivering social benefits. I think this would have a 
positive and beneficial impact on the local area. 
 
The installation of renewable energy production is vital for meeting the increasing UK 
energy demands while decreasing our dependency on fossil fuels. The UK has set a 
target goal of an 80% reduction in greenhouse gas emissions by 2050. This will not be 
met without the support of local Councils supporting the development of renewable energy 
production. 
 
It is vital that we reduce our dependence on fossil fuels for both climate change and 
energy security reasons. The energy policy for Wales is firmly for renewable sources and 
the fact that energy is within the responsibility of the First Minister shows the 
determination to build projects like this one at the very highest level of Welsh Government. 
Swansea Council should support this application and help contribute to targets set by the 
Welsh Government. 
 
It is important to reduce Swansea's dependence on fossil fuels and to develop alternative 
methods of electricity generation. Solar energy is a proven technology and Wales should 
take advantage of the natural resources that it has. 
 

Page 193



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Building on the momentum of the proposed Swansea Bay Tidal Lagoon, it is felt that this 
is a timely and fantastic opportunity for Swansea and its residents to be at the forefront, 
and indeed world leaders in a better way of thinking about renewable energy. The project 
will support local industries, support other community projects (£100K per year), provide 
employment and attract new talent to the workforce of Swansea, all of which I see as 
significant benefits on top of the obvious environmental benefits that such a renewable 
energy project will bring. 
 
According to the City and Council for Swansea website there are around 104,000 homes 
in Swansea, and this community cooperative aims to be able to provide enough power for 
10% of those. 
 
Gower Power Co-operative offers the most exciting vision that I have come across for a 
long time, evidenced by its recent awards from Centrica and the Green Dragon’s Den at 
Hay Festival. It offers Swansea and Gower a real opportunity to develop a pilot for a new 
way of securing local ownership of food, energy and investments whilst promoting local 
biodiversity. 
 
Concerns regarding the visual appearance of the fencing have been addressed by Gower 
Power who assure me that an imaginative and attractive planting scheme will be put in 
place to soften the appearance of the security fence round the perimeter of the site. 
 
Concerns about the maintenance plans are also being addressed by the developers, who 
are expecting the maintenance plan to be agreed as part of the planning conditions. It has 
been suggested that the site should be seeded with seed gathered by local community 
volunteers to create a biodiversity enhancement in the form of pollinator-friendly wild-
flower mix which will require minimal cutting, making the site into a wildlife haven. This 
idea has been welcomed. 
 
The involvement of Gower Power Community Cooperative in this project gives people the 
opportunity to invest in their home area, so the income generated remains local to the 
benefit of Swansea rather than multi-national companies. 
 
I am aware the proposal is in the AONB. Gower could be amongst 12 other AONBs 
across the UK to embrace the need to do something about climate change and energy 
security. 
 
The owner of the field’s responses - 
 
The owner of the field in question has provided rebuttal comments to the concerns raised 
regarding the watercourse and related issues which is covered solely under application 
2012/0905 for the variation of condition 1 of Planning Permission 2007/1236 dated the 
11th October 2007, to allow tipping operations to continue for an extended period of 3 
years. 
 
Fossil fuels such as oil and gas are rapidly running out in this country. We will then be at 
the mercy of the likes of Russia and Norway for gas and the Middle East for oil who will 
then be in a position to demand any price as world supplies are also rapidly decreasing. In 
this country we need to be self-sufficient in terms of food production and energy 
generation to be protected from inflation and guarantee a secure supply. 

Page 194



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Using renewable sources such as solar, wind and tidal will go a long way to achieve this 
while also tackling climate change; unlike fossil fuels. 
 
At Pencefnarda Farm, we are doing all we can to reduce our carbon footprint. We have 
recently installed a biomass boiler which is carbon neutral to replace gas for all our 
heating requirements (it heats the farmhouse/office barn/workshop tool shed and provides 
hot water for the dairy and milking parlour). We also intend to install solar panels on one of 
the farm buildings to provide green electricity for the farm and farmhouse (we will not 
receive electricity from the proposed solar array as this will supply green electricity to the 
local grid). We have also started to recover rainwater from the roofs of the farm buildings 
as a sustainable source of water. 
 
Glamorgan Gwent Archeological Trust –  
 
It was originally requested by the Trust that a geophysical survey was undertaken. 
Following the submission of this they provided the following comments –  
 
The survey, undertaken by Wessex Archaeology Geoservices (Report dated July 
2014, ref: 105320.01). The fieldwork and report meet current professional standards 
and have provided sufficient information to allow an informed decision to be made 
regarding the archaeological resource in the area.   
 
In our letter, we noted the range of known evidence of archaeological activity in the 
vicinity of the proposed solar array, particularly the potential route of a Roman road 
associated with the fort at Loughor. The results show that whilst some activity is 
recorded, particularly the former field boundaries, the possible archaeological 
features have weak values and are small in size. Having studied the results, it is our 
conclusion that these features are modern in origin. Consequently, as the survey has 
given sufficient information, it is our opinion that no further archaeological work is 
necessary for the proposed development.  
 
Gorseinon Town Council – object to the application 
 
Members received a summary of the above application from the Clerk and plans 
were displayed. The Committee allowed a submission and objections from a 
delegation of 20 local residents. Whilst supporting the concept of renewable energy 
they felt the chosen site was inappropriate because of the impact upon the adjoining 
properties in Pencefnarda Road, the prominent visual appearance of the panels 
which could not be screened from the nearby properties, and the inadequate highway 
infrastructure in the immediate area. Residents were therefore opposed to the 
scheme, despite hearing comments from Mr Ant Flanagan on behalf of the 
applicants. The Committee deferred consideration of the scheme in order to view the 
site from residents properties, before making a decision. 
 
Subsequently, the following response was received –  
 
Members had deferred the original application from 2nd July meeting in order to view the 
application on site. They received a summary of the above application from the Clerk and 
plans were displayed. The sub Committee viewed the site from rear gardens of residential 
properties along Pencefnarda Road, Penyrheol, and listened to the comments of the 
property owners whose houses adjoined the site.  Page 195



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Whilst supporting the concept of renewable energy, they felt the chosen site was 
inappropriate because of the impact upon the adjoining properties in Pencefnarda Road, 
the prominent visual appearance of the panels which would not be screened from nearby 
properties for at least 10 years, and the inadequate highway infrastructure in the 
immediate area. Residents were therefore opposed to the scheme, despite hearing 
comments from the two agents present on behalf of the applicants. 
 
Following the site meeting, Councillors reconvened to discuss the application and resolved 
unanimously to OBJECT to the application for the following reasons; 
 
1. The application site lies within the highly sensitive environmental ‘green wedge’, 
adjoining the Loughor estuary prominent from both sides of this internationally important 
estuary. Whilst the application site itself is of poor agriculatural value, the open countryside 
around the site and down to the esturary is of high environmental quality and nature 
conservation interest. The application site is therefore considered inappropriate for the 
proposed use, due to its location in close proximity to residential properties in Pencefnarda 
Road in particular. 
 
2. The proposed additional landscaping of site boundaries will take many years before 
they will be adequately screened from residential properties adjoining. 
 
3. The residential amenity of adjoining residential properties, will be adversely affected by 
the proposed development. 
 
4. The highway infrastructure in Pencefnarda Road is considered inadequate to cope with 
the additional heavy vehicles that would use the bus route during the construction period. 
 
5. It is considered this scale of solar panel array could be located on existing brownfield 
sites, large industrial unit roofing or less visually prominent semi-rural locations. 
 
Council’s Ecology Officer –  
 
The site has been subject to an ecological survey with an additional survey for great 
crested newts. The majority of the field has been assessed as being of relatively poor 
ecological value. No evidence of great crested newt use of the site was found. Therefore 
they should not form a constraint on development. The surveyor identified a number of 
boundary trees which have features suitable for bat roosts; these should be retained. The 
hedges and ditches on the site are also of ecological value and should also be retained. 
The surveyor has noted that the site is suitable for reptiles and a further study will be 
completed. Please could we add a condition to any permission we give requiring the 
developer to submit a reptile mitigation statement for our approval should reptiles be found 
using the site, this should be agreed prior to development starting.  The standard birds 
informative is attached. 
 
With regards to the issue concerning boundary trees, these should be retained. Could we 
add a condition requiring that if any work needs to be done they should be surveyed for 
bats by a suitably qualified ecologist and the report should be submitted to us for our 
comment prior to any work starting. The second point concerned reptiles; they are likely to 
be present on the site and I have discussed this with the developer’s ecologist.  

Page 196



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Could we also add a condition requiring the developers to submit a reptile mitigation plan 
for our approval prior to any development starting.  Finally could we add a condition 
requiring an amphibian management strategy to be submitted for our approval. 
 
Council’s Pollution Control section –  
 
I would initially look to condition the construction phase of the proposed development. 
However they cover the bulk of the information that I would require in their Construction 
Method Statement.  With this in mind I would like to condition the following regarding the 
construction phase: - 
 

• Prior to the commencement of the development, the applicant shall submit, in 
writing, the Site Specific Environmental Management Plan to the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
With regard to ‘glint and glare’ from the proposed development, I have no objections to 
make regarding the matter as long as the information within their Supporting 
Environmental Document and their Construction Method Statement are adhered too. 
 
Council’s Japanese Knotweed Officer –  
 
One area noted on the northern edge of concrete access track in brambles near barn. 
 
The following condition is therefore requested. 
 
A detailed scheme for the eradication of Japanese Knotweed shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and shall be implemented prior to the 
commencement of work on site. 
 
Reason - In the interests of the ecology and amenity of the area 
 
In order for the condition to be discharged, the developer must devise an appropriate and 
suitable method statement, acceptable to the relevant Officer for the control of the plant. 
 
Wales Co-operative Centre  – supports the application 
 
As Chief Executive of the Wales Co-operative Centre, I would like to give my support for 
the solar farm planning application at Pencefnarda Farm (Ref 2014/0761). 
 
The Wales Co-operative Centre is the largest co-operative development agency in the UK. 
Established in 1982, it delivers a range of projects to promote social justice through 
financial and digital inclusion and social enterprise. 
 
Co-operative businesses are owned and run by and for their members, whether they are 
customers, employees or residents. As well as giving members an equal say and share of 
the profits, co-operatives act together to build a better world. 
 
Across the UK, co-operatives are owned by just over 15 million people – and these 
numbers keep on growing. The mix of self-help and mutual aid has made co-operative 
business and international force for good. 100 million people around the world are 
employed by co-operatives, whilst one billion are members. Page 197



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Community co-operatives have a particularly important role to play in Wales. As well as 
providing employment and essential services, co-operatives attract and retain wealth in 
their local communities, offering resilience and stability in tough economic conditions. The 
strength and scale of the co-operative economy in Wales proves that our nation shares a 
common purpose and has tremendous community spirit. In 2013, there were almost 500 
co-operatives in Wales employing approximately 11,000 people, boasting more than 
725,000 memberships and accounting for a total annual turnover of £1.54 billion. 
 
The intended local ownership of the Pencefnarda Solar Array development, through a 
community share scheme is crucially important as it will ensure that local residents and 
businesses benefit directly from the project revenue. The Wales Co-operative Centre 
welcomes the proposed community share offer. 
 
This is the competitive advantage of the co-operative model, by sharing ownership you 
give those involved in the business a share in its success. 
 
Looking to a future co-operative economy in Wales, the report published earlier this year 
by the ‘Welsh Co-operative and Mutuals Commission’ concluded that 
 
‘U.conventional approaches to economic growth and development are not sufficient alone 
to achieve the improvements in the social and economic wellbeing of people in Wales. Co-
operatives offer significant economic, social and environmental benefits compared with 
ordinary businesses’ 
 
The proposal to invest profits generated from the Pencefnarda Solar Array, at 
Pencefnarda Farm, in projects to combat social inequality in the local area is in line with 
the Commission’s conclusion. Co-operatives offer wide-ranging opportunities to local 
people to engage in self-help activities and exercise their democratic control. People and 
their communities can do this by actively participating in decision-making and the 
governance of a co-operative. 
 
I hope the benefits of the Pencefnarda Solar Array proposal will be recognised by the City 
and County of Swansea and that planning permission will be forthcoming. 
 
Gower Society – object to the application 
 
We refer to the above application and supporting documents that we have studied closely 
and we have the following comments to make: 
 
3. We are greatly concerned that an application on this scale has been made so close to 

habitation and within the EV23 Green Wedge designated land. 
4. Our Society has been attempting over the last few years to gain political support at 

WA level for the extension of the current Gower AONB into this part of The Lordship 
of Gower. Such schemes can only damage the possibility of this being achieved. 

5. Despite a very clever persuasive presentation the fact remains that such a scheme 
would not be possible without subsidy and that not everyone supports such green 
developments. The deliberately rather one sided opinion poll is designed to favour the 
development and no one can deny that this scheme will impact upon the landscape 
and the local community that is in such close visual proximity.  

Page 198



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
6. The current scheme at Cefn Betingau near to Morriston Hospital should serve as a 

wakeup call about the industrialisation of our agricultural landscape and open 
countryside in this northern area of the Lordship of Gower.  

7. My Society has the opinion that such schemes should be reserved for genuine brown 
field sites that do not impinge upon the rural landscape and on the roofs of existing 
industrial buildings. 

8. We understand that a number of unacceptable activities have been carried out upon 
this site and this should be taken into account when you consider the application. 

 
We strongly object to this application and would be obliged if you would take these points 
into consideration when assessing this application. 
 
Subsequently, following this a further letter clarifying some of the issues raised was sent in 
from the Society –  
 
The owner of the property (not the applicant) has taken issue with point 6 in our letter of 
objection dated 29th June 2014, contending ‘there are no unacceptable activities on the 
planning application site or on our farm’. With reference to our letter, we write to confirm 
(as indeed it is so worded) that we do not contend there are unacceptable activities but 
that we understand that such activities have been carried out. 
 
We do not have first hand knowledge of activities and have heard by way of hearsay. 
Hence, we stated it was our understanding and it related to past activities, which we 
believed were tipping and recycling. 
 
We do not know whether or not it is true, and we informed you of our understanding so 
that you can consider conducting such research or inquiries as you may deem 
appropriate. 
 
Council’s Head of Transportation and Engineering –  
 
This proposal is for the construction of a solar farm at Pencefnarda Farm in Gorseinon.  A 
transport statement has been submitted with the application outlining the traffic 
movements associated with the proposal. 
 
Traffic impact will occur during the construction phase.  HGV movements have the most 
impact in such schemes and the applicant has provided information on the number of 
expected movements.  The construction phase is shown to last approximately 14 weeks 
and the busiest period for HGV movement is shown at weeks 3 - 4, where up to 9 
deliveries per day are expected.  Other periods show an expected range of deliveries of 
between 2 to 4 HGV deliveries per day.  The predicted busiest period is not considered to 
be excessive and is unlikely to have any detrimental impact on highways in the area.  In 
total, there are expected to be 74 HGV movements associated with the construction 
phase none of which will involve any abnormal loads.  Additional movements will take 
place but these will not involve HGV traffic. 
 
The farm access, which is from Pencefnarda Road, is established and historically has 
accommodated HGV movements.  It is normal practice to restrict HGV movements where 
possible when consenting such development proposals and this could be achieved 
through requiring a Traffic Management Plan or separate condition.   

Page 199



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Visibility is slightly restricted for car and small van use due to the adjacent hedge, but is 
suitable for HGV traffic as drivers of such vehicles are sitting closer to the front of the 
vehicle.  As additional non HGV traffic will be using the access during the construction 
phase, this visibility needs improving. 
 
On balance, I do not consider that the scheme will generate such a high volume of traffic 
movements so as to require a refusal of consent on highway safety grounds and therefore 
recommend no highway objection subject to the following; 
 
1. Prior to the commencement of development, facilities for wheel cleansing shall be 
provided on site in accordance with details submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Wheel cleaning shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details prior to any construction works commencing. 
 
2. Prior to any works commencing on the site, a Construction Traffic Management Plan 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved traffic management plan shall be implemented and adhered to at all times 
unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
3. Prior to the commencement of works, the visibility at the access junction shall be 
improved to provide visibility splays of 2.4m x 45m in accordance with details to be 
submitted and agreed. 
 
Natural Resources Wales –  
 
Natural Resources Wales (NRW) does not object to the above application, providing 
appropriately worded conditions requiring the implementation of revised mitigation 
measures are attached to any planning permission your authority is minded to grant. 
 
Ecology & Protected Species 
 
NRW welcome the submission of the document entitled; ‘Pencefnarda Farm Solar Array: 
Ecological Appraisal’, dated March 2014, by Land Use Consultants (LUC) Limited. 
 
NRW note that the Extended Phase 1 Survey was carried out on 17 February 2014, which 
is outside the optimum survey period. The site of the proposed solar array is described as 
an agricultural field, which is subject to low levels of management/grazing and has 
resulted in tussocky vegetation. The other features identified within the site are a large 
area of standing water in the centre of the site and a number of wet ditches around the 
edge of the site. 
 
We note from Section 4 of the appraisal that many of the trees around the site perimeter 
were noted as being of sufficient size and condition to support roosting bats. Therefore, 
we advise that these are retained. The report goes on to state that the entirety of the field 
provides suitable habitat for reptile species and that following a precautionary approach, 
further surveys will be completed before construction commences. NRW supports this 
proposal and recommends that the results of the survey are submitted to your Authority’s 
Planning Ecologist for review and agreement, prior to any work commencing on site. Any 
mitigation measures, identified by the survey, should be agreed with the Planning 
Ecologist. 

Page 200



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
We also note from this report that although there are no records of Great Crested Newts 
(GCN) within the study area, the site does provide suitable habitats in terms of the 
standing water at the centre of the site and the ditches along the periphery of the field. As 
a result further surveys for this species are to be undertaken, which we comment on 
below. 
 
Protected Species (Great Crested Newts) 
 
NRW note that following the recommendation made in the Ecological Appraisal, an 
additional survey was carried out entitled; ‘Pencefnarda Farm, Gorseinon: Survey for 
Great Crested Newts’ dated May 2014, by Acer Ecology. 
 
We note that survey visits were undertaken between the 10 April 2014 and 7 May 2014. 
However, the report states that at the time of the first visit on the 10 April 2014, the area of 
standing water at the centre of the field had been drained by digging ditches and 
excavating existing ditches. The area now comprised of mud and waterlogged grassy 
patches, with no more than 5cm depth of water. The area was subject to some survey 
effort, but no amphibians were noted. Given the recommendations made in the earlier 
appraisal, NRW are extremely disappointed that this action was taken and that the 
advised survey work could not be carried out to further inform the application. 
 
Nevertheless, we note that drainage ditches around the field margins were subject to 
further survey effort. Section 3 of the report identified small numbers of palmate newts and 
frog tadpoles were present in a number of the ditches. Therefore, given that the ditches 
are cleaned sporadically, NRW recommend that an appropriate amphibian management 
strategy is agreed with your Authority’s Planning Ecologist, prior to work commencing on 
site. Should your Authority be minded to grant planning permission. 
 
NRW recommend that these proposals are discussed and agreed with your Authority’s 
Planning Ecologist and should be implemented as suitably enforceable planning 
conditions, if your Authority is minded to grant planning permission. 
 
Landscape 
 
We welcome the submission of a Landscape and Visual Assessment, within Section 6 of 
the document entitled; ‘Pencefnarda Uchaf Solar Farm array: Supporting Evidence 
Document’, dated 22 May2014, by Locogen Ltd. We also note that the assessment itself; 
was carried out by Douglas Harman, CMLI, who is a chartered landscape architect. 
 
We note that a 5 km study area was chosen and that this contained one Historic Park and 
Garden (HPG), two Special Landscape Areas (SLAs) – both within Carmarthenshire and 
two areas classified as Green Wedge. 
 
The report also states that seven representative viewpoint locations have been selected, 
although it is not clear if these were agreed with your Authority. Of the seven viewpoints 
selected, the report concludes that only one location is regarded as having a moderate-
major visual effect. This is described as being a short term effect and one that could be 
mitigated by the planting of trees and re-enforcement of hedgerows along the southern 
boundary. 

Page 201



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Section 6.9 of the LVIA assessment concludes that the proposal will not result in any 
significant landscape effects on the LANDMAP aspects areas or designed landscapes 
within the study area. It also asserts that no significant cumulative effects with other solar 
developments are predicted. 
 
Should your Authority be satisfied that the information provided is sufficient for you to 
assess the proposal, then we advise that appropriate mitigation measures are also 
implemented. The mitigation measures proposed in the report and the drawing entitled; 
‘Site Layout Plan: Drawing No. PCN001’, dated 14/05/14 by Locogen Ltd, could form the 
basis of any mitigation. We leave to the discretion of your Authority the wording of any 
condition to secure appropriate mitigation, should you be minded to grant planning 
permission. 
 
Surface Water Drainage 
 
The proposal is for the installation of a ground mounted solar array and associated 
infrastructure over a 7.5 hectares site and can therefore be classed as less vulnerable 
development according to TAN15. 
 
The Environment Statement (ES) submitted as part of the planning application only lists 
surface water quality as a potential impact of the development and little consideration has 
been given to the impact upon surface water flows as a result of the proposal. The ES 
does state that operational field drains would be maintained to minimise the potential for 
waterlogged land; however no further information is given with regards to surface water 
runoff from the site within the report. 
 
Although we acknowledge that the panels will allow rainwater to runoff and infiltrate into 
the ground, we would advise that this runoff will concentrate infiltration to a smaller area 
and depending upon the topography of the site this may lead to the creation of rivets or 
small channels which could speed up the flow of the runoff down the slope. 
 
Drawing number PCN003 v1 indicates a swale is to be located on the western boundary 
of the site, but reference is only made to this as part of the construction method statement. 
It is unclear if the swale will be a permanent structure to manage surface water from the 
site. 
 
We also recommend that consideration is given to the impact of the development upon 
surface water runoff, if the swale is only a temporary feature for the construction period. 
Section 8 of TAN15 advocates the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) in 
the management of surface water from a site. 
 
Therefore, we advise that further information is submitted with regards to this prior to the 
commencement of works on the site and agreed with your Authority’s Drainage Engineer 
and NRW, should you be minded to grant planning permission. We also recommend the 
following condition. 
 
Condition: No development approved by this permission shall take place until details of 
the implementation, maintenance and management of a sustainable drainage system 
(SUDS) for surface water drainage has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  

Page 202



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Such a scheme shall be implemented prior to the construction of any impermeable 
surfaces draining to this system, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. 
 
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a 
satisfactory means of surface water disposal. 
 
Pollution Prevention 
 
NRW note the document entitled; ‘Construction Method Statement & Pollution Prevention 
Measures: Pencefnarda Uchaf Solar Array (Version 1.0)’, dated 9 May 2014, by Locogen 
Ltd. 
 
Should your Authority be minded to grant planning permission, we advise that additional 
details and site specific information needs to be provided. 
 
As your Authority will be aware there can be no deterioration of water bodies under the 
Water Framework Directive. It is therefore vital that all appropriate pollution control 
measures are adopted on site to ensure that the integrity of controlled waters (surface and 
ground) is assured. 
 
As best practice, we would advise the developer to produce a site specific construction 
management / pollution prevention plan with particular reference given to the protection of 
the surrounding land & water environments. If planning permission is granted, we would 
ask that the following conditions are included. 
 
Condition: No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a 
pollution prevention management plan detailing all necessary pollution prevention 
measures for the construction phase of the development is submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details of the plan shall be implemented as 
approved and must be efficiently communicated to all contractors and sub-contractors (for 
example, via toolbox talks) and any deficiencies rectified immediately. 
 
 
Reason: Prevent pollution of controlled waters and the wider environment. 
 
As a minimum we would recommend that the plan include the following points. 
V Identification of surrounding watercourses and potential pollution pathways from the 
construction site to those watercourses. 
V How each of those watercourses and pathways will be protected from site run off during 
construction. 
V How the water quality of the watercourses will be monitored and recorded. 
V How surface water runoff from the site during construction will be managed/discharged. 
Please note that it is not acceptable for ANY pollution (e.g. 
sediment/silt/oils/chemicals/cement etc.) to enter the surrounding watercourses. 
V storage facilities for all fuels, oils and chemicals. 
V construction compounds, car parks, offices, etc. 
V details of the nature, type and quantity of materials to be imported on to the site. 
V measures for dealing with any contaminated material (demolition waste or excavated 
waste). 

Page 203



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
V identification of any buried services, such as foul sewers, so that they are protected. 
V details of emergency contacts, for example Natural Resources Wales hotline 0800 807 
060. 
 
Pollution prevention guidance is available from the Environment Agency’s website 
http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/business/topics/pollution/39083.aspx. 
 
Waste Management 
 
Given the nature and location of this development, we would recommend that a site waste 
management plan (SWMP) for the project is produced. Completion of a SWMP will help 
the developer/contractor manage waste materials efficiently, reduce the amount of waste 
materials produced and potentially save money. Guidance for SWMPs are available from 
the DEFRA website (. 
 
We acknowledge that a SWMP may be something best undertaken by the contractor 
employed to undertake the project. Furthermore, we note that these documents are often 
‘live’ and as such may be best undertaken post permission. 
 
The following condition is suggested, but could be amended as you see fit. 
 
Condition: No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a Site 
Waste Management Plan has been produced and submitted in writing for approval by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure waste at the site is managed in line with the Waste Hierarchy in a 
priority order of prevention, re-use, recycling before considering other recovery or disposal 
option. 
 
Any waste materials that are generated on site (either as a result of construction or 
demolition) must be stored and treated in line with relevant environmental legislation. If it 
is proposed to treat waste on site (i.e. production of aggregates), a relevant waste 
permit/exemption must be registered with NRW. More information on relevant waste 
exemptions can be found on our website:  
 
In addition to the above, we would ask that the attached planning advice note is provided 
to the applicant/developer. This provides further information and advice on matters such 
as SUDs, pollution prevention and waste management. 
 
Should your Authority be minded to grant planning permission NRW recommend that 
appropriately worded conditions are attached to any planning permission you are minded 
to grant. 
 
Amended Plans and Information 
 
Following the receipt of amended plans and information, the applicant was re-publicised 
by means of displaying fresh site notices within the vicinity of the site. 
  
 

Page 204



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Objections to the application –  
 
19 letters of OBJECTION have been received in relation to the amended information, the 
comments of which are highlighted below – 
 
This is a residential/countryside location which should not have any more industrial use 
than is already in place at this farm.  
 
There is already a waste disposal facility on this site which burns rubbish leaving awful 
smells in the area.  
 
The road to and from the farm is unsuitable for the heavy traffic already. 
 
The field in question is ruined and unsuitable again due to poor management of the site. 
 
There is no direct benefit of this solar energy to the people in the street or even the area of 
Gorseinon.  
 
The development will have a negative visual impact, being not very low profile and not 
screened by any vegetation from some angles ie from the south. 
 
The proposals for new native trees and hedgerows planting will take years to grow. As the 
trees have now lost their foliage, this is immaterial. 
 
This application will have a massive impact upon the local environment. Due to its 
location, visual impact will be horrendous. I believe 14,700 solar panels filling your 
windows will be very detrimental to our health and well-being. 
 
The negative impacts on wildlife will be detrimental to all wildlife that lives in this field. 
 
It can’t really be seen how any screening of the array could be afforded by trees, as 
neighbours are looking down onto this field. 
 
After viewing the amended plans for the solar farm the original objections still stand. The 
Green Wedge was put in place to protect our landscape and countryside from 
overdevelopment and should be protected. As shown by the rapidly increasing number of 
these projects in the area there are more suitable locations available for this type of 
development. 
 
The proposed £4 million industrial development is definitely not small-scale farm 
diversification in the protected green wedge field at Pencefnarda Uchaf Farm and the farm 
has already diversified into several other businesses. 

Following a site visit to Pencefnarda Road last week, Viewpoint 1 in the adjacent field to 
the site does not give a true reflection of the view that local residents have from their 
properties which is on higher ground with a different viewing angle. The new proposed 
screening is still totally inadequate particularly during periods of de-foliage such as now. 
The developer should state the approximate dimensions of the planted trees in their 
screening photograph and how many years it will take to establish this situation as it will 
definitely not be ‘short term’ and it will be impossible to screen from some viewpoints. 

Page 205



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Why doesn’t the developer take a photograph from a local property near Viewpoint 1 to 
reflect the view that local residents would have and then digitally put the solar panels in 
this photograph to give everyone a better understanding of the impact on the 
surrounding landscape? This has been done with other planning applications locally and 
would assist the decision-making process. 

Can the Council please state whether the energy output figures provided by the applicant 
have been verified by an independent third party as there appears to be significant 
variations in the outputs claimed by different solar array developers. What supporting 
evidence has been submitted to confirm the actual number of properties that will be 
supported by application 2014/0761? Is the 3.6MW the optimum capacity or an average 
as there are genuine concerns about the actual annual output of the proposed 
development. 

The planting of native species 60-80 cm in height along these boundaries will take many 
years to mature to a height that will provide an effective screen particularly when viewed 
from the first floor windows of the residential properties fronting Pencefnarda Road. 
Moreover, the topography of the site is such that the introduction of up to 14,400 solar 
panels cannot adequately be screened by hedge planting in these locations and 
consequently the rural character of the area will be seriously compromised by this 
development to the detriment of this attractive countryside location and contrary to the 
adopted Unitary Development Plan Policies for the area. 

The changes to the screening are minimal and will make no difference from the viewpoint 
of local residents. The supporting documentation still only states 'short term' with no 
explanation of how many years it will take for this to establish and there is no indication of 
the dimensions of the trees. The developer should provide an image of the viewpoint with 
the solar panels included to assess its effect on the surrounding landscape. 

There are still concerns regarding the watercourse issue as raised previously and it is 
considered essential that all drainage issues are resolved before any planning decision is 
made. 

It is also concerning that no consideration has been given towards surface water flows as 
a result of this proposal. Due to the nature of the panels, rainwater runoff will be 
concentrated onto a smaller area. This will lead to a reduction in the volume of water that 
can be infiltrated and an increase in the volume/velocity that runs off. This will further 
exacerbate the flooding risks. 

The topography of the site is also on higher ground ranging from 40m AOD to 50m AOD 
with a prominent exposed ridge so this would negatively impact on the surrounding area 
especially so close to the Loughor Estuary SSSI. 

The new LDP proposal includes a large potential housing development just to the south of 
the site (see attached PY013, PY014 & PY020) so does this make the protection of the 
southern boundary of the green wedge even more important moving forward? 

Page 206



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

The screening amendments in documents PCN003(v3) and PCN014B(v3) respectively 
are minimal and do not resolve this highly sensitive issue for local residents. Viewpoint 1 
is taken directly behind my property in an adjacent field to the site and as highlighted 
previously does not give a fully representative view from our perspective in terms of 
ground level or viewing angle. The photomontage with the proposed screening trees 
established simply appears to be a single identical tree pasted eight times across the 
viewpoint? The developer has not stated which one of the various proposed planted trees 
listed this is or given any dimensions as to their height or width at this time in comparison 
with the two mature oak trees that already exist. The date of the photograph has still not 
been disclosed but it is obviously a 'best case scenario' at a time of full foliage to 
maximise the screening for the benefit of the developer. 

The continuing use of 'short term' in the documentation in relation to the lack of screening 
is unacceptably vague and meaningless unless it is formally quantified. The developer has 
a responsibility to clearly state with supporting evidence how many years it will realistically 
take to achieve this screening outcome. Locogen's official representative did state verbally 
to local Councillors at the Gorseinon Community Council Planning Committee site visit on 
8th July 2014 that it would take at least 10 years but many residents feel that this is still 
optimistic and the representative also publicly accepted that screening from some angles 
would never be achieved. 

The fact that the developer has updated their documents to correct a number of 
highlighted errors is welcomed although no explanations have been given and they have 
also removed their controversial internal statement in the Supporting Environmental 
Document regarding their commitment to environmental surveys (p.87). However, the 
updated Supporting Environmental Document dated 18th November 2014 still states that 
no other solar developments exist within 5km when there are two current developments 
that should have been evaluated for cumulative effect, i.e. 2014/0739 and 2014/1620. The 
document also still fails to evaluate the inter-visibility between the site and the heavily 
congested A484 on Loughor Bridge and does not evaluate the glint and glare impact to 
the West of the site when they have publicly disclosed that this exists both in the local 
press and on social media respectively. Additional concerns still remain in relation to the 
surface water run-off and drainage given the topography of the surrounding area and 
there are still no details provided on the grid connection that will be across external land 
outside the control of the developer. 

Many of the objectors have stated that their objections in relation to the original proposals 
still stand. 

Support to the application –  
 
4 letters of SUPPORT have been received in relation to the amended information, the 
comments of which are highlighted below – 
 
A neighbour has stated that they have no objection to the proposal of the installation of 
solar panels at the proposed site even though it would be in full view of the neighbour’s 
home; we all use electricity and should be endorsing renewable energy. 
 
The development has minimal visual impact, being very low profile and screened by 
vegetation from many angles. It also allows the land to be used for grazing at the same 
time as producing green energy.  Page 207



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
The proposals for new native trees and hedgerows planting will also lead to an overall 
benefit for the local ecology. Additionally it will offset over 46,000 tonnes of CO2 over its 
lifetime.  
 
Furthermore, I support Gower Power Community Cooperative's involvement in the project. 
If planning permission is granted there will be the opportunity to create one of the UK's 
biggest community owned solar co-operatives.  
 
Gower Power will use the money generated by the solar panels to fund an award winning 
social programme that will facilitate local ownership of food, energy and exchange (a local 
currency).  
 
This development has the potential to set a new benchmark for community owned 
renewable energy whilst also generating income that will benefit the local community and 
deliver positive social outcomes. It is exactly the kind of development Swansea Council 
should be encouraging. 
 
It is believed that the development is essential - we need many more proposals like this 
for a more sustainable Swansea and for a better future for Wales. The proposal is 
particularly suitable because it allows for the multiple use of the land for grazing livestock 
and for clean energy generation. This development has the potential to set a new 
benchmark for community owned renewable energy whilst also generating income that will 
benefit the local community and deliver positive social outcomes. It is exactly the kind of 
development Swansea Council should be encouraging. 
 
Supporting Statement by Owner of the Field –  
 
To comment on a planning application you must use actual planning reasons. Solar 
energy production for farms is an accepted farm diversification (see attachment Lord 
Curry on Renewable energy). We do not burn rubbish, we do not bring rubbish onto this 
farm, only inert waste. You cannot burn soil and hardcore, we do not carry overloaded 
skips or lose the contents on the highway. The field in question is classed as grade 5. 
Agricultural Land Classification states that this is very poor quality agricultural land with 
very severe limitations, which restrict use to permanent pasture or rough grazing. There is 
a huge direct benefit to the local community from the solar array as the scheme will 
provide enough electricity for over a 1000 local households and through its lifetime reduce 
CO2 emissions by approximately 46,000 tonnes. Local communities need to support 
these initiatives countrywide and not bury their heads in the sand hoping the CO2 problem 
will go away. 
 
Glamorgan Gwent Archeological Trust –  
 
You will recall from our earlier responses to the proposals that we considered there to be 
potential for archaeological features within the site; subsequently, an archaeological 
geophysical survey was undertaken by Wessex Archaeology Geoservices (Report dated 
July 2014, ref: 105320.01). The fieldwork and report met current professional standards 
and provided sufficient information to allow an informed decision to be made regarding the 
archaeological resource in the area. The results showed that whilst some activity was 
recorded, particularly the former field boundaries, the possible archaeological features 
have weak values and are small in size.  

Page 208



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
It was our conclusion that the features are modern in origin and as the survey had given 
sufficient information, it was our opinion that no further archaeological work is necessary 
for the proposed development. There has been no change to our understanding of the 
archaeological resource in the area since then, and the amendments do not have an 
archaeological restraint in any way and therefore our opinion remains the same as our last 
response that no further archaeological mitigation will be necessary and we have no 
objection to the determination of the application. 
 
Council’s Ecology Officer –  
 
The hedging mix looks ok with a good mix of mainly native species. The planting will 
enhance the existing hedges and add to the wildlife value of the site. 
 
NRW –  
 
We do not wish to comment on the amended plans, but would refer you to our previous 
statements on landscape, as laid down in our original response (ref: SH/2014/116841/01), 
dated 4 September 2014. 
 
However, we would advise that should your Authority be minded to grant planning 
permission, any landscape mitigation measures should be delivered via a Management 
Plan of an appropriate duration and through an enforceable planning condition. 
 
Council’s Pollution Control section – No further comments to raise 
 
Gorseinon Town Council – object 
 
Members viewed all the visuals submitted to describe the amended application, but 
considered that the original objections given to the initial application should remain. The 
enhanced landscaping of the hedge boundary in no way affected the fundamental 
objections initially registered, that this highly visible site which was part of an 
internationally sensitive estuary location was unsuitable for the siting of a solar array farm. 
The Council wished the original objections submitted in July 2014 to still stand. 
 
 
Amended Plans and Information (Second set) 
 
A second set of amended plans have been received with regards to alterations to the 
proposed screening of the site. Following the receipt of this information, another set of site 
notices were displayed within the vicinity of the site.  
 
At the time of writing this report only one objection had been received. Any further letters 
of objection or support received between the writing of this report and the Committee will 
be reported to Committee Members. 
 
Objection to the application -  
 
It is believed that the amended proposed screening is still totally inadequate and that the 
Additional Cross Sections document (163947) would only assist the planning decision if it 
was based on a viewer location from the perspective of local residents.  

Page 209



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Local properties are situated several metres higher than the selected viewer location in 
the farm field adjacent to the development site so this document is not relevant in terms of 
assessing the screening impact on local residents. We feel there should be close scrutiny 
of this document as for example the development site clearly rises from South to North but 
no ground elevation is shown in the plane of cross section for the solar panels. The 
topography of the site and panoramic viewing angles for local residents also mean that a 
simple straight line cross section view across the site does not give a realistic impression. 
The creation of new hedgerows and tree lines in addition to the proposed gap filling of 
existing hedgerows also raises the EV23 policy issue of ‘retaining the openness of green 
wedges’. 
 
The Additional Site Layout Plan Aerial Photo (163946) has two green shaded areas 
highlighting ‘existing trees’. This is highly unusual as the actual trees would be clearly 
visible on an aerial photograph so no shading is required. We respectfully request that a 
site visit is undertaken in these two areas as we feel that the shading is misleading. The 
actual extent of the trees to the South West of the site is significantly less than the green 
shading suggests. It is still unclear from this document where the export cable leaves the 
site and the grid connection route across external land outside of the control of the 
Applicant should be confirmed. We note that the quarry is now included in the land 
ownership boundary but the important issue of drainage has still not been resolved as 
there are currently two totally different drainage plans across the site in two 
simultaneously active applications to the Planning Department (refer application 
2012/0905).  
 
It is very disappointing that ‘short term’ in relation to the important screening issue has still 
not been quantified in terms of years despite repeated requests. We also reiterate our 
request that the Applicant produces Viewpoint photomontages with visualisations of the 
solar panels in place, ideally during periods of de-foliage, as per other similar applications 
locally and nationally to assist the assessment of the visual impact of the site and its 
screening over several different time periods. 
 
It is important to state again that local residents who object to this application support 
green renewable energy developments in principle and we note that the City and County 
of Swansea has already approved numerous ground-based solar arrays in the local area. 
However we believe that this specific estuarine green wedge land which now has 
proposed housing developments close to its southern boundary (refer draft City & County 
of Swansea LDP and 2014/1954 respectively) must continue to be protected as it is totally 
inappropriate in planning terms for application 2014/0761 for reasons outlined in this and 
previous correspondence. 
 
Council’s Landscape Officer –  
 
I concur that the impact from viewpoint 1 in the LVIA prior to mitigation would be Moderate 
– major (significant) and subsequent to landscape planting and establishment as 
Moderate (not significant). This change is conditional on maintaining those new planted 
hedges at a minimum required height yet to be specified / conditioned and the retention of 
those existing trees on site, particularly around the Substation and by any future 
transmission requirements from the substation off site to the ‘grid’. 
 

Page 210



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
I note that Western Power has maintained the woodland beneath the overhead high 
voltage cables with the required clearances to the ‘catenaries’ (cables). As and when they 
will need to change those cables they may well need to clear fell those trees within the 
wayleave. If that is before the new hedge / screen planting is established to the required 
minimum height, the impact to adjacent receptor sites may remain significant. I also note 
that there is no agreement that if this potential site tree clearance scenario occurs that the 
trees / hedges beneath the lines would be allowed to regrow. As the statutory undertaker 
has the responsibility to maintain the apparatus I cannot see how we can condition 
replanting if and when the wayleave is cleared of trees to replace the apparatus. 
 
APPRAISAL 
 
This application is reported to Committee for decision and a site visit has been requested 
by Councillor Jan Curtice, due to concerns regarding the detrimental impact on 
neighbouring properties and also the impact on the wildlife. 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the installation of a ground mounted solar array with 
capacity up to 3.6 megawatts. The proposal also includes ancillary infrastructure including 
fencing, security cameras, inverter kiosks, construction compound and laydown areas, 
cabling, substation building and screening including hedge and tree planting and a new 
hedge bank supporting hedge and tree planting at Pencefnarda Farm in Gorseinon. The 
site is located in the open countryside and also lies in the Green wedge. 
 
The main issues for consideration are the impacts of the proposed solar park on the visual 
amenity of the area, upon residential amenity, highway safety, and upon ecology and 
habitats with regard to policies EV1, EV2, EV21, EV22, EV23 and R11 of the City & 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008. There are no overriding issues with 
regard to the Human Rights Act. 
 
In policy terms, Welsh Government advice in the form of TAN6 is relevant and makes 
reference to diversification schemes. Para. 3.7 states that many economic activities can 
be sustainable on farmland and includes renewable energy schemes as one of the options 
that are likely to be appropriate.  Policy EV1 is a general design policy and states that new 
development shall accord with the objectives of good design, including: 
 
(i) Be appropriate to its local context in terms of scale, height, massing, elevational 
treatment, materials and detailing, layout, form, mix and density 
(ii)   Integrate effectively with adjacent spaces and the public realm to create good 
quality townscape 
(iii) Not result in a significant detrimental impact on local amenity in terms of visual 
impact, loss of light or privacy, disturbance and traffic movements 
(iv) Incorporate a good standard of landscape design 
(v)   Sensitively relate to existing development patterns and seek to protect natural 
heritage, the historic and cultural environment not only on-site, but in terms of potential 
impact on neighbouring areas of importance. 
 
Policy R11 supports the provision of renewable energy resources including ancillary 
buildings and infrastructure subject to: 
 
(i)  The social, economic or environmental benefits of the scheme in meeting local, and 
national energy targets outweigh any adverse impacts Page 211



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

  
(ii)  The scale, form, design, appearance and cumulative impacts of proposals can be 
satisfactorily incorporated into the landscape, seascape or built environment and would 
not significantly adversely affect the visual amenity, local environment or 
recreational/tourist use of these areas 
(iii)  There would be no significant adverse effect on local amenity, highways, aircraft 
operations or telecommunications 
(iv)  There would be no significant adverse effect on natural heritage and the historic 
environment 
(v)  The development would preserve or enhance any conservation areas and not 
adversely affect listed buildings or their settings 
(vi)  The development is accompanied by adequate information to indicate the extent of 
possible environmental effects and how they can be satisfactorily contained and/or 
mitigated 
(vii) The development includes measures to secure the satisfactory removal of 
structures/related infrastructure and an acceptable after use which brings about a net gain 
where practically feasible for biodiversity following cessation of operation of the 
installation. 
 
In accordance with paragraph 4 of Part II of the Town and Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment) (England and Wales) Regulations 1999 and 
paragraph 32 of Circular 02/99(DETR) - Environmental Impact Assessments, the Local 
Planning Authority must screen every application for Schedule 2 Development, in order to 
determine whether or not an EIA is required. 
 
New developments such as this falls within the project category, "Energy Industry ", as 
defined by paragraph 3(a) of Schedule 2 to the EIA Regulations. 
 
It is acknowledged that the proposed development falls under the provisions of paragraph 
3(a) of Schedule 2 of the Regulations as the proposal exceeds the threshold level of 0.5ha 
and as such the development must be screened for the need for an Environmental 
Statement (ES). 
 
Schedule 3 of the Regulations sets out the selection criteria which must be taken into 
account in determining whether a development is likely to have significant effects on the 
environment. Not all the criteria is relevant in every case.  A detailed screening exercise 
was undertaken at pre-application stage prior to the formal submission of the planning 
application and on the basis of the information provided, subject to the submission of 
further detail at application stage it was considered that the potential impact from this 
development would not be significant on the surrounding area.  In light of the above, it was 
considered that an ES is not required in this instance. 
 
Amended information was received during the course of the application which related to 
amended site layout plans and additional plans, one showing the site layout detail on an 
aerial photo and a plan showing sections illustrating the proposed screening. The plans 
show amended screening in terms of the foliage proposed to act as mitigation screening 
for the site from the Pencefnarda Road perspective. Also in addition to this, the first 
viewpoint position title was changed from ‘Field north of houses on Llannant Road’ to 
‘Field north of houses on Pencefnarda Road’ and some of the grid references were also 
altered slightly on some of the photographs illustrating the viewpoints.  

Page 212



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
The Supporting Environmental Document was also updated to include the amended site 
layout plans and the change in position of viewpoint 1.  Two re-consultation exercises 
were undertaken with regards the amended plans and information. 
 
Development Description 
 
The proposals involve the siting of 14,400 individual solar panels covering 7.5ha in area. 
However, the panels will occupy only around 2.6 hectares of this area. They will be 
mounted on rows of frames, with a maximum height of 3m. It is proposed that the panel 
frames will be supported at a height of 0.9m from the ground to allow for sheep to graze 
underneath the panels. 
 
The solar panels are connected together in strings which are then connected to inverters 
to convert electricity to grid quality AC power. The housing required to protect the inverters 
from the elements will be located at intervals within the solar array to minimise cabling 
distance. 
 
A transformer would be located in a glass reinforced plastic building located next to the 33 
KV line along with necessary switchgear and protection equipment.  The building will have 
maximum dimensions of 10.3m x 3m and a height of 3.15m. 
 
Direct access to the solar array location and substation will be provided via an existing 
farm track which will provide permanent access to the substation for the purpose of 
construction, servicing and maintenance. 
 
In order to provide suitable security, a 2.4m deer fence is proposed around the full 
perimeter of the development and supplemented with a number of security and monitoring 
systems, such as an infrared detection system and remote camera surveillance system. 
These systems will be mounted no higher than 4m above the ground. 
 
There will be a requirement for a construction compound which essentially is a retained 
hardstanding area which is required for the delivery and assembly of the solar array and 
will comprise of a compacted area of hardcore measuring 600m². During operation the 
area will be used for any maintenance works which may be required. It will also be 
required when the site is decommissioned at the end of the project lifetime. 
 
In terms of grid connection, the cable connecting the solar array to the proposed grid 
connection point would be buried where possible, to minimise visual impact. It is 
considered necessary, however, to impose a condition on this permission requiring all 
details pertaining to the grid connection (within the site) to be agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Landscape Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) 
 
A Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) has been submitted with the 
application which describes the site and its setting and examined the existing landscape 
elements, their character, condition quality and sensitivity to change. 
 

Page 213



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
The site of the proposed development is on Pencefnarda Farm, approximately 180m at its 
closest point to the northern edge of Gorseinon. Grovesend is located approximately 0.7 
km to the north east, Llangennech 2.0 km to the north-west, Pontarddulais 2.7 km to the 
north-east, Gowerton 3.2 km to the south and Llwynhendy and Bryn 3.5 km to the west. 
The north-west fringes of Swansea are located to the south-east of the site, just beyond 
the 5 km study area. 
 
Set within the fields behind Pencefnarda Road, the site comprises of an agricultural field 
of marshy grassland, with boundaries defined by hedgerows and scrub. The land 
gradually slopes from the south to the north. The site is immediately surrounded by fields 
with a farm track to the south-east of the site which will enable access into the field. 
 
To the north, there are relatively long distance views across the settled lowland landscape 
and the associated lower reaches of the Loughor River, with rising ground beyond. To the 
south, views are short range, curtailed by nearby housing and associated gardens. To the 
west and east, views are generally short to medium range and curtailed by field 
boundaries, undulating ground and woodland blocks in the intervening landscape. 
 
The following areas are the visual and sensory aspect areas that are considered to be 
within the theoretical visibility of the proposed development. These are: 
 

• NW of Gorseinon 

• Llanelli Hills 

• Llangennech Slopes 

• Llwchwr Valley 

• Swiss Valley and Morlais Valley 

• Three Crosses 

• Rhyd-y-pandy 

• Llanrhidian Marsh 

• Surrounding Cwm Dulais 

• Pentwyn Mawr 

• Afon Llwchwr 

• Penllergaer Forest 

• Llanrhidian Sands 

• Coastal Saltmarsh 

• Llwchwr Estuary 

• National Wetland Centre 

• Llanelli Levels 

• Mynydd Carn Coch and surrounds 

• Upper Lliw Valley 

• Pontlliw 

• Pontarddulais 

• Llanelli 

• Llangennech 

• Gorseinon 

• M4 Corridor Carmarthenshire 
 

Page 214



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Seven Viewpoints have been selected as locations to undertake a detailed assessment of 
the landscape and visual effects of the proposed development.  These represent the 
typical views experienced by a variety of visual receptors, at varying distances, and within 
a number of relevant areas. The viewpoints are listed below: 
 

• Field N of houses on Pencefnarda Road 

• Footpath N of Llannant Road 

• Track south of Brynhyfryd 

• Loughor Harbour 

• A48 Swansea West 

• Bronallt Road, Hendy 

• Field SE of Wern-olau 
 
Of the seven viewpoints assessed by the LVIA, only one of the locations (Field N of 
Pencefnarda Road) is a moderate-major (short term significance) visual effect predicted. 
This would be experienced by the residents of the properties running along Pencefnarda 
Road and Llannant Road (along the northern fringe of Gorseinon) and would be created 
as a result of the array and associated infrastructure being viewed in relatively close 
proximity. However, the proposed scheme provides mitigation in the form of new planting 
between the field containing the proposed solar panels in question and the residential 
properties, together with the creation of a new hedge-bank with planting on top. The LVIA 
suggests that the mitigation measures proposed will reduce the visual impact of the 
development from this viewpoint to an acceptable level (moderate/not significant). Full 
details of the proposed landscaping scheme will be addressed by means of a planning 
condition, although the principle of what is being proposed is considered acceptable. 
 
The Council’s Landscape Architect accepts this assessment to be accurate.  
 
However, he has commented that part of an existing hedgerow which the LVIA partially 
relies upon (together with the proposed hedge-bank) as a method of screening the 
development from this viewpoint, lies beneath electricity cables. He has therefore advised 
that if these cables needed to be replaced in the future by Western Power, then there is a 
danger of some of the trees that form part of this existing hedge being removed. If this 
were to happen prior to the new hedge-bank being suitably established, then the visual 
impact of the development from this viewpoint may remain high.  
 
The comments of the Landscape Architect are fully accepted. It is not clear whether 
Western Power have any proposals to carry out such works in the near future, although it 
is considered unlikely for such works to take place before the new hedge-bank has time to 
grow and establish to an extent that would screen the development to an acceptable level.      
 
It is, however, accepted that the visual harm from this viewpoint will be at its greatest in 
the short term, but this will reduce over time as the proposed landscaping works become 
more mature. In addition it is noted that the residents would only experience views from 
the rear of their properties and intervening garden vegetation and existing field boundaries 
would also help to filter/screen the views.  
 
From the remaining 6 viewpoints, visual effects are predicted to be not significant. From 
two locations (Loughor Harbour viewpoint and Field SE of Wern-olau viewpoint) the 
development would be screened from views by intervening built development and/or the 
pattern of hedgerow and trees that surround the site.  Page 215



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
From the other locations where any open views are likely to be experienced, there would 
tend to be glimpses of the array and its associated infrastructure evident amongst nearby 
trees and hedges. In general however, the development would be viewed within a 
surrounding developed context of residential housing and nearby pylons and at a distance 
where there extent of changes would only affect a small horizontal and vertical extent of 
the view. 
 
The visual impact of the ancillary works including the substation, CCTV, and lighting and 
security fencing together with the site compound are generally considered to be 
acceptable, and can be partially mitigated through the use of conditions. 
 
It is, therefore, considered that the size and location of the proposed solar array, including 
the ancillary works is acceptable in terms of its impact on the visual amenity of the area 
and is broadly compliant with the requirements of Policies EV1, EV2, EV21, EV22, EV23 
and R11 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008. 
 
Green wedge 
 
It is acknowledged that the site in question is located within the Gorseinon Green Wedge 
and as such Policy EV23 of the Unitary Development Plan is relevant in this instance. It is 
considered that the proposals will fall under part (vii) of this Policy, as it is considered to 
be appropriate development within the green wedge comprising of “other uses of land and 
forms of development that maintain the openness of the green wedge and do not conflict 
with the purpose of including land within it.” This view is reached, given that the 
development is essentially ground mounted and at its highest point will reach 3m which is 
much lower than the heights of most housing developments. Furthermore, whilst the 
proposal will be in place for a number of years, it will be inevitably removed from the site 
and the land will revert back to its former state as a field. This will be secured via an 
appropriately worded condition. 
 
Residential Amenity 
 
Turning now to residential amenity, the site is immediately surrounded by fields and the 
neighbouring residential properties are located relatively significant distances away from 
the installation. It is noted in the section of this report which addresses the LVIA 
considerations that there will be some views of the development from certain neighbouring 
properties. However, there is no direct impact on local residents. In this respect, and due 
to the relatively low lying nature of the scheme, it is not considered that the proposal 
would result in any adverse physical overbearing or overshadowing impact in this 
instance. 
 
Glint and Glare 
 
In terms of the potential for glint and glare, particularly from private amenity spaces in 
nearby properties, Swansea Airport and in the wider surrounding area, a glint and glare 
assessment has been submitted which outlines the materials and principles of 
photovoltaic (PV) cells.    

Page 216



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Studies have been undertaken to compare the reflectivity of solar panels with other 
material, the most commonly reference source is a Federal Aviation Study into solar 
panels located at airports, which concludes that photovoltaic panels typically reflect just 
2% of incident light as they are designed to absorb light and not reflect it.  Although they 
can cause reflection under certain conditions, these are considerably less intense than 
direct sunlight.   
 
A geometric assessment has also been undertaken to determine if and when local 
residents many be exposed to direct solar reflections from the proposed PV panels. Using 
this information in combination with the installation angle of the panels, the direction of 
reflections can be ascertained.  The panels will be installed at around 22º and aligned 
facing directly to the south for maximum capture of light.  In its track, the sun’s rays 
approach the panels from the south of the array and the reflection directed upwards and to 
the north of the array. Given the Pencefnarda Road properties are located to the south of 
the site they will not experience any harmful reflections. 
The proposed panels are of a dark colour and covered in specially coated glass, which 
means that their reflectivity level is significantly lower that much material utilised in 
buildings and many naturally occurring features in the wider landscape. 
 
In terms of any impact on the surrounding Swansea Airport, it should be noted that solar 
installations are presently operating at a number of airports including megawatt-sized 
solar facilities covering multiple acres.  The following international airports are known to 
have installations at them: 
 
" Boston 
" Denver 
" London Gatwick 
" Munich 
" San Francisco 
" Stuttgart 
" Zurich 
 
As referenced earlier a Federal Aviation Authority study undertaken states that: 
 
Solar installations are presently operating at a number of airports including megawatt-
sized solar facilities covering multiple acres.  Project managers from six airports where 
solar has been in operation for one to three years were asked about glare complaints.  Air 
traffic controllers were contacted from three of those airports and asked to comment on 
the effect of glare on their daily operations.  To date there have been no serious 
complaints from pilots or air traffic control due to glare impacts from existing solar PV 
installations. 
 
Having regard to the above it is not considered that there would be any adversely 
unacceptable glint or glare impacts from this installation that would justify a refusal of this 
application in this instance. 
 
Access and Highway Safety 
 
It is accepted that traffic impact will occur during the construction phase.  HGV 
movements have the most impact in such schemes and the applicant has provided 
information on the number of expected movements.   Page 217



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
The construction phase is shown to last approximately 14 weeks and the busiest period 
for HGV movement is shown at weeks 3 - 4, where up to 9 deliveries per day are 
expected.  Other periods show an expected range of deliveries of between 2 to 4 HGV 
deliveries per day.  The predicted busiest period is not considered to be excessive and is 
unlikely to have any detrimental impact on highways in the area.  In total, there are 
expected to be 74 HGV movements associated with the construction phase none of which 
will involve any abnormal loads.  Additional movements will take place but these will not 
involve HGV traffic. 
 
The farm access, which is from Pencefnarda Road, is established and historically has 
accommodated HGV movements.  It is normal practice to restrict HGV movements where 
possible when consenting such development proposals and this could be achieved 
through requiring a Traffic Management Plan or separate condition.  Visibility is slightly 
restricted for car and small van use due to the adjacent hedge, but is suitable for HGV 
traffic as drivers of such vehicles are sitting closer to the front of the vehicle.  As additional 
non HGV traffic will be using the access during the construction phase, this visibility needs 
improving. 
 
On balance, it is not considered that the scheme will generate such a high volume of 
traffic movements so as to require a refusal of consent on highway safety grounds and 
therefore  no highway objection has been offered subject to the following; 
 
1. Prior to the commencement of development, facilities for wheel cleansing shall be 
provided on site in accordance with details submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Wheel cleaning shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details prior to any construction works commencing. 
 
2. Prior to any works commencing on the site, a Construction Traffic Management Plan 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved traffic management plan shall be implemented and adhered to at all times 
unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
3. Prior to the commencement of works, the visibility at the access junction shall be 
improved to provide visibility splays of 2.4m x 45m in accordance with details to be 
submitted and agreed. 
 
Pollution Prevention  
 
NRW have advised that there can be no deteriation of water bodies under the Water 
Framework Directive. It is therefore vital that all appropriate pollution control measures are 
adopted on site to ensure that the integrity of controlled waters (surface and ground) is 
assured. As best practice, it is advised that the developer produce a site specific 
construction management/ pollution prevention plan with particular reference given to the 
protection of the surrounding land and water environments. An appropriately worded 
condition should be attached to ensure this. 
 
The Council’s Pollution Control Officer has stated that a condition should be attached 
stating that prior to commencement of development, the applicant shall submit in writing 
the Site Specific Environmental Management Plan to the Local Planning Authority.  

Page 218



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
With regard to ‘glint and glare’ from the proposed development, the Officer has stated that 
there are no objections to make regarding the matter as long as the information within The 
Supporting Environmental Document and their Construction Method Statement are 
adhered to. 
 
Response to consultations 
 
As detailed above, significant response has been received to the application, 69 letters of 
objection raising issues principally relating to: 
 
Visual amenity 
Pollution control  
Ecology 
Glint/glare 
Highways 
Policy Issues 
Impact on Green wedge 
 
The above listed topics are addressed in detail above.  Further issues are addressed 
below: 
 
One point in relation to precedent is consistently raised; however, all applications are 
treated and considered on their own individual merits.   
 
Surface water drainage issues are covered by appropriate conditions recommended by 
NRW. 
 
It is acknowledged that there are solar arrays previously approved in Swansea, however, 
they are not considered to have a cumulative impact in terms of warranting refusal of this 
scheme. It is noted that the two consented schemes referred to by the objector as being 
within a 5km radius of the site (and hence he claims should have been referred to in the 
applicant’s LVIA), were not consented when this application was submitted. For the 
avoidance of doubt, there was only one consented solar array located within 5km of the 
site when the application was submitted – the scheme at the Llys Nini (RSPCA) site in 
Penllergaer. However, due to the small scale of that scheme, it is not considered that the 
current proposal when considered in conjunction with the Llys Nini scheme has an 
adverse cumulative impact. 
 
The information submitted with the application is considered to be sufficient to enable a 
proper assessment of the application. Furthermore, Officer site visits have been 
undertaken to assess the visual impact of the development, both on site and from a 
Pencefnarda Road property (considered to be the most affected by local objectors). Some 
of the original information has been amended to include altered grid coordinates and a 
correction to the title of Viewpoint 1 which is considered to have addressed some of the 
issues raised. 
 
The chosen viewpoints are considered sufficient in this instance in order to assess the 
development from the most affected viewpoint. The Viewpoint in which has been found to 
be the most affected according to the LVIA (Field North of Pencefnarda Road) has been 
visited by an Officer in order to gain a real perspective of this view. 

Page 219



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
The screening as outlined in Plan: PCN022 is considered to be sufficient in this instance 
and furthermore, appropriate conditions will be attached to ensure the screening 
adequately screens the field from a majority of vistas from the Viewpoint concerned. 
 
The comments made to the Evening Post regarding their article on the proposal are not 
considered to be an issue in this instance, as the Evening Post is a separate independent 
body to the Local Authority. 
 
The concerns regarding the watercourse issues and subsequent drainage problems 
currently experienced at the site are not considered to materially affect the determination 
of this application, but instead relate to the 2012/0905 planning application, for the 
variation of condition 1 of Planning Permission 2007/1236 dated the 11th October 2007 to 
allow tipping operations to continue for an extended period of 3 years. 
 
With regards to the comments received regarding the land in question becoming part of 
the Gower AONB. Whilst this may be possible in the future, the site is not currently part of 
the Gower AONB and is not considered to be located in land adjoining the AONB. 
Therefore, this cannot be a consideration in this instance given the current status of the 
land. 
 
It is accepted that the LVIA does not contain any photographic material taken from 
neighbouring properties. However, an Officer has visited a neighbouring property in order 
to assess the development from there. The information contained within the supporting 
information (including the LVIA) is however considered to be sufficient to adequately allow 
the determination of this application. 
 
With regards to the verification of the energy output figures submitted, the agent has 
specified the average output proposed and this is as such considered to be sufficient in 
this instance. 
 
The Local Development Plan has not been adopted as yet and, therefore, the proposals 
contained within it cannot be taken into account at this time. 
 
The most recent proposed site layout plan (PCN022) now contains more detail regarding 
the height and spacing of the trees and hedging to ensure a better understanding of the 
siting and heights of the proposed trees and hedging. 
 
Issues relating to the proposed grid connection can be addressed via an appropriately 
worded condition. 
 
The issues in relation to the right to a view and the affect on the values of properties are 
not considered material planning considerations and as such are not taken into account in 
this instance. 
 
With regards to the concerns in relation to the supporting letters received, the comments 
are acknowledged in terms of the letter potentially being biased and not from people living 
within the surrounding area. However, procedurally these letters have to be taken into 
account 
 
The letters of support are noted and the comments contained therein are also reiterated 
above. Page 220



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
Conclusion 
 
The scheme is considered appropriate in terms of its scale and design and would not 
cause unacceptable loss of amenity to neighbouring properties or surrounding land. There 
would not be significantly adverse visual impact on landscapes, open spaces and the 
general locality from the site (subject to conditions) and there would be no significantly 
adverse or detrimental impact on the ecology, habitats, highway safety or land drainage in 
the area. 
 
On balance the scheme is considered acceptable and is in accordance with the criteria 
laid out in Policies EV1, EV2, EV21, EV22, EV23 and R11 of the City and County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008 and accordingly approval is recommended. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than five years from the 
date of this decision. 

 Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990.  

 

2 A detailed scheme for the eradication of Japanese Knotweed shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme 
shall be implemented prior to the commencement of work on site. 

 Reason: In the interests of the ecology and amenity of the area.  

 

3 Prior to the commencement of development, facilities for the wheel cleansing of 
construction and delivery vehicles shall be provided on site in accordance with 
details submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Wheel cleansing shall be carried out at all times in accordance with the approved 
details during the construction and removal/restoration phases of the 
development. 

 Reason: In the interest of highway safety.  

 

4 Prior to any works commencing on the site, a Construction Traffic Management 
Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The approved traffic management plan shall be implemented and adhered to at all 
times unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: In the interest of highway safety.  

 

5 Prior to the commencement of works, the visibility at the point of site egress onto 
the highway known as Pencefnarda Road shall be improved to provide visibility 
splays of 2.4m x 45m, in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The improved visibility splays shall be 
retained thereafter. 

 Reason: In the interest of highway safety.  

 
Page 221



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 

6 Prior to the commencement of development, details of all boundary trees, 
hedgerows and ditches to be retained within the site shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The trees, hedgerows and 
ditches agreed as to be retained, shall be retained at all times thereafter, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: In the interests of ecology.  

 

7 Prior to commencement of development, a reptile mitigation strategy (RMS) shall 
be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed 
RMS shall be implemented in full and any site management measures shall be 
implemented thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 Reason: In the interests of ecology.  

 

8 Prior to the commencement of the development, the applicant/developer shall 
submit and agree in writing a Site Specific Environmental Management Plan 
(SSEMP) with the Local Planning Authority. The approved SSEMP shall be 
implemented in full thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 Reason: In the interests of pollution control.  

 

9 Within two months of the use of the solar PV panels permanently ceasing, a 
scheme for their removal and the restoration of the land, including a timescale for 
the works, shall be submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority. The removal and restoration scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details. 

 Reason: In the interest of visual amenity.  

 

10 The design, location, period of use and orientation of any/all new lighting provision 
and details of all security fencing and CCTV installed as a consequence of the 
proposed development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority before any lighting , fencing or CCTV is erected, and the 
scheme shall be implemented and retained in accordance with the approved 
details 

 Reason: To ensure that the development hereby approved does not result in 
unacceptable levels of light pollution to the surrounding area.  

 

11 Prior to the commencement of development, details of the proposed grid 
connection and details of the connection between the solar array and the sub-
station, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
details prior to the first use of the development hereby approved. 

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 

Page 222



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 

12 No development approved by this permission shall take place until details of the 
implementation, maintenance and management of a sustainable drainage system 
(SUDS) for surface water drainage has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall be implemented prior to the 
construction of any impermeable surfaces draining to this system, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

 Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a 
satisfactory means of surface water disposal.  

 

13 No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a Pollution 
Prevention Management Plan (PPMP) detailing all necessary pollution prevention 
measures for the construction phase of the development is submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details of the plan shall 
be implemented as approved and must be efficiently communicated to all 
contractors and sub-contractors (for example, via toolbox talks) and any 
deficiencies rectified immediately. 

 

As a minimum the PPMP should include: 

 

- Identification of surrounding watercourses and potential pollution pathways from 
the construction site to those watercourses. 

- How each of those watercourses and pathways will be protected from site run off 
during construction. 

- How the water quality of the watercourses will be monitored and recorded. 

- How surface water runoff from the site during construction will be 
managed/discharged. Please note that it is not acceptable for ANY pollution (e.g. 
sediment/silt/oils/chemicals/cement etc.) to enter the surrounding watercourses. 

- storage facilities for all fuels, oils and chemicals. 

- construction compounds, car parks, offices, etc. 

- details of the nature, type and quantity of materials to be imported on to the site. 

- measures for dealing with any contaminated material (demolition waste or 
excavated waste). 

- identification of any buried services, such as foul sewers, so that they are 
protected. 

- details of emergency contacts, for example Natural Resources Wales hotline 
0800 807 060. 

 Reason: Prevent pollution of controlled waters and the wider environment.  

 

14 No development shall be commenced until a Site Waste Management Plan 
(SWMP) has been produced and submitted in writing for approval by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance 
with the recommendations contained within the approved SWMP. 

 Reason: To ensure waste at the site is managed in line with the Waste Hierarchy 
in a priority order of prevention, re-use, recycling before considering other 
recovery or disposal option.  

 

Page 223



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 

15 If any works to the existing trees around the perimeter of the site need to be 
undertaken, they should be first be surveyed for bats by a suitably qualified 
ecologist and an associated bat survey report shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: In the interests of ecology.  

 

16 Prior to the commencement of development, an amphibian management strategy 
(AMS) shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The agreed AMS shall be implemented in full and any site management measures 
shall be implemented thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 Reason: In the interests of ecology.  

 

17 Notwithstanding the details hereby approved, no development shall take place 
without the written approval of the Local Planning Authority of a scheme for the 
landscaping of the site and the land to the south of the site (identified as blue land 
on the application documents). The landscaping scheme shall include details of all 
existing landscaping features to be retained, together with those to be enhanced 
and new landscaping features. The approved landscaping scheme shall be carried 
out prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved. 

 

The agreed landscaping scheme shall be managed in accordance with a 
Landscape Management Plan (LMP) to be submitted to and agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority before works commence on site. The approved 
landscaping scheme shall be managed in full accordance with the agreed LMP for 
the entire time that the proposed development is in situ. 

 Reason: To ensure that the site is satisfactorily landscaped and the proposed 
landscaping scheme managed, having regard to its location and the nature of the 
proposed development, together with the need to reduce the visual impact of the 
proposed development.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: (Policies EV1, EV2, EV21, EV22, 
EV23 and R11 of the Unitary Development Plan) 

 
2 Birds may be present in this building and grounds please note it is an offence 

under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to intentionally 
(intentionally or recklessly for Schedule 1 birds) to: 
-  Kill, injure or take any wild bird 
-  Take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that nest in use or being 
built 
-  Take or destroy an egg of any wild bird 
Care should be taken when working on buildings particularly during the bird 
nesting season March-August. 

 

Page 224



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 20TH JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 19 (CONT’D)  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0761 

 
3 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 
4 Any waste materials that are generated on site (either as a result of construction or 

demolition) must be stored and treated in line with relevant environmental 
legislation. If it is proposed to treat waste on site (i.e. production of aggregates), a 
relevant waste permit/exemption must be registered with NRW. More information 
on relevant waste exemptions can be found on our website: 
www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk. 

 
5 Please see Planning Advice Note sent by Natural Resources Wales sent under 

separate cover. 
 
6 Bats may be present.  All British bat species are protected under Schedule 5 of the 

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and are listed in Schedule 2 of the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.  This legislation 
implements the EC Habitats & Species Directive in the UK making it an offence to 
capture, kill or disturb a European Protected Species or to damage or destroy the 
breeding site or resting place of such an animal.  It is also an offence to recklessly 
/ intentionally to disturb such an animal. 
If evidence of bats is encountered during site clearance e.g. live or dead animals 
or droppings, work should cease immediately and the advice of the Natural 
Resources Wales sought before continuing with any work (01792 634960). 

 
PLANS 
 
PCN001-site location plan, PCN002 V1-site layout plan, PCN004-indicative site 
infrastructure, PCN005-indicative sub station building dated 24th May 2014.  PCN003A-
construction compound, PCN004V2-Solar Panel Elevations dated 3rd June 2014. 
PCN022 Amended Site Layout Plan and PCN021 Additional Plan Showing Land 
Ownership, PCN022(B) Additional Site Layout Plan on Aerial Photo, PCN023 Additional 
Cross Sections dated 29th December 2014   
 

 
 

Page 225



Electoral Ward: 
Gower 

 
Report of the Head of Economic Regeneration and Planning 

 
Planning Committee - 20 January 2015 

 
Referral of Planning Application Ref: 2014/0417 

From the Area 2 Planning Committee on 29th July 2014 
And the Development and Management Control Committee  

on 14th August 2014. 
 

Land off Monksland Road, Scurlage, Gower, Swansea 
 

Construction of 14 no. residential dwellings and associated works 
 

1.0 Background 
 
1.1 This application was reported to the Area 2 Development Control Committee on the 

29th July 2014, with the recommendation that planning permission be granted as an 
acceptable departure from the provisions of the Development Plan, subject to the 
developer entering into a Section 106 Obligation in respect of the provision of 100% 
affordable housing and conditions.  

 
1.2 The Committee subsequently resolved to accept the recommendation of approval 

and the application was referred to the Development Management and Control 
Committee on the 14th August 2014 where a resolution to grant planning permission 
subject to a Section 106 agreement securing the long term use of the dwellings for 
local need affordable housing was made. A copy of my report to Area 2 
Development Control Committee on 29th July 2014 and my report to the 
Development and Management Control Committee held on the 14th August 2014 are 
attached as Appendix A and B respectively. 

 
2.0 Main Issues 
 
2.1 Following comments from the Council’s Legal department, it has been confirmed that 

the Council cannot covenant with itself in a Section 106 agreement on land within its 
ownership.  Therefore, as a way forward, the Council’s Legal Officer recommends 
that an additional condition and informative (see below) be included in the planning 
consent instead of the requirement for the signing of a Section 106 Planning 
Obligation prior to the grant of planning permission. This will have the effect of 
securing the necessary obligations as no development can commence until a 
planning obligation is completed.  The Council currently own the land but does not 
intend to develop the land itself.  Planning permission runs with the land so once the 
Council cease to have a legal interest in the site then it will be able to covenant with 
the developer to secure the obligations by way of Section 106 agreement.  It is not a 
practise that would be utilised in respect of land not owned by the Council and is only 
suggested here to bridge an anomalous gap in the planning legislation which only 
affects unitary authorities.   

  
2.2 In addition, proposed Conditions 17, 18 and 19 relate to requirements in respect of 

the Code for Sustainable Homes which were withdrawn by Welsh Government on 
the 1st August 2014. As such, it is recommended that these Conditions are removed. 

 
Page 226

Agenda Item 8



2.3 Further, it is recommended that proposed Conditions 2, 8, 13, 16 and 20 are 
amended for clarity and consistency. 

 
2.4 It would appear that proposed Condition 5 is a duplicate of the more detailed 

proposed Condition 20 and should be removed in the interest of clarity and 
consistency. 

 
3.0  Recommendation 
 
3.1 It is recommended that: 
 

The application is approved as a Departure from the provisions of the Development 
Plan subject to: 
(i) the removal of proposed Condition 5; 
(ii) the removal of proposed Code for Sustainable Homes Conditions 17, 18, 19; 
(iii) the amendment of proposed Conditions 2, 8, 13, 16 and 20 for clarity and 

consistency;  
(iv) inclusion of the following additional Condition (to be numbered accordingly); 

and 
(iv) subject to the remaining Conditions set out in my report to the Area 2 

Development Control Committee on 29th July 2014 attached as Appendix B:- 
 
 Condition [ ] 
 
 ‘The development shall not commence until a scheme for the provision of affordable 

housing to contribute to the provision of local needs affordable housing in 
accordance with Policy EV18 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary 
Development Plan 2008 has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include: 

 
(i) the numbers, type, tenure and location on the site of the affordable housing 

provision to be made which shall consist of not less than 100% of housing units;  
(ii) the timing of the construction of the affordable housing and its phasing in relation 

to the occupancy of the market housing;  
(iii) the arrangements for the transfer of the affordable housing to an affordable 

housing provider (if no RSL involved);  
(iv) the arrangements to ensure that such provision is affordable for both first and 

subsequent occupiers of the affordable housing; and  
(v) the occupancy criteria to be used for determining the identity of occupiers of the 

affordable housing and the means by which such occupancy criteria shall be 
enforced.  

 
Reason: To ensure the development contributes to the provision of affordable 
housing in accordance with policy EV18 of the City and County of Swansea Unitary 
Development Plan 2008. 

 
 Informative 7 
 
 Written approval of such scheme referred to at Condition [ ] would be secured by 

entering into an appropriate Section 106 Agreement. 
 
 
 
 

Page 227



 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Local Government Act 1972 (Section 100) (As Amended) 
 
The following documents were used in the preparation of this report: 
Application file, together with the files and documents referred to in the background 
information section of the appended Development Control committee report. 
 

Contact Officer: Ryan Thomas Extension No: 5731 

Date of 

Production: 

12th January 
2015 

Document 

Name: 
Monksland Road 

 

Page 228



Report of the Head of Economic Regeneration & Planning  
 

To Development Management & Control Committee – 19th June 2014 
 

Referral of Planning Application Ref: 2014/0417 
 

From Area 2 Development Control Committee on 29th July 2014 
 

LAND OFF MONKSLAND ROAD, SCURLAGE, GOWER 
SWANSEA 

 
CONSTRUCTION OF 14 NO. RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS AND ASSOCIATED WORKS 

 
 

Purpose: 
 

To determine the planning application for the 
construction of 14 no. residential dwellings and 
associated works. 

Policy Framework: 
 

National and Local Planning Policies  

Reason for Decision:  
 

Statutory responsibility of the Local Planning Authority  
 

Consultation: 
 

Statutory consultations in accordance with planning 
regulations as set out in the planning application report 
contained in Appendix B 

 
Recommendation(s): Approve subject to a S106 Planning Obligation as set 

out in the report 
 
Report Author: Ryan Thomas 
  
Finance Officer: Not applicable 
 
Legal Officer: Not applicable 
 

 
3.0 Background 
 
3.1 This application was reported to Area 2 Development Control Committee on the 29th 

July 2014, which resolved that this application be referred to Development, 
Management and Control Committee with a recommendation that planning 
permission be approved as an acceptable Departure from the provisions of the 
Development Plan subject to conditions and to a S106 Obligation in respect of the 
provisions of 100% affordable housing which shall be DQR compliant.  

 
3.2 A plan showing the location of the application site is attached as Appendix A. The 

report was verbally amended to correct a typographical error and amend the wording 
of condition 6 and a copy of my updated report to the Area 2 Development Control 
Committee on the 29th July 2014 attached as Appendix B. 

 

APPENDIX A 

Page 229



4.0 Planning Policy Issues 
 
2.1 The site is situated outside the village, on the periphery of Scurlage and the proposal 

would result in the rounding off of the northern end of the village. The site forms part 
of larger parcel of land which was identified in the previously extant Swansea Local 
Plan Review No1 for affordable housing. Whilst Policy EV16 allows for small scale 
development within named settlements such as Scurlage, this policy alone would not 
render the proposal acceptable in principle. However when read in conjunction with 
Policy EV18 – Local Needs Affordable Housing and in particular Amplification 1.6.9, 
this acknowledges that Scurlage has the potential to provide local needs affordable 
housing on land adjacent to the Health Centre. 

 
2.2 Having consulted the Director of Regeneration and Housing, it is acknowledged that 

there is a high demand for affordable housing in the Gower area and as a 
consequence there is support for bringing forward this site for affordable housing as 
a departure from the provisions of the Development Plan. It would be a requirement 
however that the site be developed for 100% affordable housing units would be 
flexible to meet the tenure requirement at occupation (i.e tenure neutral). All 
affordable housing units would have to be DQR compliant. 

  
2.3 In terms of sustainability the site is situated adjacent to the identified small village of 

Scurlage along a main bus route to Swansea and is within close proximity to the 
local school and other community facilities and as such the future residents would 
not be solely reliant on private car as a method of transport.  

 
2.4 Therefore given the identified need for affordable housing in the area given that the 

proposal is considered to satisfactorily address issues relating to ecology, residential 
amenity, visual amenity, ecology, drainage and highway safety the principle of local 
need affordable housing at this location is considered acceptable in this instance and 
the release of this land as a departure from Policy EV16 is supported in principle.  

 
3.0 Financial Implications 
 
3.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 

 
4.0 Legal Implications 
 
4.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report. 
 
5.0 Recommendation 
 
5.1 It is recommended that the application be approved as a Departure from the 

provisions of the Development Plan subjected to the developer entering into a 
Section 106 Obligation to provide 100% affordable housing units on the site, which 
shall be DQR compliant and subject to the updated conditions detailed in my report 
to Area 2 Development Control Committee on the 29th July 2014 attached as 
Appendix B. 

 

Page 230



 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Local Government Act 1972 (Section 100) (As Amended) 
 
The following documents were used in the preparation of this report: 
Application file, together with the files and documents referred to in the background 
information section of the appended Development Control committee report. 
 
 
Appendices:   
Appendix A – Location Plan 
Appendix B – Committee Report 
 
 
 

Contact Officer: Ryan Thomas Extension No.: 5731 

Date of Production: 1st August 2014 Document Name: Scurlage 

 
 
 

Page 231



 

ITEM  APPLICATION NO. 2014/0417 

  WARD: Gower 
Area 2 

 

Location: Land off Monksland Road, Scurlage, Gower, Swansea SA3 1AY 

Proposal: Construction of 14 no. residential dwellings and associated works 

Applicant: Mr Lyn Davies 

 
 

Golden

A
s
h
 C

ro
ft

21

1

3

Lodge

Surgery

TCB

2
5

Sub

Met

H
o
u
s
e

C
or
ne
r

D
ra
in

CG

1
4

M
O

N
K

S
L
A

N
D

 R
O

A
D

Su
nn
yd
ale

Sta

Sta

1

1
6

Scu
rla

ge Villa

1
0

46.8m

16A

LB

47.6m

S
h
e
lte

r

Rowan

1
8

18

Grove

4

T
y C

a
n
a

l

H
a
w
th
o
rn

Bowstones

Scurlage

48.8m

El

2

1
1

9

5

3

23

SALISBURY CLO
SE

Scurlage Farm

10

20

H
ou
se

4

B
 4

2
4
7

PO

The Old Pharmacy

1

2

3

6

8

M
IL

E
S
T
O

N
E
  
C
O

U
R
T

Ty Ni

 Ty Gwyn

NOT TO SCALE 
© Crown Copyright and database right 2014: 

Ordnance Survey 100023509. 

APPENDIX B 

Page 232



 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
POLICIES 
 

Policy  Policy Description 

Policy EV1 New development shall accord with a defined set of criteria of good 
design. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV2 The siting of new development shall give preference to the use of 
previously developed land and have regard to the physical character 
and topography of the site and its surroundings. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008). 

 

Policy EV3 Proposals for new development and alterations to and change of use of 
existing buildings will be required to meet defined standards of access. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV16 Within the small villages identified on the Proposals Map, small-scale 
development will be approved only where it is appropriate to the location 
in terms of the defined criteria. (City & County of Swansea Unitary 
Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV18 In exceptional circumstance permission maybe granted for the 
development of small local needs affordable housing sites within and 
adjoining settlements. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development 
Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV22 The countryside throughout the County will be conserved and enhanced 
for the sake of its natural heritage, natural resources, historic and 
cultural environment and agricultural and recreational value through: 
i) The control of development, and  
ii) Practical management and improvement measures. 
(City & County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 
 

 

Policy EV26 Within the Gower AONB, the primary objective is the conservation and 
enhancement of the area's natural beauty.  Development that would 
have a material adverse effect on the natural beauty, wildlife and 
cultural heritage of the AONB will not be permitted. (City & County of 
Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV33 Planning permission will normally only be granted where development 
can be served by the public mains sewer or, where this system is 
inadequate, satisfactory improvements can be provided prior to the 
development becoming operational. (City & County of Swansea Unitary 
Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy EV35 Development that would have an adverse impact on the water 
environment due to: 
i) Additional surface water run off leading to a significant risk of 
flooding on site or an increase in flood risk elsewhere; and/or,  
ii) A reduction in the quality of surface water run-off. 

Page 233



Will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that appropriate 
alleviating measures can be implemented. (City & County of Swansea 
Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy HC17 The Council will negotiate with developers to secure improvements to 
infrastructure, services, and community facilities; and to mitigate against 
deleterious effects of the development and to secure other social 
economic or environmental investment to meet identified needs, via 
Section 106 of the Act. (City & County of Swansea Unitary Development 
Plan 2008) 

 

Policy AS1 Accessibility - Criteria for assessing location of new development. (City 
& County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 

Policy AS6 Provision of car parking in accordance with adopted standards. (City & 
County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan 2008) 

 
SITE HISTORY  
 

App No. Proposal 

75/1599/03 ERECTION OF 135 DWELLINGS AND ONE SHOP 

Decision:  Withdraw 

Decision Date:  25/08/1976 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS: 
 
Neighbours: The application was advertised on site in the form of a site notice and in the 
press as a departure from the provisions of the Development Plan. In addition to this 11 
properties were individually consulted. 11 LETTERS OF OBJECTION were received which 
raised the following issues: 
 
1. Overdevelopment. 
2. Drainage. 
3. Lack of amenities. 
4. Vehicular traffic. 
5. Contrary to the provisions of the Development Plan. 
6. Sewerage concerns. 
7. Congestion. 
8. No provision for affordable housing. 
9. Lack parking. 
10. Concern that housing would not be allocated to local people. 
11. Development would put a strain on local amenities and facilities. 
12. Flooding. 
13. Inaccuracies and discrepancies with the submission. 
14. Concern that the dwellings will become holiday homes. 
15. No work in Gower for residents of these proposed houses. 
16. Proposal does not conform to minimum highway standards. 
17. Loss of privacy. 
18. Development fails to comply with Councils separation distances. 
19. This development will tilt the balance of Scurlage towards social housing. 
20. Unacceptable impact on character and appearance of the area. 
21. Lack of rear amenity space for future occupiers. 
22. Garden areas below minimum standards. 

Page 234



23. No need demonstrated for affordable dwellings provided. 
24. Access road etc not to adoptable standards. 
25. Parking spaces are not wide enough. 
26. Properties are too small. 
27. Roof design not in accordance with the Gower AONB Design Guide. 
28. Scheme fails to comply with Gower Design Guide. 
29. Concern over loss of natural wildlife and habitats. 
30. Too much hardstanding proposed. 
31. Lack of public transport to serve the development. 
32. Lack of natural surveillance. 
33. Inconvenience for neighbours during construction. 
34. Noise and air pollution. 
35. Inadequate private amenity space. 
 
Welsh Water/Dwr Cymru: No objection subject to conditions and informatives. 
 
Glamorgan Gwent Archaeological Trust: Scurlage and the surrounding area over the last 
few years has produced thousands of worked flint implements, ranging in date from the 
Mesolithic period to the later Bronze Age, which approximates to 8,000 years. The area is 
clearly of great importance; although as yet no structures relating to settlement have been 
located in the area, the concentration of the amount of flints and the range of tool types and 
ages shows that it was a centre utilising what may be material deposited by the retreat of 
the ice sheets during the period approximately 10,000 years BC. However, archaeological 
evaluation nearby has shown limited evidence for this. As the application area is within the 
known areas of flints, towards the northern known extent, which in the main have been 
found by walking ploughed areas, it is possible that such material may be found during the 
proposed works.  
 
The area is also within the Registered Historic Landscape of West Gower, within character 
area HLCA040 Scurlage and Berry, characterised as: Post-medieval/medieval agricultural 
landscape and former manorial centres (Scurlage Castle - secular; Berry - monastic): post-
medieval semi-regular fieldscape; shrunken medieval/post-medieval clustered settlement of 
Scurlage Castle and linear settlement of Berry; relict and buried archaeology; limestone 
extraction and processing. The development will be of residential nature within a residential 
setting and of a scale not inappropriate and it is our opinion that the proposals will not 
require an Assessment of the Impact of a Development on a Historic Landscape; however, 
Cadw should be consulted as to their opinion.  
 
It is therefore our opinion as the archaeological advisors to your Members that we 
recommend a condition for an archaeological watching brief to be attached to any consent 
granted in respect of the current application. This recommendation is made following the 
advice given in Welsh Office Circular 60/96, Section 22. 
 
The Coal Authority: No Comment. 
 
Drainage Officer: We have reviewed the application as submitted and based on the 
information contained therein must recommend that the application be withdrawn or 
deferred.  
 
The application has failed to demonstrate a sustainable and viable means of draining the 
site in accordance with TAN15, all planning applications submitted must include a Drainage 
Strategy appropriate to the size and nature of the development.  
 

Page 235



We acknowledge we have had some discussions with the applicant’s consultants however 
we have not agreed any strategy as of yet. Our last discussions involved looking at 
discharging all surface water arising as a result of the development to the local watercourse 
network at the greenfield rate of run off and with the permission of the riparian landowner, 
who has not been identified. This application indicates that soakaways are proposed to use 
to drain this site however we understand from the pre application discussions this is not a 
recommend solution due to the risk of dissolution features forming.  
 
Further comments - We have reviewed the application and the additional information and 
find it acceptable, therefore we recommend no objections subject to conditions. 
 
Pollution Control: No objection subject to conditions. 
 
The Gower Society: We refer to the above application and supporting documents that we 
have studied closely and we have the following comments to make: 
 
1.    As a Housing Association Development we expect that: 
• The houses will remain within the Associations ownership in perpetuity. 
•  Wherever possible the houses will only be available for local people from  Gower. 
• Under no circumstances must any house be allowed to become second home  or 

be sub let for holiday purposes. 
 
2. The sewerage system and treatment works at Fairy Hill is already overloaded and 

Welsh Water must be satisfied that there network will accept the additional demand 
along with the recent eight new dwellings in the Sports Field and additional loading 
from the Gower Holiday Village. 

 
3. The dry stone walling as shown does not indicate the type of stone to be used. It is 

essential that a none vernacular construction is not allowed or built, as at the North 
Gower Hotel Whitford View site. The stonework there is entirely unsatisfactory. It is 
also pointed out that the drawing does not reflect the local style either because a 
cock and hen capping cannot be achieved in this way with the local limestone. We 
would also have thought that a concrete block wall with a faced rubble limestone 
finish and a rendered and wet dashed finish on the inside would have achieved all 
that is required in this location. 

 
Following concerns expressed by the Councils Urban Design and Highways Officers 
amended plans were submitted in order to address these concerns. All previous consults 
were carried out and the following responses were received: 
 
Neighbours: No letters of response received. 
 
Gower Society: Original comments still apply. 
 
Highways:  
 
1  Background 
 
1.1  This proposal is for the erection of 14 new dwellings on land at the end of Monksland 
Road, Scurlage.  In terms of the number of dwellings, this is a relatively small development 
and does not qualify for needing a formal transport assessment. 
 
1.2  Monksland Road currently terminates at a turning head and it is intended to continue 
the road onwards in the form of a shared surface road to access a new turning head at the 

Page 236



end of the development.  A further Access in the form of a shared private drive will serve 5 
of the new dwellings. 
 
2  Traffic Impact 
 
2.1  Monksland Road varies in width and is approximately 4.5m wide on the approach to 
the site. Most estate roads are 5.5m wide and this access therefore is below that standard.  
On street parking by residents does create some congestion and often cars are seen to be 
parked straddling the kerb. 
 
2.2  Monksland Road currently serves in the region of 52 dwellings along its length and in 
Salisbury Close, more recently consent was granted for additional dwellings near to this 
application site. 
 
2.3  Comparison with national data for residential traffic, it is estimated that the 
development would likely generate 8 two-way movements in each peak hour.  This would 
be made up of 5 movements out and 3 movements in during the morning peak and the 
reverse in the afternoon peak. I consider this to be a low number of traffic movements 
unlikely to have any detrimental impact. 
 
3  Access Alterations 
 
3.1  In order to extend Monksland Road to serve the site, the existing turning head will be 
removed and this will necessitate stopping up of that part of the highway no longer required.  
The applicant will need to apply to Welsh Government under recognised procedures for this 
aspect. 
 
3.2  Monksland Road will be widened from the bend just before the turning head to 5.5m 
wide in order to satisfactorily accommodate movements and more easily allow for on-street 
parking in that vicinity.  The new extension of the road will then go on at a standard width of 
5.5m, albeit that this will be a shared surface which is an option recommended in current 
guidelines.  The road is intended to be offered for adoption. 
 
3.3  From the bend previously referred to, Monksland Road enters into a lane which joins 
onto the main A4118.  This lane is currently unrestricted and is part of the highway network, 
so provides an alternative for vehicles leaving Monksland Road.  The lane is currently 
unmade and of uneven surface and the applicant will be required to improve this by 
resurfacing the lane to avoid any further deterioration through any additional use that might 
be brought about by the new development. This will also be of benefit to existing users. 
 
4  Parking 
 
4.1  Parking is provided within each plot in accordance with adopted parking standards.  
Each two bedroom property has two spaces and the three bedroom properties located off 
the shared private drive have access to three parking spaces.  The third space in each case 
can be used for visitor parking or to assist turning.  As all access roads within the 
development are to be 5.5m wide, on street parking for visitors is also available whereas on 
the existing estate this is far more difficult due to the narrower road. 
 
5  Conclusion and Recommendation 
 
5.1  Additional traffic movements will be generated by this development, however the 
number of movements associated with the erection of 14 dwellings is quite small and in 
itself unlikely to result in unacceptable safety implications.  Improvements to the road and 

Page 237



access are proposed at the development site and parking is being provided in accordance 
with adopted standards. 
 
5.2  I recommend no highway objection subject to the following; 
 
 i.  No development shall be commenced until details of the proposed 
arrangements for future management and maintenance of the proposed streets within the 
development have been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. [The 
streets shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved management and 
maintenance details until such time as an agreement has been entered into under section 
38 of the Highways Act 1980 or a private management and maintenance company has 
been established]. 
 
 ii.  No development shall be commenced until full engineering, drainage, street 
lighting and constructional details of the streets proposed for adoption have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall, 
thereafter, be constructed in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 iii.  Prior to any works commencing on the site, a Construction Traffic 
Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved traffic management plan shall be implemented and adhered to at 
all times unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 iv.  No work shall commence on that part of the site which requires the highway to 
be stopped up until the stopping up procedure has been completed. (current turning head). 
 
 v.  No soakaway shall be sited with 5m of any adopted highway. 
 
 vi.  The site shall not be brought into beneficial use until the lane connecting 
Monksland Road with the A4118 to the east of the site has been resurfaced in accordance 
with details to be agreed.  (Note this is work to the existing highway which will need to be 
secured through a Section 278 Agreement and undertaken by the Highway Authority at the 
expense of the developer). 
 
 vii.  Notwithstanding the submitted plans, the service strip opposite plots 7 and 8, 
shall be repositioned to follow the realigned kerb line. 
   
 Note: The Developer must contact the Highway Management Group , The City and 
County of Swansea , Penllergaer Offices, c/o The Civic Centre , Swansea SA1 3SN before 
carrying out any work . Please contact the Senior Engineer (Development), e-mails to: 
jim.marshall@swansea.gov.uk or the Team Leader, e-mails to 
mark.jones@swansea.gov.uk, tel. no. 01792 636091 
 
Pollution Control: I have no additional conditions to attach. My main concern related to the 
construction activities and colleagues have responded regarding drainage etc. 
 
APPRAISAL: 
 
This application is reported to Committee for decision as a Departure from the provisions of 
the Development Plan and at the request of Councillor Richard Lewis in order to assess the 
intensity of the development upon the visual amenities of the area. 
 
Description 

Page 238



 
Full planning permission is sought for the erection of 14 semi-detached two storey 
properties at land off Monksland Road, Scurlage. The proposal will also involve the creation 
of a new access to serve the properties. The site currently forms part of the countryside 
which surrounds the designated named settlement of Scurlage which is situated within the 
heart of the Gower AONB.  
 
Main Issues 
 
The main issues for consideration during the determination of this application relate to the 
principle of development at this location and any subsequent planning obligations and the 
resultant impact of development upon the visual amenities of the area and the wider Gower 
AONB, the residential amenities of the neighbouring properties, highway safety, drainage 
and ecology having regard for the provisions of the City and County of Swansea Unitary 
Development Plan 2008 (UDP) and the Supplementary Planning Guidance documents 
entitled ‘Gower AONB Design Guide’, ‘Planning Obligations’ and ‘Residential Design 
Guide’. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
The site is situated outside the village, on the periphery of Scurlage and the proposal would 
result in the rounding off of the northern end of the village. The site forms part of larger 
parcel of land which was identified in the previously extant Swansea Local Plan Review 
No1 for affordable housing. Whilst Policy EV16 allows for small scale development within 
named settlements such as Scurlage, this policy alone would not render the proposal 
acceptable in principle. However when read in conjunction with Policy EV18 – Local Needs 
Affordable Housing and in particular Amplification 1.6.9, this acknowledges that Scurlage 
has the potential to provide local needs affordable housing on land adjacent to the Health 
Centre. 
 
Having consulted the Director of Regeneration and Housing, it is acknowledged that there 
is a high demand for affordable housing in the Gower area and as a consequence there is 
support for bringing forward this site for affordable housing as a departure from the 
provisions of the Development Plan. It would be a requirement however that the affordable 
housing units would be flexible to meet the tenure requirement at occupation (i.e tenure 
neutral). All affordable housing units would have to be DQR compliant. 
  
In terms of sustainability the site is situated adjacent to the identified small village of 
Scurlage along a main bus route to Swansea and is within close proximity to the local 
school and other community facilities and as such the future residents would not be solely 
reliant on private car as a method of transport.  
 
Therefore given the identified need for affordable housing in the area subject to the 
proposal satisfactorily addressing issues relating to ecology, residential amenity, visual 
amenity, ecology, drainage and highway safety the principle of local need affordable 
housing at this location is considered acceptable in this instance and the release of this 
land as a departure from Policy EV16 is supported in principle.  
 
Policy HC17 allows the Local Planning Authority to enter into negotiations with developers 
to deliver planning obligations under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, and these provisions should be fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 
individual development. It is noted that the Council has adopted Supplementary Planning 
Guidance on S106 negotiations in March 2010. As referred to above the Housing Service 
supports the provision of local need affordable housing at this site and any successful 

Page 239



scheme would be subject to a Section 106 agreement which would retain these affordable 
units in perpetuity. 
 
In terms of any other likely planning obligations with the proposed development, in light of 
the fact that the site will be for 100% affordable housing and the drainage costs associated 
with the redevelopment of the site it is considered too onerous to request any further 
Section 106 obligations for this site. 
 
It is recommended, however, that the Section 106 Agreement will specifically require the 
occupiers to strictly adhere to the set criteria identified below: 
 
• Applicants who are resident within the area who have been resident for a 
 continuous period of at least 5 years immediately before making an application 
 
or  
 
• Applicants who have been resident within the area for any period of (or periods 

totalling) 7 years or more within the previous 10 years immediately before making an 
application,  

 
or  
 
• Applicants who were previously resident in the area and who have an 
 immediate family member(s) currently resident in the area and where the 
 immediate family member(s) have been resident within the area for a 
 continuous period of at least 10 years immediately before the housing 
 application was made and intend to remain. “Immediate family” means a parent or  
           parents, a child or children, or a sibling or siblings.”  
 
• Applicants who currently live in the area needing separate accommodation,  for 
example married couples and people living in tied accommodation on  retirement.  
 
• Applicants who work either full-time, or, part-time within the area. Part-time in  this 
case is defined as being a minimum of 10 hours each week.  
 
• Applicants who need to move into the area to take up full or part-time 
 employment (a minimum of 10 hours per week) within the area.  
 
• Applicants who need to move to the area to enable them to either give or receive 

support to or from an immediate family member. “Immediate family” means a parent 
or parents, a child or children, or a sibling or siblings or other relationships where a 
genuine need to give or receive support is demonstrated to the satisfaction of the 
City & County of Swansea. 

 
In the event that none of the above can be met by the applicants, the Authority may 
consider individuals from surrounding areas, communities that border the area.  This will be 
defined on a site by site basis if necessary.   
  
Character and appearance of the area 
 
The site comprises of a roughly L–shaped parcel of land abutting the northern edge of the 
small village of Scurlage. The site is accessed via Monksland Road which comes off the 
western side of the main A4118 road running roughly north – south through the village. 
Monksland Road serves as the main access road for the majority of the village providing 

Page 240



either direct frontage access to dwellings or access via secondary roads coming off this. To 
the east the application site incorporates land which directly abuts the northernmost part of 
this road. To the north and west the site backs onto open agricultural fields. Due to its L–
Shaped form the southern boundary of the site is staggered and backs onto the rear of 
existing one and two storey dwellings in its western part and is bounded by an existing 
turning head coming off Monksland Road in its eastern part.  
 
The village of Scurlage comprises of a mixture of detached and semi-detached dwellings as 
well as a few instances of short rows of terraced dwellings. The majority of dwellings are 2 
storeys in nature although there are some bungalows. The dwellings are traditional in 
character and form and predominantly comprise of pitched roof properties with roofs 
running parallel to the road. The majority of dwellings have chimneys. Front boundaries 
along Monklsand Road comprise of a low red brick wall whilst boundaries to the properties 
fronting onto Salisbury Close comprise of a mixture of stone, blockwork, wooden fencing 
and open boundary treatments. 
 
The application proposes the construction of 14 no. 2 storey dwellings as well as 
associated access, landscaping, parking and other external works. The site measures 
approximately 0.5 ha and the scheme would have a density of 28 dwellings per hectare. 
The density is considered necessary in order to fully utilise the sites accessibility potential 
and the provision of a large area of open space for residents will provide a high level of 
environmental quality for residents.  
 
The development comprise of seven pairs of semi-detached dwellings finished in render 
with a traditional pitched roof, pitched roof porches faced in stone and rendered chimneys. 
The scheme comprise of 2 bed/4person and 3 bed/5 person house types. Given the limited 
opportunities for vehicle connections around the site the access takes the form of two short 
cul-de-sacs terminating at turning heads. Pedestrian connections are provided within the 
site. Parking for the dwellings is predominantly in the form of side drives with some 
instances of orthogonally orientated bays abutting the access road. It is proposed that the 
boundary between the road edge and the houses is to be finished with a 1200mm natural 
dry stone boundary wall with cock and hen capping. A green open space area is proposed 
to the eastern most boundary of the site.    
 
Layout 
 
The site presents a strong building line parallel to the western and northern edges of the 
site which creates a sense of legibility and strong building line. Critically the revised scheme 
ensures plot 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 overlook the areas of public realm which helps improve 
natural surveillance whilst also improving the outlook from these properties. Furthermore 
the removal of visitor parking and re-siting of properties has helped create a large informal 
area of public open space which helps improve the visual appearance of the proposal.  
 
Where possible the proposal incorporates areas of front garden space which helps improve 
the setting and relate to its rural context through the provision of low lying front boundary 
walls, which helps soften and personalise the public realm.  
 
The proposed roadway will be treated as a shared home zone surface which helps it form 
part of the communal public realm.  
 
Garden and Amenity Space 
 
The scheme proposes some variety in garden sizes which helps create a more informal 
layout appropriate to its rural setting. However it is noted that whilst plots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 

Page 241



and 14 have amenity spaces well in excess of the minimum standards required by the 
Supplementary Planning Guidance documents entitled ‘Residential Design Guide’, Plots 8, 
9, 10, 11, 12 and 13 only just about meet the minimum requirements set out within this 
guide. It is noted that garden depth with units 7-14 are reduced by the hedge which is being 
retained. This hedge is an important ecological habitat and visual landscape feature which 
softens the relationship of the development with the wider countryside. If considered 
acceptable a condition is considered necessary in order to ensure the hedge is retained 
and further details required for its long term management. 
 
In order to address the minimal area of rear amenity space for the properties a large area of 
public open space is proposed which will provide an area for recreation for the future 
residents. 
 
House Types 
 
The proposed scale and form of the proposed houses are considered to be appropriate to 
their Gower context and take reference from the simple form and detailing of traditional 
pitched roof Gower houses within Gower as defined within the Gower AONB Design Guide. 
The rough cast render and riven edge slates are welcomed, as are the clipped eaves and 
mucked eaves. This is a welcome approach in general given that the development is for a 
Housing Association.  
 
The revised scheme incorporates one house type which will match the appearance of 
traditional semi-detached dwellings in the locality and the wider Gower area. The proposed 
natural stone porches are considered proportionate to the size, scale and design of the 
proposed dwellings and as such are appropriate to the Gower vernacular. In addition to this 
the porches incorporate a timber lintel which is welcome. 
 
The primary elevations of the proposed dwellings incorporate a pattern of fenestration with 
vertical windows which is supported and helps create a more harmonious elevation. The 
meter cupboards are located in the side elevations off the drives, away from the prominent 
front elevations which helps reduce visual clutter. 
 
The proposed natural dry stone boundary walls are welcomed to provide character to the 
scheme and to enhance the nature of the Gower location. The exact source of the natural 
stone and detailing will need to be conditioned. 
 
As such it is considered that the proposal responds to the character of its rural setting and 
incorporates Gower vernacular in accordance with the Gower AONB Design Guide.  
Therefore the proposal is considered to respect the visual amenities of the area and the 
wider Gower AONB and whilst not fully in accordance with the provisions of Policy EV16 of 
the Swansea UDP the scheme is considered to comply with the provisions of Policies EV1, 
EV2, EV18, EV22 and EV26 of the Swansea UDP and the Supplementary Planning 
Guidance document entitled ‘Gower AONB Design Guide’.  
 
Residential Amenity 
 
Turning to the impact of the proposal upon residential amenity, it is considered that ground 
floor overlooking will be mitigated via the proposed boundary treatment and furthermore the 
majority of side ground floor windows will mainly overlook the parking bays which will 
improve natural surveillance. It is considered that plots 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 are all sited a 
significant distance from the boundaries with the adjoining neighbouring properties and as 
such these units will not impinge upon the residential amenities of these neighbouring 
properties by virtue of overbearing, overshadowing or overlooking. 

Page 242



 
In terms of the impact on one another, plots 2, 3, 4, and 5 are staggered in terms of their 
relationship with one another and as such the flank facing 1st floor habitable room windows 
will not directly overlook private amenity space or into adjacent habitable room windows to 
unacceptable degree. Again plots 7-8 and 9-10 are staggered and will have an acceptable 
relationship with one another and will not result in unacceptable overlooking. Plots 9-10, 11-
12 and 13-14 however will run parallel with one another and will have 1st floor flank 
windows which will overlook into the adjacent rooms. Furthermore Plot 14’s gable facing 1st 
floor windows would be within 10m from the boundary with the neighbouring property and 
as such a condition recommended requiring these secondary bedroom windows to be 
obscurely glazed and fixed shut in order to mitigate unacceptable overlooking. 
 
The primary front and rear windows of Plot 1 will overlook the rear amenity space of the 
proposed dwelling and the area of public open space. Ground floor overlooking will be 
mitigated via an agreed boundary treatment and the east facing windows which overlook 
Ash Croft and the adjacent property are in-excess of 14m from the curtilage of these 
properties which is considered a sufficient distance from these properties in order to 
mitigate any potential unacceptable overlooking. As such Plot 1 is considered to respect the 
residential amenities of the neighbouring properties and will not result in unacceptable 
overbearing, overshadowing or overlooking.  
 
The rear windows of Plots 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 will overlook the private amenity space 
of the proposed dwellings and as such these will raise no issues relating to overlooking. 
Plots 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 are all sited a minimum of 12m from the boundaries with the 
adjoining properties which is considered a sufficient distance in order to ensure there will 
not be unacceptable overbearing, overshadowing or overlooking which could warrant the 
refusal of this application.  
 
Therefore subject to conditions, it is considered that the proposed development would have 
an acceptable impact upon the residential amenities of the neighbouring properties in 
compliance with Policies EV1 and EV18 of the Swansea UDP. 
 
Highways 
 
Having consulted the Head of Transportation and Engineering it is acknowledged that 
Monksland Road currently terminates at a turning head and the proposal will continue the 
road onwards in the form of a shared surface road to access a new turning head at the end 
of the development. A further access in the form of a shared private drive will serve 5 of the 
new dwellings. 
 
Monksland Road varies in width and is approximately 4.5m wide on the approach to the 
site. Most estate roads are 5.5m wide and this access therefore is below that standard.  On 
street parking by residents does create some congestion and often cars are seen to be 
parked straddling the kerb. Monksland Road currently serves in the region of 52 dwellings 
along its length and in Salisbury Close, more recently consent was granted for additional 
dwellings near to this application site. 
 
Comparison with national data for residential traffic, it is estimated that the development 
would likely generate 8 two-way movements in each peak hour. This would be made up of 
5 movements out and 3 movements in during the morning peak and the reverse in the 
afternoon peak. It is considered that this is a low number of traffic movements which is 
unlikely to have any detrimental impact. 
 

Page 243



In order to extend Monksland Road to serve the site, the existing turning head will be 
removed and this will necessitate stopping up of that part of the highway no longer required.  
The applicant will need to apply to Welsh Government under recognised procedures for this 
aspect. 
 
Monksland Road will be widened from the bend just before the turning head to 5.5m wide in 
order to satisfactorily accommodate movements and more easily allow for on-street parking 
in that vicinity. The new extension of the road will then go on at a standard width of 5.5m, 
albeit that this will be a shared surface which is an option recommended in current 
guidelines. The road is intended to be offered for adoption. 
 
From the bend previously referred to, Monksland Road enters into a lane which joins onto 
the main A4118.  This lane is currently unrestricted and is part of the highway network, so 
provides an alternative for vehicles leaving Monksland Road.  The lane is currently unmade 
and of uneven surface and the applicant will be required to improve this by resurfacing the 
lane to avoid any further deterioration through any additional use that might be brought 
about by the new development. This will also be of benefit to existing users. 
 
Parking is provided within each plot in accordance with adopted parking standards.  Each 
two bedroom property has two spaces and the three bedroom properties located off the 
shared private drive have access to three parking spaces.  The third space in each case 
can be used for visitor parking or to assist turning.  As all access roads within the 
development are to be 5.5m wide, on street parking for visitors is also available whereas on 
the existing estate this is far more difficult due to the narrower road. 
 
Additional traffic movements will be generated by this development, however the number of 
movements associated with the erection of 14 dwellings is quite small and in itself unlikely 
to result in unacceptable safety implications.  Improvements to the road and access are 
proposed at the development site and parking is being provided in accordance with adopted 
standards. 
 
Therefore there are no highway objections subject to conditions and the proposal is 
considered to respect highway safety and provide sufficient car parking in compliance with 
Policies EV1, EV3, AS1 and AS6 of the Swansea UDP.  
 
Drainage 
 
The applicant commissioned a drainage consultant to conduct permeability testing on the 
application site. Furthermore a CCTV drain survey was carried out on a collapsed pipe 
feeding into the existing soakaway located on the site. The submitted evidence suggests 
that the site is capable of accommodating soakaways and having consulted the Councils 
Drainage Officer there is no objection to the positive determination of this application 
subject to appropriately worded planning conditions. Therefore the proposal is considered 
to comply with the provisions of Policies EV33 and EV35 of the Swansea UDP. 
 
Ecology 
 
Having consulted the Councils Ecologist to assess the submitted ecological survey in 
support of this application, it is considered that subject to a condition protecting the future 
retention of the hedgerows on site the proposal will have an acceptable impact on ecology 
and biodiversity in compliance with Policy EV2 of the Swansea UDP. 
 
Response to Consultations 
 

Page 244



Notwithstanding the above, 11 letters of objection and 15 letters of comment were received 
which raised concerns relating to the impact of the proposal upon residential amenity, visual 
amenity, principle of development, drainage, ecology, highway safety, parking, congestion, 
impact on Gower AONB, type of affordable housing, compliance with Policy and Gower 
AONB Design Guide. The material issues pertaining to which have been addressed above. 
 
Concern was raised that the properties would be used as holiday lets. The dwellings are 
local need affordable housing which will be ensured in perpetuity via a Section 106 
Agreement.  
Concern has been raised regarding inaccuracies with the applicants submission, however it 
is considered that sufficient information has been provided by the applicant in order to 
enable the Local Planning Authority to reach a decision on this proposal. 
 
In addition to this concern has been raised with respect inconvenience associated with the 
construction of the development. This is a temporary measure and will not be a long term 
issue associated with this development. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Therefore subject to the signing of a Section 106 obligation restricting the housing 
availability to low cost purchase or rent, and for the retention of the housing in the long term 
as low cost housing to meet local needs and appropriately worded conditions it is 
considered that the development of this small site adjoining the settlement of Scurlage 
would fulfil a proven local need within the locality. Furthermore the proposal in terms of its 
design, form, elevational treatment, detailing and use of materials is considered to be 
sympathetic to the character of the village. The proposal is identified as countryside and 
would not result in the loss of land of important recreational, natural heritage or amenity 
value. The submitted information that the scale of the development would be in accord with 
the character of the area and that the site would be developed without giving rise to an 
unacceptable impact upon the residential amenities of the neighbouring properties, 
drainage, ecology and highway safety in compliance with the provisions of Policies EV1, 
EV2, EV3, EV18, EV22, EV23, EV33, EV34, EV35, HC17, AS2 and AS1 of the Swansea 
UDP and the Supplementary Planning Guidance document entitled ‘Planning Obligations’ 
and as such is recommended for approval as a Departure from the provisions of Policy 
EV16 of the Swansea UDP. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application be referred to DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT & CONTROL 
COMMITTEE with a recommendation that it be APPROVED ad a departure from the 
provisions of the Development Plan subject to the following conditions and to the 
developer entering into a Section 106 Obligation in respect of the provision of 100% 
affordable housing which should be DQR compliant:  
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than five years from the 
date of this decision. 

 Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990. Prior to the commencement of the stonework on site, a 
sample panel showing the stonework shall be submitted to and/or constructed on 
site and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing. The boundary walls 
and pillars shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.  

Page 245



 

2 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995, (or any Order revoking or amending that 
Order), Classes A and E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 shall not apply. 

 Reason: The development hereby approved is such that the Local Planning 
Authority wish to retain control over any future development being permitted in 
order to ensure that a satisfactory form of development is achieved at all times.  

 

3 Samples of all external finishes shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in writing before the development is commenced. The scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.  

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 

4 The first floor window(s) in the side elevations of plots 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 as 
indicated on the approved plans shall be obscurely glazed and unopenable below 
a height of 1.7m from internal floor level, and shall be retained as such at all times 
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  

 Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of neighbouring residential 
properties.  

 

5 Prior to the commencement of construction works on the application site (including 
all access roads) a Construction Pollution Management Plan (CPMP) shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. The CPMP is to include the 
following: 

 

a) Construction programme and timetable 

b) Detailed site plans to include indications of temporary site offices/ 
compounds, materials storage areas, proposed compounds, delivery and parking 
areas etc 

c) Traffic scheme (access and egress) in respect of all demolition/construction 
related vehicles; 

d) An assessment of construction traffic generation and management in so far 
as public roads are affected, including provisions to keep all public roads free from 
mud and silt; 

e) Proposed working hours; 

f) Principal Contractor details, which will include a nominated contact for 
complaints; 

g) Details of all on site lighting (including mitigation measures) having regard 
to best practicable means (BPM); 

h) Details of on site dust mitigation measures having regard to BPM; 

i) Details of on site noise mitigation measures having regard to BPM; 

j) Details of waste management arrangements (including any proposed 
crushing/screening operations); and 

k) Notification of whether a Control of Pollution Act 1974 (Section 61) Notice is 
to be served by Principle Contractor on Local Authority. 

Note:   items g - j inclusive need to take particular account of the potential for 
statutory nuisance arising from site related activities [see Informatives]. 

Note: If, during the writing of the CPM, any specific issue needs to be 
discussed/clarified the applicant should contact the Pollution Control Division,  
Housing and Public Protection Service, Rm 401 Guildhall SA1 4PE 01792 635600 

Page 246



 Reason: To ensure minimal nuisance impact on local residents/businesses from 
construction activities.  

 

6 The hedgerows on the northern and western boundaries of the site shall be 
retained in accordance with a scheme which shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
development.  Should any part die or be damaged during the course of 
development, replacement planting shall be undertaken in accordance with a 
scheme to be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: Permission is granted having regard to the present screening and 
boundary planting in existence, the retention of which will ensure a satisfactory 
visual appearance.  

 

7 Prior to the commencement of the stonework on site, a sample panel of the 
stonework shall be submitted to and/or constructed on site and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority in writing. The boundary walls and pillars shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details.  

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.  

 

8 No development shall be commenced until details of the proposed arrangements 
for future management and maintenance of the proposed streets within the 
development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.  

 Reason: In the interest of highway safety.  

 

9 No development shall be commenced until full engineering, drainage, street 
lighting and constructional details of the streets proposed for adoption have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall, thereafter, be constructed in accordance with the approved 
details, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: In the interest of highway safety.  

 

10 Prior to any works commencing on the site, a Construction Traffic Management 
Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The approved traffic management plan shall be implemented and adhered to at all 
times unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: In the interest of highway safety.  

 

11 No work shall commence on that part of the site which requires the highway to be 
stopped up until the stopping up procedure has been completed. 

 Reason: In the interest of highway safety.  

 

12 No soakaway shall be sited within 5m of any adopted highway. 

 Reason: In the interest of highway safety.  

 

13 The site shall not be brought into beneficial use until the lane connecting 
Monksland Road with the A4118 to the east of the site has been resurfaced in 
accordance with details to be agreed.  (Note this is work to the existing highway 
which will need to be secured through a Section 278 Agreement and undertaken 

Page 247



by the Highway Authority at the expense of the developer). 

 Reason: In the interest of highway safety.  

 

14 Notwithstanding the submitted plans, the service strip opposite plots 7 and 8, shall 
be repositioned to follow the realigned kerb line in accordance with details to be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 Reason: In the interest of highway safety.  

 

15 Prior to the commencement of work on site the results of the soakaway tests shall 
be submitted to and carried out in strict accordance with BRE Digest 365 or the 
equivalent CIRIA document. Any surface water drainage system must be designed 
to accommodate the 1 in100 year critical storm including an appropriate allowance 
for climate change unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  

 Reason: To ensure that an appropriately designed surface water management 
system is implemented so as to avoid creating surface water flood risk to the 
development itself and adjacent third parties.   

 

16 No development shall commence until the developer has submitted a scheme for 
the comprehensive and integrated drainage of the site showing how surface water 
and land drainage will be dealt with and this has been approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include details of a sustainable 
drainage system (SuDS) for surface water drainage and/or details of any 
connections to a surface water drainage network. The development shall not be 
brought into beneficial use until the works have been completed in accordance 
with the approved drainage scheme, and this scheme shall be retained and 
maintained as approved unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  

 Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory comprehensive means of drainage is 
achieved and that no adverse impact occurs to the environment and to minimise 
surface water run-off.  

 

17 The dwelling(s) shall be constructed to achieve a minimum of Code for 
Sustainable Homes Level 3 and achieve a minimum of 1 credit under category 
"Ene1 - Dwelling Emission Rate" in accordance with the requirements of the Code 
for Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide (November 2010 - Version 3). The 
development shall be carried out entirely in accordance with the approved 
assessment and certification.  

 Reason: In the interests of sustainability.  

 

18 The construction of the dwelling(s) hereby permitted and any external works shall 
not begin until an "Interim Certificate" has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority, certifying that a minimum Code for Sustainable Homes (Level 3) and a 
minimum of 1 credit under "Ene1 - Dwelling Emission Rate", has been achieved in 
accordance with the requirements of the Code for Sustainable Homes; Technical 
Advice Guide (November 2010 - Version 3). 

 Reason: In the interests of sustainability.  

 

19 Prior to the occupation of the dwelling(s) hereby permitted, a Code for Sustainable 
Homes "Final certificate" shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 

Page 248



certifying that a minimum Code for Sustainable Homes (Level 3) and a minimum 
of 1 credit under "Ene1 - Dwelling Emission Rate", has been achieved in 
accordance with the requirements of the Code for Sustainable Homes; Technical 
Advice Guide (November 2010 - Version 3). 

 Reason: In the interests of sustainability.  

 

20 The proposed landscaping shall be carried out using the native species which are 
identified in the Extended Phase 1 Habitat and Species Assessment by Just 
Mammals Consultancy unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and biodiversity.  

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1 The development plan covering the City and County of Swansea is the City and 

County of Swansea Unitary Development Plan. The following policies were 
relevant to the consideration of the application: (EV1, EV2, EV3, EV16, EV22, 
EV26, EV33, EV35, EV18, HC17, AS1, AS6) 

 
2 This consent is issued without prejudice to any other consents or easements that 

may be required in connection with the proposed development. 
 
3 1    Construction Noise 

The following restrictions should be applied to all works of demolition/ construction 
carried out on the development site 
All works and ancillary operations which are audible at the site boundary shall be 
carried out only between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours on Mondays to 
Fridays and between the hours of 08.00 and 13.00 hours on Saturdays and at no 
time on Sundays and Public Holidays and Bank Holidays. 
The Local Authority has the power to impose the specified hours by service of an 
enforcement notice. 
Any breaches of the conditions attached to such a notice will lead to formal action 
against the person[s] named on said notice. 
 
2   Smoke/ Burning of materials 
     No burning of any material to be undertaken on site. 
The Local Authority has the power to enforce this requirement by service of an 
abatement notice. 
Any breaches of the conditions attached to such a notice will lead to formal action 
against the person[s] named on said notice. 
 
3    Dust Control: 
During construction work the developer shall operate all best practice to minimise 
dust arisings or dust nuisance from the site. This includes dust and debris from 
vehicles leaving the site. 
The Local Authority has the power to enforce this requirement by service of an 
abatement notice. 
Any breaches of the conditions attached to such a notice will lead to formal action 
against the person[s] named on said notice. 
 
4    Lighting 
During construction work the developer shall operate all best practice to minimise 
nuisance to locals residences from on site lighting. Due consideration should be 

Page 249



taken of the Institute of Lighting [www.ile.org.uk ] recommendations  
 
4 Note: The Developer must contact the Highway Management Group , The City 

and County of Swansea, Penllergaer Offices, c/o The Civic Centre, Swansea SA1 
3SN before carrying out any work . Please contact the Senior Engineer 
(Development), e-mails to : jim.marshall@swansea.gov.uk or the Team Leader, e-
mails to mark.jones@swansea.gov.uk , tel. no. 01792 636091 

 
5 Foul water and surface water discharges shall be drained separately from the site. 

 
Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 
 
No surface water shall be allowed to connect either directly or indirectly, to the 
public sewerage system unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to 
protect the health and safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the 
environment. 
 
Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge, either directly or 
indirectly into the public sewerage system. 
 
Reason: To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and 
pollution of environment. 
 
If a connection is required to the public sewerage system, the developer is advised 
to contact Dwr Cymru Welsh Water's Network Development Consultants on 0800 
917 2652. 
 
Some public sewers and lateral drains may not be recorded on Dwr Cymru Welsh 
Water maps of public sewers because they were originally privately owned and 
were transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water Industry Regulations 
2011. The presence of such assets may affect the proposal. In order to assist Dwr 
Cymru Welsh Water in delaing with the proposal you should contact them on 0800 
085 3968 to establish the location and status of the sewer. Under the Water 
Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at 
all times. 
 
The Welsh Government have introduced new legislation that will make it 
mandatory for all developers who wish to communicate with the public sewerage 
system to obtain an adoption agreement for their sewerage with Dwr Cymru Welsh 
Water (DCWW). The Welsh Ministers Standards for the construction of sewerage 
apparatus and an agreement under Section 104 of the Water Industry Act (WIA) 
1991 will need to be completed in advance of any authorisation to communicate 
with the public sewerage system under Section 106 WIA 1991 being granted by 
DCWW. 
 
Welsh Government introduced the Welsh Ministers Standards on the 1st October 
2012 and we would welcome your support in informing applicants who wish to 
communicate with the public sewerage system to engage with us at the earliest 
opportunity. Further information on the Welsh Ministers Standards is available for 
viewing on our Developer Services Section of our website - www.dwrcymru.com 
 

Page 250



Further information on the Welsh Ministers Standards Can be found on the Welsh 
Government website - www.wales.gov.uk 
 
Sewage Treatment 
 
No problems are envisaged with the Waste Water Treatment Works for the 
treatment of domestic discharges from this site. 
 
Water Supply 
 
No problems are envisaged with the provision of water supply for this 
development. 
 
A water supply can be made available to serve this proposed development. The 
developer may be required to contribute, under sections 40-41 of the Water 
Industry Act 1991, towards the provision of new off-site and/or on-site watermains 
and associated infrastructure. The level of contribution can be calculated upon 
receipt of detailed site layout plans which should be sent to the address above. 
 
Our response is based on the information provided by our application. Should the 
proposal alter during the course of the application process we kindly request that 
we are re-consulted and reserve the right to make new representation. 

 
6 Birds may be present. Please note it is an offence under the Wildlife & Countryside 

Act 1981 (as amended) to intentionally (intentionally or recklessly for Schedule 1 
birds) to: 
-  Kill, injure or take any wild bird 
-  Take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that nest in use or being 
built 
-  Take or destroy an egg of any wild bird 
Care should be taken when working on buildings particularly during the bird 
nesting season March-August. 

 
7 The streets shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved 

management and maintenance details until such time as an agreement has been 
entered into under section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or a private management 
and maintenance company has been established. 

 
 
PLANS 
 
3335/PA/001 location plan, 3335/PA/002 A existing topographical survey, 3335/PA/005 
boundary & external works details, 3335/PA/006 porch details dated 19th March, 
Geotechnical and Geo-environmental report, Soakaways (2), 18443/01 - Existing Site 
Survey Plan, 18443/04 Rev A site cross/long section, 3335/SK/002 - Existing 
topographical survey, Draintech Survey dated 28th March 2014, 3335/PA/004 REV B - 
Floor Plans and Elevations, 18443/03 REV B - Autotrack Swept Plans dated 5th June 
2014 and 18443/02 Rev F- Proposed Engineering Site Plan, 3335/PA/003 REV H - 
Proposed Site Plan dated 7th July 2014. 
 

Page 251



Report of the Head of Economic Regeneration & Planning  

Planning Committee - 20 January 2015 

Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order No. P17.7.4.568,  

Oystermouth Court Swansea. 

To consider the confirmation, as a full Order, of the provisional 
Tree Preservation Order for Oystermouth Court Swansea. 

Recommendation:   
That the Tree Preservation Order for Oystermouth Court 
Swansea be confirmed  

For Decision  

 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The provisional Order was served on 01/05/2014. 
 
2. Objections and Representations 
 
2.1 An objection was received from the agent acting on behalf of the Oystermouth 

Court Management Company on the basis that their client feels that that the 
council wrongly took advantage of information provided by them following an 
enquiry seeking clarification of whether the trees in question were protected, 
as they wished to cut down the trees. 
 

2.2 Secondly from a resident who cites a dispute with a neighbouring property 
that has recently been resolved and their desire to carry out a landscape 
scheme in the area. The objector goes on say that the trees in question were 
not planted by them and that she has “a lovely view of the Castle. My friends 
and neighbours on the right hand side have their view blocked by the trees.”   

 
3 Appraisal 
 
3.1 The trees in question were probably planted to discharge a landscape 

condition at the time of construction within the grounds of Oystermouth Court 
(a block of flats). The trees are significant in the amenity that they provide, in 
large part in framing and softening the main elevation of the flats to the 
adjacent highway.   

Page 252

Agenda Item 9



 A great deal of the original tree and shrub planting that was planted at the 
time of the construction of the development has been removed. Confirmation 
of this order does not preclude additional planting or an application to do 
works to the trees in question. 

 

3.2 With regard to objection 1 (par 2.1), the council was made aware of the threat 
to the trees by the enquiry by the agent. As the trees in question were of 
significant amenity value in a prominent location, clearly visible to the public 
and probably planted as part of the original ‘landscaping’ of the development 
and were directly threatened by the enquiry it was decided to protect the trees 
be protected by the serving of the Tree preservation Order. 

 

3.3 With regard to objection 2 (para2.2) the trees in question were probably 
planted at the time of the construction of the flats as part of a landscape 
condition. As previously described a number of other trees and shrubs planted 
as part of that original condition have been removed. The fact that the 
objector clearly wants her friend and neighbours to enjoy the view that she 
does is further testimony to the threat to the removal of the trees. 
Confirmation of the tree preservation order does not preclude additional 
planting or ‘landscaping’ of the area in question; however it does give the local 
authority a measure of control over the management of the protected trees 

 
It is considered therefore that the Order should be confirmed 

 
4. Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Tree Preservation Order for Oystermouth Court 
Swansea’ P17.7.4.568 be confirmed without amendment. 
 
 

Page 253


	Agenda
	4 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.
	5 Minutes.
	$$Minutes Dec 9
	$$Minutes dec 12 area 2

	7 Determination of Planning Applications under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
	Two Stage Voting
	CONTENTS PAGE - 20TH JANUARY 2014
	SCHEDULE - 20TH JANUARY 2015

	8 Planning Application No. 2014/0417 - Land off Monksland Road, Scurlage, Gower, Swansea.
	9 Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order No. P17.7.4.568 - Oystermouth Court, Swansea.

